
           
                   Meeting of the City Council
                              June 13, 2023
                  Addison Conference Centre
                       15650 Addison Road
                      Addison, Texas 75001

Email comments may be submitted using the Public Comment Form located
on the Town's website by 3:00 pm the day of the meeting. The meeting will be live-streamed on
Addison's website at www.addisontexas.net.
           

WORK SESSION
After determining that a quorum is present, the Addison City Council will convene
for a Work Session beginning at 6:00 PM in the Council Work Room located at
15650 Addison Road in Addison, Texas. 

Call Meeting to Order and Announce that a Quorum is Present
 

CLOSED SESSION
The Addison City Council will meet in the Council Work Room in a Closed
Session pursuant to Texas Government Code, Chapter 551.071 (2) Advice from
the City Attorney bona matter in which the duty of the attorney to the
governmental body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct
of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with this chapter:

Zoning Case 1868 SUP

In accordance with Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, the City Council will
reconvene in Open Session to consider action, if any, on matters discussed in the
Closed Session.
 

Immediately following the Closed Session, the City Council will meet in the
Council Work Room to consider the following Work Session items.  
 

1. Present and discuss the Airport Quarterly Report for the Fiscal Year
2023 Second Quarter ended March 31, 2023.

 

2. Present and discuss a public art installation to honor public safety in
Addison.

 



COUNCIL MEETING
After determining that a quorum is present, the Addison City Council will convene
for a Council Meeting beginning at 7:30 PM in the Council Chambers located at
15650 Addison Road in Addison, Texas. 

Call the Meeting to Order and Announce that a Quorum is Present

Pledge of Allegiance: United States and Texas Flags
 

Announcements and Acknowledgments 

Proclamation - 30th Anniversary of Chamberlain's Steak & Chop House
 

Public Comment 
The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any matter,
including items on the agenda, except public hearings that are included on the
agenda. Comments related to public hearings will be heard when the specific
hearing starts. Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes, unless
otherwise required by law. To address the Council, please fill out a City Council
Appearance Card and submit it to a staff member prior to the Public Comment
item on the agenda. The Council is not permitted to take any action or discuss
any item not listed on the agenda.  The Council may choose to place the item on
a future agenda.
 

Consent Agenda 
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the City
Council and will be enacted by one motion with no individual consideration. If
individual consideration of an item is requested, it will be pulled from the Consent
Agenda and discussed separately.
 

3. Consider action on the Minutes from the May 23, 2023 City Council
Meeting.

 

4. Consider action on a Resolution appointing Bruce Arfsten, Town of
Addison Mayor, as the Primary Representative and Bob Dubey, City of
Richardson Mayor, as the Alternate to the aggregated position of
Representative to the Regional Transportation Council (RTC) of the
North Central Texas Council of Governments.

 



5. Consider action on an Ordinance amending Chapter 6, of the Code of
Ordinances by amending alcoholic beverage fees, definitions, levy of
fees by the Town, adding provisions for non-payment, permit review, and
consumption in certain places.

 

Items for Individual Consideration
 

6. Hold a Public Hearing, present, discuss, and consider action on a
request for a Special Use Permit (SUP) to allow a Religious Institution
on 1.28± acres located at the northwest corner of Celestial Road and
Winnwood Road (5555 Celestial Road) that is currently zoned Planned
Development (PD), through Ordinance No. O91-038. Case
1868-SUP/5555 Celestial Road (White Rock Chapel). THE APPLICANT
HAS REQUESTED TO POSTPONE CONSIDERATION OF THIS ITEM
TO THE JULY 11, 2023 COUNCIL MEETING. 

 

7. Present, discuss, and consider action on a request for a Meritorious
Exception to Chapter 62 of the Code of Ordinances for Hawkers, located
at 5100 Belt Line Road, Suite 430, in order to allow Hawkers to exceed
the maximum number of attached wall signs per façade and for the
attached wall sign to exceed the maximum letter/logo height. (Case
MR2023-04/5100 Belt Line Road, Suite 430 - Hawkers). 

 

8. Present, discuss, and consider action on a Resolution approving the
installation of a public art piece created by artist David B. Hickman to be
located within the Cotton Belt Trail Corridor.

 

9. Present, discuss, and consider action on a Resolution approving an
agreement for professional engineering services between the Town of
Addison and Teague Nall and Perkins, Inc. for the design of the Quorum
Drive Reconstruction Project and authorizing the City Manager to
execute the agreement in an amount not to exceed $4,421,647.

 

10. Present, discuss, and consider action on a Resolution authorizing
publication of notice of intention to issue Town of Addison, Texas
Certificates of Obligation; approving the preparation of a preliminary
official statement and a notice of sale; and, providing for the effective
date.

 



Items of Community Interest
The City Council will have an opportunity to address items of community interest,
including: expressions of thanks, congratulations, or condolence; information
regarding holiday schedules; an honorary or salutary recognition; a reminder
about an upcoming event organized or sponsored by the Town of Addison;
information regarding a social, ceremonial, or community event that was or will be
attended by an Addison City Council member or an official; and, announcements
involving an eminent threat to public health and safety in Addison that has arisen
since posting this agenda. 

Adjourn Meeting
 

NOTE: The City Council reserves the right to meet in Closed Session at any time
in the course of this meeting to discuss matters listed on the agenda, as
authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter
551, including §551.071 (private consultation with the attorney for the City);
§551.072 (purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property); §551.074
(personnel or to hear complaints against personnel); §551.076 (deployment, or
specific occasions for implementation of security personnel or devices); and
§551.087 (economic development negotiations). Any decision held on such
matters will be taken or conducted in Open Session following the conclusion of
the Closed Session.

 

THE TOWN OF ADDISON IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH
DISABILITIES.  PLEASE CALL (972) 450-7017 AT LEAST 48 HOURS IN
ADVANCE IF YOU NEED ASSISTANCE.

POSTED BY:     ________________________________
                           Irma G. Parker, City Secretary
DATE POSTED: June 8, 2023
TIME POSTED: 5:00PM
DATE REMOVED FROM BULLETIN BOARD:  ______________________
REMOVED BY:  ________________________________
 



   

Council Meeting 1.        
Meeting Date: 06/13/2023  

Department: Airport
Pillars: Excellence in Transportation Systems
Milestones: Leverage the new Customs facility to promote international travel use

of the Airport
Leverage the use of the Airport to maximize business growth and
expansion

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present and discuss the Airport Quarterly Report for the Fiscal Year 2023
Second Quarter ended March 31, 2023.

BACKGROUND:
The purpose of this item is to provide an overview of key Airport performance
measures for the second quarter of Fiscal Year 2023 (FY23), which ended on
March 31, 2023. The report presents data on revenue, fuel flowage, and aircraft
operations (take-offs and landings), including international operations. The report
also includes a snapshot of the Airport's real estate portfolio. Highlights for the
quarter include: 

record second quarter real estate revenue and total revenue;
completion of final design for the Taxiway Bravo extension (phase 1);
hosting of two significant events promoting use of the new U.S. Customs
facility; and
steady progress on multiple redevelopment and airport improvement
projects.

RECOMMENDATION:
Information only. No action required.

Attachments
Presentation - FY23 Q2 Airport Report 



Addison Airport
2nd Quarter Update – Fiscal Year 2023

June 13, 2023



Addison Airport Quarterly Update – Overview

2

• Statistics: FY23 Q2
• Aircraft Operations
• International Operations
• Fuel Flowage
• Revenue

• Projects and Progress



FY23 Q2 Statistics – Aircraft Operations

3

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

FY19Q2 FY20Q2 FY21Q2 FY22Q2 FY23Q2

Operations Local

VFR Itinerant

IFR Itinerant

Instrument (IFR) Operations
• Down 11.5% from Q2 of FY22
• Up 21.6% over Q2 of FY21

Total Operations
• Down 4.8% from Q2 of FY22
• Up 20.0% over Q2 of FY21


Chart1



Operations



IFR Itinerant	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	9454	9382	8647	11877	10516	VFR Itinerant	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	15004	15173	13944	16832	16988	Local	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	1257	1000	567	481	275	









Monthly Report Data

		Monthly Report Data

		YY-MM		OPERATIONS						International Operations						FUEL FLOWAGE (gallons)						REVENUE

				Total		VFR		IFR		inbound		outbound		Total		Jet-A		AvGas		Total		Real Estate		Fuel		Other		Total		Budget

		11-10		8,511		5,609		2,902		27		7		34		398,445		56,310		454,755		$   285,776		$   55,203		$   4,283		$   345,262		$   350,316

		11-11		7,447		4,507		2,940		32		17		49		448,518		44,491		493,009		$   284,963		$   60,437		$   3,761		$   349,162		$   348,985

		11-12		7,043		4,012		3,031		29		16		45		455,097		40,750		495,847		$   290,484		$   60,790		$   6,116		$   357,390		$   351,605

		12-01		7,478		4,600		2,878		34		17		51		385,946		48,633		434,579		$   333,364		$   53,393		$   15,644		$   402,401		$   398,721

		12-02		7,745		4,652		3,093		25		10		35		402,350		48,872		451,222		$   289,743		$   55,726		$   3,919		$   349,387		$   345,093

		12-03		8,196		4,939		3,257		33		21		54		468,123		54,367		522,490		$   287,985		$   64,288		$   6,040		$   358,313		$   344,618

		12-04		8,010		4,760		3,250		38		16		54		414,178		36,194		450,372		$   294,422		$   55,869		$   6,034		$   356,326		$   347,328

		12-05		8,259		5,102		3,157		26		18		44		469,885		68,292		538,177		$   290,342		$   65,208		$   7,269		$   362,819		$   346,465

		12-06		8,431		5,612		2,819		24		15		39		479,389		44,165		523,554		$   291,734		$   64,952		$   4,501		$   361,186		$   345,936

		12-07		8,560		5,807		2,753		31		14		45		423,797		59,520		483,317		$   314,171		$   59,530		$   4,153		$   377,854		$   345,411

		12-08		8,533		5,609		2,924		28		22		50		448,320		49,981		498,301		$   294,577		$   61,341		$   5,359		$   361,278		$   344,373

		12-09		7,816		4,785		3,031		22		15		37		465,035		32,515		497,550		$   294,702		$   60,931		$   2,612		$   358,245		$   338,879

		FY12		96,029		59,994		36,035		349		188		537		5,259,083		584,090		5,843,173		$   3,552,264		$   717,667		$   69,692		$   4,339,623		$   4,207,729

		12-10		8,551		5,135		3,416		36		44		80		579,033		59,855		638,888		$   393,907		$   74,838		$   4,774		$   473,520		$   339,385

		12-11		8,592		5,718		2,874		30		33		63		516,596		48,664		565,260		$   287,933		$   69,386		$   4,567		$   361,886		$   340,770

		12-12		7,119		4,389		2,730		29		17		46		471,338		47,760		519,098		$   287,662		$   63,856		$   3,952		$   355,470		$   341,839

		13-01		6,998		3,988		3,010		37		17		54		432,665		33,621		466,286		$   337,740		$   56,276		$   13,151		$   407,167		$   342,814

		13-02		7,301		4,469		2,832		30		23		53		423,262		40,501		463,763		$   287,724		$   56,620		$   6,145		$   350,489		$   382,023

		13-03		7,976		5,018		2,958		32		30		62		495,648		45,739		541,387		$   290,343		$   65,602		$   5,680		$   361,625		$   333,966

		13-04		7,531		4,230		3,301		25		12		37		467,864		50,248		518,112		$   291,581		$   63,128		$   8,426		$   363,135		$   335,163

		13-05		7,802		4,465		3,337		36		21		57		516,398		56,712		573,110		$   293,757		$   69,406		$   2,819		$   365,982		$   335,210

		13-06		9,043		6,252		2,791		35		23		58		453,934		48,215		502,149		$   297,302		$   60,873		$   5,033		$   363,209		$   334,670

		13-07		8,041		5,375		2,666		31		20		51		445,238		52,103		497,341		$   314,736		$   60,316		$   7,389		$   382,441		$   326,216

		13-08		8,407		5,893		2,514		26		17		43		413,465		48,609		462,074		$   296,266		$   56,395		$   7,122		$   359,783		$   354,568

		13-09		8,493		5,905		2,588		35		21		56		427,496		76,475		503,971		$   285,436		$   62,061		$   11,849		$   359,345		$   328,002

		FY13		95,854		60,837		35,017		382		278		660		5,642,937		608,502		6,251,439		$   3,664,386		$   758,758		$   80,907		$   4,504,051		$   4,094,626

		13-10		7,957		4,513		3,444		25		12		37		486,610		44,205		530,815		$   305,369		$   64,009		$   5,562		$   374,941		$   360,775

		13-11		7,290		4,148		3,142		37		23		60		504,057		56,949		561,006		$   309,792		$   68,293		$   7,774		$   385,859		$   360,535

		13-12		7,181		4,361		2,820		31		16		47		529,360		41,326		570,686		$   293,646		$   69,128		$   8,556		$   371,330		$   357,752

		14-01		7,480		4,762		2,718		39		25		64		470,124		45,202		515,326		$   365,090		$   62,808		$   11,087		$   438,985		$   410,369

		14-02		6,306		3,581		2,725		36		19		55		413,457		48,089		461,546		$   304,089		$   56,350		$   6,348		$   366,786		$   351,309

		14-03		7,872		4,912		2,960		48		27		75		555,209		48,804		604,013		$   306,873		$   73,117		$   7,047		$   387,037		$   358,017

		14-04		7,481		4,496		2,985		37		21		58		521,037		39,703		560,740		$   312,833		$   67,920		$   14,211		$   394,964		$   356,196

		14-05		8,494		5,239		3,255		25		19		44		501,738		55,569		557,307		$   319,693		$   67,507		$   6,569		$   393,769		$   359,904

		14-06		7,996		4,946		3,050		28		19		47		469,361		35,309		504,670		$   346,460		$   61,504		$   8,428		$   416,392		$   359,949

		14-07		8,545		5,602		2,943		11		13		24		468,079		53,042		521,121		$   365,531		$   63,141		$   8,687		$   437,359		$   377,349

		14-08		8,778		5,915		2,863		23		20		43		473,344		56,938		530,282		$   348,458		$   64,878		$   4,376		$   417,713		$   356,263

		14-09		8,594		5,577		3,017		28		16		44		487,774		51,285		539,059		$   352,447		$   65,630		$   10,096		$   428,173		$   356,413

		FY14		93,974		58,052		35,922		368		230		598		5,880,150		576,421		6,456,571		$   3,930,282		$   784,285		$   98,740		$   4,813,307		$   4,364,830

		14-10		9,392		6,186		3,206		28		7		35		625,723		60,447		686,170		$   354,794		$   83,292		$   4,967		$   443,053		$   394,916

		14-11		7,361		4,344		3,017		23		16		39		561,762		35,195		596,957		$   353,431		$   72,315		$   4,402		$   430,148		$   398,156

		14-12		6,864		3,551		3,313		28		18		46		515,066		40,555		555,621		$   344,862		$   67,321		$   4,154		$   416,336		$   397,758

		15-01		7,420		4,681		2,739		27		19		46		526,523		40,113		566,636		$   397,803		$   68,960		$   10,219		$   476,982		$   447,209

		15-02		6,079		3,544		2,535		22		10		32		464,949		33,183		498,132		$   347,299		$   60,411		$   3,299		$   411,008		$   389,608

		15-03		7,101		3,809		3,292		43		24		67		540,890		31,294		572,184		$   349,226		$   69,616		$   6,530		$   425,372		$   399,616

		15-04		7,602		4,099		3,503		31		17		48		533,356		39,446		572,802		$   348,046		$   69,683		$   7,359		$   425,089		$   397,649

		15-05		7,063		3,831		3,232		56		17		73		537,445		49,873		587,318		$   341,405		$   71,420		$   6,314		$   419,139		$   400,169

		15-06		9,069		6,193		2,876		30		18		48		493,505		43,931		537,436		$   345,079		$   65,431		$   7,621		$   418,131		$   397,299

		15-07		9,324		6,276		3,048		34		15		49		484,546		57,731		542,277		$   362,040		$   66,339		$   6,045		$   434,424		$   414,709

		15-08		8,777		6,008		2,769		26		8		34		452,700		47,361		500,061		$   351,316		$   60,946		$   7,902		$   420,164		$   393,408

		15-09		9,272		5,964		3,308		23		9		32		545,027		58,060		603,087		$   357,147		$   73,311		$   5,055		$   435,513		$   394,576

		FY15		95,324		58,486		36,838		371		178		549		6,281,492		537,189		6,818,681		$   4,252,449		$   829,044		$   73,867		$   5,155,360		$   4,825,075

		15-10		8,940		5,712		3,228		29		15		44		553,061		61,883		614,944		$   357,964		$   75,160		$   6,800		$   439,924		$   438,190

		15-11		7,418		4,266		3,152		38		20		58		509,770		35,901		545,671		$   349,633		$   66,441		$   13,964		$   430,039		$   433,174

		15-12		8,407		5,538		2,869		34		30		64		535,226		40,829		576,055		$   355,214		$   70,423		$   10,360		$   435,997		$   431,817

		16-01		8,237		5,457		2,780		38		24		62		458,223		41,233		499,456		$   403,057		$   60,940		$   21,924		$   485,921		$   484,234

		16-02		8,462		5,448		3,014		42		26		68		496,404		41,091		537,495		$   355,226		$   68,022		$   11,199		$   434,447		$   433,631

		16-03		7,469		4,457		3,012		49		22		71		461,607		55,560		517,167		$   364,935		$   63,855		$   14,316		$   443,105		$   444,436

		16-04		8,148		5,091		3,057		29		12		41		471,984		43,703		515,687		$   365,736		$   64,105		$   13,146		$   442,987		$   422,640

		16-05		8,114		5,103		3,011		37		25		62		437,201		38,430		475,631		$   364,890		$   67,796		$   8,228		$   440,915		$   422,149

		16-06		9,205		6,226		2,979		37		13		50		465,444		57,618		523,062		$   363,456		$   76,284		$   9,964		$   449,704		$   415,361

		16-07		8,546		5,938		2,608		30		10		40		424,287		51,400		475,687		$   384,572		$   67,637		$   13,073		$   465,281		$   431,685

		16-08		8,838		5,983		2,855		19		8		27		418,310		31,883		450,193		$   381,334		$   64,290		$   10,361		$   455,984		$   414,164

		16-09		9,076		6,007		3,069		27		13		40		522,594		58,523		581,117		$   376,986		$   83,288		$   8,459		$   468,734		$   416,181

		FY16		100,860		65,226		35,634		409		218		627		5,754,111		558,054		6,312,165		$   4,423,003		$   828,240		$   141,794		$   5,393,037		$   5,187,662

		16-10		9,580		6,171		3,409		31		13		44		523,272		56,481		579,753		$   370,727		$   83,688		$   10,941		$   465,356		$   444,831

		16-11		7,385		4,339		3,046		39		16		55		511,155		45,330		556,485		$   368,650		$   79,559		$   12,244		$   460,454		$   437,534

		16-12		7,315		4,455		2,860		42		23		65		513,453		28,934		542,387		$   353,039		$   77,870		$   13,590		$   444,500		$   435,627

		17-01		7,369		4,692		2,677		38		16		54		441,721		51,531		493,252		$   391,545		$   70,053		$   13,733		$   475,332		$   492,691

		17-02		7,386		4,593		2,793		32		10		42		491,491		31,862		523,353		$   343,434		$   75,183		$   14,497		$   433,114		$   446,485

		17-03		8,353		5,196		3,157		45		21		66		486,359		44,561		530,920		$   349,043		$   76,561		$   12,217		$   437,821		$   454,431

		17-04		7,196		4,208		2,988		25		13		38		434,626		49,999		484,625		$   352,297		$   69,912		$   14,572		$   436,781		$   455,154

		17-05		8,643		5,676		2,967		24		19		43		505,339		42,733		548,072		$   363,977		$   77,360		$   7,689		$   449,026		$   458,434

		17-06		8,395		5,391		3,004		37		20		57		459,824		39,296		499,120		$   363,011		$   71,770		$   12,171		$   446,951		$   451,330

		17-07		8,910		6,190		2,720		35		11		46		508,559		49,993		558,552		$   381,670		$   81,350		$   10,642		$   473,662		$   469,100

		17-08		8,430		5,268		3,162		18		8		26		514,755		58,847		573,602		$   366,885		$   82,507		$   9,969		$   459,361		$   449,553

		17-09		9,659		6,348		3,311		32		16		48		493,277		51,736		545,013		$   365,626		$   78,515		$   10,619		$   454,759		$   454,989

		FY17		98,621		62,527		36,094		398		186		584		5,883,831		551,303		6,435,134		$   4,369,905		$   924,328		$   142,884		$   5,437,117		$   5,450,158

		17-10		8,895		5,671		3,224		32		15		47		529,149		55,595		584,744		$   367,559		$   83,762		$   10,574		$   461,894		$   453,485

		17-11		8,746		5,083		3,663		33		14		47		552,450		51,038		603,488		$   367,157		$   85,961		$   10,950		$   464,068		$   448,981

		17-12		7,512		4,659		2,853		39		25		64		474,317		49,006		523,323		$   367,364		$   75,183		$   13,278		$   455,824		$   447,648

		18-01		8,114		5,203		2,911		38		22		60		493,347		37,726		531,073		$   414,943		$   75,348		$   12,689		$   502,980		$   490,865

		18-02		5,866		3,129		2,737		37		12		49		481,758		35,420		517,178		$   374,077		$   74,556		$   11,675		$   460,308		$   437,600

		18-03		8,968		5,667		3,301		56		24		80		557,985		56,480		614,465		$   372,683		$   88,962		$   14,395		$   476,039		$   449,271

		18-04		8,362		5,317		3,045		45		22		67		490,653		44,136		534,789		$   364,132		$   76,778		$   14,475		$   455,385		$   447,454

		18-05		9,854		6,580		3,274		35		15		50		525,621		66,701		592,322		$   368,924		$   84,448		$   8,618		$   461,990		$   449,513

		18-06		9,517		6,348		3,169		34		10		44		547,460		62,423		609,883		$   364,563		$   88,853		$   18,029		$   471,445		$   443,980

		18-07		8,950		6,121		2,829		31		14		45		513,573		53,552		567,125		$   386,877		$   80,334		$   9,241		$   476,451		$   457,301

		18-08		9,893		6,728		3,165		22		3		25		522,511		58,944		581,455		$   358,921		$   84,853		$   12,750		$   456,525		$   439,517

		18-09		7,617		3,982		3,635		23		6		29		508,639		47,434		556,073		$   366,385		$   78,779		$   8,328		$   453,492		$   449,923

		FY18		102,294		64,488		37,806		425		182		607		6,197,463		618,455		6,815,918		$   4,473,583		$   977,818		$   145,000		$   5,596,402		$   5,415,538

		18-10		8,977		5,042		3,935		42		11		53		555,796		47,404		603,200		$   368,424		$   86,679		$   9,312		$   464,414		$   439,755

		18-11		9,328		5,896		3,432		39		22		61		560,580		60,950		621,530		$   364,526		$   88,931		$   11,661		$   465,118		$   436,255

		18-12		8,289		5,209		3,080		29		26		55		537,520		49,668		587,188		$   368,933		$   84,187		$   15,299		$   468,419		$   433,555

		19-01		9,093		5,917		3,176		39		19		58		564,818		48,939		613,757		$   399,927		$   87,907		$   7,533		$   495,368		$   486,759

		19-02		6,874		3,910		2,964		44		14		58		483,192		45,447		528,639		$   358,430		$   75,622		$   15,872		$   449,924		$   440,153

		19-03		9,748		6,434		3,314		47		17		64		588,995		60,788		649,783		$   369,424		$   92,291		$   9,949		$   471,664		$   446,918

		19-04		9,318		5,920		3,398		40		23		63		546,360		47,750		594,110		$   376,077		$   86,203		$   11,933		$   474,213		$   443,879

		19-05		10,028		6,412		3,616		35		16		51		545,831		46,847		592,678		$   372,820		$   84,925		$   11,362		$   469,107		$   445,484

		19-06		10,397		7,226		3,171		25		12		37		459,955		63,342		523,297		$   372,805		$   76,426		$   6,668		$   455,899		$   443,703

		19-07		11,126		8,128		2,998		21		15		36		467,027		85,274		552,301		$   1,391,431		$   79,848		$   9,281		$   1,480,560		$   458,756

		19-08		11,219		7,897		3,322		25		12		37		553,631		64,289		617,920		$   372,016		$   89,078		$   10,063		$   471,157		$   442,658

		19-09		11,350		7,490		3,860		21		12		33		544,788		63,541		608,329		$   373,301		$   87,355		$   11,511		$   472,166		$   451,567

		FY19		115,747		75,481		40,266		407		199		606		6,408,493		684,239		7,092,732		$   5,488,112		$   1,019,452		$   130,444		$   6,638,008		$   5,369,442

		19-10		11,405		7,439		3,966		26		7		33		587,394		68,894		656,288		$   376,390		$   94,813		$   8,254		$   479,457		$   443,847

		19-11		10,567		6,950		3,617		38		21		59		497,326		65,126		562,452		$   371,814		$   80,343		$   14,462		$   466,619		$   442,476

		19-12		10,799		7,163		3,636		43		22		65		571,207		64,426		635,633		$   355,679		$   91,632		$   11,052		$   458,363		$   437,873

		20-01		8,900		5,512		3,388		37		7		44		467,518		48,571		516,089		$   403,281		$   73,567		$   11,408		$   488,256		$   489,930

		20-02		9,500		6,137		3,363		44		16		60		563,482		54,054		617,536		$   355,203		$   88,203		$   11,896		$   455,302		$   435,769

		20-03		7,155		4,524		2,631		56		15		71		407,753		40,230		447,983		$   355,611		$   64,679		$   12,477		$   432,767		$   448,307

		20-04		6,825		5,434		1,391		5		6		11		106,650		40,679		147,329		$   356,126		$   21,959		$   13,546		$   391,631		$   439,062

		20-05		9,113		6,791		2,322		12		1		13		239,109		59,885		298,994		$   366,576		$   43,415		$   6,709		$   416,699		$   442,524

		20-06		9,982		7,048		2,934		22		6		28		432,590		72,482		505,072		$   370,382		$   72,691		$   6,511		$   449,584		$   441,124

		20-07		10,386		7,095		3,291		15		6		21		492,331		63,481		555,812		$   383,522		$   79,728		$   9,406		$   472,656		$   455,070

		20-08		11,010		8,008		3,002		21		8		29		482,311		70,053		552,364		$   363,885		$   79,866		$   10,516		$   454,268		$   438,964

		20-09		9,382		5,998		3,384		24		6		30		496,914		42,887		539,801		$   363,457		$   76,881		$   10,830		$   451,167		$   444,960

		FY20		115,024		78,099		36,925		343		121		464		5,344,585		690,768		6,035,353		$   4,421,924		$   867,778		$   127,068		$   5,416,770		$   5,359,906

		20-10		9,918		6,338		3,580		27		5		32		530,193		64,444		594,637		$   357,018		$   85,818		$   15,367		$   458,202		$   417,907

		20-11		9,161		5,933		3,228		43		16		59		447,146		56,798		503,944		$   356,194		$   71,252		$   16,597		$   444,043		$   416,346

		20-12		8,567		5,599		2,968		33		21		54		514,125		56,903		571,028		$   360,755		$   82,548		$   13,621		$   456,924		$   415,613

		21-01		8,106		5,394		2,712		42		37		79		410,147		32,875		443,022		$   406,799		$   62,666		$   16,308		$   485,772		$   461,653

		21-02		5,574		3,276		2,298		29		8		37		391,524		32,589		424,113		$   362,545		$   60,032		$   11,560		$   434,136		$   412,019

		21-03		9,478		5,841		3,637		63		12		75		587,673		60,809		648,482		$   364,948		$   92,762		$   14,935		$   472,645		$   417,032

		21-04		8,422		4,982		3,440		64		26		90		584,646		48,506		633,152		$   363,624		$   89,947		$   22,052		$   475,622		$   412,992

		21-05		8,584		4,699		3,885		39		24		63		604,767		48,673		653,440		$   364,450		$   92,139		$   10,042		$   466,632		$   416,142

		21-06		10,271		6,302		3,969		58		40		98		715,873		52,415		768,288		$   355,916		$   109,827		$   13,740		$   479,483		$   412,922

		21-07		10,967		6,976		3,991		39		26		65		739,634		57,092		796,726		$   385,909		$   113,194		$   19,397		$   518,501		$   475,086

		21-08		10,267		6,457		3,810		39		24		63		681,726		62,303		744,029		$   371,107		$   106,448		$   10,414		$   487,968		$   456,439

		21-09		11,008		6,799		4,209		30		15		45		644,601		64,298		708,899		$   366,234		$   101,213		$   11,278		$   478,726		$   459,589

		FY21		110,323		68,596		41,727		506		254		760		6,852,055		637,705		7,489,760		$   4,415,499		$   1,067,845		$   175,311		$   5,658,655		$   5,173,740

		21-10		11,028		5,990		5,038		38		9		47		827,016		59,895		886,911		$   365,719		$   126,083		$   14,454		$   506,256		$   523,001

		21-11		11,351		6,301		5,050		61		23		84		889,557		55,886		945,443		$   364,559		$   134,318		$   10,780		$   509,657		$   521,750

		21-12		9,239		4,594		4,645		64		29		93		857,034		60,438		917,472		$   377,826		$   129,442		$   21,518		$   528,786		$   519,090

		22-01		10,110		6,214		3,896		57		12		69		656,523		61,178		717,701		$   465,220		$   102,465		$   14,951		$   582,636		$   559,938

		22-02		8,071		4,659		3,412		74		30		104		711,620		38,372		749,992		$   415,328		$   106,303		$   15,015		$   536,646		$   516,525

		22-03		11,009		6,440		4,569		92		51		143		861,224		45,043		906,267		$   422,284		$   128,512		$   19,200		$   569,996		$   523,868

		22-04		8,226		4,333		3,893		42		21		63		626,717		51,551		678,268		$   419,538		$   96,889		$   20,210		$   536,637		$   518,589

		22-05		9,853		5,382		4,471		47		14		61		821,711		48,173		869,884		$   445,946		$   123,091		$   12,526		$   581,562		$   523,047

		22-06		11,176		7,086		4,090		75		25		100		680,783		59,556		740,339		$   470,937		$   105,568		$   14,220		$   590,725		$   524,753

		22-07		10,470		7,019		3,451		42		17		59		624,240		48,068		672,308		$   445,462		$   96,059		$   18,275		$   559,796		$   544,934

		22-08		10,372		6,364		4,008		26		11		37		650,494		75,659		726,153		$   391,848		$   103,607		$   52,578		$   548,034		$   527,489

		22-09		11,593		7,550		4,043		28		6		34		684,881		55,986		740,867		$   1,064,673		$   105,012		$   20,190		$   1,189,875		$   530,515

		FY22		122,498		71,932		50,566		646		248		894		8,891,800		659,805		9,551,605		$   5,649,340		$   1,357,351		$   233,916		$   7,240,607		$   6,333,500

		22-10		11,074		7,052		4,022		37		7		44		680,941		77,890		758,831		$   447,219		$   108,499		$   21,143		$   576,861		$   534,767

		22-11		9,429		5,317		4,112		63		20		83		724,646		49,342		773,988		$   433,357		$   110,308		$   17,685		$   561,351		$   535,497

		22-12		8,873		5,088		3,785		62		24		86		702,536		49,392		751,928		$   460,339		$   106,591		$   18,723		$   585,653		$   539,191

		23-01		9,627		6,161		3,466		65		38		103		647,299		74,093		721,392		$   494,058		$   103,647		$   26,081		$   623,786		$   581,212

		23-02		8,573		5,420		3,153		48		19		67		598,884		40,646		639,530		$   457,617		$   90,214		$   24,660		$   572,491		$   530,150

		23-03		9,579		5,682		3,897		72		23		95		653,576		57,900		711,476		$   480,798		$   101,369		$   24,527		$   606,693		$   566,565

		23-04				0								0						0						$   -				$   552,601

		23-05				0								0						0						$   -				$   553,669

		23-06				0								0						0						$   -				$   560,215

		23-07				0								0						0						$   -				$   578,402

		23-08				0								0						0						$   -				$   556,399

		23-09				0								0						0						$   -				$   555,081

		FY23		57,155		34,720		22,435		347		131		478		4,007,882		349,263		4,357,145		$   2,773,388		$   620,628		$   132,819		$   3,526,835		$   6,643,750





Monthly Report Data (2)

		Monthly Report Data

		YY-MM		OPERATIONS						International Operations						FUEL FLOWAGE (gallons)						REVENUE										% change from prior month								% change from prior year

				Total		VFR		IFR		inbound		outbound		Total		Jet-A		AvGas		Total		Real Estate		Fuel		Other		Total		Budget		Revenue		Total Ops		Fuel		Int'l Ops		Revenue		Total Ops		Fuel		Int'l Ops

		09-10

		09-11

		09-12

		10-01

		10-02

		10-03

		10-04

		10-05

		10-06

		10-07

		10-08

		10-09

		10-10

		10-11

		10-12

		11-01

		11-02

		11-03

		11-04

		11-05

		11-06

		11-07

		11-08

		11-09

		11-10		8,511		5,609		2,902		27		7		34		398,445		56,310		454,755		$   285,776		$   55,203		$   4,283		$   345,262		$   350,316

		11-11		7,447		4,507		2,940		32		17		49		448,518		44,491		493,009		$   284,963		$   60,437		$   3,761		$   349,162		$   348,985		1%		-13%		8%		44%

		11-12		7,043		4,012		3,031		29		16		45		455,097		40,750		495,847		$   290,484		$   60,790		$   6,116		$   357,390		$   351,605		2%		-5%		1%		-8%

		12-01		7,478		4,600		2,878		34		17		51		385,946		48,633		434,579		$   333,364		$   53,393		$   15,644		$   402,401		$   398,721		13%		6%		-12%		13%

		12-02		7,745		4,652		3,093		25		10		35		402,350		48,872		451,222		$   289,743		$   55,726		$   3,919		$   349,387		$   345,093		-13%		4%		4%		-31%

		12-03		8,196		4,939		3,257		33		21		54		468,123		54,367		522,490		$   287,985		$   64,288		$   6,040		$   358,313		$   344,618		3%		6%		16%		54%

		12-04		8,010		4,760		3,250		38		16		54		414,178		36,194		450,372		$   294,422		$   55,869		$   6,034		$   356,326		$   347,328		-1%		-2%		-14%		0%

		12-05		8,259		5,102		3,157		26		18		44		469,885		68,292		538,177		$   290,342		$   65,208		$   7,269		$   362,819		$   346,465		2%		3%		19%		-19%

		12-06		8,431		5,612		2,819		24		15		39		479,389		44,165		523,554		$   291,734		$   64,952		$   4,501		$   361,186		$   345,936		-0%		2%		-3%		-11%

		12-07		8,560		5,807		2,753		31		14		45		423,797		59,520		483,317		$   314,171		$   59,530		$   4,153		$   377,854		$   345,411		5%		2%		-8%		15%

		12-08		8,533		5,609		2,924		28		22		50		448,320		49,981		498,301		$   294,577		$   61,341		$   5,359		$   361,278		$   344,373		-4%		-0%		3%		11%

		12-09		7,816		4,785		3,031		22		15		37		465,035		32,515		497,550		$   294,702		$   60,931		$   2,612		$   358,245		$   338,879		-1%		-8%		-0%		-26%

		12-10		8,551		5,135		3,416		36		44		80		579,033		59,855		638,888		$   393,907		$   74,838		$   4,774		$   473,520		$   339,385		32%		9%		28%		116%		37%		0%		40%		135%

		12-11		8,592		5,718		2,874		30		33		63		516,596		48,664		565,260		$   287,933		$   69,386		$   4,567		$   361,886		$   340,770		-24%		0%		-12%		-21%		4%		15%		15%		29%

		12-12		7,119		4,389		2,730		29		17		46		471,338		47,760		519,098		$   287,662		$   63,856		$   3,952		$   355,470		$   341,839		-2%		-17%		-8%		-27%		-1%		1%		5%		2%

		13-01		6,998		3,988		3,010		37		17		54		432,665		33,621		466,286		$   337,740		$   56,276		$   13,151		$   407,167		$   342,814		15%		-2%		-10%		17%		1%		-6%		7%		6%

		13-02		7,301		4,469		2,832		30		23		53		423,262		40,501		463,763		$   287,724		$   56,620		$   6,145		$   350,489		$   382,023		-14%		4%		-1%		-2%		0%		-6%		3%		51%

		13-03		7,976		5,018		2,958		32		30		62		495,648		45,739		541,387		$   290,343		$   65,602		$   5,680		$   361,625		$   333,966		3%		9%		17%		17%		1%		-3%		4%		15%

		13-04		7,531		4,230		3,301		25		12		37		467,864		50,248		518,112		$   291,581		$   63,128		$   8,426		$   363,135		$   335,163		0%		-6%		-4%		-40%		2%		-6%		15%		-31%

		13-05		7,802		4,465		3,337		36		21		57		516,398		56,712		573,110		$   293,757		$   69,406		$   2,819		$   365,982		$   335,210		1%		4%		11%		54%		1%		-6%		6%		30%

		13-06		9,043		6,252		2,791		35		23		58		453,934		48,215		502,149		$   297,302		$   60,873		$   5,033		$   363,209		$   334,670		-1%		16%		-12%		2%		1%		7%		-4%		49%

		13-07		8,041		5,375		2,666		31		20		51		445,238		52,103		497,341		$   314,736		$   60,316		$   7,389		$   382,441		$   326,216		5%		-11%		-1%		-12%		1%		-6%		3%		13%

		13-08		8,407		5,893		2,514		26		17		43		413,465		48,609		462,074		$   296,266		$   56,395		$   7,122		$   359,783		$   354,568		-6%		5%		-7%		-16%		-0%		-1%		-7%		-14%

		13-09		8,493		5,905		2,588		35		21		56		427,496		76,475		503,971		$   285,436		$   62,061		$   11,849		$   359,345		$   328,002		-0%		1%		9%		30%		0%		9%		1%		51%

		13-10		7,957		4,513		3,444		25		12		37		486,610		44,205		530,815		$   305,369		$   64,009		$   5,562		$   374,941		$   360,775		4%		-6%		5%		-34%		-21%		-7%		-17%		-54%

		13-11		7,290		4,148		3,142		37		23		60		504,057		56,949		561,006		$   309,792		$   68,293		$   7,774		$   385,859		$   360,535		3%		-8%		6%		62%		7%		-15%		-1%		-5%

		13-12		7,181		4,361		2,820		31		16		47		529,360		41,326		570,686		$   293,646		$   69,128		$   8,556		$   371,330		$   357,752		-4%		-1%		2%		-22%		4%		1%		10%		2%

		14-01		7,480		4,762		2,718		39		25		64		470,124		45,202		515,326		$   365,090		$   62,808		$   11,087		$   438,985		$   410,369		18%		4%		-10%		36%		8%		7%		11%		19%

		14-02		6,306		3,581		2,725		36		19		55		413,457		48,089		461,546		$   304,089		$   56,350		$   6,348		$   366,786		$   351,309		-16%		-16%		-10%		-14%		5%		-14%		-0%		4%

		14-03		7,872		4,912		2,960		48		27		75		555,209		48,804		604,013		$   306,873		$   73,117		$   7,047		$   387,037		$   358,017		6%		25%		31%		36%		7%		-1%		12%		21%

		14-04		7,481		4,496		2,985		37		21		58		521,037		39,703		560,740		$   312,833		$   67,920		$   14,211		$   394,964		$   356,196		2%		-5%		-7%		-23%		9%		-1%		8%		57%

		14-05		8,494		5,239		3,255		25		19		44		501,738		55,569		557,307		$   319,693		$   67,507		$   6,569		$   393,769		$   359,904		-0%		14%		-1%		-24%		8%		9%		-3%		-23%

		14-06		7,996		4,946		3,050		28		19		47		469,361		35,309		504,670		$   346,460		$   61,504		$   8,428		$   416,392		$   359,949		6%		-6%		-9%		7%		15%		-12%		1%		-19%

		14-07		8,545		5,602		2,943		11		13		24		468,079		53,042		521,121		$   365,531		$   63,141		$   8,687		$   437,359		$   377,349		5%		7%		3%		-49%		14%		6%		5%		-53%

		14-08		8,778		5,915		2,863		23		20		43		473,344		56,938		530,282		$   348,458		$   64,878		$   4,376		$   417,713		$   356,263		-4%		3%		2%		79%		16%		4%		15%		0%

		14-09		8,594		5,577		3,017		28		16		44		487,774		51,285		539,059		$   352,447		$   65,630		$   10,096		$   428,173		$   356,413		3%		-2%		2%		2%		19%		1%		7%		-21%

		14-10		9,392		6,186		3,206		28		7		35		625,723		60,447		686,170		$   354,794		$   83,292		$   4,967		$   443,053		$   394,916		3%		9%		27%		-20%		18%		18%		29%		-5%

		14-11		7,361		4,344		3,017		23		16		39		561,762		35,195		596,957		$   353,431		$   72,315		$   4,402		$   430,148		$   398,156		-3%		-22%		-13%		11%		11%		1%		6%		-35%

		14-12		6,864		3,551		3,313		28		18		46		515,066		40,555		555,621		$   344,862		$   67,321		$   4,154		$   416,336		$   397,758		-3%		-7%		-7%		18%		12%		-4%		-3%		-2%

		15-01		7,420		4,681		2,739		27		19		46		526,523		40,113		566,636		$   397,803		$   68,960		$   10,219		$   476,982		$   447,209		15%		8%		2%		0%		9%		-1%		10%		-28%

		15-02		6,079		3,544		2,535		22		10		32		464,949		33,183		498,132		$   347,299		$   60,411		$   3,299		$   411,008		$   389,608		-14%		-18%		-12%		-30%		12%		-4%		8%		-42%

		15-03		7,101		3,809		3,292		43		24		67		540,890		31,294		572,184		$   349,226		$   69,616		$   6,530		$   425,372		$   399,616		3%		17%		15%		109%		10%		-10%		-5%		-11%

		15-04		7,602		4,099		3,503		31		17		48		533,356		39,446		572,802		$   348,046		$   69,683		$   7,359		$   425,089		$   397,649		-0%		7%		0%		-28%		8%		2%		2%		-17%

		15-05		7,063		3,831		3,232		56		17		73		537,445		49,873		587,318		$   341,405		$   71,420		$   6,314		$   419,139		$   400,169		-1%		-7%		3%		52%		6%		-17%		5%		66%

		15-06		9,069		6,193		2,876		30		18		48		493,505		43,931		537,436		$   345,079		$   65,431		$   7,621		$   418,131		$   397,299		-0%		28%		-8%		-34%		0%		13%		6%		2%

		15-07		9,324		6,276		3,048		34		15		49		484,546		57,731		542,277		$   362,040		$   66,339		$   6,045		$   434,424		$   414,709		4%		3%		1%		2%		-1%		9%		4%		104%

		15-08		8,777		6,008		2,769		26		8		34		452,700		47,361		500,061		$   351,316		$   60,946		$   7,902		$   420,164		$   393,408		-3%		-6%		-8%		-31%		1%		-0%		-6%		-21%

		15-09		9,272		5,964		3,308		23		9		32		545,027		58,060		603,087		$   357,147		$   73,311		$   5,055		$   435,513		$   394,576		4%		6%		21%		-6%		2%		8%		12%		-27%

		15-10		8,940		5,712		3,228		29		15		44		553,061		61,883		614,944		$   357,964		$   75,160		$   6,800		$   439,924		$   438,190		1%		-4%		2%		38%		-1%		-5%		-10%		26%

		15-11		7,418		4,266		3,152		38		20		58		509,770		35,901		545,671		$   349,633		$   66,441		$   13,964		$   430,039		$   433,174		-2%		-17%		-11%		32%		-0%		1%		-9%		49%

		15-12		8,407		5,538		2,869		34		30		64		535,226		40,829		576,055		$   355,214		$   70,423		$   10,360		$   435,997		$   431,817		1%		13%		6%		10%		5%		22%		4%		39%

		16-01		8,237		5,457		2,780		38		24		62		458,223		41,233		499,456		$   403,057		$   60,940		$   21,924		$   485,921		$   484,234		11%		-2%		-13%		-3%		2%		11%		-12%		35%

		16-02		8,462		5,448		3,014		42		26		68		496,404		41,091		537,495		$   355,226		$   68,022		$   11,199		$   434,447		$   433,631		-11%		3%		8%		10%		6%		39%		8%		113%

		16-03		7,469		4,457		3,012		49		22		71		461,607		55,560		517,167		$   364,935		$   63,855		$   14,316		$   443,105		$   444,436		2%		-12%		-4%		4%		4%		5%		-10%		6%

		16-04		8,148		5,091		3,057		29		12		41		471,984		43,703		515,687		$   365,736		$   64,105		$   13,146		$   442,987		$   422,640		-0%		9%		-0%		-42%		4%		7%		-10%		-15%

		16-05		8,114		5,103		3,011		37		25		62		437,201		38,430		475,631		$   364,890		$   67,796		$   8,228		$   440,915		$   422,149		-0%		-0%		-8%		51%		5%		15%		-19%		-15%

		16-06		9,205		6,226		2,979		37		13		50		465,444		57,618		523,062		$   363,456		$   76,284		$   9,964		$   449,704		$   415,361		2%		13%		10%		-19%		8%		1%		-3%		4%

		16-07		8,546		5,938		2,608		30		10		40		424,287		51,400		475,687		$   384,572		$   67,637		$   13,073		$   465,281		$   431,685		3%		-7%		-9%		-20%		7%		-8%		-12%		-18%

		16-08		8,838		5,983		2,855		19		8		27		418,310		31,883		450,193		$   381,334		$   64,290		$   10,361		$   455,984		$   414,164		-2%		3%		-5%		-33%		9%		1%		-10%		-21%

		16-09		9,076		6,007		3,069		27		13		40		522,594		58,523		581,117		$   376,986		$   83,288		$   8,459		$   468,734		$   416,181		3%		3%		29%		48%		8%		-2%		-4%		25%

		16-10		9,580		6,171		3,409		31		13		44		523,272		56,481		579,753		$   370,727		$   83,688		$   10,941		$   465,356		$   444,831		-1%		6%		-0%		10%		6%		7%		-6%		0%

		16-11		7,385		4,339		3,046		39		16		55		511,155		45,330		556,485		$   368,650		$   79,559		$   12,244		$   460,454		$   437,534		-1%		-23%		-4%		25%		7%		-0%		2%		-5%

		16-12		7,315		4,455		2,860		42		23		65		513,453		28,934		542,387		$   353,039		$   77,870		$   13,590		$   444,500		$   435,627		-3%		-1%		-3%		18%		2%		-13%		-6%		2%

		17-01		7,369		4,692		2,677		38		16		54		441,721		51,531		493,252		$   391,545		$   70,053		$   13,733		$   475,332		$   492,691		7%		1%		-9%		-17%		-2%		-11%		-1%		-13%

		17-02		7,386		4,593		2,793		32		10		42		491,491		31,862		523,353		$   343,434		$   75,183		$   14,497		$   433,114		$   446,485		-9%		0%		6%		-22%		-0%		-13%		-3%		-38%

		17-03		8,353		5,196		3,157		45		21		66		486,359		44,561		530,920		$   349,043		$   76,561		$   12,217		$   437,821		$   454,431		1%		13%		1%		57%		-1%		12%		3%		-7%

		17-04		7,196		4,208		2,988		25		13		38		434,626		49,999		484,625		$   352,297		$   69,912		$   14,572		$   436,781		$   455,154		-0%		-14%		-9%		-42%		-1%		-12%		-6%		-7%

		17-05		8,643		5,676		2,967		24		19		43		505,339		42,733		548,072		$   363,977		$   77,360		$   7,689		$   449,026		$   458,434		3%		20%		13%		13%		2%		7%		15%		-31%

		17-06		8,395		5,391		3,004		37		20		57		459,824		39,296		499,120		$   363,011		$   71,770		$   12,171		$   446,951		$   451,330		-0%		-3%		-9%		33%		-1%		-9%		-5%		14%

		17-07		8,910		6,190		2,720		35		11		46		508,559		49,993		558,552		$   381,670		$   81,350		$   10,642		$   473,662		$   469,100		6%		6%		12%		-19%		2%		4%		17%		15%

		17-08		8,430		5,268		3,162		18		8		26		514,755		58,847		573,602		$   366,885		$   82,507		$   9,969		$   459,361		$   449,553		-3%		-5%		3%		-43%		1%		-5%		27%		-4%

		17-09		9,659		6,348		3,311		32		16		48		493,277		51,736		545,013		$   365,626		$   78,515		$   10,619		$   454,759		$   454,989		-1%		15%		-5%		85%		-3%		6%		-6%		20%

		17-10		8,895		5,671		3,224		32		15		47		529,149		55,595		584,744		$   367,559		$   83,762		$   10,574		$   461,894		$   453,485		2%		-8%		7%		-2%		-1%		-7%		1%		7%

		17-11		8,746		5,083		3,663		33		14		47		552,450		51,038		603,488		$   367,157		$   85,961		$   10,950		$   464,068		$   448,981		0%		-2%		3%		0%		1%		18%		8%		-15%

		17-12		7,512		4,659		2,853		39		25		64		474,317		49,006		523,323		$   367,364		$   75,183		$   13,278		$   455,824		$   447,648		-2%		-14%		-13%		36%		3%		3%		-4%		-2%

		18-01		8,114		5,203		2,911		38		22		60		493,347		37,726		531,073		$   414,943		$   75,348		$   12,689		$   502,980		$   490,865		10%		8%		1%		-6%		6%		10%		8%		11%

		18-02		5,866		3,129		2,737		37		12		49		481,758		35,420		517,178		$   374,077		$   74,556		$   11,675		$   460,308		$   437,600		-8%		-28%		-3%		-18%		6%		-21%		-1%		17%

		18-03		8,968		5,667		3,301		56		24		80		557,985		56,480		614,465		$   372,683		$   88,962		$   14,395		$   476,039		$   449,271		3%		53%		19%		63%		9%		7%		16%		21%

		18-04		8,362		5,317		3,045		45		22		67		490,653		44,136		534,789		$   364,132		$   76,778		$   14,475		$   455,385		$   447,454		-4%		-7%		-13%		-16%		4%		16%		10%		76%

		18-05		9,854		6,580		3,274		35		15		50		525,621		66,701		592,322		$   368,924		$   84,448		$   8,618		$   461,990		$   449,513		1%		18%		11%		-25%		3%		14%		8%		16%

		18-06		9,517		6,348		3,169		34		10		44		547,460		62,423		609,883		$   364,563		$   88,853		$   18,029		$   471,445		$   443,980		2%		-3%		3%		-12%		5%		13%		22%		-23%

		18-07		8,950		6,121		2,829		31		14		45		513,573		53,552		567,125		$   386,877		$   80,334		$   9,241		$   476,451		$   457,301		1%		-6%		-7%		2%		1%		0%		2%		-2%

		18-08		9,893		6,728		3,165		22		3		25		522,511		58,944		581,455		$   358,921		$   84,853		$   12,750		$   456,525		$   439,517		-4%		11%		3%		-44%		-1%		17%		1%		-4%

		18-09		7,617		3,982		3,635		23		6		29		508,639		47,434		556,073		$   366,385		$   78,779		$   8,328		$   453,492		$   449,923		-1%		-23%		-4%		16%		-0%		-21%		2%		-40%

		18-10		8,977		5,042		3,935		42		11		53		555,796		47,404		603,200		$   368,424		$   86,679		$   9,312		$   464,414		$   439,755		2%		18%		8%		83%		1%		1%		3%		13%

		18-11		9,328		5,896		3,432		39		22		61		560,580		60,950		621,530		$   364,526		$   88,931		$   11,661		$   465,118		$   436,255		0%		4%		3%		15%		0%		7%		3%		30%

		18-12		8,289		5,209		3,080		29		26		55		537,520		49,668		587,188		$   368,933		$   84,187		$   15,299		$   468,419		$   433,555		1%		-11%		-6%		-10%		3%		10%		12%		-14%

		19-01		9,093		5,917		3,176		39		19		58		564,818		48,939		613,757		$   399,927		$   87,907		$   7,533		$   495,368		$   486,759		6%		10%		5%		5%		-2%		12%		16%		-3%

		19-02		6,874		3,910		2,964		44		14		58		483,192		45,447		528,639		$   358,430		$   75,622		$   15,872		$   449,924		$   440,153		-9%		-24%		-14%		0%		-2%		17%		2%		18%

		19-03		9,748		6,434		3,314		47		17		64		588,995		60,788		649,783		$   369,424		$   92,291		$   9,949		$   471,664		$   446,918		5%		42%		23%		10%		-1%		9%		6%		-20%

		19-04		9,318		5,920		3,398		40		23		63		546,360		47,750		594,110		$   376,077		$   86,203		$   11,933		$   474,213		$   443,879		1%		-4%		-9%		-2%		4%		11%		11%		-6%

		19-05		10,028		6,412		3,616		35		16		51		545,831		46,847		592,678		$   372,820		$   84,925		$   11,362		$   469,107		$   445,484		-1%		8%		-0%		-19%		2%		2%		0%		2%

		19-06		10,397		7,226		3,171		25		12		37		459,955		63,342		523,297		$   372,805		$   76,426		$   6,668		$   455,899		$   443,703		-3%		4%		-12%		-27%		-3%		9%		-14%		-16%

		19-07		11,126		8,128		2,998		21		15		36		467,027		85,274		552,301		$   1,391,431		$   79,848		$   9,281		$   1,480,560		$   458,756		225%		7%		6%		-3%		211%		24%		-3%		-20%

		19-08		11,219		7,897		3,322		25		12		37		553,631		64,289		617,920		$   372,016		$   89,078		$   10,063		$   471,157		$   442,658		-68%		1%		12%		3%		3%		13%		6%		48%

		19-09		11,350		7,490		3,860		21		12		33		544,788		63,541		608,329		$   373,301		$   87,355		$   11,511		$   472,166		$   451,567		0%		1%		-2%		-11%		4%		49%		9%		14%

		19-10		11,405		7,439		3,966		26		7		33		587,394		68,894		656,288		$   376,390		$   94,813		$   8,254		$   479,457		$   443,847		2%		0%		8%		0%		3%		27%		9%		-38%

		19-11		10,567		6,950		3,617		38		21		59		497,326		65,126		562,452		$   371,814		$   80,343		$   14,462		$   466,619		$   442,476		-3%		-7%		-14%		79%		0%		13%		-10%		-3%

		19-12		10,799		7,163		3,636		43		22		65		571,207		64,426		635,633		$   355,679		$   91,632		$   11,052		$   458,363		$   437,873		-2%		2%		13%		10%		-2%		30%		8%		18%

		20-01		8,900		5,512		3,388		37		7		44		467,518		48,571		516,089		$   403,281		$   73,567		$   11,408		$   488,256		$   489,930		7%		-18%		-19%		-32%		-1%		-2%		-16%		-24%

		20-02		9,500		6,137		3,363		44		16		60		563,482		54,054		617,536		$   355,203		$   88,203		$   11,896		$   455,302		$   435,769		-7%		7%		20%		36%		1%		38%		17%		3%

		20-03		7,155		4,524		2,631		56		15		71		407,753		40,230		447,983		$   355,611		$   64,679		$   12,477		$   432,767		$   448,307		-5%		-25%		-27%		18%		-8%		-27%		-31%		11%

		20-04		6,825		5,434		1,391		5		6		11		106,650		40,679		147,329		$   356,126		$   21,959		$   13,546		$   391,631		$   439,062		-10%		-5%		-67%		-85%		-17%		-27%		-75%		-83%

		20-05		9,113		6,791		2,322		12		1		13		239,109		59,885		298,994		$   366,576		$   43,415		$   6,709		$   416,699		$   442,524		6%		34%		103%		18%		-11%		-9%		-50%		-75%

		20-06		9,982		7,048		2,934		22		6		28		432,590		72,482		505,072		$   370,382		$   72,691		$   6,511		$   449,584		$   441,124		8%		10%		69%		115%		-1%		-4%		-3%		-24%

		20-07		10,386		7,095		3,291		15		6		21		492,331		63,481		555,812		$   383,522		$   79,728		$   9,406		$   472,656		$   455,070		5%		4%		10%		-25%		-68%		-7%		1%		-42%

		20-08		11,010		8,008		3,002		21		8		29		482,311		70,053		552,364		$   363,885		$   79,866		$   10,516		$   454,268		$   438,964		-4%		6%		-1%		38%		-4%		-2%		-11%		-22%

		20-09		9,382		5,998		3,384		24		6		30		496,914		42,887		539,801		$   363,457		$   76,881		$   10,830		$   451,167		$   444,960		-1%		-15%		-2%		3%		-4%		-17%		-11%		-9%

		20-10		9,918		6,338		3,580		27		5		32		530,193		64,444		594,637		$   357,018		$   85,818		$   15,367		$   458,202		$   417,907		2%		6%		10%		7%		-4%		-13%		-9%		-3%

		20-11		9,161		5,933		3,228		43		16		59		447,146		56,798		503,944		$   356,194		$   71,252		$   16,597		$   444,043		$   416,346		-3%		-8%		-15%		84%		-5%		-13%		-10%		0%

		20-12		8,567		5,599		2,968		33		21		54		514,125		56,903		571,028		$   360,755		$   82,548		$   13,621		$   456,924		$   415,613		3%		-6%		13%		-8%		-0%		-21%		-10%		-17%

		21-01		8,106		5,394		2,712		42		37		79		410,147		32,875		443,022		$   406,799		$   62,666		$   16,308		$   485,772		$   461,653		6%		-5%		-22%		46%		-1%		-9%		-14%		80%

		21-02		5,574		3,276		2,298		29		8		37		391,524		32,589		424,113		$   362,545		$   60,032		$   11,560		$   434,136		$   412,019		-11%		-31%		-4%		-53%		-5%		-41%		-31%		-38%

		21-03		9,478		5,841		3,637		63		12		75		587,673		60,809		648,482		$   364,948		$   92,762		$   14,935		$   472,645		$   417,032		9%		70%		53%		103%		9%		32%		45%		6%

		21-04		8,422		4,982		3,440		64		26		90		584,646		48,506		633,152		$   363,624		$   89,947		$   22,052		$   475,622		$   412,992		1%		-11%		-2%		20%		21%		23%		330%		718%

		21-05		8,584		4,699		3,885		39		24		63		604,767		48,673		653,440		$   364,450		$   92,139		$   10,042		$   466,632		$   416,142		-2%		2%		3%		-30%		12%		-6%		119%		385%

		21-06		10,271		6,302		3,969		58		40		98		715,873		52,415		768,288		$   355,916		$   109,827		$   13,740		$   479,483		$   412,922		3%		20%		18%		56%		7%		3%		52%		250%

		21-07		10,967		6,976		3,991		39		26		65		739,634		57,092		796,726		$   385,909		$   113,194		$   19,397		$   518,501		$   475,086		8%		7%		4%		-34%		10%		6%		43%		210%

		21-08		10,267		6,457		3,810		39		24		63		681,726		62,303		744,029		$   371,107		$   106,448		$   10,414		$   487,968		$   456,439		-6%		-6%		-7%		-3%		7%		-7%		35%		117%

		21-09		11,008		6,799		4,209		30		15		45		644,601		64,298		708,899		$   366,234		$   101,213		$   11,278		$   478,726		$   459,589		-2%		7%		-5%		-29%		6%		17%		31%		50%

		21-10		11,028		5,990		5,038		38		9		47		827,016		59,895		886,911		$   365,719		$   126,083		$   14,454		$   506,256		$   523,001		6%		0%		25%		4%		10%		11%		49%		47%

		21-11		11,351		6,301		5,050		61		23		84		889,557		55,886		945,443		$   364,559		$   134,318		$   10,780		$   509,657		$   521,750		1%		3%		7%		79%		15%		24%		88%		42%

		21-12		9,239		4,594		4,645		64		29		93		857,034		60,438		917,472		$   377,826		$   129,442		$   21,518		$   528,786		$   519,090		4%		-19%		-3%		11%		16%		8%		61%		72%

		22-01		10,110		6,214		3,896		57		12		69		656,523		61,178		717,701		$   465,220		$   102,465		$   14,951		$   582,636		$   559,938		10%		9%		-22%		-26%		20%		25%		62%		-13%

		22-02		8,071		4,659		3,412		74		30		104		711,620		38,372		749,992		$   415,328		$   106,303		$   15,015		$   536,646		$   516,525		-8%		-20%		4%		51%		24%		45%		77%		181%

		22-03		11,009		6,440		4,569		92		51		143		861,224		45,043		906,267		$   422,284		$   128,512		$   19,200		$   569,996		$   523,868		6%		36%		21%		38%		21%		16%		40%		91%

		22-04		8,226		4,333		3,893		42		21		63		626,717		51,551		678,268		$   419,538		$   96,889		$   20,210		$   536,637		$   518,589		-6%		-25%		-25%		-56%		13%		-2%		7%		-30%

		22-05		9,853		5,382		4,471		47		14		61		821,711		48,173		869,884		$   445,946		$   123,091		$   12,526		$   581,562		$   523,047		8%		20%		28%		-3%		25%		15%		33%		-3%

		22-06		11,176		7,086		4,090		75		25		100		680,783		59,556		740,339		$   470,937		$   105,568		$   14,220		$   590,725		$   524,753		2%		13%		-15%		64%		23%		9%		-4%		2%

		22-07		10,470		7,019		3,451		42		17		59		624,240		48,068		672,308		$   445,462		$   96,059		$   18,275		$   559,796		$   544,934		-5%		-6%		-9%		-41%		8%		-5%		-16%		-9%

		22-08		10,372		6,364		4,008		26		11		37		650,494		75,659		726,153		$   391,848		$   103,607		$   52,578		$   548,034		$   527,489		-2%		-1%		8%		-37%		12%		1%		-2%		-41%

		22-09		11,593		7,550		4,043		28		6		34		684,881		55,986		740,867		$   1,064,673		$   105,012		$   20,190		$   1,189,875		$   530,515		117%		12%		2%		-8%		149%		5%		5%		-24%

		22-10		11,074		7,052		4,022		37		7		44		680,941		77,890		758,831		$   447,219		$   108,499		$   21,143		$   576,861		$   534,767		-52%		-4%		2%		29%		14%		0%		-14%		-6%

		22-11		9,429		5,317		4,112		63		20		83		724,646		49,342		773,988		$   433,357		$   110,308		$   17,685		$   561,351		$   535,497		-3%		-15%		2%		89%		10%		-17%		-18%		-1%

		22-12		8,873		5,088		3,785		62		24		86		702,536		49,392		751,928		$   460,339		$   106,591		$   18,723		$   585,653		$   539,191		4%		-6%		-3%		4%		11%		-4%		-18%		-8%

		23-01		9,627		6,161		3,466		65		38		103		647,299		74,093		721,392		$   494,058		$   103,647		$   26,081		$   623,786		$   581,212		7%		8%		-4%		20%		7%		-5%		1%		49%

		23-02		8,573		5,420		3,153		48		19		67		598,884		40,646		639,530		$   457,617		$   90,214		$   24,660		$   572,491		$   530,150		-8%		-11%		-11%		-35%		7%		6%		-15%		-36%

		23-03		9,579		5,682		3,897		72		23		95		653,576		57,900		711,476		$   480,798		$   101,369		$   24,527		$   606,693		$   566,565		6%		12%		11%		42%		6%		-13%		-21%		-34%

		23-04		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   552,601

		23-05		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   553,669

		23-06		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   560,215

		23-07		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   578,402

		23-08		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   556,399

		23-09		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   555,081





Monthly Report Charts - 25 mo.



&"Arial,Bold"&18ADS by the Numbers	


International Operations (U.S. Customs - Aircraft Clearances)

Inbound	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	63	64	39	58	39	39	30	38	61	64	57	74	92	42	47	75	42	26	28	37	63	62	65	48	72	Outbound	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	12	26	24	40	26	24	15	9	23	29	12	30	51	21	14	25	17	11	6	7	20	24	38	19	23	







Revenue

Real Estate	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	364947.72	363623.97	364450.34	355916.18	385909.25	371106.78	366234.46	365719.36	364558.88	377825.54	465220.06	415328.18	422283.6	419538.08	445945.67	470937.35	445461.84	391848.45	1064673	447219.21	433357.16	460339.1	494057.5	457617.08	480797.72	Fuel	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	92762.2	89946.64	92139.12	109827.12	113194.44	106447.82	101212.9	126082.98	134318.18	129442.16	102465.18	106303.03999999999	128512.26	96889.2	123090.8	105568.42	96058.72	103607.34	105012.42	108498.98	110308.24	106590.72	103647.36	90213.96	101368.96000000001	Other	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	14935.310000000012	22051.510000000024	10042.179999999993	13739.73000000004	19397.179999999993	10413.629999999946	11278.399999999994	14453.940000000046	10779.960000000021	21518.139999999985	14950.550000000047	15014.89	19199.800000000061	20209.579999999973	12525.83000000006	14219.60000000002	18275.319999999978	52578.449999999983	20189.789999999964	21142.999999999927	17685.140000000058	18722.749999999971	26081.040000000023	24659.979999999996	24526.730000000054	







Aircraft Operations (Arrivals and Departures)

IFR	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	3637	3440	3885	3969	3991	3810	4209	5038	5050	4645	3896	3412	4569	3893	4471	4090	3451	4008	4043	4022	4112	3785	3466	3153	3897	VFR	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	5841	4982	4699	6302	6976	6457	6799	5990	6301	4594	6214	4659	6440	4333	5382	7086	7019	6364	7550	7052	5317	5088	6161	5420	5682	







Fuel Flowage (Gallons Received)

Jet-A	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	587673	584646	604767	715873	739634	681726	644601	827016	889557	857034	656523	711620	861224	626717	821711	680783	624240	650494	684881	680941	724646	702536	647299	598884	653576	AvGas	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	60809	48506	48673	52415	57092	62303	64298	59895	55886	60438	61178	38372	45043	51551	48173	59556	48068	75659	55986	77890	49342	49392	74093	40646	57900	









4-year look-back graphs

		FY21		OPERATIONS								FUEL FLOWAGE								U.S. CUSTOMS

				Itinerant				Local		Total		Jet-A		AvGas		Total		Non-Public		Arrivals		Regulated Garbage		Overtime Clearances

				IFR		VFR

		Oct		3,580		6,055		283		9,918		530,193		64,444		594,637		32,106		27		15		16

		Nov		3,228		5,746		187		9,161		447,146		56,798		503,944		8,743		43		17		28

		Dec		2,968		5,338		261		8,567		514,125		56,903		571,028		32,550		33		15		24

		Jan		2,712		5,232		162		8,106		410,147		32,875		443,022		8,031		42		19		25

		Feb		2,298		3,106		170		5,574		391,524		32,589		424,113		8,200		29		11		17

		Mar		3,637		5,606		235		9,478		587,673		60,809		648,482		24,684		63		27		44

		Apr		3,440		4,777		205		8,422		584,646		48,506		633,152		16,317		64		27		24

		May		3,885		4,480		219		8,584		604,767		48,673		653,440		8,219		39		17		20

		Jun		3,969		6,113		189		10,271		715,873		52,415		768,288		28,335		58		21		40

		Jul		3,991		6,689		287		10,967		739,634		57,092		796,726		20,660		39		17

		Aug		3,810		6,257		200		10,267		681,726		62,303		744,029		28,547		39		12

		Sep		4,209		6,557		242		11,008		644,601		64,298		708,899		24,588		30		3

				41,727		65,956		2,640		110,323		6,852,055		637,705		7,489,760		240,980		506		201		238

		FY22

		Oct		5,038		5,771		219		11,028		827,016		59,895		886,911		23,943		38		16

		Nov		5,050		5,993		308		11,351		889,557		55,886		945,443		24,452		61		26

		Dec		4,645		4,406		188		9,239		857,034		60,438		917,472		12,451		64		26

		Jan		3,896		5,994		220		10,110		656,523		61,178		717,701		24,838		57		18

		Feb		3,412		4,599		60		8,071		711,620		38,372		749,992		22,063		74		32

		Mar		4,569		6,239		201		11,009		861,224		45,043		906,267		20,436		92		41		35

		Apr		3,893		4,176		157		8,226		626,717		51,551		678,268		24,146		42		27		12

		May		4,471		5,173		209		9,853		821,711		48,173		869,884		16,338		47		18		23

		Jun		4,090		6,897		189		11,176		680,783		59,556		740,339		24,012		75		30		30

		Jul		3,451		6,853		166		10,470		624,240		48,068		672,308		24,195		42		16		17

		Aug		4,008		6,069		295		10,372		650,494		75,659		726,153		24,324		26		9		11

		Sep		4,043		7,344		206		11,593		684,881		55,986		740,867		16,138		28		7		9

				50,566		69,514		2,418		122,498		8,891,800		659,805		9,551,605		257,336		646		266		137

		FY23

		Oct		4,022		6,894		158		11,074		680,941		77,890		758,831		28,283		37		14		11

		Nov		4,112		5,229		88		9,429		724,646		49,342		773,988		24,374		63		30		30

		Dec		3,785		5,030		58		8,873		702,536		49,392		751,928		16,510		62		27		27

		Jan		3,466		6,043		118		9,627		647,299		74,093		721,392		33,156		65		27		26

		Feb		3,153		5,311		109		8,573		598,884		40,646		639,530		8,497		48		17		17

		Mar		3,897		5,634		48		9,579		653,576		57,900		711,476		22,029		72		31		44

		Apr		0		0		0		0		0		0		0				0

		May		0		0		0		0		0		0		0				0

		Jun		0		0		0		0		0		0		0				0

		Jul		0		0		0		0		0		0		0				0

		Aug		0		0		0		0		0		0		0				0

		Sep		0		0		0		0		0		0		0				0

				22,435		34,141		579		57,155		4,007,882		349,263		4,357,145		132,849		347		146		155



Jet-A Volume (gallons)



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	555796	560580	537520	564818	483192	588995	546360	545831	459955	467027	553631	544788	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	587394	497326	571207	467518	563482	407753	106650	239109	432590	492331	482311	496914	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	530193	447146	514125	410147	391524	587673	584646	604767	715873	739634	681726	644601	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	827016	889557	857034	656523	711620	861224	626717	821711	680783	624240	650494	684881	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	680941	724646	702536	647299	598884	653576	







Monthly Fuel Flowage Revenue



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	86679.12	88931.24	84186.559999999998	87907.1	75622.259999999995	92290.82	86203.16	84924.6	76426.14	79848.06	89077.84	87355.1	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	94813.2	80342.720000000001	91631.82	73567.34	88203.12	64678.82	21959.26	43415.16	72691.039999999994	79728.479999999996	79866.48	76880.600000000006	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	85817.66	71251.600000000006	82547.92	62665.56	60031.82	92762.2	89946.64	92139.12	109827.12	113194.44	106447.82	101212.9	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	126082.98	134318.18	129442.16	102465.18	106303.03999999999	128512.26	96889.2	123090.8	105568.42	96058.72	103607.34	105012.42	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	108498.98	110308.24	106590.72	103647.36	90213.96	101368.96000000001	







Instrument (IFR) Operations



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	3935	3432	3080	3176	2964	3314	3398	3616	3171	2998	3322	3860	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	3966	3617	3636	3388	3363	2631	1391	2322	2934	3291	3002	3384	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	3580	3228	2968	2712	2298	3637	3440	3885	3969	3991	3810	4209	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	5038	5050	4645	3896	3412	4569	3893	4471	4090	3451	4008	4043	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	4022	4112	3785	3466	3153	3897	







Visual (VFR) Operations



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	5042	5896	5209	5917	3910	6434	5920	6412	7226	8128	7897	7490	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	7439	6950	7163	5512	6137	4524	5434	6791	7048	7095	8008	5998	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	6338	5933	5599	5394	3276	5841	4982	4699	6302	6976	6457	6799	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	5990	6301	4594	6214	4659	6440	4333	5382	7086	7019	6364	7550	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	7052	5317	5088	6161	5420	5682	







AvGas Volume (gallons)



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	47404	60950	49668	48939	45447	60788	47750	46847	63342	85274	64289	63541	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	68894	65126	64426	48571	54054	40230	40679	59885	72482	63481	70053	42887	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	64444	56798	56903	32875	32589	60809	48506	48673	52415	57092	62303	64298	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	59895	55886	60438	61178	38372	45043	51551	48173	59556	48068	75659	55986	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	77890	49342	49392	74093	40646	57900	







Total Operations



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	8977	9328	8289	9093	6874	9748	9318	10028	10397	11126	11219	11350	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	11405	10567	10799	8900	9500	7155	6825	9113	9982	10386	11010	9382	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	9918	9161	8567	8106	5574	9478	8422	8584	10271	10967	10267	11008	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	11028	11351	9239	10110	8071	11009	8226	9853	11176	10470	10372	11593	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	11074	9429	8873	9627	8573	9579	







Total Fuel Volume (gallons)



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	603200	621530	587188	613757	528639	649783	594110	592678	523297	552301	617920	608329	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	656288	562452	635633	516089	617536	447983	147329	298994	505072	555812	552364	539801	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	594637	503944	571028	443022	424113	648482	633152	653440	768288	796726	744029	708899	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	886911	945443	917472	717701	749992	906267	678268	869884	740339	672308	726153	740867	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	758831	773988	751928	721392	639530	711476	







International Arrivals



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	42	39	29	39	44	47	40	35	25	21	25	21	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	26	38	43	37	44	56	5	12	22	15	21	24	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	27	43	33	42	29	63	64	39	58	39	39	30	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	38	61	64	57	74	92	42	47	75	42	26	28	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	37	63	62	65	48	72	







Total Monthly Revenue



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	464414.48	465118.2	468418.5	495367.66	449923.89	471663.75	474213.03	469106.66	455898.91	1480559.5	471156.65	472166.32	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	479457.48	466618.68	458362.93	488256.25	455301.85	432766.86	391630.82	416699.45	449584.06	472656.3	454268.15	451167.36	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	458202	444042.87	456924.36	485772.14	434136.39	472645.23	475622.12	466631.64	479483.03	518500.87	487968.23	478725.76	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	506256.28	509657.02	528785.84	582635.79	536646.11	569995.66	536636.86	581562.30000000005	590725.37	559795.88	548034.24	1189875.21	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	576861.18999999994	561350.54	585652.56999999995	623785.9	572491.02	606693.41	







Monthly Real Estate Revenue



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	368423.55	364526.02	368932.55	399927.31	358429.69	369423.98	376077.08	372819.67	372804.99	1391430.94	372015.59	373300.57	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	376389.95	371813.68	355678.7	403281.25	355202.61	355610.92	356125.92	366575.5	370381.6	383521.64	363885.32	363456.62	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	357017.51	356194.43	360755	406798.76	362544.79	364947.72	363623.97	364450.34	355916.18	385909.25	371106.78	366234.46	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	365719.36	364558.88	377825.54	465220.06	415328.18	422283.6	419538.08	445945.67	470937.35	445461.84	391848.45	1064673	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	447219.21	433357.16	460339.1	494057.5	457617.08	480797.72	









Qrtrly Reports - Ops and Fuel

		YY-MM		OPERATIONS										YY-MM		International Operations												OPERATIONS										YY-MM		FUEL FLOWAGE (gallons)

				TOTAL		VFR Itin		IFR Itin		LOC						arrivals		departures		Total								IFR Itin		VFR Itin		Local		TOTAL						Jet-A		AvGas		TOTAL

		16-10		9,580		5,853		3,409		318				16-10		31		13		44				FY19 Q2		Jan-19		3,176		5,441		476		9,093				16-10		523,272		56,481		579,753

		16-11		7,385		4,200		3,046		139				16-11		39		16		55						Feb-19		2,964		3,540		370		6,874				16-11		511,155		45,330		556,485

		16-12		7,315		4,146		2,860		309				16-12		42		23		65						Mar-19		3,314		6,023		411		9,748				16-12		513,453		28,934		542,387

		17-01		7,369		4,452		2,677		240				17-01		38		16		54				TOTAL				9,454		15,004		1,257		25,715				17-01		441,721		51,531		493,252

		17-02		7,386		4,342		2,793		251				17-02		32		10		42				FY20 Q2		Jan-20		3,388		5,097		415		8,900				17-02		491,491		31,862		523,353

		17-03		8,353		4,856		3,157		340				17-03		45		21		66						Feb-20		3,363		5,866		271		9,500				17-03		486,359		44,561		530,920

		17-04		7,196		3,845		2,988		363				17-04		25		13		38						Mar-20		2,631		4,210		314		7,155				17-04		434,626		49,999		484,625

		17-05		8,643		5,049		2,967		627				17-05		24		19		43				TOTAL				9,382		15,173		1,000		25,555				17-05		505,339		42,733		548,072

		17-06		8,395		4,829		3,004		562				17-06		37		20		57				FY21 Q2		Jan-21		2,712		5,232		162		8,106				17-06		459,824		39,296		499,120

		17-07		8,910		5,700		2,720		490				17-07		35		11		46						Feb-21		2,298		3,106		170		5,574				17-07		508,559		49,993		558,552

		17-08		8,430		4,733		3,162		535				17-08		18		8		26						Mar-21		3,637		5,606		235		9,478				17-08		514,755		58,847		573,602

		17-09		9,659		6,071		3,311		277				17-09		32		16		48				TOTAL				8,647		13,944		567		23,158				17-09		493,277		51,736		545,013

		17-10		8,895		5,496		3,224		175				17-10		32		15		47				FY22 Q2		Jan-22		3,896		5,994		220		10,110				17-10		529,149		55,595		584,744

		17-11		8,746		4,766		3,663		317				17-11		33		14		47						Feb-22		3,412		4,599		60		8,071				17-11		552,450		51,038		603,488

		17-12		7,512		4,450		2,853		209				17-12		39		25		64						Mar-22		4,569		6,239		201		11,009				17-12		474,317		49,006		523,323

		18-01		8,114		4,989		2,911		214				18-01		38		22		60				TOTAL				11,877		16,832		481		29,190				18-01		493,347		37,726		531,073

		18-02		5,866		3,026		2,737		103				18-02		37		12		49				FY23 Q2		Jan-23		3,466		6,043		118		9,627				18-02		481,758		35,420		517,178

		18-03		8,968		5,565		3,301		102				18-03		56		24		80						Feb-23		3,153		5,311		109		8,573				18-03		557,985		56,480		614,465

		18-04		8,362		5,209		3,045		108				18-04		45		22		67						Mar-23		3,897		5,634		48		9,579				18-04		490,653		44,136		534,789

		18-05		9,854		6,415		3,274		165				18-05		35		15		50				TOTAL				10,516		16,988		275		27,779				18-05		525,621		66,701		592,322

		18-06		9,517		6,201		3,169		147				18-06		34		10		44																		18-06		547,460		62,423		609,883

		18-07		8,950		6,017		2,829		104				18-07		31		14		45								International Operations										18-07		513,573		53,552		567,125

		18-08		9,893		6,586		3,165		142				18-08		22		3		25								arrivals		departures		TOTAL						18-08		522,511		58,944		581,455

		18-09		7,617		3,769		3,635		213				18-09		23		6		29				FY19 Q2		Jan-19		39		19		58						18-09		508,639		47,434		556,073

		18-10		8,977		4,573		3,935		469				18-10		42		11		53						Feb-19		44		14		58						18-10		555,796		47,404		603,200

		18-11		9,328		5,616		3,432		280				18-11		39		22		61						Mar-19		47		17		64						18-11		560,580		60,950		621,530

		18-12		8,289		4,989		3,080		220				18-12		29		26		55				TOTAL				130		50		180						18-12		537,520		49,668		587,188

		19-01		9,093		5,441		3,176		476				19-01		39		19		58				FY20 Q2		Jan-20		37		7		44						19-01		564,818		48,939		613,757

		19-02		6,874		3,540		2,964		370				19-02		44		14		58						Feb-20		44		16		60						19-02		483,192		45,447		528,639

		19-03		9,748		6,023		3,314		411				19-03		47		17		64						Mar-20		56		15		71						19-03		588,995		60,788		649,783

		19-04		9,318		5,447		3,398		473				19-04		40		23		63				TOTAL				137		38		175						19-04		546,360		47,750		594,110

		19-05		10,028		5,603		3,616		809				19-05		35		16		51				FY21 Q2		Jan-21		42		37		79						19-05		545,831		46,847		592,678

		19-06		10,397		6,659		3,171		567				19-06		25		12		37						Feb-21		29		8		37						19-06		459,955		63,342		523,297

		19-07		11,126		7,794		2,998		334				19-07		21		15		36						Mar-21		63		12		75						19-07		467,027		85,274		552,301

		19-08		11,219		7,641		3,322		256				19-08		25		12		37				TOTAL				134		57		191						19-08		553,631		64,289		617,920

		19-09		11,350		7,173		3,860		317				19-09		21		12		33				FY22 Q2		Jan-22		57		12		69						19-09		544,788		63,541		608,329

		19-10		11,405		6,841		3,966		598				19-10		26		7		33						Feb-22		74		30		104						19-10		587,394		68,894		656,288

		19-11		10,567		6,592		3,617		358				19-11		38		21		59						Mar-22		92		51		143						19-11		497,326		65,126		562,452

		19-12		10,799		6,670		3,636		493				19-12		43		22		65				TOTAL				223		93		316						19-12		571,207		64,426		635,633

		20-01		8,900		5,097		3,388		415				20-01		37		7		44				FY23 Q2		Jan-23		65		38		103						20-01		467,518		48,571		516,089

		20-02		9,500		5,866		3,363		271				20-02		44		16		60						Feb-23		48		19		67						20-02		563,482		54,054		617,536

		20-03		7,155		4,210		2,631		314				20-03		56		15		71						Mar-23		72		23		95						20-03		407,753		40,230		447,983

		20-04		6,825		5,367		1,391		67				20-04		5		6		11				TOTAL				185		80		265						20-04		106,650		40,679		147,329

		20-05		9,113		6,654		2,322		137				20-05		12		1		13																		20-05		239,109		59,885		298,994

		20-06		9,982		6,849		2,934		199				20-06		22		6		28								FUEL FLOWAGE (gallons)										20-06		432,590		72,482		505,072

		20-07		10,386		6,990		3,291		105				20-07		15		6		21								Jet-A		AvGas		TOTAL						20-07		492,331		63,481		555,812

		20-08		11,010		7,777		3,002		231				20-08		21		8		29				FY19 Q2		Jan-19		564,818		48,939		613,757						20-08		482,311		70,053		552,364

		20-09		9,382		5,675		3,384		323				20-09		24		6		30						Feb-19		483,192		45,447		528,639						20-09		496,914		42,887		539,801

		20-10		9,918		6,055		3,580		283				20-10		27		5		32						Mar-19		588,995		60,788		649,783						20-10		530,193		64,444		594,637

		20-11		9,161		5,746		3,228		187				20-11		43		16		59				TOTAL				1,637,005		155,174		1,792,179						20-11		447,146		56,798		503,944

		20-12		8,567		5,338		2,968		261				20-12		33		21		54				FY20 Q2		Jan-20		467,518		48,571		516,089						20-12		514,125		56,903		571,028

		21-01		8,106		5,232		2,712		162				21-01		42		37		79						Feb-20		563,482		54,054		617,536						21-01		410,147		32,875		443,022

		21-02		5,574		3,106		2,298		170				21-02		29		8		37						Mar-20		407,753		40,230		447,983						21-02		391,524		32,589		424,113

		21-03		9,478		5,606		3,637		235				21-03		63		12		75				TOTAL				1,438,753		142,855		1,581,608						21-03		587,673		60,809		648,482

		21-04		8,422		4,777		3,440		205				21-04		64		26		90				FY21 Q2		Jan-21		410,147		32,875		443,022						21-04		584,646		48,506		633,152

		21-05		8,584		4,480		3,885		219				21-05		39		24		63						Feb-21		391,524		32,589		424,113						21-05		604,767		48,673		653,440

		21-06		10,271		6,113		3,969		189				21-06		58		40		98						Mar-21		587,673		60,809		648,482						21-06		715,873		52,415		768,288

		21-07		10,967		6,689		3,991		287				21-07		39		26		65				TOTAL				1,389,344		126,273		1,515,617						21-07		739,634		57,092		796,726

		21-08		10,267		6,257		3,810		200				21-08		39		24		63				FY22 Q2		Jan-22		656,523		61,178		717,701						21-08		681,726		62,303		744,029

		21-09		11,008		6,557		4,209		242				21-09		30		15		45						Feb-22		711,620		38,372		749,992						21-09		644,601		64,298		708,899

		21-10		11,028		5,771		5,038		219				21-10		38		9		47						Mar-22		861,224		45,043		906,267						21-10		827,016		59,895		886,911

		21-11		11,351		5,993		5,050		308				21-11		61		23		84				TOTAL				2,229,367		144,593		2,373,960						21-11		889,557		55,886		945,443

		21-12		9,239		4,406		4,645		188				21-12		64		29		93				FY23 Q2		Jan-23		647,299		74,093		721,392						21-12		857,034		60,438		917,472

		22-01		10,110		5,994		3,896		220				22-01		57		12		69						Feb-23		598,884		40,646		639,530						22-01		656,523		61,178		717,701

		22-02		8,071		4,599		3,412		60				22-02		74		30		104						Mar-23		653,576		57,900		711,476						22-02		711,620		38,372		749,992

		22-03		11,009		6,239		4,569		201				22-03		92		51		143				TOTAL				1,899,759		172,639		2,072,398						22-03		861,224		45,043		906,267

		22-04		8,226		4,176		3,893		157				22-04		42		21		63																		22-04		626,717		51,551		678,268

		22-05		9,853		5,173		4,471		209				22-05		47		14		61																		22-05		821,711		48,173		869,884

		22-06		11,176		6,897		4,090		189				22-06		75		25		100																		22-06		680,783		59,556		740,339

		22-07		10,470		6,853		3,451		166				22-07		42		17		59																		22-07		624,240		48,068		672,308

		22-08		10,372		6,069		4,008		295				22-08		26		11		37																		22-08		650,494		75,659		726,153

		22-09		11,593		7,344		4,043		206				22-09		28		6		34																		22-09		684,881		55,986		740,867

		22-10		11,074		6,894		4,022		158				22-10		37		7		44																		22-10		680,941		77,890		758,831

		22-11		9,429		5,229		4,112		88				22-11		63		20		83																		22-11		724,646		49,342		773,988

		22-12		8,873		5,030		3,785		58				22-12		62		24		86																		22-12		702,536		49,392		751,928

		23-01		9,627		6,043		3,466		118				23-01		65		38		103																		23-01		647,299		74,093		721,392

		23-02		8,573		5,311		3,153		109				23-02		48		19		67																		23-02		598,884		40,646		639,530

		23-03		9,579		5,634		3,897		48				23-03		72		23		95																		23-03		653,576		57,900		711,476

		23-04		0		0		0						23-04		0		0		0																		23-04		0		0		0

		23-05		0		0		0						23-05		0		0		0																		23-05		0		0		0

		23-06		0		0		0						23-06		0		0		0																		23-06		0		0		0

		23-07		0		0		0						23-07		0		0		0																		23-07		0		0		0

		23-08		0		0		0						23-08		0		0		0																		23-08		0		0		0

		23-09		0		0		0						23-09		0		0		0																		23-09		0		0		0





Qrtrly Reports - Revenue

		YY-MM		REVENUE														REVENUE

				Real Estate		FFF		Other		TOTAL								Real Estate		FFF		Other		TOTAL

		16-10		$   370,727		$   83,688		$   10,941		$   465,356				FY19 Q2		Jan-19		$   399,927		$   87,907		$   7,533		$   495,368

		16-11		$   368,650		$   79,559		$   12,244		$   460,454						Feb-19		$   358,430		$   75,622		$   15,872		$   449,924

		16-12		$   353,039		$   77,870		$   13,590		$   444,500						Mar-19		$   369,424		$   92,291		$   9,949		$   471,664

		17-01		$   391,545		$   70,053		$   13,733		$   475,332				TOTAL				$   1,127,781		$   255,820		$   33,354		$   1,416,955

		17-02		$   343,434		$   75,183		$   14,497		$   433,114				FY20 Q2		Jan-20		$   403,281		$   73,567		$   11,408		$   488,256

		17-03		$   349,043		$   76,561		$   12,217		$   437,821						Feb-20		$   355,203		$   88,203		$   11,896		$   455,302

		17-04		$   352,297		$   69,912		$   14,572		$   436,781						Mar-20		$   355,611		$   64,679		$   12,477		$   432,767

		17-05		$   363,977		$   77,360		$   7,689		$   449,026				TOTAL				$   1,114,095		$   226,449		$   35,781		$   1,376,325

		17-06		$   363,011		$   71,770		$   12,171		$   446,951				FY21 Q2		Jan-21		$   406,799		$   62,666		$   16,308		$   485,772

		17-07		$   381,670		$   81,350		$   10,642		$   473,662						Feb-21		$   362,545		$   60,032		$   11,560		$   434,136

		17-08		$   366,885		$   82,507		$   9,969		$   459,361						Mar-21		$   364,948		$   92,762		$   14,935		$   472,645

		17-09		$   365,626		$   78,515		$   10,619		$   454,759				TOTAL				$   1,134,291		$   215,460		$   42,803		$   1,392,554

		17-10		$   367,559		$   83,762		$   10,574		$   461,894				FY22 Q2		Jan-22		$   465,220		$   102,465		$   14,951		$   582,636

		17-11		$   367,157		$   85,961		$   10,950		$   464,068						Feb-22		$   415,328		$   106,303		$   15,015		$   536,646

		17-12		$   367,364		$   75,183		$   13,278		$   455,824						Mar-22		$   422,284		$   128,512		$   19,200		$   569,996

		18-01		$   414,943		$   75,348		$   12,689		$   502,980				TOTAL				$   1,302,832		$   337,280		$   49,165		$   1,689,278

		18-02		$   374,077		$   74,556		$   11,675		$   460,308				FY23 Q2		Jan-23		$   494,058		$   103,647		$   26,081		$   623,786

		18-03		$   372,683		$   88,962		$   14,395		$   476,039						Feb-23		$   457,617		$   90,214		$   24,660		$   572,491

		18-04		$   364,132		$   76,778		$   14,475		$   455,385						Mar-23		$   480,798		$   101,369		$   24,527		$   606,693

		18-05		$   368,924		$   84,448		$   8,618		$   461,990				TOTAL				$   1,432,472		$   295,230		$   75,268		$   1,802,970

		18-06		$   364,563		$   88,853		$   18,029		$   471,445

		18-07		$   386,877		$   80,334		$   9,241		$   476,451

		18-08		$   358,921		$   84,853		$   12,750		$   456,525

		18-09		$   366,385		$   78,779		$   8,328		$   453,492

		18-10		$   368,424		$   86,679		$   9,312		$   464,414

		18-11		$   364,526		$   88,931		$   11,661		$   465,118

		18-12		$   368,933		$   84,187		$   15,299		$   468,419

		19-01		$   399,927		$   87,907		$   7,533		$   495,368

		19-02		$   358,430		$   75,622		$   15,872		$   449,924

		19-03		$   369,424		$   92,291		$   9,949		$   471,664

		19-04		$   376,077		$   86,203		$   11,933		$   474,213

		19-05		$   372,820		$   84,925		$   11,362		$   469,107

		19-06		$   372,805		$   76,426		$   6,668		$   455,899

		19-07		$   1,391,431		$   79,848		$   9,281		$   1,480,560

		19-08		$   372,016		$   89,078		$   10,063		$   471,157

		19-09		$   373,301		$   87,355		$   11,511		$   472,166

		19-10		$   376,390		$   94,813		$   8,254		$   479,457

		19-11		$   371,814		$   80,343		$   14,462		$   466,619

		19-12		$   355,679		$   91,632		$   11,052		$   458,363

		20-01		$   403,281		$   73,567		$   11,408		$   488,256

		20-02		$   355,203		$   88,203		$   11,896		$   455,302

		20-03		$   355,611		$   64,679		$   12,477		$   432,767

		20-04		$   356,126		$   21,959		$   13,546		$   391,631

		20-05		$   366,576		$   43,415		$   6,709		$   416,699

		20-06		$   370,382		$   72,691		$   6,511		$   449,584

		20-07		$   383,522		$   79,728		$   9,406		$   472,656

		20-08		$   363,885		$   79,866		$   10,516		$   454,268

		20-09		$   363,457		$   76,881		$   10,830		$   451,167

		20-10		$   357,018		$   85,818		$   15,367		$   458,202

		20-11		$   356,194		$   71,252		$   16,597		$   444,043

		20-12		$   360,755		$   82,548		$   13,621		$   456,924

		21-01		$   406,799		$   62,666		$   16,308		$   485,772

		21-02		$   362,545		$   60,032		$   11,560		$   434,136

		21-03		$   364,948		$   92,762		$   14,935		$   472,645

		21-04		$   363,624		$   89,947		$   22,052		$   475,622

		21-05		$   364,450		$   92,139		$   10,042		$   466,632

		21-06		$   355,916		$   109,827		$   13,740		$   479,483

		21-07		$   385,909		$   113,194		$   19,397		$   518,501

		21-08		$   371,107		$   106,448		$   10,414		$   487,968

		21-09		$   366,234		$   101,213		$   11,278		$   478,726

		21-10		$   365,719		$   126,083		$   14,454		$   506,256

		21-11		$   364,559		$   134,318		$   10,780		$   509,657

		21-12		$   377,826		$   129,442		$   21,518		$   528,786

		22-01		$   465,220		$   102,465		$   14,951		$   582,636

		22-02		$   415,328		$   106,303		$   15,015		$   536,646

		22-03		$   422,284		$   128,512		$   19,200		$   569,996

		22-04		$   419,538		$   96,889		$   20,210		$   536,637

		22-05		$   445,946		$   123,091		$   12,526		$   581,562

		22-06		$   470,937		$   105,568		$   14,220		$   590,725

		22-07		$   445,462		$   96,059		$   18,275		$   559,796

		22-08		$   391,848		$   103,607		$   52,578		$   548,034

		22-09		$   1,064,673		$   105,012		$   20,190		$   1,189,875

		22-10		$   447,219		$   108,499		$   21,143		$   576,861

		22-11		$   433,357		$   110,308		$   17,685		$   561,351

		22-12		$   460,339		$   106,591		$   18,723		$   585,653

		23-01		$   494,058		$   103,647		$   26,081		$   623,786

		23-02		$   457,617		$   90,214		$   24,660		$   572,491

		23-03		$   480,798		$   101,369		$   24,527		$   606,693

		23-04		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -

		23-05		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -

		23-06		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -

		23-07		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -

		23-08		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -

		23-09		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -





FY23 Q2 data and charts

				Operations														International Operations

				IFR Itinerant		VFR Itinerant		Local		TOTAL								Arrivals		Departures		TOTAL

		FY19Q2		9,454		15,004		1,257		25,715						FY19Q2		130		50		180

		FY20Q2		9,382		15,173		1,000		25,555						FY20Q2		137		38		175

		FY21Q2		8,647		13,944		567		23,158						FY21Q2		134		57		191

		FY22Q2		11,877		16,832		481		29,190						FY22Q2		223		93		316

		FY23Q2		10,516		16,988		275		27,779						FY23Q2		185		80		265



				Revenue														Fuel Flowage (Gallons)

				Real Estate		Fuel Flowage		Other		TOTAL								Jet-A		AvGas		TOTAL

		FY19Q2		$   1,127,781		$   255,820		$   33,354		$   1,416,955						FY19Q2		1,637,005		155,174		1,792,179

		FY20Q2		$   1,114,095		$   226,449		$   35,781		$   1,376,325						FY20Q2		1,438,753		142,855		1,581,608

		FY21Q2		$   1,134,291		$   215,460		$   42,803		$   1,392,554						FY21Q2		1,389,344		126,273		1,515,617

		FY22Q2		$   1,302,832		$   337,280		$   49,165		$   1,689,278						FY22Q2		2,229,367		144,593		2,373,960

		FY23Q2		$   1,432,472		$   295,230		$   75,268		$   1,802,970						FY23Q2		1,899,759		172,639		2,072,398



Operations



IFR Itinerant	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	9454	9382	8647	11877	10516	VFR Itinerant	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	15004	15173	13944	16832	16988	Local	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	1257	1000	567	481	275	







Revenue



Real Estate	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	1127780.98	1114094.78	1134291.27	1302831.8399999999	1432472.3	Fuel Flowage	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	255820.18	226449.28	215459.58000000002	337280.48	295230.28000000003	Other	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	33354.14	35780.9	42802.910000000054	49165.240000000107	75267.750000000073	













International Operations



Arrivals	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	130	137	134	223	185	Departures	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	50	38	57	93	80	







Fuel Flowage (Gallons)



Jet-A	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	1637005	1438753	1389344	2229367	1899759	AvGas	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	155174	142855	126273	144593	172639	









Full year data and charts

				Operations														International Operations

				IFR Itinerant		VFR Itinerant		Local		TOTAL								Arrivals		Departures		TOTAL

		FY18		37,806		62,489		1,999		102,294						FY18		425		182		607

		FY19		40,266		70,499		4,982		115,747						FY19		407		199		606

		FY20		36,925		74,588		3,511		115,024						FY20		343		121		464

		FY21		41,727		65,956		2,640		110,323						FY21		506		254		760

		FY22		50,566		69,514		2,418		122,498						FY22		646		248		894



				Revenue														Fuel Flowage (Gallons)

				Real Estate		Fuel Flowage		Other		TOTAL								Jet-A		AvGas		TOTAL

		FY18		$   4,473,583		$   977,818		$   145,000		$   5,596,402						FY18		6,197,463		618,455		6,815,918

		FY19		$   5,488,112		$   1,019,452		$   130,444		$   6,638,008						FY19		6,408,493		684,239		7,092,732

		FY20		$   4,421,924		$   867,778		$   127,068		$   5,416,770						FY20		5,344,585		690,768		6,035,353

		FY21		$   4,415,499		$   1,067,845		$   175,311		$   5,658,655						FY21		6,852,055		637,705		7,489,760

		FY22		$   5,649,340		$   1,357,351		$   233,916		$   7,240,607						FY22		8,891,800		659,805		9,551,605



Operations



IFR Itinerant	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	37806	40266	36925	41727	50566	VFR Itinerant	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	62489	70499	74588	65956	69514	Local	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	1999	4982	3511	2640	2418	







Revenue



Real Estate	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	4473583.3599999994	5488111.9399999995	4421923.71	4415499.1899999995	5649340.0099999998	Fuel Flowage	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	977818.44	1019452	867778.03999999992	1067844.8	1357350.7	Other	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	145000.37	130443.61000000003	127068.44	175310.65000000002	233915.85000000015	













International Operations



Arrivals	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	425	407	343	506	646	Departures	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	182	199	121	254	248	







Fuel Flowage (Gallons)



Jet-A	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	6197463	6408493	5344585	6852055	8891800	AvGas	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	618455	684239	690768	637705	659805	











FY23 Q2 Statistics – International Operations

4

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

FY19Q2 FY20Q2 FY21Q2 FY22Q2 FY23Q2

International Operations

Arrivals

Departures

International Arrivals
• Down 17.0% from Q2 FY22
• Up 38.1% over Q2 FY21

International Departures*
• Down 14.0% from Q2 of FY22
• Up 40.0% over Q2 of FY21

* International departures are undercounted 
because certain types of operations are not 
required to file with CBP at the departure airport 
(although they are still required to file with CBP).


Chart2



International Operations



Arrivals	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	130	137	134	223	185	Departures	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	50	38	57	93	80	









Monthly Report Data

		Monthly Report Data

		YY-MM		OPERATIONS						International Operations						FUEL FLOWAGE (gallons)						REVENUE

				Total		VFR		IFR		inbound		outbound		Total		Jet-A		AvGas		Total		Real Estate		Fuel		Other		Total		Budget

		11-10		8,511		5,609		2,902		27		7		34		398,445		56,310		454,755		$   285,776		$   55,203		$   4,283		$   345,262		$   350,316

		11-11		7,447		4,507		2,940		32		17		49		448,518		44,491		493,009		$   284,963		$   60,437		$   3,761		$   349,162		$   348,985

		11-12		7,043		4,012		3,031		29		16		45		455,097		40,750		495,847		$   290,484		$   60,790		$   6,116		$   357,390		$   351,605

		12-01		7,478		4,600		2,878		34		17		51		385,946		48,633		434,579		$   333,364		$   53,393		$   15,644		$   402,401		$   398,721

		12-02		7,745		4,652		3,093		25		10		35		402,350		48,872		451,222		$   289,743		$   55,726		$   3,919		$   349,387		$   345,093

		12-03		8,196		4,939		3,257		33		21		54		468,123		54,367		522,490		$   287,985		$   64,288		$   6,040		$   358,313		$   344,618

		12-04		8,010		4,760		3,250		38		16		54		414,178		36,194		450,372		$   294,422		$   55,869		$   6,034		$   356,326		$   347,328

		12-05		8,259		5,102		3,157		26		18		44		469,885		68,292		538,177		$   290,342		$   65,208		$   7,269		$   362,819		$   346,465

		12-06		8,431		5,612		2,819		24		15		39		479,389		44,165		523,554		$   291,734		$   64,952		$   4,501		$   361,186		$   345,936

		12-07		8,560		5,807		2,753		31		14		45		423,797		59,520		483,317		$   314,171		$   59,530		$   4,153		$   377,854		$   345,411

		12-08		8,533		5,609		2,924		28		22		50		448,320		49,981		498,301		$   294,577		$   61,341		$   5,359		$   361,278		$   344,373

		12-09		7,816		4,785		3,031		22		15		37		465,035		32,515		497,550		$   294,702		$   60,931		$   2,612		$   358,245		$   338,879

		FY12		96,029		59,994		36,035		349		188		537		5,259,083		584,090		5,843,173		$   3,552,264		$   717,667		$   69,692		$   4,339,623		$   4,207,729

		12-10		8,551		5,135		3,416		36		44		80		579,033		59,855		638,888		$   393,907		$   74,838		$   4,774		$   473,520		$   339,385

		12-11		8,592		5,718		2,874		30		33		63		516,596		48,664		565,260		$   287,933		$   69,386		$   4,567		$   361,886		$   340,770

		12-12		7,119		4,389		2,730		29		17		46		471,338		47,760		519,098		$   287,662		$   63,856		$   3,952		$   355,470		$   341,839

		13-01		6,998		3,988		3,010		37		17		54		432,665		33,621		466,286		$   337,740		$   56,276		$   13,151		$   407,167		$   342,814

		13-02		7,301		4,469		2,832		30		23		53		423,262		40,501		463,763		$   287,724		$   56,620		$   6,145		$   350,489		$   382,023

		13-03		7,976		5,018		2,958		32		30		62		495,648		45,739		541,387		$   290,343		$   65,602		$   5,680		$   361,625		$   333,966

		13-04		7,531		4,230		3,301		25		12		37		467,864		50,248		518,112		$   291,581		$   63,128		$   8,426		$   363,135		$   335,163

		13-05		7,802		4,465		3,337		36		21		57		516,398		56,712		573,110		$   293,757		$   69,406		$   2,819		$   365,982		$   335,210

		13-06		9,043		6,252		2,791		35		23		58		453,934		48,215		502,149		$   297,302		$   60,873		$   5,033		$   363,209		$   334,670

		13-07		8,041		5,375		2,666		31		20		51		445,238		52,103		497,341		$   314,736		$   60,316		$   7,389		$   382,441		$   326,216

		13-08		8,407		5,893		2,514		26		17		43		413,465		48,609		462,074		$   296,266		$   56,395		$   7,122		$   359,783		$   354,568

		13-09		8,493		5,905		2,588		35		21		56		427,496		76,475		503,971		$   285,436		$   62,061		$   11,849		$   359,345		$   328,002

		FY13		95,854		60,837		35,017		382		278		660		5,642,937		608,502		6,251,439		$   3,664,386		$   758,758		$   80,907		$   4,504,051		$   4,094,626

		13-10		7,957		4,513		3,444		25		12		37		486,610		44,205		530,815		$   305,369		$   64,009		$   5,562		$   374,941		$   360,775

		13-11		7,290		4,148		3,142		37		23		60		504,057		56,949		561,006		$   309,792		$   68,293		$   7,774		$   385,859		$   360,535

		13-12		7,181		4,361		2,820		31		16		47		529,360		41,326		570,686		$   293,646		$   69,128		$   8,556		$   371,330		$   357,752

		14-01		7,480		4,762		2,718		39		25		64		470,124		45,202		515,326		$   365,090		$   62,808		$   11,087		$   438,985		$   410,369

		14-02		6,306		3,581		2,725		36		19		55		413,457		48,089		461,546		$   304,089		$   56,350		$   6,348		$   366,786		$   351,309

		14-03		7,872		4,912		2,960		48		27		75		555,209		48,804		604,013		$   306,873		$   73,117		$   7,047		$   387,037		$   358,017

		14-04		7,481		4,496		2,985		37		21		58		521,037		39,703		560,740		$   312,833		$   67,920		$   14,211		$   394,964		$   356,196

		14-05		8,494		5,239		3,255		25		19		44		501,738		55,569		557,307		$   319,693		$   67,507		$   6,569		$   393,769		$   359,904

		14-06		7,996		4,946		3,050		28		19		47		469,361		35,309		504,670		$   346,460		$   61,504		$   8,428		$   416,392		$   359,949

		14-07		8,545		5,602		2,943		11		13		24		468,079		53,042		521,121		$   365,531		$   63,141		$   8,687		$   437,359		$   377,349

		14-08		8,778		5,915		2,863		23		20		43		473,344		56,938		530,282		$   348,458		$   64,878		$   4,376		$   417,713		$   356,263

		14-09		8,594		5,577		3,017		28		16		44		487,774		51,285		539,059		$   352,447		$   65,630		$   10,096		$   428,173		$   356,413

		FY14		93,974		58,052		35,922		368		230		598		5,880,150		576,421		6,456,571		$   3,930,282		$   784,285		$   98,740		$   4,813,307		$   4,364,830

		14-10		9,392		6,186		3,206		28		7		35		625,723		60,447		686,170		$   354,794		$   83,292		$   4,967		$   443,053		$   394,916

		14-11		7,361		4,344		3,017		23		16		39		561,762		35,195		596,957		$   353,431		$   72,315		$   4,402		$   430,148		$   398,156

		14-12		6,864		3,551		3,313		28		18		46		515,066		40,555		555,621		$   344,862		$   67,321		$   4,154		$   416,336		$   397,758

		15-01		7,420		4,681		2,739		27		19		46		526,523		40,113		566,636		$   397,803		$   68,960		$   10,219		$   476,982		$   447,209

		15-02		6,079		3,544		2,535		22		10		32		464,949		33,183		498,132		$   347,299		$   60,411		$   3,299		$   411,008		$   389,608

		15-03		7,101		3,809		3,292		43		24		67		540,890		31,294		572,184		$   349,226		$   69,616		$   6,530		$   425,372		$   399,616

		15-04		7,602		4,099		3,503		31		17		48		533,356		39,446		572,802		$   348,046		$   69,683		$   7,359		$   425,089		$   397,649

		15-05		7,063		3,831		3,232		56		17		73		537,445		49,873		587,318		$   341,405		$   71,420		$   6,314		$   419,139		$   400,169

		15-06		9,069		6,193		2,876		30		18		48		493,505		43,931		537,436		$   345,079		$   65,431		$   7,621		$   418,131		$   397,299

		15-07		9,324		6,276		3,048		34		15		49		484,546		57,731		542,277		$   362,040		$   66,339		$   6,045		$   434,424		$   414,709

		15-08		8,777		6,008		2,769		26		8		34		452,700		47,361		500,061		$   351,316		$   60,946		$   7,902		$   420,164		$   393,408

		15-09		9,272		5,964		3,308		23		9		32		545,027		58,060		603,087		$   357,147		$   73,311		$   5,055		$   435,513		$   394,576

		FY15		95,324		58,486		36,838		371		178		549		6,281,492		537,189		6,818,681		$   4,252,449		$   829,044		$   73,867		$   5,155,360		$   4,825,075

		15-10		8,940		5,712		3,228		29		15		44		553,061		61,883		614,944		$   357,964		$   75,160		$   6,800		$   439,924		$   438,190

		15-11		7,418		4,266		3,152		38		20		58		509,770		35,901		545,671		$   349,633		$   66,441		$   13,964		$   430,039		$   433,174

		15-12		8,407		5,538		2,869		34		30		64		535,226		40,829		576,055		$   355,214		$   70,423		$   10,360		$   435,997		$   431,817

		16-01		8,237		5,457		2,780		38		24		62		458,223		41,233		499,456		$   403,057		$   60,940		$   21,924		$   485,921		$   484,234

		16-02		8,462		5,448		3,014		42		26		68		496,404		41,091		537,495		$   355,226		$   68,022		$   11,199		$   434,447		$   433,631

		16-03		7,469		4,457		3,012		49		22		71		461,607		55,560		517,167		$   364,935		$   63,855		$   14,316		$   443,105		$   444,436

		16-04		8,148		5,091		3,057		29		12		41		471,984		43,703		515,687		$   365,736		$   64,105		$   13,146		$   442,987		$   422,640

		16-05		8,114		5,103		3,011		37		25		62		437,201		38,430		475,631		$   364,890		$   67,796		$   8,228		$   440,915		$   422,149

		16-06		9,205		6,226		2,979		37		13		50		465,444		57,618		523,062		$   363,456		$   76,284		$   9,964		$   449,704		$   415,361

		16-07		8,546		5,938		2,608		30		10		40		424,287		51,400		475,687		$   384,572		$   67,637		$   13,073		$   465,281		$   431,685

		16-08		8,838		5,983		2,855		19		8		27		418,310		31,883		450,193		$   381,334		$   64,290		$   10,361		$   455,984		$   414,164

		16-09		9,076		6,007		3,069		27		13		40		522,594		58,523		581,117		$   376,986		$   83,288		$   8,459		$   468,734		$   416,181

		FY16		100,860		65,226		35,634		409		218		627		5,754,111		558,054		6,312,165		$   4,423,003		$   828,240		$   141,794		$   5,393,037		$   5,187,662

		16-10		9,580		6,171		3,409		31		13		44		523,272		56,481		579,753		$   370,727		$   83,688		$   10,941		$   465,356		$   444,831

		16-11		7,385		4,339		3,046		39		16		55		511,155		45,330		556,485		$   368,650		$   79,559		$   12,244		$   460,454		$   437,534

		16-12		7,315		4,455		2,860		42		23		65		513,453		28,934		542,387		$   353,039		$   77,870		$   13,590		$   444,500		$   435,627

		17-01		7,369		4,692		2,677		38		16		54		441,721		51,531		493,252		$   391,545		$   70,053		$   13,733		$   475,332		$   492,691

		17-02		7,386		4,593		2,793		32		10		42		491,491		31,862		523,353		$   343,434		$   75,183		$   14,497		$   433,114		$   446,485

		17-03		8,353		5,196		3,157		45		21		66		486,359		44,561		530,920		$   349,043		$   76,561		$   12,217		$   437,821		$   454,431

		17-04		7,196		4,208		2,988		25		13		38		434,626		49,999		484,625		$   352,297		$   69,912		$   14,572		$   436,781		$   455,154

		17-05		8,643		5,676		2,967		24		19		43		505,339		42,733		548,072		$   363,977		$   77,360		$   7,689		$   449,026		$   458,434

		17-06		8,395		5,391		3,004		37		20		57		459,824		39,296		499,120		$   363,011		$   71,770		$   12,171		$   446,951		$   451,330

		17-07		8,910		6,190		2,720		35		11		46		508,559		49,993		558,552		$   381,670		$   81,350		$   10,642		$   473,662		$   469,100

		17-08		8,430		5,268		3,162		18		8		26		514,755		58,847		573,602		$   366,885		$   82,507		$   9,969		$   459,361		$   449,553

		17-09		9,659		6,348		3,311		32		16		48		493,277		51,736		545,013		$   365,626		$   78,515		$   10,619		$   454,759		$   454,989

		FY17		98,621		62,527		36,094		398		186		584		5,883,831		551,303		6,435,134		$   4,369,905		$   924,328		$   142,884		$   5,437,117		$   5,450,158

		17-10		8,895		5,671		3,224		32		15		47		529,149		55,595		584,744		$   367,559		$   83,762		$   10,574		$   461,894		$   453,485

		17-11		8,746		5,083		3,663		33		14		47		552,450		51,038		603,488		$   367,157		$   85,961		$   10,950		$   464,068		$   448,981

		17-12		7,512		4,659		2,853		39		25		64		474,317		49,006		523,323		$   367,364		$   75,183		$   13,278		$   455,824		$   447,648

		18-01		8,114		5,203		2,911		38		22		60		493,347		37,726		531,073		$   414,943		$   75,348		$   12,689		$   502,980		$   490,865

		18-02		5,866		3,129		2,737		37		12		49		481,758		35,420		517,178		$   374,077		$   74,556		$   11,675		$   460,308		$   437,600

		18-03		8,968		5,667		3,301		56		24		80		557,985		56,480		614,465		$   372,683		$   88,962		$   14,395		$   476,039		$   449,271

		18-04		8,362		5,317		3,045		45		22		67		490,653		44,136		534,789		$   364,132		$   76,778		$   14,475		$   455,385		$   447,454

		18-05		9,854		6,580		3,274		35		15		50		525,621		66,701		592,322		$   368,924		$   84,448		$   8,618		$   461,990		$   449,513

		18-06		9,517		6,348		3,169		34		10		44		547,460		62,423		609,883		$   364,563		$   88,853		$   18,029		$   471,445		$   443,980

		18-07		8,950		6,121		2,829		31		14		45		513,573		53,552		567,125		$   386,877		$   80,334		$   9,241		$   476,451		$   457,301

		18-08		9,893		6,728		3,165		22		3		25		522,511		58,944		581,455		$   358,921		$   84,853		$   12,750		$   456,525		$   439,517

		18-09		7,617		3,982		3,635		23		6		29		508,639		47,434		556,073		$   366,385		$   78,779		$   8,328		$   453,492		$   449,923

		FY18		102,294		64,488		37,806		425		182		607		6,197,463		618,455		6,815,918		$   4,473,583		$   977,818		$   145,000		$   5,596,402		$   5,415,538

		18-10		8,977		5,042		3,935		42		11		53		555,796		47,404		603,200		$   368,424		$   86,679		$   9,312		$   464,414		$   439,755

		18-11		9,328		5,896		3,432		39		22		61		560,580		60,950		621,530		$   364,526		$   88,931		$   11,661		$   465,118		$   436,255

		18-12		8,289		5,209		3,080		29		26		55		537,520		49,668		587,188		$   368,933		$   84,187		$   15,299		$   468,419		$   433,555

		19-01		9,093		5,917		3,176		39		19		58		564,818		48,939		613,757		$   399,927		$   87,907		$   7,533		$   495,368		$   486,759

		19-02		6,874		3,910		2,964		44		14		58		483,192		45,447		528,639		$   358,430		$   75,622		$   15,872		$   449,924		$   440,153

		19-03		9,748		6,434		3,314		47		17		64		588,995		60,788		649,783		$   369,424		$   92,291		$   9,949		$   471,664		$   446,918

		19-04		9,318		5,920		3,398		40		23		63		546,360		47,750		594,110		$   376,077		$   86,203		$   11,933		$   474,213		$   443,879

		19-05		10,028		6,412		3,616		35		16		51		545,831		46,847		592,678		$   372,820		$   84,925		$   11,362		$   469,107		$   445,484

		19-06		10,397		7,226		3,171		25		12		37		459,955		63,342		523,297		$   372,805		$   76,426		$   6,668		$   455,899		$   443,703

		19-07		11,126		8,128		2,998		21		15		36		467,027		85,274		552,301		$   1,391,431		$   79,848		$   9,281		$   1,480,560		$   458,756

		19-08		11,219		7,897		3,322		25		12		37		553,631		64,289		617,920		$   372,016		$   89,078		$   10,063		$   471,157		$   442,658

		19-09		11,350		7,490		3,860		21		12		33		544,788		63,541		608,329		$   373,301		$   87,355		$   11,511		$   472,166		$   451,567

		FY19		115,747		75,481		40,266		407		199		606		6,408,493		684,239		7,092,732		$   5,488,112		$   1,019,452		$   130,444		$   6,638,008		$   5,369,442

		19-10		11,405		7,439		3,966		26		7		33		587,394		68,894		656,288		$   376,390		$   94,813		$   8,254		$   479,457		$   443,847

		19-11		10,567		6,950		3,617		38		21		59		497,326		65,126		562,452		$   371,814		$   80,343		$   14,462		$   466,619		$   442,476

		19-12		10,799		7,163		3,636		43		22		65		571,207		64,426		635,633		$   355,679		$   91,632		$   11,052		$   458,363		$   437,873

		20-01		8,900		5,512		3,388		37		7		44		467,518		48,571		516,089		$   403,281		$   73,567		$   11,408		$   488,256		$   489,930

		20-02		9,500		6,137		3,363		44		16		60		563,482		54,054		617,536		$   355,203		$   88,203		$   11,896		$   455,302		$   435,769

		20-03		7,155		4,524		2,631		56		15		71		407,753		40,230		447,983		$   355,611		$   64,679		$   12,477		$   432,767		$   448,307

		20-04		6,825		5,434		1,391		5		6		11		106,650		40,679		147,329		$   356,126		$   21,959		$   13,546		$   391,631		$   439,062

		20-05		9,113		6,791		2,322		12		1		13		239,109		59,885		298,994		$   366,576		$   43,415		$   6,709		$   416,699		$   442,524

		20-06		9,982		7,048		2,934		22		6		28		432,590		72,482		505,072		$   370,382		$   72,691		$   6,511		$   449,584		$   441,124

		20-07		10,386		7,095		3,291		15		6		21		492,331		63,481		555,812		$   383,522		$   79,728		$   9,406		$   472,656		$   455,070

		20-08		11,010		8,008		3,002		21		8		29		482,311		70,053		552,364		$   363,885		$   79,866		$   10,516		$   454,268		$   438,964

		20-09		9,382		5,998		3,384		24		6		30		496,914		42,887		539,801		$   363,457		$   76,881		$   10,830		$   451,167		$   444,960

		FY20		115,024		78,099		36,925		343		121		464		5,344,585		690,768		6,035,353		$   4,421,924		$   867,778		$   127,068		$   5,416,770		$   5,359,906

		20-10		9,918		6,338		3,580		27		5		32		530,193		64,444		594,637		$   357,018		$   85,818		$   15,367		$   458,202		$   417,907

		20-11		9,161		5,933		3,228		43		16		59		447,146		56,798		503,944		$   356,194		$   71,252		$   16,597		$   444,043		$   416,346

		20-12		8,567		5,599		2,968		33		21		54		514,125		56,903		571,028		$   360,755		$   82,548		$   13,621		$   456,924		$   415,613

		21-01		8,106		5,394		2,712		42		37		79		410,147		32,875		443,022		$   406,799		$   62,666		$   16,308		$   485,772		$   461,653

		21-02		5,574		3,276		2,298		29		8		37		391,524		32,589		424,113		$   362,545		$   60,032		$   11,560		$   434,136		$   412,019

		21-03		9,478		5,841		3,637		63		12		75		587,673		60,809		648,482		$   364,948		$   92,762		$   14,935		$   472,645		$   417,032

		21-04		8,422		4,982		3,440		64		26		90		584,646		48,506		633,152		$   363,624		$   89,947		$   22,052		$   475,622		$   412,992

		21-05		8,584		4,699		3,885		39		24		63		604,767		48,673		653,440		$   364,450		$   92,139		$   10,042		$   466,632		$   416,142

		21-06		10,271		6,302		3,969		58		40		98		715,873		52,415		768,288		$   355,916		$   109,827		$   13,740		$   479,483		$   412,922

		21-07		10,967		6,976		3,991		39		26		65		739,634		57,092		796,726		$   385,909		$   113,194		$   19,397		$   518,501		$   475,086

		21-08		10,267		6,457		3,810		39		24		63		681,726		62,303		744,029		$   371,107		$   106,448		$   10,414		$   487,968		$   456,439

		21-09		11,008		6,799		4,209		30		15		45		644,601		64,298		708,899		$   366,234		$   101,213		$   11,278		$   478,726		$   459,589

		FY21		110,323		68,596		41,727		506		254		760		6,852,055		637,705		7,489,760		$   4,415,499		$   1,067,845		$   175,311		$   5,658,655		$   5,173,740

		21-10		11,028		5,990		5,038		38		9		47		827,016		59,895		886,911		$   365,719		$   126,083		$   14,454		$   506,256		$   523,001

		21-11		11,351		6,301		5,050		61		23		84		889,557		55,886		945,443		$   364,559		$   134,318		$   10,780		$   509,657		$   521,750

		21-12		9,239		4,594		4,645		64		29		93		857,034		60,438		917,472		$   377,826		$   129,442		$   21,518		$   528,786		$   519,090

		22-01		10,110		6,214		3,896		57		12		69		656,523		61,178		717,701		$   465,220		$   102,465		$   14,951		$   582,636		$   559,938

		22-02		8,071		4,659		3,412		74		30		104		711,620		38,372		749,992		$   415,328		$   106,303		$   15,015		$   536,646		$   516,525

		22-03		11,009		6,440		4,569		92		51		143		861,224		45,043		906,267		$   422,284		$   128,512		$   19,200		$   569,996		$   523,868

		22-04		8,226		4,333		3,893		42		21		63		626,717		51,551		678,268		$   419,538		$   96,889		$   20,210		$   536,637		$   518,589

		22-05		9,853		5,382		4,471		47		14		61		821,711		48,173		869,884		$   445,946		$   123,091		$   12,526		$   581,562		$   523,047

		22-06		11,176		7,086		4,090		75		25		100		680,783		59,556		740,339		$   470,937		$   105,568		$   14,220		$   590,725		$   524,753

		22-07		10,470		7,019		3,451		42		17		59		624,240		48,068		672,308		$   445,462		$   96,059		$   18,275		$   559,796		$   544,934

		22-08		10,372		6,364		4,008		26		11		37		650,494		75,659		726,153		$   391,848		$   103,607		$   52,578		$   548,034		$   527,489

		22-09		11,593		7,550		4,043		28		6		34		684,881		55,986		740,867		$   1,064,673		$   105,012		$   20,190		$   1,189,875		$   530,515

		FY22		122,498		71,932		50,566		646		248		894		8,891,800		659,805		9,551,605		$   5,649,340		$   1,357,351		$   233,916		$   7,240,607		$   6,333,500

		22-10		11,074		7,052		4,022		37		7		44		680,941		77,890		758,831		$   447,219		$   108,499		$   21,143		$   576,861		$   534,767

		22-11		9,429		5,317		4,112		63		20		83		724,646		49,342		773,988		$   433,357		$   110,308		$   17,685		$   561,351		$   535,497

		22-12		8,873		5,088		3,785		62		24		86		702,536		49,392		751,928		$   460,339		$   106,591		$   18,723		$   585,653		$   539,191

		23-01		9,627		6,161		3,466		65		38		103		647,299		74,093		721,392		$   494,058		$   103,647		$   26,081		$   623,786		$   581,212

		23-02		8,573		5,420		3,153		48		19		67		598,884		40,646		639,530		$   457,617		$   90,214		$   24,660		$   572,491		$   530,150

		23-03		9,579		5,682		3,897		72		23		95		653,576		57,900		711,476		$   480,798		$   101,369		$   24,527		$   606,693		$   566,565

		23-04				0								0						0						$   -				$   552,601

		23-05				0								0						0						$   -				$   553,669

		23-06				0								0						0						$   -				$   560,215

		23-07				0								0						0						$   -				$   578,402

		23-08				0								0						0						$   -				$   556,399

		23-09				0								0						0						$   -				$   555,081

		FY23		57,155		34,720		22,435		347		131		478		4,007,882		349,263		4,357,145		$   2,773,388		$   620,628		$   132,819		$   3,526,835		$   6,643,750





Monthly Report Data (2)

		Monthly Report Data

		YY-MM		OPERATIONS						International Operations						FUEL FLOWAGE (gallons)						REVENUE										% change from prior month								% change from prior year

				Total		VFR		IFR		inbound		outbound		Total		Jet-A		AvGas		Total		Real Estate		Fuel		Other		Total		Budget		Revenue		Total Ops		Fuel		Int'l Ops		Revenue		Total Ops		Fuel		Int'l Ops

		09-10

		09-11

		09-12

		10-01

		10-02

		10-03

		10-04

		10-05

		10-06

		10-07

		10-08

		10-09

		10-10

		10-11

		10-12

		11-01

		11-02

		11-03

		11-04

		11-05

		11-06

		11-07

		11-08

		11-09

		11-10		8,511		5,609		2,902		27		7		34		398,445		56,310		454,755		$   285,776		$   55,203		$   4,283		$   345,262		$   350,316

		11-11		7,447		4,507		2,940		32		17		49		448,518		44,491		493,009		$   284,963		$   60,437		$   3,761		$   349,162		$   348,985		1%		-13%		8%		44%

		11-12		7,043		4,012		3,031		29		16		45		455,097		40,750		495,847		$   290,484		$   60,790		$   6,116		$   357,390		$   351,605		2%		-5%		1%		-8%

		12-01		7,478		4,600		2,878		34		17		51		385,946		48,633		434,579		$   333,364		$   53,393		$   15,644		$   402,401		$   398,721		13%		6%		-12%		13%

		12-02		7,745		4,652		3,093		25		10		35		402,350		48,872		451,222		$   289,743		$   55,726		$   3,919		$   349,387		$   345,093		-13%		4%		4%		-31%

		12-03		8,196		4,939		3,257		33		21		54		468,123		54,367		522,490		$   287,985		$   64,288		$   6,040		$   358,313		$   344,618		3%		6%		16%		54%

		12-04		8,010		4,760		3,250		38		16		54		414,178		36,194		450,372		$   294,422		$   55,869		$   6,034		$   356,326		$   347,328		-1%		-2%		-14%		0%

		12-05		8,259		5,102		3,157		26		18		44		469,885		68,292		538,177		$   290,342		$   65,208		$   7,269		$   362,819		$   346,465		2%		3%		19%		-19%

		12-06		8,431		5,612		2,819		24		15		39		479,389		44,165		523,554		$   291,734		$   64,952		$   4,501		$   361,186		$   345,936		-0%		2%		-3%		-11%

		12-07		8,560		5,807		2,753		31		14		45		423,797		59,520		483,317		$   314,171		$   59,530		$   4,153		$   377,854		$   345,411		5%		2%		-8%		15%

		12-08		8,533		5,609		2,924		28		22		50		448,320		49,981		498,301		$   294,577		$   61,341		$   5,359		$   361,278		$   344,373		-4%		-0%		3%		11%

		12-09		7,816		4,785		3,031		22		15		37		465,035		32,515		497,550		$   294,702		$   60,931		$   2,612		$   358,245		$   338,879		-1%		-8%		-0%		-26%

		12-10		8,551		5,135		3,416		36		44		80		579,033		59,855		638,888		$   393,907		$   74,838		$   4,774		$   473,520		$   339,385		32%		9%		28%		116%		37%		0%		40%		135%

		12-11		8,592		5,718		2,874		30		33		63		516,596		48,664		565,260		$   287,933		$   69,386		$   4,567		$   361,886		$   340,770		-24%		0%		-12%		-21%		4%		15%		15%		29%

		12-12		7,119		4,389		2,730		29		17		46		471,338		47,760		519,098		$   287,662		$   63,856		$   3,952		$   355,470		$   341,839		-2%		-17%		-8%		-27%		-1%		1%		5%		2%

		13-01		6,998		3,988		3,010		37		17		54		432,665		33,621		466,286		$   337,740		$   56,276		$   13,151		$   407,167		$   342,814		15%		-2%		-10%		17%		1%		-6%		7%		6%

		13-02		7,301		4,469		2,832		30		23		53		423,262		40,501		463,763		$   287,724		$   56,620		$   6,145		$   350,489		$   382,023		-14%		4%		-1%		-2%		0%		-6%		3%		51%

		13-03		7,976		5,018		2,958		32		30		62		495,648		45,739		541,387		$   290,343		$   65,602		$   5,680		$   361,625		$   333,966		3%		9%		17%		17%		1%		-3%		4%		15%

		13-04		7,531		4,230		3,301		25		12		37		467,864		50,248		518,112		$   291,581		$   63,128		$   8,426		$   363,135		$   335,163		0%		-6%		-4%		-40%		2%		-6%		15%		-31%

		13-05		7,802		4,465		3,337		36		21		57		516,398		56,712		573,110		$   293,757		$   69,406		$   2,819		$   365,982		$   335,210		1%		4%		11%		54%		1%		-6%		6%		30%

		13-06		9,043		6,252		2,791		35		23		58		453,934		48,215		502,149		$   297,302		$   60,873		$   5,033		$   363,209		$   334,670		-1%		16%		-12%		2%		1%		7%		-4%		49%

		13-07		8,041		5,375		2,666		31		20		51		445,238		52,103		497,341		$   314,736		$   60,316		$   7,389		$   382,441		$   326,216		5%		-11%		-1%		-12%		1%		-6%		3%		13%

		13-08		8,407		5,893		2,514		26		17		43		413,465		48,609		462,074		$   296,266		$   56,395		$   7,122		$   359,783		$   354,568		-6%		5%		-7%		-16%		-0%		-1%		-7%		-14%

		13-09		8,493		5,905		2,588		35		21		56		427,496		76,475		503,971		$   285,436		$   62,061		$   11,849		$   359,345		$   328,002		-0%		1%		9%		30%		0%		9%		1%		51%

		13-10		7,957		4,513		3,444		25		12		37		486,610		44,205		530,815		$   305,369		$   64,009		$   5,562		$   374,941		$   360,775		4%		-6%		5%		-34%		-21%		-7%		-17%		-54%

		13-11		7,290		4,148		3,142		37		23		60		504,057		56,949		561,006		$   309,792		$   68,293		$   7,774		$   385,859		$   360,535		3%		-8%		6%		62%		7%		-15%		-1%		-5%

		13-12		7,181		4,361		2,820		31		16		47		529,360		41,326		570,686		$   293,646		$   69,128		$   8,556		$   371,330		$   357,752		-4%		-1%		2%		-22%		4%		1%		10%		2%

		14-01		7,480		4,762		2,718		39		25		64		470,124		45,202		515,326		$   365,090		$   62,808		$   11,087		$   438,985		$   410,369		18%		4%		-10%		36%		8%		7%		11%		19%

		14-02		6,306		3,581		2,725		36		19		55		413,457		48,089		461,546		$   304,089		$   56,350		$   6,348		$   366,786		$   351,309		-16%		-16%		-10%		-14%		5%		-14%		-0%		4%

		14-03		7,872		4,912		2,960		48		27		75		555,209		48,804		604,013		$   306,873		$   73,117		$   7,047		$   387,037		$   358,017		6%		25%		31%		36%		7%		-1%		12%		21%

		14-04		7,481		4,496		2,985		37		21		58		521,037		39,703		560,740		$   312,833		$   67,920		$   14,211		$   394,964		$   356,196		2%		-5%		-7%		-23%		9%		-1%		8%		57%

		14-05		8,494		5,239		3,255		25		19		44		501,738		55,569		557,307		$   319,693		$   67,507		$   6,569		$   393,769		$   359,904		-0%		14%		-1%		-24%		8%		9%		-3%		-23%

		14-06		7,996		4,946		3,050		28		19		47		469,361		35,309		504,670		$   346,460		$   61,504		$   8,428		$   416,392		$   359,949		6%		-6%		-9%		7%		15%		-12%		1%		-19%

		14-07		8,545		5,602		2,943		11		13		24		468,079		53,042		521,121		$   365,531		$   63,141		$   8,687		$   437,359		$   377,349		5%		7%		3%		-49%		14%		6%		5%		-53%

		14-08		8,778		5,915		2,863		23		20		43		473,344		56,938		530,282		$   348,458		$   64,878		$   4,376		$   417,713		$   356,263		-4%		3%		2%		79%		16%		4%		15%		0%

		14-09		8,594		5,577		3,017		28		16		44		487,774		51,285		539,059		$   352,447		$   65,630		$   10,096		$   428,173		$   356,413		3%		-2%		2%		2%		19%		1%		7%		-21%

		14-10		9,392		6,186		3,206		28		7		35		625,723		60,447		686,170		$   354,794		$   83,292		$   4,967		$   443,053		$   394,916		3%		9%		27%		-20%		18%		18%		29%		-5%

		14-11		7,361		4,344		3,017		23		16		39		561,762		35,195		596,957		$   353,431		$   72,315		$   4,402		$   430,148		$   398,156		-3%		-22%		-13%		11%		11%		1%		6%		-35%

		14-12		6,864		3,551		3,313		28		18		46		515,066		40,555		555,621		$   344,862		$   67,321		$   4,154		$   416,336		$   397,758		-3%		-7%		-7%		18%		12%		-4%		-3%		-2%

		15-01		7,420		4,681		2,739		27		19		46		526,523		40,113		566,636		$   397,803		$   68,960		$   10,219		$   476,982		$   447,209		15%		8%		2%		0%		9%		-1%		10%		-28%

		15-02		6,079		3,544		2,535		22		10		32		464,949		33,183		498,132		$   347,299		$   60,411		$   3,299		$   411,008		$   389,608		-14%		-18%		-12%		-30%		12%		-4%		8%		-42%

		15-03		7,101		3,809		3,292		43		24		67		540,890		31,294		572,184		$   349,226		$   69,616		$   6,530		$   425,372		$   399,616		3%		17%		15%		109%		10%		-10%		-5%		-11%

		15-04		7,602		4,099		3,503		31		17		48		533,356		39,446		572,802		$   348,046		$   69,683		$   7,359		$   425,089		$   397,649		-0%		7%		0%		-28%		8%		2%		2%		-17%

		15-05		7,063		3,831		3,232		56		17		73		537,445		49,873		587,318		$   341,405		$   71,420		$   6,314		$   419,139		$   400,169		-1%		-7%		3%		52%		6%		-17%		5%		66%

		15-06		9,069		6,193		2,876		30		18		48		493,505		43,931		537,436		$   345,079		$   65,431		$   7,621		$   418,131		$   397,299		-0%		28%		-8%		-34%		0%		13%		6%		2%

		15-07		9,324		6,276		3,048		34		15		49		484,546		57,731		542,277		$   362,040		$   66,339		$   6,045		$   434,424		$   414,709		4%		3%		1%		2%		-1%		9%		4%		104%

		15-08		8,777		6,008		2,769		26		8		34		452,700		47,361		500,061		$   351,316		$   60,946		$   7,902		$   420,164		$   393,408		-3%		-6%		-8%		-31%		1%		-0%		-6%		-21%

		15-09		9,272		5,964		3,308		23		9		32		545,027		58,060		603,087		$   357,147		$   73,311		$   5,055		$   435,513		$   394,576		4%		6%		21%		-6%		2%		8%		12%		-27%

		15-10		8,940		5,712		3,228		29		15		44		553,061		61,883		614,944		$   357,964		$   75,160		$   6,800		$   439,924		$   438,190		1%		-4%		2%		38%		-1%		-5%		-10%		26%

		15-11		7,418		4,266		3,152		38		20		58		509,770		35,901		545,671		$   349,633		$   66,441		$   13,964		$   430,039		$   433,174		-2%		-17%		-11%		32%		-0%		1%		-9%		49%

		15-12		8,407		5,538		2,869		34		30		64		535,226		40,829		576,055		$   355,214		$   70,423		$   10,360		$   435,997		$   431,817		1%		13%		6%		10%		5%		22%		4%		39%

		16-01		8,237		5,457		2,780		38		24		62		458,223		41,233		499,456		$   403,057		$   60,940		$   21,924		$   485,921		$   484,234		11%		-2%		-13%		-3%		2%		11%		-12%		35%

		16-02		8,462		5,448		3,014		42		26		68		496,404		41,091		537,495		$   355,226		$   68,022		$   11,199		$   434,447		$   433,631		-11%		3%		8%		10%		6%		39%		8%		113%

		16-03		7,469		4,457		3,012		49		22		71		461,607		55,560		517,167		$   364,935		$   63,855		$   14,316		$   443,105		$   444,436		2%		-12%		-4%		4%		4%		5%		-10%		6%

		16-04		8,148		5,091		3,057		29		12		41		471,984		43,703		515,687		$   365,736		$   64,105		$   13,146		$   442,987		$   422,640		-0%		9%		-0%		-42%		4%		7%		-10%		-15%

		16-05		8,114		5,103		3,011		37		25		62		437,201		38,430		475,631		$   364,890		$   67,796		$   8,228		$   440,915		$   422,149		-0%		-0%		-8%		51%		5%		15%		-19%		-15%

		16-06		9,205		6,226		2,979		37		13		50		465,444		57,618		523,062		$   363,456		$   76,284		$   9,964		$   449,704		$   415,361		2%		13%		10%		-19%		8%		1%		-3%		4%

		16-07		8,546		5,938		2,608		30		10		40		424,287		51,400		475,687		$   384,572		$   67,637		$   13,073		$   465,281		$   431,685		3%		-7%		-9%		-20%		7%		-8%		-12%		-18%

		16-08		8,838		5,983		2,855		19		8		27		418,310		31,883		450,193		$   381,334		$   64,290		$   10,361		$   455,984		$   414,164		-2%		3%		-5%		-33%		9%		1%		-10%		-21%

		16-09		9,076		6,007		3,069		27		13		40		522,594		58,523		581,117		$   376,986		$   83,288		$   8,459		$   468,734		$   416,181		3%		3%		29%		48%		8%		-2%		-4%		25%

		16-10		9,580		6,171		3,409		31		13		44		523,272		56,481		579,753		$   370,727		$   83,688		$   10,941		$   465,356		$   444,831		-1%		6%		-0%		10%		6%		7%		-6%		0%

		16-11		7,385		4,339		3,046		39		16		55		511,155		45,330		556,485		$   368,650		$   79,559		$   12,244		$   460,454		$   437,534		-1%		-23%		-4%		25%		7%		-0%		2%		-5%

		16-12		7,315		4,455		2,860		42		23		65		513,453		28,934		542,387		$   353,039		$   77,870		$   13,590		$   444,500		$   435,627		-3%		-1%		-3%		18%		2%		-13%		-6%		2%

		17-01		7,369		4,692		2,677		38		16		54		441,721		51,531		493,252		$   391,545		$   70,053		$   13,733		$   475,332		$   492,691		7%		1%		-9%		-17%		-2%		-11%		-1%		-13%

		17-02		7,386		4,593		2,793		32		10		42		491,491		31,862		523,353		$   343,434		$   75,183		$   14,497		$   433,114		$   446,485		-9%		0%		6%		-22%		-0%		-13%		-3%		-38%

		17-03		8,353		5,196		3,157		45		21		66		486,359		44,561		530,920		$   349,043		$   76,561		$   12,217		$   437,821		$   454,431		1%		13%		1%		57%		-1%		12%		3%		-7%

		17-04		7,196		4,208		2,988		25		13		38		434,626		49,999		484,625		$   352,297		$   69,912		$   14,572		$   436,781		$   455,154		-0%		-14%		-9%		-42%		-1%		-12%		-6%		-7%

		17-05		8,643		5,676		2,967		24		19		43		505,339		42,733		548,072		$   363,977		$   77,360		$   7,689		$   449,026		$   458,434		3%		20%		13%		13%		2%		7%		15%		-31%

		17-06		8,395		5,391		3,004		37		20		57		459,824		39,296		499,120		$   363,011		$   71,770		$   12,171		$   446,951		$   451,330		-0%		-3%		-9%		33%		-1%		-9%		-5%		14%

		17-07		8,910		6,190		2,720		35		11		46		508,559		49,993		558,552		$   381,670		$   81,350		$   10,642		$   473,662		$   469,100		6%		6%		12%		-19%		2%		4%		17%		15%

		17-08		8,430		5,268		3,162		18		8		26		514,755		58,847		573,602		$   366,885		$   82,507		$   9,969		$   459,361		$   449,553		-3%		-5%		3%		-43%		1%		-5%		27%		-4%

		17-09		9,659		6,348		3,311		32		16		48		493,277		51,736		545,013		$   365,626		$   78,515		$   10,619		$   454,759		$   454,989		-1%		15%		-5%		85%		-3%		6%		-6%		20%

		17-10		8,895		5,671		3,224		32		15		47		529,149		55,595		584,744		$   367,559		$   83,762		$   10,574		$   461,894		$   453,485		2%		-8%		7%		-2%		-1%		-7%		1%		7%

		17-11		8,746		5,083		3,663		33		14		47		552,450		51,038		603,488		$   367,157		$   85,961		$   10,950		$   464,068		$   448,981		0%		-2%		3%		0%		1%		18%		8%		-15%

		17-12		7,512		4,659		2,853		39		25		64		474,317		49,006		523,323		$   367,364		$   75,183		$   13,278		$   455,824		$   447,648		-2%		-14%		-13%		36%		3%		3%		-4%		-2%

		18-01		8,114		5,203		2,911		38		22		60		493,347		37,726		531,073		$   414,943		$   75,348		$   12,689		$   502,980		$   490,865		10%		8%		1%		-6%		6%		10%		8%		11%

		18-02		5,866		3,129		2,737		37		12		49		481,758		35,420		517,178		$   374,077		$   74,556		$   11,675		$   460,308		$   437,600		-8%		-28%		-3%		-18%		6%		-21%		-1%		17%

		18-03		8,968		5,667		3,301		56		24		80		557,985		56,480		614,465		$   372,683		$   88,962		$   14,395		$   476,039		$   449,271		3%		53%		19%		63%		9%		7%		16%		21%

		18-04		8,362		5,317		3,045		45		22		67		490,653		44,136		534,789		$   364,132		$   76,778		$   14,475		$   455,385		$   447,454		-4%		-7%		-13%		-16%		4%		16%		10%		76%

		18-05		9,854		6,580		3,274		35		15		50		525,621		66,701		592,322		$   368,924		$   84,448		$   8,618		$   461,990		$   449,513		1%		18%		11%		-25%		3%		14%		8%		16%

		18-06		9,517		6,348		3,169		34		10		44		547,460		62,423		609,883		$   364,563		$   88,853		$   18,029		$   471,445		$   443,980		2%		-3%		3%		-12%		5%		13%		22%		-23%

		18-07		8,950		6,121		2,829		31		14		45		513,573		53,552		567,125		$   386,877		$   80,334		$   9,241		$   476,451		$   457,301		1%		-6%		-7%		2%		1%		0%		2%		-2%

		18-08		9,893		6,728		3,165		22		3		25		522,511		58,944		581,455		$   358,921		$   84,853		$   12,750		$   456,525		$   439,517		-4%		11%		3%		-44%		-1%		17%		1%		-4%

		18-09		7,617		3,982		3,635		23		6		29		508,639		47,434		556,073		$   366,385		$   78,779		$   8,328		$   453,492		$   449,923		-1%		-23%		-4%		16%		-0%		-21%		2%		-40%

		18-10		8,977		5,042		3,935		42		11		53		555,796		47,404		603,200		$   368,424		$   86,679		$   9,312		$   464,414		$   439,755		2%		18%		8%		83%		1%		1%		3%		13%

		18-11		9,328		5,896		3,432		39		22		61		560,580		60,950		621,530		$   364,526		$   88,931		$   11,661		$   465,118		$   436,255		0%		4%		3%		15%		0%		7%		3%		30%

		18-12		8,289		5,209		3,080		29		26		55		537,520		49,668		587,188		$   368,933		$   84,187		$   15,299		$   468,419		$   433,555		1%		-11%		-6%		-10%		3%		10%		12%		-14%

		19-01		9,093		5,917		3,176		39		19		58		564,818		48,939		613,757		$   399,927		$   87,907		$   7,533		$   495,368		$   486,759		6%		10%		5%		5%		-2%		12%		16%		-3%

		19-02		6,874		3,910		2,964		44		14		58		483,192		45,447		528,639		$   358,430		$   75,622		$   15,872		$   449,924		$   440,153		-9%		-24%		-14%		0%		-2%		17%		2%		18%

		19-03		9,748		6,434		3,314		47		17		64		588,995		60,788		649,783		$   369,424		$   92,291		$   9,949		$   471,664		$   446,918		5%		42%		23%		10%		-1%		9%		6%		-20%

		19-04		9,318		5,920		3,398		40		23		63		546,360		47,750		594,110		$   376,077		$   86,203		$   11,933		$   474,213		$   443,879		1%		-4%		-9%		-2%		4%		11%		11%		-6%

		19-05		10,028		6,412		3,616		35		16		51		545,831		46,847		592,678		$   372,820		$   84,925		$   11,362		$   469,107		$   445,484		-1%		8%		-0%		-19%		2%		2%		0%		2%

		19-06		10,397		7,226		3,171		25		12		37		459,955		63,342		523,297		$   372,805		$   76,426		$   6,668		$   455,899		$   443,703		-3%		4%		-12%		-27%		-3%		9%		-14%		-16%

		19-07		11,126		8,128		2,998		21		15		36		467,027		85,274		552,301		$   1,391,431		$   79,848		$   9,281		$   1,480,560		$   458,756		225%		7%		6%		-3%		211%		24%		-3%		-20%

		19-08		11,219		7,897		3,322		25		12		37		553,631		64,289		617,920		$   372,016		$   89,078		$   10,063		$   471,157		$   442,658		-68%		1%		12%		3%		3%		13%		6%		48%

		19-09		11,350		7,490		3,860		21		12		33		544,788		63,541		608,329		$   373,301		$   87,355		$   11,511		$   472,166		$   451,567		0%		1%		-2%		-11%		4%		49%		9%		14%

		19-10		11,405		7,439		3,966		26		7		33		587,394		68,894		656,288		$   376,390		$   94,813		$   8,254		$   479,457		$   443,847		2%		0%		8%		0%		3%		27%		9%		-38%

		19-11		10,567		6,950		3,617		38		21		59		497,326		65,126		562,452		$   371,814		$   80,343		$   14,462		$   466,619		$   442,476		-3%		-7%		-14%		79%		0%		13%		-10%		-3%

		19-12		10,799		7,163		3,636		43		22		65		571,207		64,426		635,633		$   355,679		$   91,632		$   11,052		$   458,363		$   437,873		-2%		2%		13%		10%		-2%		30%		8%		18%

		20-01		8,900		5,512		3,388		37		7		44		467,518		48,571		516,089		$   403,281		$   73,567		$   11,408		$   488,256		$   489,930		7%		-18%		-19%		-32%		-1%		-2%		-16%		-24%

		20-02		9,500		6,137		3,363		44		16		60		563,482		54,054		617,536		$   355,203		$   88,203		$   11,896		$   455,302		$   435,769		-7%		7%		20%		36%		1%		38%		17%		3%

		20-03		7,155		4,524		2,631		56		15		71		407,753		40,230		447,983		$   355,611		$   64,679		$   12,477		$   432,767		$   448,307		-5%		-25%		-27%		18%		-8%		-27%		-31%		11%

		20-04		6,825		5,434		1,391		5		6		11		106,650		40,679		147,329		$   356,126		$   21,959		$   13,546		$   391,631		$   439,062		-10%		-5%		-67%		-85%		-17%		-27%		-75%		-83%

		20-05		9,113		6,791		2,322		12		1		13		239,109		59,885		298,994		$   366,576		$   43,415		$   6,709		$   416,699		$   442,524		6%		34%		103%		18%		-11%		-9%		-50%		-75%

		20-06		9,982		7,048		2,934		22		6		28		432,590		72,482		505,072		$   370,382		$   72,691		$   6,511		$   449,584		$   441,124		8%		10%		69%		115%		-1%		-4%		-3%		-24%

		20-07		10,386		7,095		3,291		15		6		21		492,331		63,481		555,812		$   383,522		$   79,728		$   9,406		$   472,656		$   455,070		5%		4%		10%		-25%		-68%		-7%		1%		-42%

		20-08		11,010		8,008		3,002		21		8		29		482,311		70,053		552,364		$   363,885		$   79,866		$   10,516		$   454,268		$   438,964		-4%		6%		-1%		38%		-4%		-2%		-11%		-22%

		20-09		9,382		5,998		3,384		24		6		30		496,914		42,887		539,801		$   363,457		$   76,881		$   10,830		$   451,167		$   444,960		-1%		-15%		-2%		3%		-4%		-17%		-11%		-9%

		20-10		9,918		6,338		3,580		27		5		32		530,193		64,444		594,637		$   357,018		$   85,818		$   15,367		$   458,202		$   417,907		2%		6%		10%		7%		-4%		-13%		-9%		-3%

		20-11		9,161		5,933		3,228		43		16		59		447,146		56,798		503,944		$   356,194		$   71,252		$   16,597		$   444,043		$   416,346		-3%		-8%		-15%		84%		-5%		-13%		-10%		0%

		20-12		8,567		5,599		2,968		33		21		54		514,125		56,903		571,028		$   360,755		$   82,548		$   13,621		$   456,924		$   415,613		3%		-6%		13%		-8%		-0%		-21%		-10%		-17%

		21-01		8,106		5,394		2,712		42		37		79		410,147		32,875		443,022		$   406,799		$   62,666		$   16,308		$   485,772		$   461,653		6%		-5%		-22%		46%		-1%		-9%		-14%		80%

		21-02		5,574		3,276		2,298		29		8		37		391,524		32,589		424,113		$   362,545		$   60,032		$   11,560		$   434,136		$   412,019		-11%		-31%		-4%		-53%		-5%		-41%		-31%		-38%

		21-03		9,478		5,841		3,637		63		12		75		587,673		60,809		648,482		$   364,948		$   92,762		$   14,935		$   472,645		$   417,032		9%		70%		53%		103%		9%		32%		45%		6%

		21-04		8,422		4,982		3,440		64		26		90		584,646		48,506		633,152		$   363,624		$   89,947		$   22,052		$   475,622		$   412,992		1%		-11%		-2%		20%		21%		23%		330%		718%

		21-05		8,584		4,699		3,885		39		24		63		604,767		48,673		653,440		$   364,450		$   92,139		$   10,042		$   466,632		$   416,142		-2%		2%		3%		-30%		12%		-6%		119%		385%

		21-06		10,271		6,302		3,969		58		40		98		715,873		52,415		768,288		$   355,916		$   109,827		$   13,740		$   479,483		$   412,922		3%		20%		18%		56%		7%		3%		52%		250%

		21-07		10,967		6,976		3,991		39		26		65		739,634		57,092		796,726		$   385,909		$   113,194		$   19,397		$   518,501		$   475,086		8%		7%		4%		-34%		10%		6%		43%		210%

		21-08		10,267		6,457		3,810		39		24		63		681,726		62,303		744,029		$   371,107		$   106,448		$   10,414		$   487,968		$   456,439		-6%		-6%		-7%		-3%		7%		-7%		35%		117%

		21-09		11,008		6,799		4,209		30		15		45		644,601		64,298		708,899		$   366,234		$   101,213		$   11,278		$   478,726		$   459,589		-2%		7%		-5%		-29%		6%		17%		31%		50%

		21-10		11,028		5,990		5,038		38		9		47		827,016		59,895		886,911		$   365,719		$   126,083		$   14,454		$   506,256		$   523,001		6%		0%		25%		4%		10%		11%		49%		47%

		21-11		11,351		6,301		5,050		61		23		84		889,557		55,886		945,443		$   364,559		$   134,318		$   10,780		$   509,657		$   521,750		1%		3%		7%		79%		15%		24%		88%		42%

		21-12		9,239		4,594		4,645		64		29		93		857,034		60,438		917,472		$   377,826		$   129,442		$   21,518		$   528,786		$   519,090		4%		-19%		-3%		11%		16%		8%		61%		72%

		22-01		10,110		6,214		3,896		57		12		69		656,523		61,178		717,701		$   465,220		$   102,465		$   14,951		$   582,636		$   559,938		10%		9%		-22%		-26%		20%		25%		62%		-13%

		22-02		8,071		4,659		3,412		74		30		104		711,620		38,372		749,992		$   415,328		$   106,303		$   15,015		$   536,646		$   516,525		-8%		-20%		4%		51%		24%		45%		77%		181%

		22-03		11,009		6,440		4,569		92		51		143		861,224		45,043		906,267		$   422,284		$   128,512		$   19,200		$   569,996		$   523,868		6%		36%		21%		38%		21%		16%		40%		91%

		22-04		8,226		4,333		3,893		42		21		63		626,717		51,551		678,268		$   419,538		$   96,889		$   20,210		$   536,637		$   518,589		-6%		-25%		-25%		-56%		13%		-2%		7%		-30%

		22-05		9,853		5,382		4,471		47		14		61		821,711		48,173		869,884		$   445,946		$   123,091		$   12,526		$   581,562		$   523,047		8%		20%		28%		-3%		25%		15%		33%		-3%

		22-06		11,176		7,086		4,090		75		25		100		680,783		59,556		740,339		$   470,937		$   105,568		$   14,220		$   590,725		$   524,753		2%		13%		-15%		64%		23%		9%		-4%		2%

		22-07		10,470		7,019		3,451		42		17		59		624,240		48,068		672,308		$   445,462		$   96,059		$   18,275		$   559,796		$   544,934		-5%		-6%		-9%		-41%		8%		-5%		-16%		-9%

		22-08		10,372		6,364		4,008		26		11		37		650,494		75,659		726,153		$   391,848		$   103,607		$   52,578		$   548,034		$   527,489		-2%		-1%		8%		-37%		12%		1%		-2%		-41%

		22-09		11,593		7,550		4,043		28		6		34		684,881		55,986		740,867		$   1,064,673		$   105,012		$   20,190		$   1,189,875		$   530,515		117%		12%		2%		-8%		149%		5%		5%		-24%

		22-10		11,074		7,052		4,022		37		7		44		680,941		77,890		758,831		$   447,219		$   108,499		$   21,143		$   576,861		$   534,767		-52%		-4%		2%		29%		14%		0%		-14%		-6%

		22-11		9,429		5,317		4,112		63		20		83		724,646		49,342		773,988		$   433,357		$   110,308		$   17,685		$   561,351		$   535,497		-3%		-15%		2%		89%		10%		-17%		-18%		-1%

		22-12		8,873		5,088		3,785		62		24		86		702,536		49,392		751,928		$   460,339		$   106,591		$   18,723		$   585,653		$   539,191		4%		-6%		-3%		4%		11%		-4%		-18%		-8%

		23-01		9,627		6,161		3,466		65		38		103		647,299		74,093		721,392		$   494,058		$   103,647		$   26,081		$   623,786		$   581,212		7%		8%		-4%		20%		7%		-5%		1%		49%

		23-02		8,573		5,420		3,153		48		19		67		598,884		40,646		639,530		$   457,617		$   90,214		$   24,660		$   572,491		$   530,150		-8%		-11%		-11%		-35%		7%		6%		-15%		-36%

		23-03		9,579		5,682		3,897		72		23		95		653,576		57,900		711,476		$   480,798		$   101,369		$   24,527		$   606,693		$   566,565		6%		12%		11%		42%		6%		-13%		-21%		-34%

		23-04		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   552,601

		23-05		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   553,669

		23-06		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   560,215

		23-07		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   578,402

		23-08		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   556,399

		23-09		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   555,081





Monthly Report Charts - 25 mo.



&"Arial,Bold"&18ADS by the Numbers	


International Operations (U.S. Customs - Aircraft Clearances)

Inbound	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	63	64	39	58	39	39	30	38	61	64	57	74	92	42	47	75	42	26	28	37	63	62	65	48	72	Outbound	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	12	26	24	40	26	24	15	9	23	29	12	30	51	21	14	25	17	11	6	7	20	24	38	19	23	







Revenue

Real Estate	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	364947.72	363623.97	364450.34	355916.18	385909.25	371106.78	366234.46	365719.36	364558.88	377825.54	465220.06	415328.18	422283.6	419538.08	445945.67	470937.35	445461.84	391848.45	1064673	447219.21	433357.16	460339.1	494057.5	457617.08	480797.72	Fuel	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	92762.2	89946.64	92139.12	109827.12	113194.44	106447.82	101212.9	126082.98	134318.18	129442.16	102465.18	106303.03999999999	128512.26	96889.2	123090.8	105568.42	96058.72	103607.34	105012.42	108498.98	110308.24	106590.72	103647.36	90213.96	101368.96000000001	Other	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	14935.310000000012	22051.510000000024	10042.179999999993	13739.73000000004	19397.179999999993	10413.629999999946	11278.399999999994	14453.940000000046	10779.960000000021	21518.139999999985	14950.550000000047	15014.89	19199.800000000061	20209.579999999973	12525.83000000006	14219.60000000002	18275.319999999978	52578.449999999983	20189.789999999964	21142.999999999927	17685.140000000058	18722.749999999971	26081.040000000023	24659.979999999996	24526.730000000054	







Aircraft Operations (Arrivals and Departures)

IFR	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	3637	3440	3885	3969	3991	3810	4209	5038	5050	4645	3896	3412	4569	3893	4471	4090	3451	4008	4043	4022	4112	3785	3466	3153	3897	VFR	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	5841	4982	4699	6302	6976	6457	6799	5990	6301	4594	6214	4659	6440	4333	5382	7086	7019	6364	7550	7052	5317	5088	6161	5420	5682	







Fuel Flowage (Gallons Received)

Jet-A	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	587673	584646	604767	715873	739634	681726	644601	827016	889557	857034	656523	711620	861224	626717	821711	680783	624240	650494	684881	680941	724646	702536	647299	598884	653576	AvGas	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	60809	48506	48673	52415	57092	62303	64298	59895	55886	60438	61178	38372	45043	51551	48173	59556	48068	75659	55986	77890	49342	49392	74093	40646	57900	









4-year look-back graphs

		FY21		OPERATIONS								FUEL FLOWAGE								U.S. CUSTOMS

				Itinerant				Local		Total		Jet-A		AvGas		Total		Non-Public		Arrivals		Regulated Garbage		Overtime Clearances

				IFR		VFR

		Oct		3,580		6,055		283		9,918		530,193		64,444		594,637		32,106		27		15		16

		Nov		3,228		5,746		187		9,161		447,146		56,798		503,944		8,743		43		17		28

		Dec		2,968		5,338		261		8,567		514,125		56,903		571,028		32,550		33		15		24

		Jan		2,712		5,232		162		8,106		410,147		32,875		443,022		8,031		42		19		25

		Feb		2,298		3,106		170		5,574		391,524		32,589		424,113		8,200		29		11		17

		Mar		3,637		5,606		235		9,478		587,673		60,809		648,482		24,684		63		27		44

		Apr		3,440		4,777		205		8,422		584,646		48,506		633,152		16,317		64		27		24

		May		3,885		4,480		219		8,584		604,767		48,673		653,440		8,219		39		17		20

		Jun		3,969		6,113		189		10,271		715,873		52,415		768,288		28,335		58		21		40

		Jul		3,991		6,689		287		10,967		739,634		57,092		796,726		20,660		39		17

		Aug		3,810		6,257		200		10,267		681,726		62,303		744,029		28,547		39		12

		Sep		4,209		6,557		242		11,008		644,601		64,298		708,899		24,588		30		3

				41,727		65,956		2,640		110,323		6,852,055		637,705		7,489,760		240,980		506		201		238

		FY22

		Oct		5,038		5,771		219		11,028		827,016		59,895		886,911		23,943		38		16

		Nov		5,050		5,993		308		11,351		889,557		55,886		945,443		24,452		61		26

		Dec		4,645		4,406		188		9,239		857,034		60,438		917,472		12,451		64		26

		Jan		3,896		5,994		220		10,110		656,523		61,178		717,701		24,838		57		18

		Feb		3,412		4,599		60		8,071		711,620		38,372		749,992		22,063		74		32

		Mar		4,569		6,239		201		11,009		861,224		45,043		906,267		20,436		92		41		35

		Apr		3,893		4,176		157		8,226		626,717		51,551		678,268		24,146		42		27		12

		May		4,471		5,173		209		9,853		821,711		48,173		869,884		16,338		47		18		23

		Jun		4,090		6,897		189		11,176		680,783		59,556		740,339		24,012		75		30		30

		Jul		3,451		6,853		166		10,470		624,240		48,068		672,308		24,195		42		16		17

		Aug		4,008		6,069		295		10,372		650,494		75,659		726,153		24,324		26		9		11

		Sep		4,043		7,344		206		11,593		684,881		55,986		740,867		16,138		28		7		9

				50,566		69,514		2,418		122,498		8,891,800		659,805		9,551,605		257,336		646		266		137

		FY23

		Oct		4,022		6,894		158		11,074		680,941		77,890		758,831		28,283		37		14		11

		Nov		4,112		5,229		88		9,429		724,646		49,342		773,988		24,374		63		30		30

		Dec		3,785		5,030		58		8,873		702,536		49,392		751,928		16,510		62		27		27

		Jan		3,466		6,043		118		9,627		647,299		74,093		721,392		33,156		65		27		26

		Feb		3,153		5,311		109		8,573		598,884		40,646		639,530		8,497		48		17		17

		Mar		3,897		5,634		48		9,579		653,576		57,900		711,476		22,029		72		31		44

		Apr		0		0		0		0		0		0		0				0

		May		0		0		0		0		0		0		0				0

		Jun		0		0		0		0		0		0		0				0

		Jul		0		0		0		0		0		0		0				0

		Aug		0		0		0		0		0		0		0				0

		Sep		0		0		0		0		0		0		0				0

				22,435		34,141		579		57,155		4,007,882		349,263		4,357,145		132,849		347		146		155



Jet-A Volume (gallons)



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	555796	560580	537520	564818	483192	588995	546360	545831	459955	467027	553631	544788	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	587394	497326	571207	467518	563482	407753	106650	239109	432590	492331	482311	496914	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	530193	447146	514125	410147	391524	587673	584646	604767	715873	739634	681726	644601	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	827016	889557	857034	656523	711620	861224	626717	821711	680783	624240	650494	684881	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	680941	724646	702536	647299	598884	653576	







Monthly Fuel Flowage Revenue



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	86679.12	88931.24	84186.559999999998	87907.1	75622.259999999995	92290.82	86203.16	84924.6	76426.14	79848.06	89077.84	87355.1	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	94813.2	80342.720000000001	91631.82	73567.34	88203.12	64678.82	21959.26	43415.16	72691.039999999994	79728.479999999996	79866.48	76880.600000000006	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	85817.66	71251.600000000006	82547.92	62665.56	60031.82	92762.2	89946.64	92139.12	109827.12	113194.44	106447.82	101212.9	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	126082.98	134318.18	129442.16	102465.18	106303.03999999999	128512.26	96889.2	123090.8	105568.42	96058.72	103607.34	105012.42	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	108498.98	110308.24	106590.72	103647.36	90213.96	101368.96000000001	







Instrument (IFR) Operations



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	3935	3432	3080	3176	2964	3314	3398	3616	3171	2998	3322	3860	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	3966	3617	3636	3388	3363	2631	1391	2322	2934	3291	3002	3384	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	3580	3228	2968	2712	2298	3637	3440	3885	3969	3991	3810	4209	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	5038	5050	4645	3896	3412	4569	3893	4471	4090	3451	4008	4043	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	4022	4112	3785	3466	3153	3897	







Visual (VFR) Operations



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	5042	5896	5209	5917	3910	6434	5920	6412	7226	8128	7897	7490	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	7439	6950	7163	5512	6137	4524	5434	6791	7048	7095	8008	5998	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	6338	5933	5599	5394	3276	5841	4982	4699	6302	6976	6457	6799	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	5990	6301	4594	6214	4659	6440	4333	5382	7086	7019	6364	7550	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	7052	5317	5088	6161	5420	5682	







AvGas Volume (gallons)



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	47404	60950	49668	48939	45447	60788	47750	46847	63342	85274	64289	63541	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	68894	65126	64426	48571	54054	40230	40679	59885	72482	63481	70053	42887	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	64444	56798	56903	32875	32589	60809	48506	48673	52415	57092	62303	64298	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	59895	55886	60438	61178	38372	45043	51551	48173	59556	48068	75659	55986	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	77890	49342	49392	74093	40646	57900	







Total Operations



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	8977	9328	8289	9093	6874	9748	9318	10028	10397	11126	11219	11350	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	11405	10567	10799	8900	9500	7155	6825	9113	9982	10386	11010	9382	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	9918	9161	8567	8106	5574	9478	8422	8584	10271	10967	10267	11008	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	11028	11351	9239	10110	8071	11009	8226	9853	11176	10470	10372	11593	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	11074	9429	8873	9627	8573	9579	







Total Fuel Volume (gallons)



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	603200	621530	587188	613757	528639	649783	594110	592678	523297	552301	617920	608329	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	656288	562452	635633	516089	617536	447983	147329	298994	505072	555812	552364	539801	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	594637	503944	571028	443022	424113	648482	633152	653440	768288	796726	744029	708899	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	886911	945443	917472	717701	749992	906267	678268	869884	740339	672308	726153	740867	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	758831	773988	751928	721392	639530	711476	







International Arrivals



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	42	39	29	39	44	47	40	35	25	21	25	21	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	26	38	43	37	44	56	5	12	22	15	21	24	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	27	43	33	42	29	63	64	39	58	39	39	30	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	38	61	64	57	74	92	42	47	75	42	26	28	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	37	63	62	65	48	72	







Total Monthly Revenue



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	464414.48	465118.2	468418.5	495367.66	449923.89	471663.75	474213.03	469106.66	455898.91	1480559.5	471156.65	472166.32	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	479457.48	466618.68	458362.93	488256.25	455301.85	432766.86	391630.82	416699.45	449584.06	472656.3	454268.15	451167.36	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	458202	444042.87	456924.36	485772.14	434136.39	472645.23	475622.12	466631.64	479483.03	518500.87	487968.23	478725.76	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	506256.28	509657.02	528785.84	582635.79	536646.11	569995.66	536636.86	581562.30000000005	590725.37	559795.88	548034.24	1189875.21	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	576861.18999999994	561350.54	585652.56999999995	623785.9	572491.02	606693.41	







Monthly Real Estate Revenue



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	368423.55	364526.02	368932.55	399927.31	358429.69	369423.98	376077.08	372819.67	372804.99	1391430.94	372015.59	373300.57	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	376389.95	371813.68	355678.7	403281.25	355202.61	355610.92	356125.92	366575.5	370381.6	383521.64	363885.32	363456.62	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	357017.51	356194.43	360755	406798.76	362544.79	364947.72	363623.97	364450.34	355916.18	385909.25	371106.78	366234.46	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	365719.36	364558.88	377825.54	465220.06	415328.18	422283.6	419538.08	445945.67	470937.35	445461.84	391848.45	1064673	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	447219.21	433357.16	460339.1	494057.5	457617.08	480797.72	









Qrtrly Reports - Ops and Fuel

		YY-MM		OPERATIONS										YY-MM		International Operations												OPERATIONS										YY-MM		FUEL FLOWAGE (gallons)

				TOTAL		VFR Itin		IFR Itin		LOC						arrivals		departures		Total								IFR Itin		VFR Itin		Local		TOTAL						Jet-A		AvGas		TOTAL

		16-10		9,580		5,853		3,409		318				16-10		31		13		44				FY19 Q2		Jan-19		3,176		5,441		476		9,093				16-10		523,272		56,481		579,753

		16-11		7,385		4,200		3,046		139				16-11		39		16		55						Feb-19		2,964		3,540		370		6,874				16-11		511,155		45,330		556,485

		16-12		7,315		4,146		2,860		309				16-12		42		23		65						Mar-19		3,314		6,023		411		9,748				16-12		513,453		28,934		542,387

		17-01		7,369		4,452		2,677		240				17-01		38		16		54				TOTAL				9,454		15,004		1,257		25,715				17-01		441,721		51,531		493,252

		17-02		7,386		4,342		2,793		251				17-02		32		10		42				FY20 Q2		Jan-20		3,388		5,097		415		8,900				17-02		491,491		31,862		523,353

		17-03		8,353		4,856		3,157		340				17-03		45		21		66						Feb-20		3,363		5,866		271		9,500				17-03		486,359		44,561		530,920

		17-04		7,196		3,845		2,988		363				17-04		25		13		38						Mar-20		2,631		4,210		314		7,155				17-04		434,626		49,999		484,625

		17-05		8,643		5,049		2,967		627				17-05		24		19		43				TOTAL				9,382		15,173		1,000		25,555				17-05		505,339		42,733		548,072

		17-06		8,395		4,829		3,004		562				17-06		37		20		57				FY21 Q2		Jan-21		2,712		5,232		162		8,106				17-06		459,824		39,296		499,120

		17-07		8,910		5,700		2,720		490				17-07		35		11		46						Feb-21		2,298		3,106		170		5,574				17-07		508,559		49,993		558,552

		17-08		8,430		4,733		3,162		535				17-08		18		8		26						Mar-21		3,637		5,606		235		9,478				17-08		514,755		58,847		573,602

		17-09		9,659		6,071		3,311		277				17-09		32		16		48				TOTAL				8,647		13,944		567		23,158				17-09		493,277		51,736		545,013

		17-10		8,895		5,496		3,224		175				17-10		32		15		47				FY22 Q2		Jan-22		3,896		5,994		220		10,110				17-10		529,149		55,595		584,744

		17-11		8,746		4,766		3,663		317				17-11		33		14		47						Feb-22		3,412		4,599		60		8,071				17-11		552,450		51,038		603,488

		17-12		7,512		4,450		2,853		209				17-12		39		25		64						Mar-22		4,569		6,239		201		11,009				17-12		474,317		49,006		523,323

		18-01		8,114		4,989		2,911		214				18-01		38		22		60				TOTAL				11,877		16,832		481		29,190				18-01		493,347		37,726		531,073

		18-02		5,866		3,026		2,737		103				18-02		37		12		49				FY23 Q2		Jan-23		3,466		6,043		118		9,627				18-02		481,758		35,420		517,178

		18-03		8,968		5,565		3,301		102				18-03		56		24		80						Feb-23		3,153		5,311		109		8,573				18-03		557,985		56,480		614,465

		18-04		8,362		5,209		3,045		108				18-04		45		22		67						Mar-23		3,897		5,634		48		9,579				18-04		490,653		44,136		534,789

		18-05		9,854		6,415		3,274		165				18-05		35		15		50				TOTAL				10,516		16,988		275		27,779				18-05		525,621		66,701		592,322

		18-06		9,517		6,201		3,169		147				18-06		34		10		44																		18-06		547,460		62,423		609,883

		18-07		8,950		6,017		2,829		104				18-07		31		14		45								International Operations										18-07		513,573		53,552		567,125

		18-08		9,893		6,586		3,165		142				18-08		22		3		25								arrivals		departures		TOTAL						18-08		522,511		58,944		581,455

		18-09		7,617		3,769		3,635		213				18-09		23		6		29				FY19 Q2		Jan-19		39		19		58						18-09		508,639		47,434		556,073

		18-10		8,977		4,573		3,935		469				18-10		42		11		53						Feb-19		44		14		58						18-10		555,796		47,404		603,200

		18-11		9,328		5,616		3,432		280				18-11		39		22		61						Mar-19		47		17		64						18-11		560,580		60,950		621,530

		18-12		8,289		4,989		3,080		220				18-12		29		26		55				TOTAL				130		50		180						18-12		537,520		49,668		587,188

		19-01		9,093		5,441		3,176		476				19-01		39		19		58				FY20 Q2		Jan-20		37		7		44						19-01		564,818		48,939		613,757

		19-02		6,874		3,540		2,964		370				19-02		44		14		58						Feb-20		44		16		60						19-02		483,192		45,447		528,639

		19-03		9,748		6,023		3,314		411				19-03		47		17		64						Mar-20		56		15		71						19-03		588,995		60,788		649,783

		19-04		9,318		5,447		3,398		473				19-04		40		23		63				TOTAL				137		38		175						19-04		546,360		47,750		594,110

		19-05		10,028		5,603		3,616		809				19-05		35		16		51				FY21 Q2		Jan-21		42		37		79						19-05		545,831		46,847		592,678

		19-06		10,397		6,659		3,171		567				19-06		25		12		37						Feb-21		29		8		37						19-06		459,955		63,342		523,297

		19-07		11,126		7,794		2,998		334				19-07		21		15		36						Mar-21		63		12		75						19-07		467,027		85,274		552,301

		19-08		11,219		7,641		3,322		256				19-08		25		12		37				TOTAL				134		57		191						19-08		553,631		64,289		617,920

		19-09		11,350		7,173		3,860		317				19-09		21		12		33				FY22 Q2		Jan-22		57		12		69						19-09		544,788		63,541		608,329

		19-10		11,405		6,841		3,966		598				19-10		26		7		33						Feb-22		74		30		104						19-10		587,394		68,894		656,288

		19-11		10,567		6,592		3,617		358				19-11		38		21		59						Mar-22		92		51		143						19-11		497,326		65,126		562,452

		19-12		10,799		6,670		3,636		493				19-12		43		22		65				TOTAL				223		93		316						19-12		571,207		64,426		635,633

		20-01		8,900		5,097		3,388		415				20-01		37		7		44				FY23 Q2		Jan-23		65		38		103						20-01		467,518		48,571		516,089

		20-02		9,500		5,866		3,363		271				20-02		44		16		60						Feb-23		48		19		67						20-02		563,482		54,054		617,536

		20-03		7,155		4,210		2,631		314				20-03		56		15		71						Mar-23		72		23		95						20-03		407,753		40,230		447,983

		20-04		6,825		5,367		1,391		67				20-04		5		6		11				TOTAL				185		80		265						20-04		106,650		40,679		147,329

		20-05		9,113		6,654		2,322		137				20-05		12		1		13																		20-05		239,109		59,885		298,994

		20-06		9,982		6,849		2,934		199				20-06		22		6		28								FUEL FLOWAGE (gallons)										20-06		432,590		72,482		505,072

		20-07		10,386		6,990		3,291		105				20-07		15		6		21								Jet-A		AvGas		TOTAL						20-07		492,331		63,481		555,812

		20-08		11,010		7,777		3,002		231				20-08		21		8		29				FY19 Q2		Jan-19		564,818		48,939		613,757						20-08		482,311		70,053		552,364

		20-09		9,382		5,675		3,384		323				20-09		24		6		30						Feb-19		483,192		45,447		528,639						20-09		496,914		42,887		539,801

		20-10		9,918		6,055		3,580		283				20-10		27		5		32						Mar-19		588,995		60,788		649,783						20-10		530,193		64,444		594,637

		20-11		9,161		5,746		3,228		187				20-11		43		16		59				TOTAL				1,637,005		155,174		1,792,179						20-11		447,146		56,798		503,944

		20-12		8,567		5,338		2,968		261				20-12		33		21		54				FY20 Q2		Jan-20		467,518		48,571		516,089						20-12		514,125		56,903		571,028

		21-01		8,106		5,232		2,712		162				21-01		42		37		79						Feb-20		563,482		54,054		617,536						21-01		410,147		32,875		443,022

		21-02		5,574		3,106		2,298		170				21-02		29		8		37						Mar-20		407,753		40,230		447,983						21-02		391,524		32,589		424,113

		21-03		9,478		5,606		3,637		235				21-03		63		12		75				TOTAL				1,438,753		142,855		1,581,608						21-03		587,673		60,809		648,482

		21-04		8,422		4,777		3,440		205				21-04		64		26		90				FY21 Q2		Jan-21		410,147		32,875		443,022						21-04		584,646		48,506		633,152

		21-05		8,584		4,480		3,885		219				21-05		39		24		63						Feb-21		391,524		32,589		424,113						21-05		604,767		48,673		653,440

		21-06		10,271		6,113		3,969		189				21-06		58		40		98						Mar-21		587,673		60,809		648,482						21-06		715,873		52,415		768,288

		21-07		10,967		6,689		3,991		287				21-07		39		26		65				TOTAL				1,389,344		126,273		1,515,617						21-07		739,634		57,092		796,726

		21-08		10,267		6,257		3,810		200				21-08		39		24		63				FY22 Q2		Jan-22		656,523		61,178		717,701						21-08		681,726		62,303		744,029

		21-09		11,008		6,557		4,209		242				21-09		30		15		45						Feb-22		711,620		38,372		749,992						21-09		644,601		64,298		708,899

		21-10		11,028		5,771		5,038		219				21-10		38		9		47						Mar-22		861,224		45,043		906,267						21-10		827,016		59,895		886,911

		21-11		11,351		5,993		5,050		308				21-11		61		23		84				TOTAL				2,229,367		144,593		2,373,960						21-11		889,557		55,886		945,443

		21-12		9,239		4,406		4,645		188				21-12		64		29		93				FY23 Q2		Jan-23		647,299		74,093		721,392						21-12		857,034		60,438		917,472

		22-01		10,110		5,994		3,896		220				22-01		57		12		69						Feb-23		598,884		40,646		639,530						22-01		656,523		61,178		717,701

		22-02		8,071		4,599		3,412		60				22-02		74		30		104						Mar-23		653,576		57,900		711,476						22-02		711,620		38,372		749,992

		22-03		11,009		6,239		4,569		201				22-03		92		51		143				TOTAL				1,899,759		172,639		2,072,398						22-03		861,224		45,043		906,267

		22-04		8,226		4,176		3,893		157				22-04		42		21		63																		22-04		626,717		51,551		678,268

		22-05		9,853		5,173		4,471		209				22-05		47		14		61																		22-05		821,711		48,173		869,884

		22-06		11,176		6,897		4,090		189				22-06		75		25		100																		22-06		680,783		59,556		740,339

		22-07		10,470		6,853		3,451		166				22-07		42		17		59																		22-07		624,240		48,068		672,308

		22-08		10,372		6,069		4,008		295				22-08		26		11		37																		22-08		650,494		75,659		726,153

		22-09		11,593		7,344		4,043		206				22-09		28		6		34																		22-09		684,881		55,986		740,867

		22-10		11,074		6,894		4,022		158				22-10		37		7		44																		22-10		680,941		77,890		758,831

		22-11		9,429		5,229		4,112		88				22-11		63		20		83																		22-11		724,646		49,342		773,988

		22-12		8,873		5,030		3,785		58				22-12		62		24		86																		22-12		702,536		49,392		751,928

		23-01		9,627		6,043		3,466		118				23-01		65		38		103																		23-01		647,299		74,093		721,392

		23-02		8,573		5,311		3,153		109				23-02		48		19		67																		23-02		598,884		40,646		639,530

		23-03		9,579		5,634		3,897		48				23-03		72		23		95																		23-03		653,576		57,900		711,476

		23-04		0		0		0						23-04		0		0		0																		23-04		0		0		0

		23-05		0		0		0						23-05		0		0		0																		23-05		0		0		0

		23-06		0		0		0						23-06		0		0		0																		23-06		0		0		0

		23-07		0		0		0						23-07		0		0		0																		23-07		0		0		0

		23-08		0		0		0						23-08		0		0		0																		23-08		0		0		0

		23-09		0		0		0						23-09		0		0		0																		23-09		0		0		0





Qrtrly Reports - Revenue

		YY-MM		REVENUE														REVENUE

				Real Estate		FFF		Other		TOTAL								Real Estate		FFF		Other		TOTAL

		16-10		$   370,727		$   83,688		$   10,941		$   465,356				FY19 Q2		Jan-19		$   399,927		$   87,907		$   7,533		$   495,368

		16-11		$   368,650		$   79,559		$   12,244		$   460,454						Feb-19		$   358,430		$   75,622		$   15,872		$   449,924

		16-12		$   353,039		$   77,870		$   13,590		$   444,500						Mar-19		$   369,424		$   92,291		$   9,949		$   471,664

		17-01		$   391,545		$   70,053		$   13,733		$   475,332				TOTAL				$   1,127,781		$   255,820		$   33,354		$   1,416,955

		17-02		$   343,434		$   75,183		$   14,497		$   433,114				FY20 Q2		Jan-20		$   403,281		$   73,567		$   11,408		$   488,256

		17-03		$   349,043		$   76,561		$   12,217		$   437,821						Feb-20		$   355,203		$   88,203		$   11,896		$   455,302

		17-04		$   352,297		$   69,912		$   14,572		$   436,781						Mar-20		$   355,611		$   64,679		$   12,477		$   432,767

		17-05		$   363,977		$   77,360		$   7,689		$   449,026				TOTAL				$   1,114,095		$   226,449		$   35,781		$   1,376,325

		17-06		$   363,011		$   71,770		$   12,171		$   446,951				FY21 Q2		Jan-21		$   406,799		$   62,666		$   16,308		$   485,772

		17-07		$   381,670		$   81,350		$   10,642		$   473,662						Feb-21		$   362,545		$   60,032		$   11,560		$   434,136

		17-08		$   366,885		$   82,507		$   9,969		$   459,361						Mar-21		$   364,948		$   92,762		$   14,935		$   472,645

		17-09		$   365,626		$   78,515		$   10,619		$   454,759				TOTAL				$   1,134,291		$   215,460		$   42,803		$   1,392,554

		17-10		$   367,559		$   83,762		$   10,574		$   461,894				FY22 Q2		Jan-22		$   465,220		$   102,465		$   14,951		$   582,636

		17-11		$   367,157		$   85,961		$   10,950		$   464,068						Feb-22		$   415,328		$   106,303		$   15,015		$   536,646

		17-12		$   367,364		$   75,183		$   13,278		$   455,824						Mar-22		$   422,284		$   128,512		$   19,200		$   569,996

		18-01		$   414,943		$   75,348		$   12,689		$   502,980				TOTAL				$   1,302,832		$   337,280		$   49,165		$   1,689,278

		18-02		$   374,077		$   74,556		$   11,675		$   460,308				FY23 Q2		Jan-23		$   494,058		$   103,647		$   26,081		$   623,786

		18-03		$   372,683		$   88,962		$   14,395		$   476,039						Feb-23		$   457,617		$   90,214		$   24,660		$   572,491

		18-04		$   364,132		$   76,778		$   14,475		$   455,385						Mar-23		$   480,798		$   101,369		$   24,527		$   606,693

		18-05		$   368,924		$   84,448		$   8,618		$   461,990				TOTAL				$   1,432,472		$   295,230		$   75,268		$   1,802,970

		18-06		$   364,563		$   88,853		$   18,029		$   471,445

		18-07		$   386,877		$   80,334		$   9,241		$   476,451

		18-08		$   358,921		$   84,853		$   12,750		$   456,525

		18-09		$   366,385		$   78,779		$   8,328		$   453,492

		18-10		$   368,424		$   86,679		$   9,312		$   464,414

		18-11		$   364,526		$   88,931		$   11,661		$   465,118

		18-12		$   368,933		$   84,187		$   15,299		$   468,419

		19-01		$   399,927		$   87,907		$   7,533		$   495,368

		19-02		$   358,430		$   75,622		$   15,872		$   449,924

		19-03		$   369,424		$   92,291		$   9,949		$   471,664

		19-04		$   376,077		$   86,203		$   11,933		$   474,213

		19-05		$   372,820		$   84,925		$   11,362		$   469,107

		19-06		$   372,805		$   76,426		$   6,668		$   455,899

		19-07		$   1,391,431		$   79,848		$   9,281		$   1,480,560

		19-08		$   372,016		$   89,078		$   10,063		$   471,157

		19-09		$   373,301		$   87,355		$   11,511		$   472,166

		19-10		$   376,390		$   94,813		$   8,254		$   479,457

		19-11		$   371,814		$   80,343		$   14,462		$   466,619

		19-12		$   355,679		$   91,632		$   11,052		$   458,363

		20-01		$   403,281		$   73,567		$   11,408		$   488,256

		20-02		$   355,203		$   88,203		$   11,896		$   455,302

		20-03		$   355,611		$   64,679		$   12,477		$   432,767

		20-04		$   356,126		$   21,959		$   13,546		$   391,631

		20-05		$   366,576		$   43,415		$   6,709		$   416,699

		20-06		$   370,382		$   72,691		$   6,511		$   449,584

		20-07		$   383,522		$   79,728		$   9,406		$   472,656

		20-08		$   363,885		$   79,866		$   10,516		$   454,268

		20-09		$   363,457		$   76,881		$   10,830		$   451,167

		20-10		$   357,018		$   85,818		$   15,367		$   458,202

		20-11		$   356,194		$   71,252		$   16,597		$   444,043

		20-12		$   360,755		$   82,548		$   13,621		$   456,924

		21-01		$   406,799		$   62,666		$   16,308		$   485,772

		21-02		$   362,545		$   60,032		$   11,560		$   434,136

		21-03		$   364,948		$   92,762		$   14,935		$   472,645

		21-04		$   363,624		$   89,947		$   22,052		$   475,622

		21-05		$   364,450		$   92,139		$   10,042		$   466,632

		21-06		$   355,916		$   109,827		$   13,740		$   479,483

		21-07		$   385,909		$   113,194		$   19,397		$   518,501

		21-08		$   371,107		$   106,448		$   10,414		$   487,968

		21-09		$   366,234		$   101,213		$   11,278		$   478,726

		21-10		$   365,719		$   126,083		$   14,454		$   506,256

		21-11		$   364,559		$   134,318		$   10,780		$   509,657

		21-12		$   377,826		$   129,442		$   21,518		$   528,786

		22-01		$   465,220		$   102,465		$   14,951		$   582,636

		22-02		$   415,328		$   106,303		$   15,015		$   536,646

		22-03		$   422,284		$   128,512		$   19,200		$   569,996

		22-04		$   419,538		$   96,889		$   20,210		$   536,637

		22-05		$   445,946		$   123,091		$   12,526		$   581,562

		22-06		$   470,937		$   105,568		$   14,220		$   590,725

		22-07		$   445,462		$   96,059		$   18,275		$   559,796

		22-08		$   391,848		$   103,607		$   52,578		$   548,034

		22-09		$   1,064,673		$   105,012		$   20,190		$   1,189,875

		22-10		$   447,219		$   108,499		$   21,143		$   576,861

		22-11		$   433,357		$   110,308		$   17,685		$   561,351

		22-12		$   460,339		$   106,591		$   18,723		$   585,653

		23-01		$   494,058		$   103,647		$   26,081		$   623,786

		23-02		$   457,617		$   90,214		$   24,660		$   572,491

		23-03		$   480,798		$   101,369		$   24,527		$   606,693

		23-04		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -

		23-05		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -

		23-06		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -

		23-07		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -

		23-08		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -

		23-09		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -





FY23 Q2 data and charts

				Operations														International Operations

				IFR Itinerant		VFR Itinerant		Local		TOTAL								Arrivals		Departures		TOTAL

		FY19Q2		9,454		15,004		1,257		25,715						FY19Q2		130		50		180

		FY20Q2		9,382		15,173		1,000		25,555						FY20Q2		137		38		175

		FY21Q2		8,647		13,944		567		23,158						FY21Q2		134		57		191

		FY22Q2		11,877		16,832		481		29,190						FY22Q2		223		93		316

		FY23Q2		10,516		16,988		275		27,779						FY23Q2		185		80		265



				Revenue														Fuel Flowage (Gallons)

				Real Estate		Fuel Flowage		Other		TOTAL								Jet-A		AvGas		TOTAL

		FY19Q2		$   1,127,781		$   255,820		$   33,354		$   1,416,955						FY19Q2		1,637,005		155,174		1,792,179

		FY20Q2		$   1,114,095		$   226,449		$   35,781		$   1,376,325						FY20Q2		1,438,753		142,855		1,581,608

		FY21Q2		$   1,134,291		$   215,460		$   42,803		$   1,392,554						FY21Q2		1,389,344		126,273		1,515,617

		FY22Q2		$   1,302,832		$   337,280		$   49,165		$   1,689,278						FY22Q2		2,229,367		144,593		2,373,960

		FY23Q2		$   1,432,472		$   295,230		$   75,268		$   1,802,970						FY23Q2		1,899,759		172,639		2,072,398



Operations



IFR Itinerant	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	9454	9382	8647	11877	10516	VFR Itinerant	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	15004	15173	13944	16832	16988	Local	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	1257	1000	567	481	275	







Revenue



Real Estate	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	1127780.98	1114094.78	1134291.27	1302831.8399999999	1432472.3	Fuel Flowage	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	255820.18	226449.28	215459.58000000002	337280.48	295230.28000000003	Other	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	33354.14	35780.9	42802.910000000054	49165.240000000107	75267.750000000073	













International Operations



Arrivals	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	130	137	134	223	185	Departures	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	50	38	57	93	80	







Fuel Flowage (Gallons)



Jet-A	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	1637005	1438753	1389344	2229367	1899759	AvGas	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	155174	142855	126273	144593	172639	









Full year data and charts

				Operations														International Operations

				IFR Itinerant		VFR Itinerant		Local		TOTAL								Arrivals		Departures		TOTAL

		FY18		37,806		62,489		1,999		102,294						FY18		425		182		607

		FY19		40,266		70,499		4,982		115,747						FY19		407		199		606

		FY20		36,925		74,588		3,511		115,024						FY20		343		121		464

		FY21		41,727		65,956		2,640		110,323						FY21		506		254		760

		FY22		50,566		69,514		2,418		122,498						FY22		646		248		894



				Revenue														Fuel Flowage (Gallons)

				Real Estate		Fuel Flowage		Other		TOTAL								Jet-A		AvGas		TOTAL

		FY18		$   4,473,583		$   977,818		$   145,000		$   5,596,402						FY18		6,197,463		618,455		6,815,918

		FY19		$   5,488,112		$   1,019,452		$   130,444		$   6,638,008						FY19		6,408,493		684,239		7,092,732

		FY20		$   4,421,924		$   867,778		$   127,068		$   5,416,770						FY20		5,344,585		690,768		6,035,353

		FY21		$   4,415,499		$   1,067,845		$   175,311		$   5,658,655						FY21		6,852,055		637,705		7,489,760

		FY22		$   5,649,340		$   1,357,351		$   233,916		$   7,240,607						FY22		8,891,800		659,805		9,551,605



Operations



IFR Itinerant	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	37806	40266	36925	41727	50566	VFR Itinerant	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	62489	70499	74588	65956	69514	Local	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	1999	4982	3511	2640	2418	







Revenue



Real Estate	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	4473583.3599999994	5488111.9399999995	4421923.71	4415499.1899999995	5649340.0099999998	Fuel Flowage	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	977818.44	1019452	867778.03999999992	1067844.8	1357350.7	Other	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	145000.37	130443.61000000003	127068.44	175310.65000000002	233915.85000000015	













International Operations



Arrivals	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	425	407	343	506	646	Departures	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	182	199	121	254	248	







Fuel Flowage (Gallons)



Jet-A	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	6197463	6408493	5344585	6852055	8891800	AvGas	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	618455	684239	690768	637705	659805	











FY23 Q2 Statistics – Fuel Flowage

5

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

FY19Q2 FY20Q2 FY21Q2 FY22Q2 FY23Q2

Fuel Flowage (Gallons)

Jet-A

AvGas

Jet-A
• Down 14.8% from Q1 FY22
• Up 36.7% over Q1 FY21

AvGas
• Up 19.4% over Q1 FY22
• Up 36.7% over Q1 FY21

Total Fuel Flowage
• Down 12.7% from Q1 of FY22
• Up 36.7% over Q1 of FY21


Chart3



Fuel Flowage (Gallons)



Jet-A	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	1637005	1438753	1389344	2229367	1899759	AvGas	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	155174	142855	126273	144593	172639	









Monthly Report Data

		Monthly Report Data

		YY-MM		OPERATIONS						International Operations						FUEL FLOWAGE (gallons)						REVENUE

				Total		VFR		IFR		inbound		outbound		Total		Jet-A		AvGas		Total		Real Estate		Fuel		Other		Total		Budget

		11-10		8,511		5,609		2,902		27		7		34		398,445		56,310		454,755		$   285,776		$   55,203		$   4,283		$   345,262		$   350,316

		11-11		7,447		4,507		2,940		32		17		49		448,518		44,491		493,009		$   284,963		$   60,437		$   3,761		$   349,162		$   348,985

		11-12		7,043		4,012		3,031		29		16		45		455,097		40,750		495,847		$   290,484		$   60,790		$   6,116		$   357,390		$   351,605

		12-01		7,478		4,600		2,878		34		17		51		385,946		48,633		434,579		$   333,364		$   53,393		$   15,644		$   402,401		$   398,721

		12-02		7,745		4,652		3,093		25		10		35		402,350		48,872		451,222		$   289,743		$   55,726		$   3,919		$   349,387		$   345,093

		12-03		8,196		4,939		3,257		33		21		54		468,123		54,367		522,490		$   287,985		$   64,288		$   6,040		$   358,313		$   344,618

		12-04		8,010		4,760		3,250		38		16		54		414,178		36,194		450,372		$   294,422		$   55,869		$   6,034		$   356,326		$   347,328

		12-05		8,259		5,102		3,157		26		18		44		469,885		68,292		538,177		$   290,342		$   65,208		$   7,269		$   362,819		$   346,465

		12-06		8,431		5,612		2,819		24		15		39		479,389		44,165		523,554		$   291,734		$   64,952		$   4,501		$   361,186		$   345,936

		12-07		8,560		5,807		2,753		31		14		45		423,797		59,520		483,317		$   314,171		$   59,530		$   4,153		$   377,854		$   345,411

		12-08		8,533		5,609		2,924		28		22		50		448,320		49,981		498,301		$   294,577		$   61,341		$   5,359		$   361,278		$   344,373

		12-09		7,816		4,785		3,031		22		15		37		465,035		32,515		497,550		$   294,702		$   60,931		$   2,612		$   358,245		$   338,879

		FY12		96,029		59,994		36,035		349		188		537		5,259,083		584,090		5,843,173		$   3,552,264		$   717,667		$   69,692		$   4,339,623		$   4,207,729

		12-10		8,551		5,135		3,416		36		44		80		579,033		59,855		638,888		$   393,907		$   74,838		$   4,774		$   473,520		$   339,385

		12-11		8,592		5,718		2,874		30		33		63		516,596		48,664		565,260		$   287,933		$   69,386		$   4,567		$   361,886		$   340,770

		12-12		7,119		4,389		2,730		29		17		46		471,338		47,760		519,098		$   287,662		$   63,856		$   3,952		$   355,470		$   341,839

		13-01		6,998		3,988		3,010		37		17		54		432,665		33,621		466,286		$   337,740		$   56,276		$   13,151		$   407,167		$   342,814

		13-02		7,301		4,469		2,832		30		23		53		423,262		40,501		463,763		$   287,724		$   56,620		$   6,145		$   350,489		$   382,023

		13-03		7,976		5,018		2,958		32		30		62		495,648		45,739		541,387		$   290,343		$   65,602		$   5,680		$   361,625		$   333,966

		13-04		7,531		4,230		3,301		25		12		37		467,864		50,248		518,112		$   291,581		$   63,128		$   8,426		$   363,135		$   335,163

		13-05		7,802		4,465		3,337		36		21		57		516,398		56,712		573,110		$   293,757		$   69,406		$   2,819		$   365,982		$   335,210

		13-06		9,043		6,252		2,791		35		23		58		453,934		48,215		502,149		$   297,302		$   60,873		$   5,033		$   363,209		$   334,670

		13-07		8,041		5,375		2,666		31		20		51		445,238		52,103		497,341		$   314,736		$   60,316		$   7,389		$   382,441		$   326,216

		13-08		8,407		5,893		2,514		26		17		43		413,465		48,609		462,074		$   296,266		$   56,395		$   7,122		$   359,783		$   354,568

		13-09		8,493		5,905		2,588		35		21		56		427,496		76,475		503,971		$   285,436		$   62,061		$   11,849		$   359,345		$   328,002

		FY13		95,854		60,837		35,017		382		278		660		5,642,937		608,502		6,251,439		$   3,664,386		$   758,758		$   80,907		$   4,504,051		$   4,094,626

		13-10		7,957		4,513		3,444		25		12		37		486,610		44,205		530,815		$   305,369		$   64,009		$   5,562		$   374,941		$   360,775

		13-11		7,290		4,148		3,142		37		23		60		504,057		56,949		561,006		$   309,792		$   68,293		$   7,774		$   385,859		$   360,535

		13-12		7,181		4,361		2,820		31		16		47		529,360		41,326		570,686		$   293,646		$   69,128		$   8,556		$   371,330		$   357,752

		14-01		7,480		4,762		2,718		39		25		64		470,124		45,202		515,326		$   365,090		$   62,808		$   11,087		$   438,985		$   410,369

		14-02		6,306		3,581		2,725		36		19		55		413,457		48,089		461,546		$   304,089		$   56,350		$   6,348		$   366,786		$   351,309

		14-03		7,872		4,912		2,960		48		27		75		555,209		48,804		604,013		$   306,873		$   73,117		$   7,047		$   387,037		$   358,017

		14-04		7,481		4,496		2,985		37		21		58		521,037		39,703		560,740		$   312,833		$   67,920		$   14,211		$   394,964		$   356,196

		14-05		8,494		5,239		3,255		25		19		44		501,738		55,569		557,307		$   319,693		$   67,507		$   6,569		$   393,769		$   359,904

		14-06		7,996		4,946		3,050		28		19		47		469,361		35,309		504,670		$   346,460		$   61,504		$   8,428		$   416,392		$   359,949

		14-07		8,545		5,602		2,943		11		13		24		468,079		53,042		521,121		$   365,531		$   63,141		$   8,687		$   437,359		$   377,349

		14-08		8,778		5,915		2,863		23		20		43		473,344		56,938		530,282		$   348,458		$   64,878		$   4,376		$   417,713		$   356,263

		14-09		8,594		5,577		3,017		28		16		44		487,774		51,285		539,059		$   352,447		$   65,630		$   10,096		$   428,173		$   356,413

		FY14		93,974		58,052		35,922		368		230		598		5,880,150		576,421		6,456,571		$   3,930,282		$   784,285		$   98,740		$   4,813,307		$   4,364,830

		14-10		9,392		6,186		3,206		28		7		35		625,723		60,447		686,170		$   354,794		$   83,292		$   4,967		$   443,053		$   394,916

		14-11		7,361		4,344		3,017		23		16		39		561,762		35,195		596,957		$   353,431		$   72,315		$   4,402		$   430,148		$   398,156

		14-12		6,864		3,551		3,313		28		18		46		515,066		40,555		555,621		$   344,862		$   67,321		$   4,154		$   416,336		$   397,758

		15-01		7,420		4,681		2,739		27		19		46		526,523		40,113		566,636		$   397,803		$   68,960		$   10,219		$   476,982		$   447,209

		15-02		6,079		3,544		2,535		22		10		32		464,949		33,183		498,132		$   347,299		$   60,411		$   3,299		$   411,008		$   389,608

		15-03		7,101		3,809		3,292		43		24		67		540,890		31,294		572,184		$   349,226		$   69,616		$   6,530		$   425,372		$   399,616

		15-04		7,602		4,099		3,503		31		17		48		533,356		39,446		572,802		$   348,046		$   69,683		$   7,359		$   425,089		$   397,649

		15-05		7,063		3,831		3,232		56		17		73		537,445		49,873		587,318		$   341,405		$   71,420		$   6,314		$   419,139		$   400,169

		15-06		9,069		6,193		2,876		30		18		48		493,505		43,931		537,436		$   345,079		$   65,431		$   7,621		$   418,131		$   397,299

		15-07		9,324		6,276		3,048		34		15		49		484,546		57,731		542,277		$   362,040		$   66,339		$   6,045		$   434,424		$   414,709

		15-08		8,777		6,008		2,769		26		8		34		452,700		47,361		500,061		$   351,316		$   60,946		$   7,902		$   420,164		$   393,408

		15-09		9,272		5,964		3,308		23		9		32		545,027		58,060		603,087		$   357,147		$   73,311		$   5,055		$   435,513		$   394,576

		FY15		95,324		58,486		36,838		371		178		549		6,281,492		537,189		6,818,681		$   4,252,449		$   829,044		$   73,867		$   5,155,360		$   4,825,075

		15-10		8,940		5,712		3,228		29		15		44		553,061		61,883		614,944		$   357,964		$   75,160		$   6,800		$   439,924		$   438,190

		15-11		7,418		4,266		3,152		38		20		58		509,770		35,901		545,671		$   349,633		$   66,441		$   13,964		$   430,039		$   433,174

		15-12		8,407		5,538		2,869		34		30		64		535,226		40,829		576,055		$   355,214		$   70,423		$   10,360		$   435,997		$   431,817

		16-01		8,237		5,457		2,780		38		24		62		458,223		41,233		499,456		$   403,057		$   60,940		$   21,924		$   485,921		$   484,234

		16-02		8,462		5,448		3,014		42		26		68		496,404		41,091		537,495		$   355,226		$   68,022		$   11,199		$   434,447		$   433,631

		16-03		7,469		4,457		3,012		49		22		71		461,607		55,560		517,167		$   364,935		$   63,855		$   14,316		$   443,105		$   444,436

		16-04		8,148		5,091		3,057		29		12		41		471,984		43,703		515,687		$   365,736		$   64,105		$   13,146		$   442,987		$   422,640

		16-05		8,114		5,103		3,011		37		25		62		437,201		38,430		475,631		$   364,890		$   67,796		$   8,228		$   440,915		$   422,149

		16-06		9,205		6,226		2,979		37		13		50		465,444		57,618		523,062		$   363,456		$   76,284		$   9,964		$   449,704		$   415,361

		16-07		8,546		5,938		2,608		30		10		40		424,287		51,400		475,687		$   384,572		$   67,637		$   13,073		$   465,281		$   431,685

		16-08		8,838		5,983		2,855		19		8		27		418,310		31,883		450,193		$   381,334		$   64,290		$   10,361		$   455,984		$   414,164

		16-09		9,076		6,007		3,069		27		13		40		522,594		58,523		581,117		$   376,986		$   83,288		$   8,459		$   468,734		$   416,181

		FY16		100,860		65,226		35,634		409		218		627		5,754,111		558,054		6,312,165		$   4,423,003		$   828,240		$   141,794		$   5,393,037		$   5,187,662

		16-10		9,580		6,171		3,409		31		13		44		523,272		56,481		579,753		$   370,727		$   83,688		$   10,941		$   465,356		$   444,831

		16-11		7,385		4,339		3,046		39		16		55		511,155		45,330		556,485		$   368,650		$   79,559		$   12,244		$   460,454		$   437,534

		16-12		7,315		4,455		2,860		42		23		65		513,453		28,934		542,387		$   353,039		$   77,870		$   13,590		$   444,500		$   435,627

		17-01		7,369		4,692		2,677		38		16		54		441,721		51,531		493,252		$   391,545		$   70,053		$   13,733		$   475,332		$   492,691

		17-02		7,386		4,593		2,793		32		10		42		491,491		31,862		523,353		$   343,434		$   75,183		$   14,497		$   433,114		$   446,485

		17-03		8,353		5,196		3,157		45		21		66		486,359		44,561		530,920		$   349,043		$   76,561		$   12,217		$   437,821		$   454,431

		17-04		7,196		4,208		2,988		25		13		38		434,626		49,999		484,625		$   352,297		$   69,912		$   14,572		$   436,781		$   455,154

		17-05		8,643		5,676		2,967		24		19		43		505,339		42,733		548,072		$   363,977		$   77,360		$   7,689		$   449,026		$   458,434

		17-06		8,395		5,391		3,004		37		20		57		459,824		39,296		499,120		$   363,011		$   71,770		$   12,171		$   446,951		$   451,330

		17-07		8,910		6,190		2,720		35		11		46		508,559		49,993		558,552		$   381,670		$   81,350		$   10,642		$   473,662		$   469,100

		17-08		8,430		5,268		3,162		18		8		26		514,755		58,847		573,602		$   366,885		$   82,507		$   9,969		$   459,361		$   449,553

		17-09		9,659		6,348		3,311		32		16		48		493,277		51,736		545,013		$   365,626		$   78,515		$   10,619		$   454,759		$   454,989

		FY17		98,621		62,527		36,094		398		186		584		5,883,831		551,303		6,435,134		$   4,369,905		$   924,328		$   142,884		$   5,437,117		$   5,450,158

		17-10		8,895		5,671		3,224		32		15		47		529,149		55,595		584,744		$   367,559		$   83,762		$   10,574		$   461,894		$   453,485

		17-11		8,746		5,083		3,663		33		14		47		552,450		51,038		603,488		$   367,157		$   85,961		$   10,950		$   464,068		$   448,981

		17-12		7,512		4,659		2,853		39		25		64		474,317		49,006		523,323		$   367,364		$   75,183		$   13,278		$   455,824		$   447,648

		18-01		8,114		5,203		2,911		38		22		60		493,347		37,726		531,073		$   414,943		$   75,348		$   12,689		$   502,980		$   490,865

		18-02		5,866		3,129		2,737		37		12		49		481,758		35,420		517,178		$   374,077		$   74,556		$   11,675		$   460,308		$   437,600

		18-03		8,968		5,667		3,301		56		24		80		557,985		56,480		614,465		$   372,683		$   88,962		$   14,395		$   476,039		$   449,271

		18-04		8,362		5,317		3,045		45		22		67		490,653		44,136		534,789		$   364,132		$   76,778		$   14,475		$   455,385		$   447,454

		18-05		9,854		6,580		3,274		35		15		50		525,621		66,701		592,322		$   368,924		$   84,448		$   8,618		$   461,990		$   449,513

		18-06		9,517		6,348		3,169		34		10		44		547,460		62,423		609,883		$   364,563		$   88,853		$   18,029		$   471,445		$   443,980

		18-07		8,950		6,121		2,829		31		14		45		513,573		53,552		567,125		$   386,877		$   80,334		$   9,241		$   476,451		$   457,301

		18-08		9,893		6,728		3,165		22		3		25		522,511		58,944		581,455		$   358,921		$   84,853		$   12,750		$   456,525		$   439,517

		18-09		7,617		3,982		3,635		23		6		29		508,639		47,434		556,073		$   366,385		$   78,779		$   8,328		$   453,492		$   449,923

		FY18		102,294		64,488		37,806		425		182		607		6,197,463		618,455		6,815,918		$   4,473,583		$   977,818		$   145,000		$   5,596,402		$   5,415,538

		18-10		8,977		5,042		3,935		42		11		53		555,796		47,404		603,200		$   368,424		$   86,679		$   9,312		$   464,414		$   439,755

		18-11		9,328		5,896		3,432		39		22		61		560,580		60,950		621,530		$   364,526		$   88,931		$   11,661		$   465,118		$   436,255

		18-12		8,289		5,209		3,080		29		26		55		537,520		49,668		587,188		$   368,933		$   84,187		$   15,299		$   468,419		$   433,555

		19-01		9,093		5,917		3,176		39		19		58		564,818		48,939		613,757		$   399,927		$   87,907		$   7,533		$   495,368		$   486,759

		19-02		6,874		3,910		2,964		44		14		58		483,192		45,447		528,639		$   358,430		$   75,622		$   15,872		$   449,924		$   440,153

		19-03		9,748		6,434		3,314		47		17		64		588,995		60,788		649,783		$   369,424		$   92,291		$   9,949		$   471,664		$   446,918

		19-04		9,318		5,920		3,398		40		23		63		546,360		47,750		594,110		$   376,077		$   86,203		$   11,933		$   474,213		$   443,879

		19-05		10,028		6,412		3,616		35		16		51		545,831		46,847		592,678		$   372,820		$   84,925		$   11,362		$   469,107		$   445,484

		19-06		10,397		7,226		3,171		25		12		37		459,955		63,342		523,297		$   372,805		$   76,426		$   6,668		$   455,899		$   443,703

		19-07		11,126		8,128		2,998		21		15		36		467,027		85,274		552,301		$   1,391,431		$   79,848		$   9,281		$   1,480,560		$   458,756

		19-08		11,219		7,897		3,322		25		12		37		553,631		64,289		617,920		$   372,016		$   89,078		$   10,063		$   471,157		$   442,658

		19-09		11,350		7,490		3,860		21		12		33		544,788		63,541		608,329		$   373,301		$   87,355		$   11,511		$   472,166		$   451,567

		FY19		115,747		75,481		40,266		407		199		606		6,408,493		684,239		7,092,732		$   5,488,112		$   1,019,452		$   130,444		$   6,638,008		$   5,369,442

		19-10		11,405		7,439		3,966		26		7		33		587,394		68,894		656,288		$   376,390		$   94,813		$   8,254		$   479,457		$   443,847

		19-11		10,567		6,950		3,617		38		21		59		497,326		65,126		562,452		$   371,814		$   80,343		$   14,462		$   466,619		$   442,476

		19-12		10,799		7,163		3,636		43		22		65		571,207		64,426		635,633		$   355,679		$   91,632		$   11,052		$   458,363		$   437,873

		20-01		8,900		5,512		3,388		37		7		44		467,518		48,571		516,089		$   403,281		$   73,567		$   11,408		$   488,256		$   489,930

		20-02		9,500		6,137		3,363		44		16		60		563,482		54,054		617,536		$   355,203		$   88,203		$   11,896		$   455,302		$   435,769

		20-03		7,155		4,524		2,631		56		15		71		407,753		40,230		447,983		$   355,611		$   64,679		$   12,477		$   432,767		$   448,307

		20-04		6,825		5,434		1,391		5		6		11		106,650		40,679		147,329		$   356,126		$   21,959		$   13,546		$   391,631		$   439,062

		20-05		9,113		6,791		2,322		12		1		13		239,109		59,885		298,994		$   366,576		$   43,415		$   6,709		$   416,699		$   442,524

		20-06		9,982		7,048		2,934		22		6		28		432,590		72,482		505,072		$   370,382		$   72,691		$   6,511		$   449,584		$   441,124

		20-07		10,386		7,095		3,291		15		6		21		492,331		63,481		555,812		$   383,522		$   79,728		$   9,406		$   472,656		$   455,070

		20-08		11,010		8,008		3,002		21		8		29		482,311		70,053		552,364		$   363,885		$   79,866		$   10,516		$   454,268		$   438,964

		20-09		9,382		5,998		3,384		24		6		30		496,914		42,887		539,801		$   363,457		$   76,881		$   10,830		$   451,167		$   444,960

		FY20		115,024		78,099		36,925		343		121		464		5,344,585		690,768		6,035,353		$   4,421,924		$   867,778		$   127,068		$   5,416,770		$   5,359,906

		20-10		9,918		6,338		3,580		27		5		32		530,193		64,444		594,637		$   357,018		$   85,818		$   15,367		$   458,202		$   417,907

		20-11		9,161		5,933		3,228		43		16		59		447,146		56,798		503,944		$   356,194		$   71,252		$   16,597		$   444,043		$   416,346

		20-12		8,567		5,599		2,968		33		21		54		514,125		56,903		571,028		$   360,755		$   82,548		$   13,621		$   456,924		$   415,613

		21-01		8,106		5,394		2,712		42		37		79		410,147		32,875		443,022		$   406,799		$   62,666		$   16,308		$   485,772		$   461,653

		21-02		5,574		3,276		2,298		29		8		37		391,524		32,589		424,113		$   362,545		$   60,032		$   11,560		$   434,136		$   412,019

		21-03		9,478		5,841		3,637		63		12		75		587,673		60,809		648,482		$   364,948		$   92,762		$   14,935		$   472,645		$   417,032

		21-04		8,422		4,982		3,440		64		26		90		584,646		48,506		633,152		$   363,624		$   89,947		$   22,052		$   475,622		$   412,992

		21-05		8,584		4,699		3,885		39		24		63		604,767		48,673		653,440		$   364,450		$   92,139		$   10,042		$   466,632		$   416,142

		21-06		10,271		6,302		3,969		58		40		98		715,873		52,415		768,288		$   355,916		$   109,827		$   13,740		$   479,483		$   412,922

		21-07		10,967		6,976		3,991		39		26		65		739,634		57,092		796,726		$   385,909		$   113,194		$   19,397		$   518,501		$   475,086

		21-08		10,267		6,457		3,810		39		24		63		681,726		62,303		744,029		$   371,107		$   106,448		$   10,414		$   487,968		$   456,439

		21-09		11,008		6,799		4,209		30		15		45		644,601		64,298		708,899		$   366,234		$   101,213		$   11,278		$   478,726		$   459,589

		FY21		110,323		68,596		41,727		506		254		760		6,852,055		637,705		7,489,760		$   4,415,499		$   1,067,845		$   175,311		$   5,658,655		$   5,173,740

		21-10		11,028		5,990		5,038		38		9		47		827,016		59,895		886,911		$   365,719		$   126,083		$   14,454		$   506,256		$   523,001

		21-11		11,351		6,301		5,050		61		23		84		889,557		55,886		945,443		$   364,559		$   134,318		$   10,780		$   509,657		$   521,750

		21-12		9,239		4,594		4,645		64		29		93		857,034		60,438		917,472		$   377,826		$   129,442		$   21,518		$   528,786		$   519,090

		22-01		10,110		6,214		3,896		57		12		69		656,523		61,178		717,701		$   465,220		$   102,465		$   14,951		$   582,636		$   559,938

		22-02		8,071		4,659		3,412		74		30		104		711,620		38,372		749,992		$   415,328		$   106,303		$   15,015		$   536,646		$   516,525

		22-03		11,009		6,440		4,569		92		51		143		861,224		45,043		906,267		$   422,284		$   128,512		$   19,200		$   569,996		$   523,868

		22-04		8,226		4,333		3,893		42		21		63		626,717		51,551		678,268		$   419,538		$   96,889		$   20,210		$   536,637		$   518,589

		22-05		9,853		5,382		4,471		47		14		61		821,711		48,173		869,884		$   445,946		$   123,091		$   12,526		$   581,562		$   523,047

		22-06		11,176		7,086		4,090		75		25		100		680,783		59,556		740,339		$   470,937		$   105,568		$   14,220		$   590,725		$   524,753

		22-07		10,470		7,019		3,451		42		17		59		624,240		48,068		672,308		$   445,462		$   96,059		$   18,275		$   559,796		$   544,934

		22-08		10,372		6,364		4,008		26		11		37		650,494		75,659		726,153		$   391,848		$   103,607		$   52,578		$   548,034		$   527,489

		22-09		11,593		7,550		4,043		28		6		34		684,881		55,986		740,867		$   1,064,673		$   105,012		$   20,190		$   1,189,875		$   530,515

		FY22		122,498		71,932		50,566		646		248		894		8,891,800		659,805		9,551,605		$   5,649,340		$   1,357,351		$   233,916		$   7,240,607		$   6,333,500

		22-10		11,074		7,052		4,022		37		7		44		680,941		77,890		758,831		$   447,219		$   108,499		$   21,143		$   576,861		$   534,767

		22-11		9,429		5,317		4,112		63		20		83		724,646		49,342		773,988		$   433,357		$   110,308		$   17,685		$   561,351		$   535,497

		22-12		8,873		5,088		3,785		62		24		86		702,536		49,392		751,928		$   460,339		$   106,591		$   18,723		$   585,653		$   539,191

		23-01		9,627		6,161		3,466		65		38		103		647,299		74,093		721,392		$   494,058		$   103,647		$   26,081		$   623,786		$   581,212

		23-02		8,573		5,420		3,153		48		19		67		598,884		40,646		639,530		$   457,617		$   90,214		$   24,660		$   572,491		$   530,150

		23-03		9,579		5,682		3,897		72		23		95		653,576		57,900		711,476		$   480,798		$   101,369		$   24,527		$   606,693		$   566,565

		23-04				0								0						0						$   -				$   552,601

		23-05				0								0						0						$   -				$   553,669

		23-06				0								0						0						$   -				$   560,215

		23-07				0								0						0						$   -				$   578,402

		23-08				0								0						0						$   -				$   556,399

		23-09				0								0						0						$   -				$   555,081

		FY23		57,155		34,720		22,435		347		131		478		4,007,882		349,263		4,357,145		$   2,773,388		$   620,628		$   132,819		$   3,526,835		$   6,643,750





Monthly Report Data (2)

		Monthly Report Data

		YY-MM		OPERATIONS						International Operations						FUEL FLOWAGE (gallons)						REVENUE										% change from prior month								% change from prior year

				Total		VFR		IFR		inbound		outbound		Total		Jet-A		AvGas		Total		Real Estate		Fuel		Other		Total		Budget		Revenue		Total Ops		Fuel		Int'l Ops		Revenue		Total Ops		Fuel		Int'l Ops

		09-10

		09-11

		09-12

		10-01

		10-02

		10-03

		10-04

		10-05

		10-06

		10-07

		10-08

		10-09

		10-10

		10-11

		10-12

		11-01

		11-02

		11-03

		11-04

		11-05

		11-06

		11-07

		11-08

		11-09

		11-10		8,511		5,609		2,902		27		7		34		398,445		56,310		454,755		$   285,776		$   55,203		$   4,283		$   345,262		$   350,316

		11-11		7,447		4,507		2,940		32		17		49		448,518		44,491		493,009		$   284,963		$   60,437		$   3,761		$   349,162		$   348,985		1%		-13%		8%		44%

		11-12		7,043		4,012		3,031		29		16		45		455,097		40,750		495,847		$   290,484		$   60,790		$   6,116		$   357,390		$   351,605		2%		-5%		1%		-8%

		12-01		7,478		4,600		2,878		34		17		51		385,946		48,633		434,579		$   333,364		$   53,393		$   15,644		$   402,401		$   398,721		13%		6%		-12%		13%

		12-02		7,745		4,652		3,093		25		10		35		402,350		48,872		451,222		$   289,743		$   55,726		$   3,919		$   349,387		$   345,093		-13%		4%		4%		-31%

		12-03		8,196		4,939		3,257		33		21		54		468,123		54,367		522,490		$   287,985		$   64,288		$   6,040		$   358,313		$   344,618		3%		6%		16%		54%

		12-04		8,010		4,760		3,250		38		16		54		414,178		36,194		450,372		$   294,422		$   55,869		$   6,034		$   356,326		$   347,328		-1%		-2%		-14%		0%

		12-05		8,259		5,102		3,157		26		18		44		469,885		68,292		538,177		$   290,342		$   65,208		$   7,269		$   362,819		$   346,465		2%		3%		19%		-19%

		12-06		8,431		5,612		2,819		24		15		39		479,389		44,165		523,554		$   291,734		$   64,952		$   4,501		$   361,186		$   345,936		-0%		2%		-3%		-11%

		12-07		8,560		5,807		2,753		31		14		45		423,797		59,520		483,317		$   314,171		$   59,530		$   4,153		$   377,854		$   345,411		5%		2%		-8%		15%

		12-08		8,533		5,609		2,924		28		22		50		448,320		49,981		498,301		$   294,577		$   61,341		$   5,359		$   361,278		$   344,373		-4%		-0%		3%		11%

		12-09		7,816		4,785		3,031		22		15		37		465,035		32,515		497,550		$   294,702		$   60,931		$   2,612		$   358,245		$   338,879		-1%		-8%		-0%		-26%

		12-10		8,551		5,135		3,416		36		44		80		579,033		59,855		638,888		$   393,907		$   74,838		$   4,774		$   473,520		$   339,385		32%		9%		28%		116%		37%		0%		40%		135%

		12-11		8,592		5,718		2,874		30		33		63		516,596		48,664		565,260		$   287,933		$   69,386		$   4,567		$   361,886		$   340,770		-24%		0%		-12%		-21%		4%		15%		15%		29%

		12-12		7,119		4,389		2,730		29		17		46		471,338		47,760		519,098		$   287,662		$   63,856		$   3,952		$   355,470		$   341,839		-2%		-17%		-8%		-27%		-1%		1%		5%		2%

		13-01		6,998		3,988		3,010		37		17		54		432,665		33,621		466,286		$   337,740		$   56,276		$   13,151		$   407,167		$   342,814		15%		-2%		-10%		17%		1%		-6%		7%		6%

		13-02		7,301		4,469		2,832		30		23		53		423,262		40,501		463,763		$   287,724		$   56,620		$   6,145		$   350,489		$   382,023		-14%		4%		-1%		-2%		0%		-6%		3%		51%

		13-03		7,976		5,018		2,958		32		30		62		495,648		45,739		541,387		$   290,343		$   65,602		$   5,680		$   361,625		$   333,966		3%		9%		17%		17%		1%		-3%		4%		15%

		13-04		7,531		4,230		3,301		25		12		37		467,864		50,248		518,112		$   291,581		$   63,128		$   8,426		$   363,135		$   335,163		0%		-6%		-4%		-40%		2%		-6%		15%		-31%

		13-05		7,802		4,465		3,337		36		21		57		516,398		56,712		573,110		$   293,757		$   69,406		$   2,819		$   365,982		$   335,210		1%		4%		11%		54%		1%		-6%		6%		30%

		13-06		9,043		6,252		2,791		35		23		58		453,934		48,215		502,149		$   297,302		$   60,873		$   5,033		$   363,209		$   334,670		-1%		16%		-12%		2%		1%		7%		-4%		49%

		13-07		8,041		5,375		2,666		31		20		51		445,238		52,103		497,341		$   314,736		$   60,316		$   7,389		$   382,441		$   326,216		5%		-11%		-1%		-12%		1%		-6%		3%		13%

		13-08		8,407		5,893		2,514		26		17		43		413,465		48,609		462,074		$   296,266		$   56,395		$   7,122		$   359,783		$   354,568		-6%		5%		-7%		-16%		-0%		-1%		-7%		-14%

		13-09		8,493		5,905		2,588		35		21		56		427,496		76,475		503,971		$   285,436		$   62,061		$   11,849		$   359,345		$   328,002		-0%		1%		9%		30%		0%		9%		1%		51%

		13-10		7,957		4,513		3,444		25		12		37		486,610		44,205		530,815		$   305,369		$   64,009		$   5,562		$   374,941		$   360,775		4%		-6%		5%		-34%		-21%		-7%		-17%		-54%

		13-11		7,290		4,148		3,142		37		23		60		504,057		56,949		561,006		$   309,792		$   68,293		$   7,774		$   385,859		$   360,535		3%		-8%		6%		62%		7%		-15%		-1%		-5%

		13-12		7,181		4,361		2,820		31		16		47		529,360		41,326		570,686		$   293,646		$   69,128		$   8,556		$   371,330		$   357,752		-4%		-1%		2%		-22%		4%		1%		10%		2%

		14-01		7,480		4,762		2,718		39		25		64		470,124		45,202		515,326		$   365,090		$   62,808		$   11,087		$   438,985		$   410,369		18%		4%		-10%		36%		8%		7%		11%		19%

		14-02		6,306		3,581		2,725		36		19		55		413,457		48,089		461,546		$   304,089		$   56,350		$   6,348		$   366,786		$   351,309		-16%		-16%		-10%		-14%		5%		-14%		-0%		4%

		14-03		7,872		4,912		2,960		48		27		75		555,209		48,804		604,013		$   306,873		$   73,117		$   7,047		$   387,037		$   358,017		6%		25%		31%		36%		7%		-1%		12%		21%

		14-04		7,481		4,496		2,985		37		21		58		521,037		39,703		560,740		$   312,833		$   67,920		$   14,211		$   394,964		$   356,196		2%		-5%		-7%		-23%		9%		-1%		8%		57%

		14-05		8,494		5,239		3,255		25		19		44		501,738		55,569		557,307		$   319,693		$   67,507		$   6,569		$   393,769		$   359,904		-0%		14%		-1%		-24%		8%		9%		-3%		-23%

		14-06		7,996		4,946		3,050		28		19		47		469,361		35,309		504,670		$   346,460		$   61,504		$   8,428		$   416,392		$   359,949		6%		-6%		-9%		7%		15%		-12%		1%		-19%

		14-07		8,545		5,602		2,943		11		13		24		468,079		53,042		521,121		$   365,531		$   63,141		$   8,687		$   437,359		$   377,349		5%		7%		3%		-49%		14%		6%		5%		-53%

		14-08		8,778		5,915		2,863		23		20		43		473,344		56,938		530,282		$   348,458		$   64,878		$   4,376		$   417,713		$   356,263		-4%		3%		2%		79%		16%		4%		15%		0%

		14-09		8,594		5,577		3,017		28		16		44		487,774		51,285		539,059		$   352,447		$   65,630		$   10,096		$   428,173		$   356,413		3%		-2%		2%		2%		19%		1%		7%		-21%

		14-10		9,392		6,186		3,206		28		7		35		625,723		60,447		686,170		$   354,794		$   83,292		$   4,967		$   443,053		$   394,916		3%		9%		27%		-20%		18%		18%		29%		-5%

		14-11		7,361		4,344		3,017		23		16		39		561,762		35,195		596,957		$   353,431		$   72,315		$   4,402		$   430,148		$   398,156		-3%		-22%		-13%		11%		11%		1%		6%		-35%

		14-12		6,864		3,551		3,313		28		18		46		515,066		40,555		555,621		$   344,862		$   67,321		$   4,154		$   416,336		$   397,758		-3%		-7%		-7%		18%		12%		-4%		-3%		-2%

		15-01		7,420		4,681		2,739		27		19		46		526,523		40,113		566,636		$   397,803		$   68,960		$   10,219		$   476,982		$   447,209		15%		8%		2%		0%		9%		-1%		10%		-28%

		15-02		6,079		3,544		2,535		22		10		32		464,949		33,183		498,132		$   347,299		$   60,411		$   3,299		$   411,008		$   389,608		-14%		-18%		-12%		-30%		12%		-4%		8%		-42%

		15-03		7,101		3,809		3,292		43		24		67		540,890		31,294		572,184		$   349,226		$   69,616		$   6,530		$   425,372		$   399,616		3%		17%		15%		109%		10%		-10%		-5%		-11%

		15-04		7,602		4,099		3,503		31		17		48		533,356		39,446		572,802		$   348,046		$   69,683		$   7,359		$   425,089		$   397,649		-0%		7%		0%		-28%		8%		2%		2%		-17%

		15-05		7,063		3,831		3,232		56		17		73		537,445		49,873		587,318		$   341,405		$   71,420		$   6,314		$   419,139		$   400,169		-1%		-7%		3%		52%		6%		-17%		5%		66%

		15-06		9,069		6,193		2,876		30		18		48		493,505		43,931		537,436		$   345,079		$   65,431		$   7,621		$   418,131		$   397,299		-0%		28%		-8%		-34%		0%		13%		6%		2%

		15-07		9,324		6,276		3,048		34		15		49		484,546		57,731		542,277		$   362,040		$   66,339		$   6,045		$   434,424		$   414,709		4%		3%		1%		2%		-1%		9%		4%		104%

		15-08		8,777		6,008		2,769		26		8		34		452,700		47,361		500,061		$   351,316		$   60,946		$   7,902		$   420,164		$   393,408		-3%		-6%		-8%		-31%		1%		-0%		-6%		-21%

		15-09		9,272		5,964		3,308		23		9		32		545,027		58,060		603,087		$   357,147		$   73,311		$   5,055		$   435,513		$   394,576		4%		6%		21%		-6%		2%		8%		12%		-27%

		15-10		8,940		5,712		3,228		29		15		44		553,061		61,883		614,944		$   357,964		$   75,160		$   6,800		$   439,924		$   438,190		1%		-4%		2%		38%		-1%		-5%		-10%		26%

		15-11		7,418		4,266		3,152		38		20		58		509,770		35,901		545,671		$   349,633		$   66,441		$   13,964		$   430,039		$   433,174		-2%		-17%		-11%		32%		-0%		1%		-9%		49%

		15-12		8,407		5,538		2,869		34		30		64		535,226		40,829		576,055		$   355,214		$   70,423		$   10,360		$   435,997		$   431,817		1%		13%		6%		10%		5%		22%		4%		39%

		16-01		8,237		5,457		2,780		38		24		62		458,223		41,233		499,456		$   403,057		$   60,940		$   21,924		$   485,921		$   484,234		11%		-2%		-13%		-3%		2%		11%		-12%		35%

		16-02		8,462		5,448		3,014		42		26		68		496,404		41,091		537,495		$   355,226		$   68,022		$   11,199		$   434,447		$   433,631		-11%		3%		8%		10%		6%		39%		8%		113%

		16-03		7,469		4,457		3,012		49		22		71		461,607		55,560		517,167		$   364,935		$   63,855		$   14,316		$   443,105		$   444,436		2%		-12%		-4%		4%		4%		5%		-10%		6%

		16-04		8,148		5,091		3,057		29		12		41		471,984		43,703		515,687		$   365,736		$   64,105		$   13,146		$   442,987		$   422,640		-0%		9%		-0%		-42%		4%		7%		-10%		-15%

		16-05		8,114		5,103		3,011		37		25		62		437,201		38,430		475,631		$   364,890		$   67,796		$   8,228		$   440,915		$   422,149		-0%		-0%		-8%		51%		5%		15%		-19%		-15%

		16-06		9,205		6,226		2,979		37		13		50		465,444		57,618		523,062		$   363,456		$   76,284		$   9,964		$   449,704		$   415,361		2%		13%		10%		-19%		8%		1%		-3%		4%

		16-07		8,546		5,938		2,608		30		10		40		424,287		51,400		475,687		$   384,572		$   67,637		$   13,073		$   465,281		$   431,685		3%		-7%		-9%		-20%		7%		-8%		-12%		-18%

		16-08		8,838		5,983		2,855		19		8		27		418,310		31,883		450,193		$   381,334		$   64,290		$   10,361		$   455,984		$   414,164		-2%		3%		-5%		-33%		9%		1%		-10%		-21%

		16-09		9,076		6,007		3,069		27		13		40		522,594		58,523		581,117		$   376,986		$   83,288		$   8,459		$   468,734		$   416,181		3%		3%		29%		48%		8%		-2%		-4%		25%

		16-10		9,580		6,171		3,409		31		13		44		523,272		56,481		579,753		$   370,727		$   83,688		$   10,941		$   465,356		$   444,831		-1%		6%		-0%		10%		6%		7%		-6%		0%

		16-11		7,385		4,339		3,046		39		16		55		511,155		45,330		556,485		$   368,650		$   79,559		$   12,244		$   460,454		$   437,534		-1%		-23%		-4%		25%		7%		-0%		2%		-5%

		16-12		7,315		4,455		2,860		42		23		65		513,453		28,934		542,387		$   353,039		$   77,870		$   13,590		$   444,500		$   435,627		-3%		-1%		-3%		18%		2%		-13%		-6%		2%

		17-01		7,369		4,692		2,677		38		16		54		441,721		51,531		493,252		$   391,545		$   70,053		$   13,733		$   475,332		$   492,691		7%		1%		-9%		-17%		-2%		-11%		-1%		-13%

		17-02		7,386		4,593		2,793		32		10		42		491,491		31,862		523,353		$   343,434		$   75,183		$   14,497		$   433,114		$   446,485		-9%		0%		6%		-22%		-0%		-13%		-3%		-38%

		17-03		8,353		5,196		3,157		45		21		66		486,359		44,561		530,920		$   349,043		$   76,561		$   12,217		$   437,821		$   454,431		1%		13%		1%		57%		-1%		12%		3%		-7%

		17-04		7,196		4,208		2,988		25		13		38		434,626		49,999		484,625		$   352,297		$   69,912		$   14,572		$   436,781		$   455,154		-0%		-14%		-9%		-42%		-1%		-12%		-6%		-7%

		17-05		8,643		5,676		2,967		24		19		43		505,339		42,733		548,072		$   363,977		$   77,360		$   7,689		$   449,026		$   458,434		3%		20%		13%		13%		2%		7%		15%		-31%

		17-06		8,395		5,391		3,004		37		20		57		459,824		39,296		499,120		$   363,011		$   71,770		$   12,171		$   446,951		$   451,330		-0%		-3%		-9%		33%		-1%		-9%		-5%		14%

		17-07		8,910		6,190		2,720		35		11		46		508,559		49,993		558,552		$   381,670		$   81,350		$   10,642		$   473,662		$   469,100		6%		6%		12%		-19%		2%		4%		17%		15%

		17-08		8,430		5,268		3,162		18		8		26		514,755		58,847		573,602		$   366,885		$   82,507		$   9,969		$   459,361		$   449,553		-3%		-5%		3%		-43%		1%		-5%		27%		-4%

		17-09		9,659		6,348		3,311		32		16		48		493,277		51,736		545,013		$   365,626		$   78,515		$   10,619		$   454,759		$   454,989		-1%		15%		-5%		85%		-3%		6%		-6%		20%

		17-10		8,895		5,671		3,224		32		15		47		529,149		55,595		584,744		$   367,559		$   83,762		$   10,574		$   461,894		$   453,485		2%		-8%		7%		-2%		-1%		-7%		1%		7%

		17-11		8,746		5,083		3,663		33		14		47		552,450		51,038		603,488		$   367,157		$   85,961		$   10,950		$   464,068		$   448,981		0%		-2%		3%		0%		1%		18%		8%		-15%

		17-12		7,512		4,659		2,853		39		25		64		474,317		49,006		523,323		$   367,364		$   75,183		$   13,278		$   455,824		$   447,648		-2%		-14%		-13%		36%		3%		3%		-4%		-2%

		18-01		8,114		5,203		2,911		38		22		60		493,347		37,726		531,073		$   414,943		$   75,348		$   12,689		$   502,980		$   490,865		10%		8%		1%		-6%		6%		10%		8%		11%

		18-02		5,866		3,129		2,737		37		12		49		481,758		35,420		517,178		$   374,077		$   74,556		$   11,675		$   460,308		$   437,600		-8%		-28%		-3%		-18%		6%		-21%		-1%		17%

		18-03		8,968		5,667		3,301		56		24		80		557,985		56,480		614,465		$   372,683		$   88,962		$   14,395		$   476,039		$   449,271		3%		53%		19%		63%		9%		7%		16%		21%

		18-04		8,362		5,317		3,045		45		22		67		490,653		44,136		534,789		$   364,132		$   76,778		$   14,475		$   455,385		$   447,454		-4%		-7%		-13%		-16%		4%		16%		10%		76%

		18-05		9,854		6,580		3,274		35		15		50		525,621		66,701		592,322		$   368,924		$   84,448		$   8,618		$   461,990		$   449,513		1%		18%		11%		-25%		3%		14%		8%		16%

		18-06		9,517		6,348		3,169		34		10		44		547,460		62,423		609,883		$   364,563		$   88,853		$   18,029		$   471,445		$   443,980		2%		-3%		3%		-12%		5%		13%		22%		-23%

		18-07		8,950		6,121		2,829		31		14		45		513,573		53,552		567,125		$   386,877		$   80,334		$   9,241		$   476,451		$   457,301		1%		-6%		-7%		2%		1%		0%		2%		-2%

		18-08		9,893		6,728		3,165		22		3		25		522,511		58,944		581,455		$   358,921		$   84,853		$   12,750		$   456,525		$   439,517		-4%		11%		3%		-44%		-1%		17%		1%		-4%

		18-09		7,617		3,982		3,635		23		6		29		508,639		47,434		556,073		$   366,385		$   78,779		$   8,328		$   453,492		$   449,923		-1%		-23%		-4%		16%		-0%		-21%		2%		-40%

		18-10		8,977		5,042		3,935		42		11		53		555,796		47,404		603,200		$   368,424		$   86,679		$   9,312		$   464,414		$   439,755		2%		18%		8%		83%		1%		1%		3%		13%

		18-11		9,328		5,896		3,432		39		22		61		560,580		60,950		621,530		$   364,526		$   88,931		$   11,661		$   465,118		$   436,255		0%		4%		3%		15%		0%		7%		3%		30%

		18-12		8,289		5,209		3,080		29		26		55		537,520		49,668		587,188		$   368,933		$   84,187		$   15,299		$   468,419		$   433,555		1%		-11%		-6%		-10%		3%		10%		12%		-14%

		19-01		9,093		5,917		3,176		39		19		58		564,818		48,939		613,757		$   399,927		$   87,907		$   7,533		$   495,368		$   486,759		6%		10%		5%		5%		-2%		12%		16%		-3%

		19-02		6,874		3,910		2,964		44		14		58		483,192		45,447		528,639		$   358,430		$   75,622		$   15,872		$   449,924		$   440,153		-9%		-24%		-14%		0%		-2%		17%		2%		18%

		19-03		9,748		6,434		3,314		47		17		64		588,995		60,788		649,783		$   369,424		$   92,291		$   9,949		$   471,664		$   446,918		5%		42%		23%		10%		-1%		9%		6%		-20%

		19-04		9,318		5,920		3,398		40		23		63		546,360		47,750		594,110		$   376,077		$   86,203		$   11,933		$   474,213		$   443,879		1%		-4%		-9%		-2%		4%		11%		11%		-6%

		19-05		10,028		6,412		3,616		35		16		51		545,831		46,847		592,678		$   372,820		$   84,925		$   11,362		$   469,107		$   445,484		-1%		8%		-0%		-19%		2%		2%		0%		2%

		19-06		10,397		7,226		3,171		25		12		37		459,955		63,342		523,297		$   372,805		$   76,426		$   6,668		$   455,899		$   443,703		-3%		4%		-12%		-27%		-3%		9%		-14%		-16%

		19-07		11,126		8,128		2,998		21		15		36		467,027		85,274		552,301		$   1,391,431		$   79,848		$   9,281		$   1,480,560		$   458,756		225%		7%		6%		-3%		211%		24%		-3%		-20%

		19-08		11,219		7,897		3,322		25		12		37		553,631		64,289		617,920		$   372,016		$   89,078		$   10,063		$   471,157		$   442,658		-68%		1%		12%		3%		3%		13%		6%		48%

		19-09		11,350		7,490		3,860		21		12		33		544,788		63,541		608,329		$   373,301		$   87,355		$   11,511		$   472,166		$   451,567		0%		1%		-2%		-11%		4%		49%		9%		14%

		19-10		11,405		7,439		3,966		26		7		33		587,394		68,894		656,288		$   376,390		$   94,813		$   8,254		$   479,457		$   443,847		2%		0%		8%		0%		3%		27%		9%		-38%

		19-11		10,567		6,950		3,617		38		21		59		497,326		65,126		562,452		$   371,814		$   80,343		$   14,462		$   466,619		$   442,476		-3%		-7%		-14%		79%		0%		13%		-10%		-3%

		19-12		10,799		7,163		3,636		43		22		65		571,207		64,426		635,633		$   355,679		$   91,632		$   11,052		$   458,363		$   437,873		-2%		2%		13%		10%		-2%		30%		8%		18%

		20-01		8,900		5,512		3,388		37		7		44		467,518		48,571		516,089		$   403,281		$   73,567		$   11,408		$   488,256		$   489,930		7%		-18%		-19%		-32%		-1%		-2%		-16%		-24%

		20-02		9,500		6,137		3,363		44		16		60		563,482		54,054		617,536		$   355,203		$   88,203		$   11,896		$   455,302		$   435,769		-7%		7%		20%		36%		1%		38%		17%		3%

		20-03		7,155		4,524		2,631		56		15		71		407,753		40,230		447,983		$   355,611		$   64,679		$   12,477		$   432,767		$   448,307		-5%		-25%		-27%		18%		-8%		-27%		-31%		11%

		20-04		6,825		5,434		1,391		5		6		11		106,650		40,679		147,329		$   356,126		$   21,959		$   13,546		$   391,631		$   439,062		-10%		-5%		-67%		-85%		-17%		-27%		-75%		-83%

		20-05		9,113		6,791		2,322		12		1		13		239,109		59,885		298,994		$   366,576		$   43,415		$   6,709		$   416,699		$   442,524		6%		34%		103%		18%		-11%		-9%		-50%		-75%

		20-06		9,982		7,048		2,934		22		6		28		432,590		72,482		505,072		$   370,382		$   72,691		$   6,511		$   449,584		$   441,124		8%		10%		69%		115%		-1%		-4%		-3%		-24%

		20-07		10,386		7,095		3,291		15		6		21		492,331		63,481		555,812		$   383,522		$   79,728		$   9,406		$   472,656		$   455,070		5%		4%		10%		-25%		-68%		-7%		1%		-42%

		20-08		11,010		8,008		3,002		21		8		29		482,311		70,053		552,364		$   363,885		$   79,866		$   10,516		$   454,268		$   438,964		-4%		6%		-1%		38%		-4%		-2%		-11%		-22%

		20-09		9,382		5,998		3,384		24		6		30		496,914		42,887		539,801		$   363,457		$   76,881		$   10,830		$   451,167		$   444,960		-1%		-15%		-2%		3%		-4%		-17%		-11%		-9%

		20-10		9,918		6,338		3,580		27		5		32		530,193		64,444		594,637		$   357,018		$   85,818		$   15,367		$   458,202		$   417,907		2%		6%		10%		7%		-4%		-13%		-9%		-3%

		20-11		9,161		5,933		3,228		43		16		59		447,146		56,798		503,944		$   356,194		$   71,252		$   16,597		$   444,043		$   416,346		-3%		-8%		-15%		84%		-5%		-13%		-10%		0%

		20-12		8,567		5,599		2,968		33		21		54		514,125		56,903		571,028		$   360,755		$   82,548		$   13,621		$   456,924		$   415,613		3%		-6%		13%		-8%		-0%		-21%		-10%		-17%

		21-01		8,106		5,394		2,712		42		37		79		410,147		32,875		443,022		$   406,799		$   62,666		$   16,308		$   485,772		$   461,653		6%		-5%		-22%		46%		-1%		-9%		-14%		80%

		21-02		5,574		3,276		2,298		29		8		37		391,524		32,589		424,113		$   362,545		$   60,032		$   11,560		$   434,136		$   412,019		-11%		-31%		-4%		-53%		-5%		-41%		-31%		-38%

		21-03		9,478		5,841		3,637		63		12		75		587,673		60,809		648,482		$   364,948		$   92,762		$   14,935		$   472,645		$   417,032		9%		70%		53%		103%		9%		32%		45%		6%

		21-04		8,422		4,982		3,440		64		26		90		584,646		48,506		633,152		$   363,624		$   89,947		$   22,052		$   475,622		$   412,992		1%		-11%		-2%		20%		21%		23%		330%		718%

		21-05		8,584		4,699		3,885		39		24		63		604,767		48,673		653,440		$   364,450		$   92,139		$   10,042		$   466,632		$   416,142		-2%		2%		3%		-30%		12%		-6%		119%		385%

		21-06		10,271		6,302		3,969		58		40		98		715,873		52,415		768,288		$   355,916		$   109,827		$   13,740		$   479,483		$   412,922		3%		20%		18%		56%		7%		3%		52%		250%

		21-07		10,967		6,976		3,991		39		26		65		739,634		57,092		796,726		$   385,909		$   113,194		$   19,397		$   518,501		$   475,086		8%		7%		4%		-34%		10%		6%		43%		210%

		21-08		10,267		6,457		3,810		39		24		63		681,726		62,303		744,029		$   371,107		$   106,448		$   10,414		$   487,968		$   456,439		-6%		-6%		-7%		-3%		7%		-7%		35%		117%

		21-09		11,008		6,799		4,209		30		15		45		644,601		64,298		708,899		$   366,234		$   101,213		$   11,278		$   478,726		$   459,589		-2%		7%		-5%		-29%		6%		17%		31%		50%

		21-10		11,028		5,990		5,038		38		9		47		827,016		59,895		886,911		$   365,719		$   126,083		$   14,454		$   506,256		$   523,001		6%		0%		25%		4%		10%		11%		49%		47%

		21-11		11,351		6,301		5,050		61		23		84		889,557		55,886		945,443		$   364,559		$   134,318		$   10,780		$   509,657		$   521,750		1%		3%		7%		79%		15%		24%		88%		42%

		21-12		9,239		4,594		4,645		64		29		93		857,034		60,438		917,472		$   377,826		$   129,442		$   21,518		$   528,786		$   519,090		4%		-19%		-3%		11%		16%		8%		61%		72%

		22-01		10,110		6,214		3,896		57		12		69		656,523		61,178		717,701		$   465,220		$   102,465		$   14,951		$   582,636		$   559,938		10%		9%		-22%		-26%		20%		25%		62%		-13%

		22-02		8,071		4,659		3,412		74		30		104		711,620		38,372		749,992		$   415,328		$   106,303		$   15,015		$   536,646		$   516,525		-8%		-20%		4%		51%		24%		45%		77%		181%

		22-03		11,009		6,440		4,569		92		51		143		861,224		45,043		906,267		$   422,284		$   128,512		$   19,200		$   569,996		$   523,868		6%		36%		21%		38%		21%		16%		40%		91%

		22-04		8,226		4,333		3,893		42		21		63		626,717		51,551		678,268		$   419,538		$   96,889		$   20,210		$   536,637		$   518,589		-6%		-25%		-25%		-56%		13%		-2%		7%		-30%

		22-05		9,853		5,382		4,471		47		14		61		821,711		48,173		869,884		$   445,946		$   123,091		$   12,526		$   581,562		$   523,047		8%		20%		28%		-3%		25%		15%		33%		-3%

		22-06		11,176		7,086		4,090		75		25		100		680,783		59,556		740,339		$   470,937		$   105,568		$   14,220		$   590,725		$   524,753		2%		13%		-15%		64%		23%		9%		-4%		2%

		22-07		10,470		7,019		3,451		42		17		59		624,240		48,068		672,308		$   445,462		$   96,059		$   18,275		$   559,796		$   544,934		-5%		-6%		-9%		-41%		8%		-5%		-16%		-9%

		22-08		10,372		6,364		4,008		26		11		37		650,494		75,659		726,153		$   391,848		$   103,607		$   52,578		$   548,034		$   527,489		-2%		-1%		8%		-37%		12%		1%		-2%		-41%

		22-09		11,593		7,550		4,043		28		6		34		684,881		55,986		740,867		$   1,064,673		$   105,012		$   20,190		$   1,189,875		$   530,515		117%		12%		2%		-8%		149%		5%		5%		-24%

		22-10		11,074		7,052		4,022		37		7		44		680,941		77,890		758,831		$   447,219		$   108,499		$   21,143		$   576,861		$   534,767		-52%		-4%		2%		29%		14%		0%		-14%		-6%

		22-11		9,429		5,317		4,112		63		20		83		724,646		49,342		773,988		$   433,357		$   110,308		$   17,685		$   561,351		$   535,497		-3%		-15%		2%		89%		10%		-17%		-18%		-1%

		22-12		8,873		5,088		3,785		62		24		86		702,536		49,392		751,928		$   460,339		$   106,591		$   18,723		$   585,653		$   539,191		4%		-6%		-3%		4%		11%		-4%		-18%		-8%

		23-01		9,627		6,161		3,466		65		38		103		647,299		74,093		721,392		$   494,058		$   103,647		$   26,081		$   623,786		$   581,212		7%		8%		-4%		20%		7%		-5%		1%		49%

		23-02		8,573		5,420		3,153		48		19		67		598,884		40,646		639,530		$   457,617		$   90,214		$   24,660		$   572,491		$   530,150		-8%		-11%		-11%		-35%		7%		6%		-15%		-36%

		23-03		9,579		5,682		3,897		72		23		95		653,576		57,900		711,476		$   480,798		$   101,369		$   24,527		$   606,693		$   566,565		6%		12%		11%		42%		6%		-13%		-21%		-34%

		23-04		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   552,601

		23-05		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   553,669

		23-06		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   560,215

		23-07		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   578,402

		23-08		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   556,399

		23-09		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   555,081





Monthly Report Charts - 25 mo.



&"Arial,Bold"&18ADS by the Numbers	


International Operations (U.S. Customs - Aircraft Clearances)

Inbound	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	63	64	39	58	39	39	30	38	61	64	57	74	92	42	47	75	42	26	28	37	63	62	65	48	72	Outbound	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	12	26	24	40	26	24	15	9	23	29	12	30	51	21	14	25	17	11	6	7	20	24	38	19	23	







Revenue

Real Estate	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	364947.72	363623.97	364450.34	355916.18	385909.25	371106.78	366234.46	365719.36	364558.88	377825.54	465220.06	415328.18	422283.6	419538.08	445945.67	470937.35	445461.84	391848.45	1064673	447219.21	433357.16	460339.1	494057.5	457617.08	480797.72	Fuel	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	92762.2	89946.64	92139.12	109827.12	113194.44	106447.82	101212.9	126082.98	134318.18	129442.16	102465.18	106303.03999999999	128512.26	96889.2	123090.8	105568.42	96058.72	103607.34	105012.42	108498.98	110308.24	106590.72	103647.36	90213.96	101368.96000000001	Other	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	14935.310000000012	22051.510000000024	10042.179999999993	13739.73000000004	19397.179999999993	10413.629999999946	11278.399999999994	14453.940000000046	10779.960000000021	21518.139999999985	14950.550000000047	15014.89	19199.800000000061	20209.579999999973	12525.83000000006	14219.60000000002	18275.319999999978	52578.449999999983	20189.789999999964	21142.999999999927	17685.140000000058	18722.749999999971	26081.040000000023	24659.979999999996	24526.730000000054	







Aircraft Operations (Arrivals and Departures)

IFR	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	3637	3440	3885	3969	3991	3810	4209	5038	5050	4645	3896	3412	4569	3893	4471	4090	3451	4008	4043	4022	4112	3785	3466	3153	3897	VFR	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	5841	4982	4699	6302	6976	6457	6799	5990	6301	4594	6214	4659	6440	4333	5382	7086	7019	6364	7550	7052	5317	5088	6161	5420	5682	







Fuel Flowage (Gallons Received)

Jet-A	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	587673	584646	604767	715873	739634	681726	644601	827016	889557	857034	656523	711620	861224	626717	821711	680783	624240	650494	684881	680941	724646	702536	647299	598884	653576	AvGas	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	60809	48506	48673	52415	57092	62303	64298	59895	55886	60438	61178	38372	45043	51551	48173	59556	48068	75659	55986	77890	49342	49392	74093	40646	57900	









4-year look-back graphs

		FY21		OPERATIONS								FUEL FLOWAGE								U.S. CUSTOMS

				Itinerant				Local		Total		Jet-A		AvGas		Total		Non-Public		Arrivals		Regulated Garbage		Overtime Clearances

				IFR		VFR

		Oct		3,580		6,055		283		9,918		530,193		64,444		594,637		32,106		27		15		16

		Nov		3,228		5,746		187		9,161		447,146		56,798		503,944		8,743		43		17		28

		Dec		2,968		5,338		261		8,567		514,125		56,903		571,028		32,550		33		15		24

		Jan		2,712		5,232		162		8,106		410,147		32,875		443,022		8,031		42		19		25

		Feb		2,298		3,106		170		5,574		391,524		32,589		424,113		8,200		29		11		17

		Mar		3,637		5,606		235		9,478		587,673		60,809		648,482		24,684		63		27		44

		Apr		3,440		4,777		205		8,422		584,646		48,506		633,152		16,317		64		27		24

		May		3,885		4,480		219		8,584		604,767		48,673		653,440		8,219		39		17		20

		Jun		3,969		6,113		189		10,271		715,873		52,415		768,288		28,335		58		21		40

		Jul		3,991		6,689		287		10,967		739,634		57,092		796,726		20,660		39		17

		Aug		3,810		6,257		200		10,267		681,726		62,303		744,029		28,547		39		12

		Sep		4,209		6,557		242		11,008		644,601		64,298		708,899		24,588		30		3

				41,727		65,956		2,640		110,323		6,852,055		637,705		7,489,760		240,980		506		201		238

		FY22

		Oct		5,038		5,771		219		11,028		827,016		59,895		886,911		23,943		38		16

		Nov		5,050		5,993		308		11,351		889,557		55,886		945,443		24,452		61		26

		Dec		4,645		4,406		188		9,239		857,034		60,438		917,472		12,451		64		26

		Jan		3,896		5,994		220		10,110		656,523		61,178		717,701		24,838		57		18

		Feb		3,412		4,599		60		8,071		711,620		38,372		749,992		22,063		74		32

		Mar		4,569		6,239		201		11,009		861,224		45,043		906,267		20,436		92		41		35

		Apr		3,893		4,176		157		8,226		626,717		51,551		678,268		24,146		42		27		12

		May		4,471		5,173		209		9,853		821,711		48,173		869,884		16,338		47		18		23

		Jun		4,090		6,897		189		11,176		680,783		59,556		740,339		24,012		75		30		30

		Jul		3,451		6,853		166		10,470		624,240		48,068		672,308		24,195		42		16		17

		Aug		4,008		6,069		295		10,372		650,494		75,659		726,153		24,324		26		9		11

		Sep		4,043		7,344		206		11,593		684,881		55,986		740,867		16,138		28		7		9

				50,566		69,514		2,418		122,498		8,891,800		659,805		9,551,605		257,336		646		266		137

		FY23

		Oct		4,022		6,894		158		11,074		680,941		77,890		758,831		28,283		37		14		11

		Nov		4,112		5,229		88		9,429		724,646		49,342		773,988		24,374		63		30		30

		Dec		3,785		5,030		58		8,873		702,536		49,392		751,928		16,510		62		27		27

		Jan		3,466		6,043		118		9,627		647,299		74,093		721,392		33,156		65		27		26

		Feb		3,153		5,311		109		8,573		598,884		40,646		639,530		8,497		48		17		17

		Mar		3,897		5,634		48		9,579		653,576		57,900		711,476		22,029		72		31		44

		Apr		0		0		0		0		0		0		0				0

		May		0		0		0		0		0		0		0				0

		Jun		0		0		0		0		0		0		0				0

		Jul		0		0		0		0		0		0		0				0

		Aug		0		0		0		0		0		0		0				0

		Sep		0		0		0		0		0		0		0				0

				22,435		34,141		579		57,155		4,007,882		349,263		4,357,145		132,849		347		146		155



Jet-A Volume (gallons)



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	555796	560580	537520	564818	483192	588995	546360	545831	459955	467027	553631	544788	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	587394	497326	571207	467518	563482	407753	106650	239109	432590	492331	482311	496914	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	530193	447146	514125	410147	391524	587673	584646	604767	715873	739634	681726	644601	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	827016	889557	857034	656523	711620	861224	626717	821711	680783	624240	650494	684881	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	680941	724646	702536	647299	598884	653576	







Monthly Fuel Flowage Revenue



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	86679.12	88931.24	84186.559999999998	87907.1	75622.259999999995	92290.82	86203.16	84924.6	76426.14	79848.06	89077.84	87355.1	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	94813.2	80342.720000000001	91631.82	73567.34	88203.12	64678.82	21959.26	43415.16	72691.039999999994	79728.479999999996	79866.48	76880.600000000006	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	85817.66	71251.600000000006	82547.92	62665.56	60031.82	92762.2	89946.64	92139.12	109827.12	113194.44	106447.82	101212.9	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	126082.98	134318.18	129442.16	102465.18	106303.03999999999	128512.26	96889.2	123090.8	105568.42	96058.72	103607.34	105012.42	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	108498.98	110308.24	106590.72	103647.36	90213.96	101368.96000000001	







Instrument (IFR) Operations



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	3935	3432	3080	3176	2964	3314	3398	3616	3171	2998	3322	3860	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	3966	3617	3636	3388	3363	2631	1391	2322	2934	3291	3002	3384	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	3580	3228	2968	2712	2298	3637	3440	3885	3969	3991	3810	4209	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	5038	5050	4645	3896	3412	4569	3893	4471	4090	3451	4008	4043	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	4022	4112	3785	3466	3153	3897	







Visual (VFR) Operations



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	5042	5896	5209	5917	3910	6434	5920	6412	7226	8128	7897	7490	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	7439	6950	7163	5512	6137	4524	5434	6791	7048	7095	8008	5998	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	6338	5933	5599	5394	3276	5841	4982	4699	6302	6976	6457	6799	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	5990	6301	4594	6214	4659	6440	4333	5382	7086	7019	6364	7550	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	7052	5317	5088	6161	5420	5682	







AvGas Volume (gallons)



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	47404	60950	49668	48939	45447	60788	47750	46847	63342	85274	64289	63541	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	68894	65126	64426	48571	54054	40230	40679	59885	72482	63481	70053	42887	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	64444	56798	56903	32875	32589	60809	48506	48673	52415	57092	62303	64298	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	59895	55886	60438	61178	38372	45043	51551	48173	59556	48068	75659	55986	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	77890	49342	49392	74093	40646	57900	







Total Operations



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	8977	9328	8289	9093	6874	9748	9318	10028	10397	11126	11219	11350	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	11405	10567	10799	8900	9500	7155	6825	9113	9982	10386	11010	9382	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	9918	9161	8567	8106	5574	9478	8422	8584	10271	10967	10267	11008	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	11028	11351	9239	10110	8071	11009	8226	9853	11176	10470	10372	11593	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	11074	9429	8873	9627	8573	9579	







Total Fuel Volume (gallons)



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	603200	621530	587188	613757	528639	649783	594110	592678	523297	552301	617920	608329	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	656288	562452	635633	516089	617536	447983	147329	298994	505072	555812	552364	539801	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	594637	503944	571028	443022	424113	648482	633152	653440	768288	796726	744029	708899	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	886911	945443	917472	717701	749992	906267	678268	869884	740339	672308	726153	740867	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	758831	773988	751928	721392	639530	711476	







International Arrivals



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	42	39	29	39	44	47	40	35	25	21	25	21	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	26	38	43	37	44	56	5	12	22	15	21	24	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	27	43	33	42	29	63	64	39	58	39	39	30	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	38	61	64	57	74	92	42	47	75	42	26	28	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	37	63	62	65	48	72	







Total Monthly Revenue



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	464414.48	465118.2	468418.5	495367.66	449923.89	471663.75	474213.03	469106.66	455898.91	1480559.5	471156.65	472166.32	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	479457.48	466618.68	458362.93	488256.25	455301.85	432766.86	391630.82	416699.45	449584.06	472656.3	454268.15	451167.36	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	458202	444042.87	456924.36	485772.14	434136.39	472645.23	475622.12	466631.64	479483.03	518500.87	487968.23	478725.76	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	506256.28	509657.02	528785.84	582635.79	536646.11	569995.66	536636.86	581562.30000000005	590725.37	559795.88	548034.24	1189875.21	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	576861.18999999994	561350.54	585652.56999999995	623785.9	572491.02	606693.41	







Monthly Real Estate Revenue



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	368423.55	364526.02	368932.55	399927.31	358429.69	369423.98	376077.08	372819.67	372804.99	1391430.94	372015.59	373300.57	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	376389.95	371813.68	355678.7	403281.25	355202.61	355610.92	356125.92	366575.5	370381.6	383521.64	363885.32	363456.62	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	357017.51	356194.43	360755	406798.76	362544.79	364947.72	363623.97	364450.34	355916.18	385909.25	371106.78	366234.46	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	365719.36	364558.88	377825.54	465220.06	415328.18	422283.6	419538.08	445945.67	470937.35	445461.84	391848.45	1064673	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	447219.21	433357.16	460339.1	494057.5	457617.08	480797.72	









Qrtrly Reports - Ops and Fuel

		YY-MM		OPERATIONS										YY-MM		International Operations												OPERATIONS										YY-MM		FUEL FLOWAGE (gallons)

				TOTAL		VFR Itin		IFR Itin		LOC						arrivals		departures		Total								IFR Itin		VFR Itin		Local		TOTAL						Jet-A		AvGas		TOTAL

		16-10		9,580		5,853		3,409		318				16-10		31		13		44				FY19 Q2		Jan-19		3,176		5,441		476		9,093				16-10		523,272		56,481		579,753

		16-11		7,385		4,200		3,046		139				16-11		39		16		55						Feb-19		2,964		3,540		370		6,874				16-11		511,155		45,330		556,485

		16-12		7,315		4,146		2,860		309				16-12		42		23		65						Mar-19		3,314		6,023		411		9,748				16-12		513,453		28,934		542,387

		17-01		7,369		4,452		2,677		240				17-01		38		16		54				TOTAL				9,454		15,004		1,257		25,715				17-01		441,721		51,531		493,252

		17-02		7,386		4,342		2,793		251				17-02		32		10		42				FY20 Q2		Jan-20		3,388		5,097		415		8,900				17-02		491,491		31,862		523,353

		17-03		8,353		4,856		3,157		340				17-03		45		21		66						Feb-20		3,363		5,866		271		9,500				17-03		486,359		44,561		530,920

		17-04		7,196		3,845		2,988		363				17-04		25		13		38						Mar-20		2,631		4,210		314		7,155				17-04		434,626		49,999		484,625

		17-05		8,643		5,049		2,967		627				17-05		24		19		43				TOTAL				9,382		15,173		1,000		25,555				17-05		505,339		42,733		548,072

		17-06		8,395		4,829		3,004		562				17-06		37		20		57				FY21 Q2		Jan-21		2,712		5,232		162		8,106				17-06		459,824		39,296		499,120

		17-07		8,910		5,700		2,720		490				17-07		35		11		46						Feb-21		2,298		3,106		170		5,574				17-07		508,559		49,993		558,552

		17-08		8,430		4,733		3,162		535				17-08		18		8		26						Mar-21		3,637		5,606		235		9,478				17-08		514,755		58,847		573,602

		17-09		9,659		6,071		3,311		277				17-09		32		16		48				TOTAL				8,647		13,944		567		23,158				17-09		493,277		51,736		545,013

		17-10		8,895		5,496		3,224		175				17-10		32		15		47				FY22 Q2		Jan-22		3,896		5,994		220		10,110				17-10		529,149		55,595		584,744

		17-11		8,746		4,766		3,663		317				17-11		33		14		47						Feb-22		3,412		4,599		60		8,071				17-11		552,450		51,038		603,488

		17-12		7,512		4,450		2,853		209				17-12		39		25		64						Mar-22		4,569		6,239		201		11,009				17-12		474,317		49,006		523,323

		18-01		8,114		4,989		2,911		214				18-01		38		22		60				TOTAL				11,877		16,832		481		29,190				18-01		493,347		37,726		531,073

		18-02		5,866		3,026		2,737		103				18-02		37		12		49				FY23 Q2		Jan-23		3,466		6,043		118		9,627				18-02		481,758		35,420		517,178

		18-03		8,968		5,565		3,301		102				18-03		56		24		80						Feb-23		3,153		5,311		109		8,573				18-03		557,985		56,480		614,465

		18-04		8,362		5,209		3,045		108				18-04		45		22		67						Mar-23		3,897		5,634		48		9,579				18-04		490,653		44,136		534,789

		18-05		9,854		6,415		3,274		165				18-05		35		15		50				TOTAL				10,516		16,988		275		27,779				18-05		525,621		66,701		592,322

		18-06		9,517		6,201		3,169		147				18-06		34		10		44																		18-06		547,460		62,423		609,883

		18-07		8,950		6,017		2,829		104				18-07		31		14		45								International Operations										18-07		513,573		53,552		567,125

		18-08		9,893		6,586		3,165		142				18-08		22		3		25								arrivals		departures		TOTAL						18-08		522,511		58,944		581,455

		18-09		7,617		3,769		3,635		213				18-09		23		6		29				FY19 Q2		Jan-19		39		19		58						18-09		508,639		47,434		556,073

		18-10		8,977		4,573		3,935		469				18-10		42		11		53						Feb-19		44		14		58						18-10		555,796		47,404		603,200

		18-11		9,328		5,616		3,432		280				18-11		39		22		61						Mar-19		47		17		64						18-11		560,580		60,950		621,530

		18-12		8,289		4,989		3,080		220				18-12		29		26		55				TOTAL				130		50		180						18-12		537,520		49,668		587,188

		19-01		9,093		5,441		3,176		476				19-01		39		19		58				FY20 Q2		Jan-20		37		7		44						19-01		564,818		48,939		613,757

		19-02		6,874		3,540		2,964		370				19-02		44		14		58						Feb-20		44		16		60						19-02		483,192		45,447		528,639

		19-03		9,748		6,023		3,314		411				19-03		47		17		64						Mar-20		56		15		71						19-03		588,995		60,788		649,783

		19-04		9,318		5,447		3,398		473				19-04		40		23		63				TOTAL				137		38		175						19-04		546,360		47,750		594,110

		19-05		10,028		5,603		3,616		809				19-05		35		16		51				FY21 Q2		Jan-21		42		37		79						19-05		545,831		46,847		592,678

		19-06		10,397		6,659		3,171		567				19-06		25		12		37						Feb-21		29		8		37						19-06		459,955		63,342		523,297

		19-07		11,126		7,794		2,998		334				19-07		21		15		36						Mar-21		63		12		75						19-07		467,027		85,274		552,301

		19-08		11,219		7,641		3,322		256				19-08		25		12		37				TOTAL				134		57		191						19-08		553,631		64,289		617,920

		19-09		11,350		7,173		3,860		317				19-09		21		12		33				FY22 Q2		Jan-22		57		12		69						19-09		544,788		63,541		608,329

		19-10		11,405		6,841		3,966		598				19-10		26		7		33						Feb-22		74		30		104						19-10		587,394		68,894		656,288

		19-11		10,567		6,592		3,617		358				19-11		38		21		59						Mar-22		92		51		143						19-11		497,326		65,126		562,452

		19-12		10,799		6,670		3,636		493				19-12		43		22		65				TOTAL				223		93		316						19-12		571,207		64,426		635,633

		20-01		8,900		5,097		3,388		415				20-01		37		7		44				FY23 Q2		Jan-23		65		38		103						20-01		467,518		48,571		516,089

		20-02		9,500		5,866		3,363		271				20-02		44		16		60						Feb-23		48		19		67						20-02		563,482		54,054		617,536

		20-03		7,155		4,210		2,631		314				20-03		56		15		71						Mar-23		72		23		95						20-03		407,753		40,230		447,983

		20-04		6,825		5,367		1,391		67				20-04		5		6		11				TOTAL				185		80		265						20-04		106,650		40,679		147,329

		20-05		9,113		6,654		2,322		137				20-05		12		1		13																		20-05		239,109		59,885		298,994

		20-06		9,982		6,849		2,934		199				20-06		22		6		28								FUEL FLOWAGE (gallons)										20-06		432,590		72,482		505,072

		20-07		10,386		6,990		3,291		105				20-07		15		6		21								Jet-A		AvGas		TOTAL						20-07		492,331		63,481		555,812

		20-08		11,010		7,777		3,002		231				20-08		21		8		29				FY19 Q2		Jan-19		564,818		48,939		613,757						20-08		482,311		70,053		552,364

		20-09		9,382		5,675		3,384		323				20-09		24		6		30						Feb-19		483,192		45,447		528,639						20-09		496,914		42,887		539,801

		20-10		9,918		6,055		3,580		283				20-10		27		5		32						Mar-19		588,995		60,788		649,783						20-10		530,193		64,444		594,637

		20-11		9,161		5,746		3,228		187				20-11		43		16		59				TOTAL				1,637,005		155,174		1,792,179						20-11		447,146		56,798		503,944

		20-12		8,567		5,338		2,968		261				20-12		33		21		54				FY20 Q2		Jan-20		467,518		48,571		516,089						20-12		514,125		56,903		571,028

		21-01		8,106		5,232		2,712		162				21-01		42		37		79						Feb-20		563,482		54,054		617,536						21-01		410,147		32,875		443,022

		21-02		5,574		3,106		2,298		170				21-02		29		8		37						Mar-20		407,753		40,230		447,983						21-02		391,524		32,589		424,113

		21-03		9,478		5,606		3,637		235				21-03		63		12		75				TOTAL				1,438,753		142,855		1,581,608						21-03		587,673		60,809		648,482

		21-04		8,422		4,777		3,440		205				21-04		64		26		90				FY21 Q2		Jan-21		410,147		32,875		443,022						21-04		584,646		48,506		633,152

		21-05		8,584		4,480		3,885		219				21-05		39		24		63						Feb-21		391,524		32,589		424,113						21-05		604,767		48,673		653,440

		21-06		10,271		6,113		3,969		189				21-06		58		40		98						Mar-21		587,673		60,809		648,482						21-06		715,873		52,415		768,288

		21-07		10,967		6,689		3,991		287				21-07		39		26		65				TOTAL				1,389,344		126,273		1,515,617						21-07		739,634		57,092		796,726

		21-08		10,267		6,257		3,810		200				21-08		39		24		63				FY22 Q2		Jan-22		656,523		61,178		717,701						21-08		681,726		62,303		744,029

		21-09		11,008		6,557		4,209		242				21-09		30		15		45						Feb-22		711,620		38,372		749,992						21-09		644,601		64,298		708,899

		21-10		11,028		5,771		5,038		219				21-10		38		9		47						Mar-22		861,224		45,043		906,267						21-10		827,016		59,895		886,911

		21-11		11,351		5,993		5,050		308				21-11		61		23		84				TOTAL				2,229,367		144,593		2,373,960						21-11		889,557		55,886		945,443

		21-12		9,239		4,406		4,645		188				21-12		64		29		93				FY23 Q2		Jan-23		647,299		74,093		721,392						21-12		857,034		60,438		917,472

		22-01		10,110		5,994		3,896		220				22-01		57		12		69						Feb-23		598,884		40,646		639,530						22-01		656,523		61,178		717,701

		22-02		8,071		4,599		3,412		60				22-02		74		30		104						Mar-23		653,576		57,900		711,476						22-02		711,620		38,372		749,992

		22-03		11,009		6,239		4,569		201				22-03		92		51		143				TOTAL				1,899,759		172,639		2,072,398						22-03		861,224		45,043		906,267

		22-04		8,226		4,176		3,893		157				22-04		42		21		63																		22-04		626,717		51,551		678,268

		22-05		9,853		5,173		4,471		209				22-05		47		14		61																		22-05		821,711		48,173		869,884

		22-06		11,176		6,897		4,090		189				22-06		75		25		100																		22-06		680,783		59,556		740,339

		22-07		10,470		6,853		3,451		166				22-07		42		17		59																		22-07		624,240		48,068		672,308

		22-08		10,372		6,069		4,008		295				22-08		26		11		37																		22-08		650,494		75,659		726,153

		22-09		11,593		7,344		4,043		206				22-09		28		6		34																		22-09		684,881		55,986		740,867

		22-10		11,074		6,894		4,022		158				22-10		37		7		44																		22-10		680,941		77,890		758,831

		22-11		9,429		5,229		4,112		88				22-11		63		20		83																		22-11		724,646		49,342		773,988

		22-12		8,873		5,030		3,785		58				22-12		62		24		86																		22-12		702,536		49,392		751,928

		23-01		9,627		6,043		3,466		118				23-01		65		38		103																		23-01		647,299		74,093		721,392

		23-02		8,573		5,311		3,153		109				23-02		48		19		67																		23-02		598,884		40,646		639,530

		23-03		9,579		5,634		3,897		48				23-03		72		23		95																		23-03		653,576		57,900		711,476

		23-04		0		0		0						23-04		0		0		0																		23-04		0		0		0

		23-05		0		0		0						23-05		0		0		0																		23-05		0		0		0

		23-06		0		0		0						23-06		0		0		0																		23-06		0		0		0

		23-07		0		0		0						23-07		0		0		0																		23-07		0		0		0

		23-08		0		0		0						23-08		0		0		0																		23-08		0		0		0

		23-09		0		0		0						23-09		0		0		0																		23-09		0		0		0





Qrtrly Reports - Revenue

		YY-MM		REVENUE														REVENUE

				Real Estate		FFF		Other		TOTAL								Real Estate		FFF		Other		TOTAL

		16-10		$   370,727		$   83,688		$   10,941		$   465,356				FY19 Q2		Jan-19		$   399,927		$   87,907		$   7,533		$   495,368

		16-11		$   368,650		$   79,559		$   12,244		$   460,454						Feb-19		$   358,430		$   75,622		$   15,872		$   449,924

		16-12		$   353,039		$   77,870		$   13,590		$   444,500						Mar-19		$   369,424		$   92,291		$   9,949		$   471,664

		17-01		$   391,545		$   70,053		$   13,733		$   475,332				TOTAL				$   1,127,781		$   255,820		$   33,354		$   1,416,955

		17-02		$   343,434		$   75,183		$   14,497		$   433,114				FY20 Q2		Jan-20		$   403,281		$   73,567		$   11,408		$   488,256

		17-03		$   349,043		$   76,561		$   12,217		$   437,821						Feb-20		$   355,203		$   88,203		$   11,896		$   455,302

		17-04		$   352,297		$   69,912		$   14,572		$   436,781						Mar-20		$   355,611		$   64,679		$   12,477		$   432,767

		17-05		$   363,977		$   77,360		$   7,689		$   449,026				TOTAL				$   1,114,095		$   226,449		$   35,781		$   1,376,325

		17-06		$   363,011		$   71,770		$   12,171		$   446,951				FY21 Q2		Jan-21		$   406,799		$   62,666		$   16,308		$   485,772

		17-07		$   381,670		$   81,350		$   10,642		$   473,662						Feb-21		$   362,545		$   60,032		$   11,560		$   434,136

		17-08		$   366,885		$   82,507		$   9,969		$   459,361						Mar-21		$   364,948		$   92,762		$   14,935		$   472,645

		17-09		$   365,626		$   78,515		$   10,619		$   454,759				TOTAL				$   1,134,291		$   215,460		$   42,803		$   1,392,554

		17-10		$   367,559		$   83,762		$   10,574		$   461,894				FY22 Q2		Jan-22		$   465,220		$   102,465		$   14,951		$   582,636

		17-11		$   367,157		$   85,961		$   10,950		$   464,068						Feb-22		$   415,328		$   106,303		$   15,015		$   536,646

		17-12		$   367,364		$   75,183		$   13,278		$   455,824						Mar-22		$   422,284		$   128,512		$   19,200		$   569,996

		18-01		$   414,943		$   75,348		$   12,689		$   502,980				TOTAL				$   1,302,832		$   337,280		$   49,165		$   1,689,278

		18-02		$   374,077		$   74,556		$   11,675		$   460,308				FY23 Q2		Jan-23		$   494,058		$   103,647		$   26,081		$   623,786

		18-03		$   372,683		$   88,962		$   14,395		$   476,039						Feb-23		$   457,617		$   90,214		$   24,660		$   572,491

		18-04		$   364,132		$   76,778		$   14,475		$   455,385						Mar-23		$   480,798		$   101,369		$   24,527		$   606,693

		18-05		$   368,924		$   84,448		$   8,618		$   461,990				TOTAL				$   1,432,472		$   295,230		$   75,268		$   1,802,970

		18-06		$   364,563		$   88,853		$   18,029		$   471,445

		18-07		$   386,877		$   80,334		$   9,241		$   476,451

		18-08		$   358,921		$   84,853		$   12,750		$   456,525

		18-09		$   366,385		$   78,779		$   8,328		$   453,492

		18-10		$   368,424		$   86,679		$   9,312		$   464,414

		18-11		$   364,526		$   88,931		$   11,661		$   465,118

		18-12		$   368,933		$   84,187		$   15,299		$   468,419

		19-01		$   399,927		$   87,907		$   7,533		$   495,368

		19-02		$   358,430		$   75,622		$   15,872		$   449,924

		19-03		$   369,424		$   92,291		$   9,949		$   471,664

		19-04		$   376,077		$   86,203		$   11,933		$   474,213

		19-05		$   372,820		$   84,925		$   11,362		$   469,107

		19-06		$   372,805		$   76,426		$   6,668		$   455,899

		19-07		$   1,391,431		$   79,848		$   9,281		$   1,480,560

		19-08		$   372,016		$   89,078		$   10,063		$   471,157

		19-09		$   373,301		$   87,355		$   11,511		$   472,166

		19-10		$   376,390		$   94,813		$   8,254		$   479,457

		19-11		$   371,814		$   80,343		$   14,462		$   466,619

		19-12		$   355,679		$   91,632		$   11,052		$   458,363

		20-01		$   403,281		$   73,567		$   11,408		$   488,256

		20-02		$   355,203		$   88,203		$   11,896		$   455,302

		20-03		$   355,611		$   64,679		$   12,477		$   432,767

		20-04		$   356,126		$   21,959		$   13,546		$   391,631

		20-05		$   366,576		$   43,415		$   6,709		$   416,699

		20-06		$   370,382		$   72,691		$   6,511		$   449,584

		20-07		$   383,522		$   79,728		$   9,406		$   472,656

		20-08		$   363,885		$   79,866		$   10,516		$   454,268

		20-09		$   363,457		$   76,881		$   10,830		$   451,167

		20-10		$   357,018		$   85,818		$   15,367		$   458,202

		20-11		$   356,194		$   71,252		$   16,597		$   444,043

		20-12		$   360,755		$   82,548		$   13,621		$   456,924

		21-01		$   406,799		$   62,666		$   16,308		$   485,772

		21-02		$   362,545		$   60,032		$   11,560		$   434,136

		21-03		$   364,948		$   92,762		$   14,935		$   472,645

		21-04		$   363,624		$   89,947		$   22,052		$   475,622

		21-05		$   364,450		$   92,139		$   10,042		$   466,632

		21-06		$   355,916		$   109,827		$   13,740		$   479,483

		21-07		$   385,909		$   113,194		$   19,397		$   518,501

		21-08		$   371,107		$   106,448		$   10,414		$   487,968

		21-09		$   366,234		$   101,213		$   11,278		$   478,726

		21-10		$   365,719		$   126,083		$   14,454		$   506,256

		21-11		$   364,559		$   134,318		$   10,780		$   509,657

		21-12		$   377,826		$   129,442		$   21,518		$   528,786

		22-01		$   465,220		$   102,465		$   14,951		$   582,636

		22-02		$   415,328		$   106,303		$   15,015		$   536,646

		22-03		$   422,284		$   128,512		$   19,200		$   569,996

		22-04		$   419,538		$   96,889		$   20,210		$   536,637

		22-05		$   445,946		$   123,091		$   12,526		$   581,562

		22-06		$   470,937		$   105,568		$   14,220		$   590,725

		22-07		$   445,462		$   96,059		$   18,275		$   559,796

		22-08		$   391,848		$   103,607		$   52,578		$   548,034

		22-09		$   1,064,673		$   105,012		$   20,190		$   1,189,875

		22-10		$   447,219		$   108,499		$   21,143		$   576,861

		22-11		$   433,357		$   110,308		$   17,685		$   561,351

		22-12		$   460,339		$   106,591		$   18,723		$   585,653

		23-01		$   494,058		$   103,647		$   26,081		$   623,786

		23-02		$   457,617		$   90,214		$   24,660		$   572,491

		23-03		$   480,798		$   101,369		$   24,527		$   606,693

		23-04		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -

		23-05		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -

		23-06		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -

		23-07		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -

		23-08		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -

		23-09		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -





FY23 Q2 data and charts

				Operations														International Operations

				IFR Itinerant		VFR Itinerant		Local		TOTAL								Arrivals		Departures		TOTAL

		FY19Q2		9,454		15,004		1,257		25,715						FY19Q2		130		50		180

		FY20Q2		9,382		15,173		1,000		25,555						FY20Q2		137		38		175

		FY21Q2		8,647		13,944		567		23,158						FY21Q2		134		57		191

		FY22Q2		11,877		16,832		481		29,190						FY22Q2		223		93		316

		FY23Q2		10,516		16,988		275		27,779						FY23Q2		185		80		265



				Revenue														Fuel Flowage (Gallons)

				Real Estate		Fuel Flowage		Other		TOTAL								Jet-A		AvGas		TOTAL

		FY19Q2		$   1,127,781		$   255,820		$   33,354		$   1,416,955						FY19Q2		1,637,005		155,174		1,792,179

		FY20Q2		$   1,114,095		$   226,449		$   35,781		$   1,376,325						FY20Q2		1,438,753		142,855		1,581,608

		FY21Q2		$   1,134,291		$   215,460		$   42,803		$   1,392,554						FY21Q2		1,389,344		126,273		1,515,617

		FY22Q2		$   1,302,832		$   337,280		$   49,165		$   1,689,278						FY22Q2		2,229,367		144,593		2,373,960

		FY23Q2		$   1,432,472		$   295,230		$   75,268		$   1,802,970						FY23Q2		1,899,759		172,639		2,072,398



Operations



IFR Itinerant	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	9454	9382	8647	11877	10516	VFR Itinerant	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	15004	15173	13944	16832	16988	Local	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	1257	1000	567	481	275	







Revenue



Real Estate	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	1127780.98	1114094.78	1134291.27	1302831.8399999999	1432472.3	Fuel Flowage	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	255820.18	226449.28	215459.58000000002	337280.48	295230.28000000003	Other	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	33354.14	35780.9	42802.910000000054	49165.240000000107	75267.750000000073	













International Operations



Arrivals	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	130	137	134	223	185	Departures	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	50	38	57	93	80	







Fuel Flowage (Gallons)



Jet-A	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	1637005	1438753	1389344	2229367	1899759	AvGas	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	155174	142855	126273	144593	172639	









Full year data and charts

				Operations														International Operations

				IFR Itinerant		VFR Itinerant		Local		TOTAL								Arrivals		Departures		TOTAL

		FY18		37,806		62,489		1,999		102,294						FY18		425		182		607

		FY19		40,266		70,499		4,982		115,747						FY19		407		199		606

		FY20		36,925		74,588		3,511		115,024						FY20		343		121		464

		FY21		41,727		65,956		2,640		110,323						FY21		506		254		760

		FY22		50,566		69,514		2,418		122,498						FY22		646		248		894



				Revenue														Fuel Flowage (Gallons)

				Real Estate		Fuel Flowage		Other		TOTAL								Jet-A		AvGas		TOTAL

		FY18		$   4,473,583		$   977,818		$   145,000		$   5,596,402						FY18		6,197,463		618,455		6,815,918

		FY19		$   5,488,112		$   1,019,452		$   130,444		$   6,638,008						FY19		6,408,493		684,239		7,092,732

		FY20		$   4,421,924		$   867,778		$   127,068		$   5,416,770						FY20		5,344,585		690,768		6,035,353

		FY21		$   4,415,499		$   1,067,845		$   175,311		$   5,658,655						FY21		6,852,055		637,705		7,489,760

		FY22		$   5,649,340		$   1,357,351		$   233,916		$   7,240,607						FY22		8,891,800		659,805		9,551,605



Operations



IFR Itinerant	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	37806	40266	36925	41727	50566	VFR Itinerant	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	62489	70499	74588	65956	69514	Local	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	1999	4982	3511	2640	2418	







Revenue



Real Estate	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	4473583.3599999994	5488111.9399999995	4421923.71	4415499.1899999995	5649340.0099999998	Fuel Flowage	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	977818.44	1019452	867778.03999999992	1067844.8	1357350.7	Other	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	145000.37	130443.61000000003	127068.44	175310.65000000002	233915.85000000015	













International Operations



Arrivals	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	425	407	343	506	646	Departures	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	182	199	121	254	248	







Fuel Flowage (Gallons)



Jet-A	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	6197463	6408493	5344585	6852055	8891800	AvGas	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	618455	684239	690768	637705	659805	











FY23 Q2 Statistics – Revenue

6

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

FY19Q2 FY20Q2 FY21Q2 FY22Q2 FY23Q2

Revenue

Other

Fuel Flowage

Real Estate

Real Estate Revenue
• Up 10.0% over Q2 FY22
• Up 26.3% over Q2 FY21 

Fuel Flowage Fees
• Down 12.5% from Q2 of FY22
• Up 37.0% over Q2 of FY21

Total Revenue
• Up 6.7% over Q2 of FY22
• Up 29.5% over Q2 of FY21


Chart4



Revenue



Real Estate	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	1127780.98	1114094.78	1134291.27	1302831.8399999999	1432472.3	Fuel Flowage	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	255820.18	226449.28	215459.58000000002	337280.48	295230.28000000003	Other	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	33354.14	35780.9	42802.910000000054	49165.240000000107	75267.750000000073	















Monthly Report Data

		Monthly Report Data

		YY-MM		OPERATIONS						International Operations						FUEL FLOWAGE (gallons)						REVENUE

				Total		VFR		IFR		inbound		outbound		Total		Jet-A		AvGas		Total		Real Estate		Fuel		Other		Total		Budget

		11-10		8,511		5,609		2,902		27		7		34		398,445		56,310		454,755		$   285,776		$   55,203		$   4,283		$   345,262		$   350,316

		11-11		7,447		4,507		2,940		32		17		49		448,518		44,491		493,009		$   284,963		$   60,437		$   3,761		$   349,162		$   348,985

		11-12		7,043		4,012		3,031		29		16		45		455,097		40,750		495,847		$   290,484		$   60,790		$   6,116		$   357,390		$   351,605

		12-01		7,478		4,600		2,878		34		17		51		385,946		48,633		434,579		$   333,364		$   53,393		$   15,644		$   402,401		$   398,721

		12-02		7,745		4,652		3,093		25		10		35		402,350		48,872		451,222		$   289,743		$   55,726		$   3,919		$   349,387		$   345,093

		12-03		8,196		4,939		3,257		33		21		54		468,123		54,367		522,490		$   287,985		$   64,288		$   6,040		$   358,313		$   344,618

		12-04		8,010		4,760		3,250		38		16		54		414,178		36,194		450,372		$   294,422		$   55,869		$   6,034		$   356,326		$   347,328

		12-05		8,259		5,102		3,157		26		18		44		469,885		68,292		538,177		$   290,342		$   65,208		$   7,269		$   362,819		$   346,465

		12-06		8,431		5,612		2,819		24		15		39		479,389		44,165		523,554		$   291,734		$   64,952		$   4,501		$   361,186		$   345,936

		12-07		8,560		5,807		2,753		31		14		45		423,797		59,520		483,317		$   314,171		$   59,530		$   4,153		$   377,854		$   345,411

		12-08		8,533		5,609		2,924		28		22		50		448,320		49,981		498,301		$   294,577		$   61,341		$   5,359		$   361,278		$   344,373

		12-09		7,816		4,785		3,031		22		15		37		465,035		32,515		497,550		$   294,702		$   60,931		$   2,612		$   358,245		$   338,879

		FY12		96,029		59,994		36,035		349		188		537		5,259,083		584,090		5,843,173		$   3,552,264		$   717,667		$   69,692		$   4,339,623		$   4,207,729

		12-10		8,551		5,135		3,416		36		44		80		579,033		59,855		638,888		$   393,907		$   74,838		$   4,774		$   473,520		$   339,385

		12-11		8,592		5,718		2,874		30		33		63		516,596		48,664		565,260		$   287,933		$   69,386		$   4,567		$   361,886		$   340,770

		12-12		7,119		4,389		2,730		29		17		46		471,338		47,760		519,098		$   287,662		$   63,856		$   3,952		$   355,470		$   341,839

		13-01		6,998		3,988		3,010		37		17		54		432,665		33,621		466,286		$   337,740		$   56,276		$   13,151		$   407,167		$   342,814

		13-02		7,301		4,469		2,832		30		23		53		423,262		40,501		463,763		$   287,724		$   56,620		$   6,145		$   350,489		$   382,023

		13-03		7,976		5,018		2,958		32		30		62		495,648		45,739		541,387		$   290,343		$   65,602		$   5,680		$   361,625		$   333,966

		13-04		7,531		4,230		3,301		25		12		37		467,864		50,248		518,112		$   291,581		$   63,128		$   8,426		$   363,135		$   335,163

		13-05		7,802		4,465		3,337		36		21		57		516,398		56,712		573,110		$   293,757		$   69,406		$   2,819		$   365,982		$   335,210

		13-06		9,043		6,252		2,791		35		23		58		453,934		48,215		502,149		$   297,302		$   60,873		$   5,033		$   363,209		$   334,670

		13-07		8,041		5,375		2,666		31		20		51		445,238		52,103		497,341		$   314,736		$   60,316		$   7,389		$   382,441		$   326,216

		13-08		8,407		5,893		2,514		26		17		43		413,465		48,609		462,074		$   296,266		$   56,395		$   7,122		$   359,783		$   354,568

		13-09		8,493		5,905		2,588		35		21		56		427,496		76,475		503,971		$   285,436		$   62,061		$   11,849		$   359,345		$   328,002

		FY13		95,854		60,837		35,017		382		278		660		5,642,937		608,502		6,251,439		$   3,664,386		$   758,758		$   80,907		$   4,504,051		$   4,094,626

		13-10		7,957		4,513		3,444		25		12		37		486,610		44,205		530,815		$   305,369		$   64,009		$   5,562		$   374,941		$   360,775

		13-11		7,290		4,148		3,142		37		23		60		504,057		56,949		561,006		$   309,792		$   68,293		$   7,774		$   385,859		$   360,535

		13-12		7,181		4,361		2,820		31		16		47		529,360		41,326		570,686		$   293,646		$   69,128		$   8,556		$   371,330		$   357,752

		14-01		7,480		4,762		2,718		39		25		64		470,124		45,202		515,326		$   365,090		$   62,808		$   11,087		$   438,985		$   410,369

		14-02		6,306		3,581		2,725		36		19		55		413,457		48,089		461,546		$   304,089		$   56,350		$   6,348		$   366,786		$   351,309

		14-03		7,872		4,912		2,960		48		27		75		555,209		48,804		604,013		$   306,873		$   73,117		$   7,047		$   387,037		$   358,017

		14-04		7,481		4,496		2,985		37		21		58		521,037		39,703		560,740		$   312,833		$   67,920		$   14,211		$   394,964		$   356,196

		14-05		8,494		5,239		3,255		25		19		44		501,738		55,569		557,307		$   319,693		$   67,507		$   6,569		$   393,769		$   359,904

		14-06		7,996		4,946		3,050		28		19		47		469,361		35,309		504,670		$   346,460		$   61,504		$   8,428		$   416,392		$   359,949

		14-07		8,545		5,602		2,943		11		13		24		468,079		53,042		521,121		$   365,531		$   63,141		$   8,687		$   437,359		$   377,349

		14-08		8,778		5,915		2,863		23		20		43		473,344		56,938		530,282		$   348,458		$   64,878		$   4,376		$   417,713		$   356,263

		14-09		8,594		5,577		3,017		28		16		44		487,774		51,285		539,059		$   352,447		$   65,630		$   10,096		$   428,173		$   356,413

		FY14		93,974		58,052		35,922		368		230		598		5,880,150		576,421		6,456,571		$   3,930,282		$   784,285		$   98,740		$   4,813,307		$   4,364,830

		14-10		9,392		6,186		3,206		28		7		35		625,723		60,447		686,170		$   354,794		$   83,292		$   4,967		$   443,053		$   394,916

		14-11		7,361		4,344		3,017		23		16		39		561,762		35,195		596,957		$   353,431		$   72,315		$   4,402		$   430,148		$   398,156

		14-12		6,864		3,551		3,313		28		18		46		515,066		40,555		555,621		$   344,862		$   67,321		$   4,154		$   416,336		$   397,758

		15-01		7,420		4,681		2,739		27		19		46		526,523		40,113		566,636		$   397,803		$   68,960		$   10,219		$   476,982		$   447,209

		15-02		6,079		3,544		2,535		22		10		32		464,949		33,183		498,132		$   347,299		$   60,411		$   3,299		$   411,008		$   389,608

		15-03		7,101		3,809		3,292		43		24		67		540,890		31,294		572,184		$   349,226		$   69,616		$   6,530		$   425,372		$   399,616

		15-04		7,602		4,099		3,503		31		17		48		533,356		39,446		572,802		$   348,046		$   69,683		$   7,359		$   425,089		$   397,649

		15-05		7,063		3,831		3,232		56		17		73		537,445		49,873		587,318		$   341,405		$   71,420		$   6,314		$   419,139		$   400,169

		15-06		9,069		6,193		2,876		30		18		48		493,505		43,931		537,436		$   345,079		$   65,431		$   7,621		$   418,131		$   397,299

		15-07		9,324		6,276		3,048		34		15		49		484,546		57,731		542,277		$   362,040		$   66,339		$   6,045		$   434,424		$   414,709

		15-08		8,777		6,008		2,769		26		8		34		452,700		47,361		500,061		$   351,316		$   60,946		$   7,902		$   420,164		$   393,408

		15-09		9,272		5,964		3,308		23		9		32		545,027		58,060		603,087		$   357,147		$   73,311		$   5,055		$   435,513		$   394,576

		FY15		95,324		58,486		36,838		371		178		549		6,281,492		537,189		6,818,681		$   4,252,449		$   829,044		$   73,867		$   5,155,360		$   4,825,075

		15-10		8,940		5,712		3,228		29		15		44		553,061		61,883		614,944		$   357,964		$   75,160		$   6,800		$   439,924		$   438,190

		15-11		7,418		4,266		3,152		38		20		58		509,770		35,901		545,671		$   349,633		$   66,441		$   13,964		$   430,039		$   433,174

		15-12		8,407		5,538		2,869		34		30		64		535,226		40,829		576,055		$   355,214		$   70,423		$   10,360		$   435,997		$   431,817

		16-01		8,237		5,457		2,780		38		24		62		458,223		41,233		499,456		$   403,057		$   60,940		$   21,924		$   485,921		$   484,234

		16-02		8,462		5,448		3,014		42		26		68		496,404		41,091		537,495		$   355,226		$   68,022		$   11,199		$   434,447		$   433,631

		16-03		7,469		4,457		3,012		49		22		71		461,607		55,560		517,167		$   364,935		$   63,855		$   14,316		$   443,105		$   444,436

		16-04		8,148		5,091		3,057		29		12		41		471,984		43,703		515,687		$   365,736		$   64,105		$   13,146		$   442,987		$   422,640

		16-05		8,114		5,103		3,011		37		25		62		437,201		38,430		475,631		$   364,890		$   67,796		$   8,228		$   440,915		$   422,149

		16-06		9,205		6,226		2,979		37		13		50		465,444		57,618		523,062		$   363,456		$   76,284		$   9,964		$   449,704		$   415,361

		16-07		8,546		5,938		2,608		30		10		40		424,287		51,400		475,687		$   384,572		$   67,637		$   13,073		$   465,281		$   431,685

		16-08		8,838		5,983		2,855		19		8		27		418,310		31,883		450,193		$   381,334		$   64,290		$   10,361		$   455,984		$   414,164

		16-09		9,076		6,007		3,069		27		13		40		522,594		58,523		581,117		$   376,986		$   83,288		$   8,459		$   468,734		$   416,181

		FY16		100,860		65,226		35,634		409		218		627		5,754,111		558,054		6,312,165		$   4,423,003		$   828,240		$   141,794		$   5,393,037		$   5,187,662

		16-10		9,580		6,171		3,409		31		13		44		523,272		56,481		579,753		$   370,727		$   83,688		$   10,941		$   465,356		$   444,831

		16-11		7,385		4,339		3,046		39		16		55		511,155		45,330		556,485		$   368,650		$   79,559		$   12,244		$   460,454		$   437,534

		16-12		7,315		4,455		2,860		42		23		65		513,453		28,934		542,387		$   353,039		$   77,870		$   13,590		$   444,500		$   435,627

		17-01		7,369		4,692		2,677		38		16		54		441,721		51,531		493,252		$   391,545		$   70,053		$   13,733		$   475,332		$   492,691

		17-02		7,386		4,593		2,793		32		10		42		491,491		31,862		523,353		$   343,434		$   75,183		$   14,497		$   433,114		$   446,485

		17-03		8,353		5,196		3,157		45		21		66		486,359		44,561		530,920		$   349,043		$   76,561		$   12,217		$   437,821		$   454,431

		17-04		7,196		4,208		2,988		25		13		38		434,626		49,999		484,625		$   352,297		$   69,912		$   14,572		$   436,781		$   455,154

		17-05		8,643		5,676		2,967		24		19		43		505,339		42,733		548,072		$   363,977		$   77,360		$   7,689		$   449,026		$   458,434

		17-06		8,395		5,391		3,004		37		20		57		459,824		39,296		499,120		$   363,011		$   71,770		$   12,171		$   446,951		$   451,330

		17-07		8,910		6,190		2,720		35		11		46		508,559		49,993		558,552		$   381,670		$   81,350		$   10,642		$   473,662		$   469,100

		17-08		8,430		5,268		3,162		18		8		26		514,755		58,847		573,602		$   366,885		$   82,507		$   9,969		$   459,361		$   449,553

		17-09		9,659		6,348		3,311		32		16		48		493,277		51,736		545,013		$   365,626		$   78,515		$   10,619		$   454,759		$   454,989

		FY17		98,621		62,527		36,094		398		186		584		5,883,831		551,303		6,435,134		$   4,369,905		$   924,328		$   142,884		$   5,437,117		$   5,450,158

		17-10		8,895		5,671		3,224		32		15		47		529,149		55,595		584,744		$   367,559		$   83,762		$   10,574		$   461,894		$   453,485

		17-11		8,746		5,083		3,663		33		14		47		552,450		51,038		603,488		$   367,157		$   85,961		$   10,950		$   464,068		$   448,981

		17-12		7,512		4,659		2,853		39		25		64		474,317		49,006		523,323		$   367,364		$   75,183		$   13,278		$   455,824		$   447,648

		18-01		8,114		5,203		2,911		38		22		60		493,347		37,726		531,073		$   414,943		$   75,348		$   12,689		$   502,980		$   490,865

		18-02		5,866		3,129		2,737		37		12		49		481,758		35,420		517,178		$   374,077		$   74,556		$   11,675		$   460,308		$   437,600

		18-03		8,968		5,667		3,301		56		24		80		557,985		56,480		614,465		$   372,683		$   88,962		$   14,395		$   476,039		$   449,271

		18-04		8,362		5,317		3,045		45		22		67		490,653		44,136		534,789		$   364,132		$   76,778		$   14,475		$   455,385		$   447,454

		18-05		9,854		6,580		3,274		35		15		50		525,621		66,701		592,322		$   368,924		$   84,448		$   8,618		$   461,990		$   449,513

		18-06		9,517		6,348		3,169		34		10		44		547,460		62,423		609,883		$   364,563		$   88,853		$   18,029		$   471,445		$   443,980

		18-07		8,950		6,121		2,829		31		14		45		513,573		53,552		567,125		$   386,877		$   80,334		$   9,241		$   476,451		$   457,301

		18-08		9,893		6,728		3,165		22		3		25		522,511		58,944		581,455		$   358,921		$   84,853		$   12,750		$   456,525		$   439,517

		18-09		7,617		3,982		3,635		23		6		29		508,639		47,434		556,073		$   366,385		$   78,779		$   8,328		$   453,492		$   449,923

		FY18		102,294		64,488		37,806		425		182		607		6,197,463		618,455		6,815,918		$   4,473,583		$   977,818		$   145,000		$   5,596,402		$   5,415,538

		18-10		8,977		5,042		3,935		42		11		53		555,796		47,404		603,200		$   368,424		$   86,679		$   9,312		$   464,414		$   439,755

		18-11		9,328		5,896		3,432		39		22		61		560,580		60,950		621,530		$   364,526		$   88,931		$   11,661		$   465,118		$   436,255

		18-12		8,289		5,209		3,080		29		26		55		537,520		49,668		587,188		$   368,933		$   84,187		$   15,299		$   468,419		$   433,555

		19-01		9,093		5,917		3,176		39		19		58		564,818		48,939		613,757		$   399,927		$   87,907		$   7,533		$   495,368		$   486,759

		19-02		6,874		3,910		2,964		44		14		58		483,192		45,447		528,639		$   358,430		$   75,622		$   15,872		$   449,924		$   440,153

		19-03		9,748		6,434		3,314		47		17		64		588,995		60,788		649,783		$   369,424		$   92,291		$   9,949		$   471,664		$   446,918

		19-04		9,318		5,920		3,398		40		23		63		546,360		47,750		594,110		$   376,077		$   86,203		$   11,933		$   474,213		$   443,879

		19-05		10,028		6,412		3,616		35		16		51		545,831		46,847		592,678		$   372,820		$   84,925		$   11,362		$   469,107		$   445,484

		19-06		10,397		7,226		3,171		25		12		37		459,955		63,342		523,297		$   372,805		$   76,426		$   6,668		$   455,899		$   443,703

		19-07		11,126		8,128		2,998		21		15		36		467,027		85,274		552,301		$   1,391,431		$   79,848		$   9,281		$   1,480,560		$   458,756

		19-08		11,219		7,897		3,322		25		12		37		553,631		64,289		617,920		$   372,016		$   89,078		$   10,063		$   471,157		$   442,658

		19-09		11,350		7,490		3,860		21		12		33		544,788		63,541		608,329		$   373,301		$   87,355		$   11,511		$   472,166		$   451,567

		FY19		115,747		75,481		40,266		407		199		606		6,408,493		684,239		7,092,732		$   5,488,112		$   1,019,452		$   130,444		$   6,638,008		$   5,369,442

		19-10		11,405		7,439		3,966		26		7		33		587,394		68,894		656,288		$   376,390		$   94,813		$   8,254		$   479,457		$   443,847

		19-11		10,567		6,950		3,617		38		21		59		497,326		65,126		562,452		$   371,814		$   80,343		$   14,462		$   466,619		$   442,476

		19-12		10,799		7,163		3,636		43		22		65		571,207		64,426		635,633		$   355,679		$   91,632		$   11,052		$   458,363		$   437,873

		20-01		8,900		5,512		3,388		37		7		44		467,518		48,571		516,089		$   403,281		$   73,567		$   11,408		$   488,256		$   489,930

		20-02		9,500		6,137		3,363		44		16		60		563,482		54,054		617,536		$   355,203		$   88,203		$   11,896		$   455,302		$   435,769

		20-03		7,155		4,524		2,631		56		15		71		407,753		40,230		447,983		$   355,611		$   64,679		$   12,477		$   432,767		$   448,307

		20-04		6,825		5,434		1,391		5		6		11		106,650		40,679		147,329		$   356,126		$   21,959		$   13,546		$   391,631		$   439,062

		20-05		9,113		6,791		2,322		12		1		13		239,109		59,885		298,994		$   366,576		$   43,415		$   6,709		$   416,699		$   442,524

		20-06		9,982		7,048		2,934		22		6		28		432,590		72,482		505,072		$   370,382		$   72,691		$   6,511		$   449,584		$   441,124

		20-07		10,386		7,095		3,291		15		6		21		492,331		63,481		555,812		$   383,522		$   79,728		$   9,406		$   472,656		$   455,070

		20-08		11,010		8,008		3,002		21		8		29		482,311		70,053		552,364		$   363,885		$   79,866		$   10,516		$   454,268		$   438,964

		20-09		9,382		5,998		3,384		24		6		30		496,914		42,887		539,801		$   363,457		$   76,881		$   10,830		$   451,167		$   444,960

		FY20		115,024		78,099		36,925		343		121		464		5,344,585		690,768		6,035,353		$   4,421,924		$   867,778		$   127,068		$   5,416,770		$   5,359,906

		20-10		9,918		6,338		3,580		27		5		32		530,193		64,444		594,637		$   357,018		$   85,818		$   15,367		$   458,202		$   417,907

		20-11		9,161		5,933		3,228		43		16		59		447,146		56,798		503,944		$   356,194		$   71,252		$   16,597		$   444,043		$   416,346

		20-12		8,567		5,599		2,968		33		21		54		514,125		56,903		571,028		$   360,755		$   82,548		$   13,621		$   456,924		$   415,613

		21-01		8,106		5,394		2,712		42		37		79		410,147		32,875		443,022		$   406,799		$   62,666		$   16,308		$   485,772		$   461,653

		21-02		5,574		3,276		2,298		29		8		37		391,524		32,589		424,113		$   362,545		$   60,032		$   11,560		$   434,136		$   412,019

		21-03		9,478		5,841		3,637		63		12		75		587,673		60,809		648,482		$   364,948		$   92,762		$   14,935		$   472,645		$   417,032

		21-04		8,422		4,982		3,440		64		26		90		584,646		48,506		633,152		$   363,624		$   89,947		$   22,052		$   475,622		$   412,992

		21-05		8,584		4,699		3,885		39		24		63		604,767		48,673		653,440		$   364,450		$   92,139		$   10,042		$   466,632		$   416,142

		21-06		10,271		6,302		3,969		58		40		98		715,873		52,415		768,288		$   355,916		$   109,827		$   13,740		$   479,483		$   412,922

		21-07		10,967		6,976		3,991		39		26		65		739,634		57,092		796,726		$   385,909		$   113,194		$   19,397		$   518,501		$   475,086

		21-08		10,267		6,457		3,810		39		24		63		681,726		62,303		744,029		$   371,107		$   106,448		$   10,414		$   487,968		$   456,439

		21-09		11,008		6,799		4,209		30		15		45		644,601		64,298		708,899		$   366,234		$   101,213		$   11,278		$   478,726		$   459,589

		FY21		110,323		68,596		41,727		506		254		760		6,852,055		637,705		7,489,760		$   4,415,499		$   1,067,845		$   175,311		$   5,658,655		$   5,173,740

		21-10		11,028		5,990		5,038		38		9		47		827,016		59,895		886,911		$   365,719		$   126,083		$   14,454		$   506,256		$   523,001

		21-11		11,351		6,301		5,050		61		23		84		889,557		55,886		945,443		$   364,559		$   134,318		$   10,780		$   509,657		$   521,750

		21-12		9,239		4,594		4,645		64		29		93		857,034		60,438		917,472		$   377,826		$   129,442		$   21,518		$   528,786		$   519,090

		22-01		10,110		6,214		3,896		57		12		69		656,523		61,178		717,701		$   465,220		$   102,465		$   14,951		$   582,636		$   559,938

		22-02		8,071		4,659		3,412		74		30		104		711,620		38,372		749,992		$   415,328		$   106,303		$   15,015		$   536,646		$   516,525

		22-03		11,009		6,440		4,569		92		51		143		861,224		45,043		906,267		$   422,284		$   128,512		$   19,200		$   569,996		$   523,868

		22-04		8,226		4,333		3,893		42		21		63		626,717		51,551		678,268		$   419,538		$   96,889		$   20,210		$   536,637		$   518,589

		22-05		9,853		5,382		4,471		47		14		61		821,711		48,173		869,884		$   445,946		$   123,091		$   12,526		$   581,562		$   523,047

		22-06		11,176		7,086		4,090		75		25		100		680,783		59,556		740,339		$   470,937		$   105,568		$   14,220		$   590,725		$   524,753

		22-07		10,470		7,019		3,451		42		17		59		624,240		48,068		672,308		$   445,462		$   96,059		$   18,275		$   559,796		$   544,934

		22-08		10,372		6,364		4,008		26		11		37		650,494		75,659		726,153		$   391,848		$   103,607		$   52,578		$   548,034		$   527,489

		22-09		11,593		7,550		4,043		28		6		34		684,881		55,986		740,867		$   1,064,673		$   105,012		$   20,190		$   1,189,875		$   530,515

		FY22		122,498		71,932		50,566		646		248		894		8,891,800		659,805		9,551,605		$   5,649,340		$   1,357,351		$   233,916		$   7,240,607		$   6,333,500

		22-10		11,074		7,052		4,022		37		7		44		680,941		77,890		758,831		$   447,219		$   108,499		$   21,143		$   576,861		$   534,767

		22-11		9,429		5,317		4,112		63		20		83		724,646		49,342		773,988		$   433,357		$   110,308		$   17,685		$   561,351		$   535,497

		22-12		8,873		5,088		3,785		62		24		86		702,536		49,392		751,928		$   460,339		$   106,591		$   18,723		$   585,653		$   539,191

		23-01		9,627		6,161		3,466		65		38		103		647,299		74,093		721,392		$   494,058		$   103,647		$   26,081		$   623,786		$   581,212

		23-02		8,573		5,420		3,153		48		19		67		598,884		40,646		639,530		$   457,617		$   90,214		$   24,660		$   572,491		$   530,150

		23-03		9,579		5,682		3,897		72		23		95		653,576		57,900		711,476		$   480,798		$   101,369		$   24,527		$   606,693		$   566,565

		23-04				0								0						0						$   -				$   552,601

		23-05				0								0						0						$   -				$   553,669

		23-06				0								0						0						$   -				$   560,215

		23-07				0								0						0						$   -				$   578,402

		23-08				0								0						0						$   -				$   556,399

		23-09				0								0						0						$   -				$   555,081

		FY23		57,155		34,720		22,435		347		131		478		4,007,882		349,263		4,357,145		$   2,773,388		$   620,628		$   132,819		$   3,526,835		$   6,643,750





Monthly Report Data (2)

		Monthly Report Data

		YY-MM		OPERATIONS						International Operations						FUEL FLOWAGE (gallons)						REVENUE										% change from prior month								% change from prior year

				Total		VFR		IFR		inbound		outbound		Total		Jet-A		AvGas		Total		Real Estate		Fuel		Other		Total		Budget		Revenue		Total Ops		Fuel		Int'l Ops		Revenue		Total Ops		Fuel		Int'l Ops

		09-10

		09-11

		09-12

		10-01

		10-02

		10-03

		10-04

		10-05

		10-06

		10-07

		10-08

		10-09

		10-10

		10-11

		10-12

		11-01

		11-02

		11-03

		11-04

		11-05

		11-06

		11-07

		11-08

		11-09

		11-10		8,511		5,609		2,902		27		7		34		398,445		56,310		454,755		$   285,776		$   55,203		$   4,283		$   345,262		$   350,316

		11-11		7,447		4,507		2,940		32		17		49		448,518		44,491		493,009		$   284,963		$   60,437		$   3,761		$   349,162		$   348,985		1%		-13%		8%		44%

		11-12		7,043		4,012		3,031		29		16		45		455,097		40,750		495,847		$   290,484		$   60,790		$   6,116		$   357,390		$   351,605		2%		-5%		1%		-8%

		12-01		7,478		4,600		2,878		34		17		51		385,946		48,633		434,579		$   333,364		$   53,393		$   15,644		$   402,401		$   398,721		13%		6%		-12%		13%

		12-02		7,745		4,652		3,093		25		10		35		402,350		48,872		451,222		$   289,743		$   55,726		$   3,919		$   349,387		$   345,093		-13%		4%		4%		-31%

		12-03		8,196		4,939		3,257		33		21		54		468,123		54,367		522,490		$   287,985		$   64,288		$   6,040		$   358,313		$   344,618		3%		6%		16%		54%

		12-04		8,010		4,760		3,250		38		16		54		414,178		36,194		450,372		$   294,422		$   55,869		$   6,034		$   356,326		$   347,328		-1%		-2%		-14%		0%

		12-05		8,259		5,102		3,157		26		18		44		469,885		68,292		538,177		$   290,342		$   65,208		$   7,269		$   362,819		$   346,465		2%		3%		19%		-19%

		12-06		8,431		5,612		2,819		24		15		39		479,389		44,165		523,554		$   291,734		$   64,952		$   4,501		$   361,186		$   345,936		-0%		2%		-3%		-11%

		12-07		8,560		5,807		2,753		31		14		45		423,797		59,520		483,317		$   314,171		$   59,530		$   4,153		$   377,854		$   345,411		5%		2%		-8%		15%

		12-08		8,533		5,609		2,924		28		22		50		448,320		49,981		498,301		$   294,577		$   61,341		$   5,359		$   361,278		$   344,373		-4%		-0%		3%		11%

		12-09		7,816		4,785		3,031		22		15		37		465,035		32,515		497,550		$   294,702		$   60,931		$   2,612		$   358,245		$   338,879		-1%		-8%		-0%		-26%

		12-10		8,551		5,135		3,416		36		44		80		579,033		59,855		638,888		$   393,907		$   74,838		$   4,774		$   473,520		$   339,385		32%		9%		28%		116%		37%		0%		40%		135%

		12-11		8,592		5,718		2,874		30		33		63		516,596		48,664		565,260		$   287,933		$   69,386		$   4,567		$   361,886		$   340,770		-24%		0%		-12%		-21%		4%		15%		15%		29%

		12-12		7,119		4,389		2,730		29		17		46		471,338		47,760		519,098		$   287,662		$   63,856		$   3,952		$   355,470		$   341,839		-2%		-17%		-8%		-27%		-1%		1%		5%		2%

		13-01		6,998		3,988		3,010		37		17		54		432,665		33,621		466,286		$   337,740		$   56,276		$   13,151		$   407,167		$   342,814		15%		-2%		-10%		17%		1%		-6%		7%		6%

		13-02		7,301		4,469		2,832		30		23		53		423,262		40,501		463,763		$   287,724		$   56,620		$   6,145		$   350,489		$   382,023		-14%		4%		-1%		-2%		0%		-6%		3%		51%

		13-03		7,976		5,018		2,958		32		30		62		495,648		45,739		541,387		$   290,343		$   65,602		$   5,680		$   361,625		$   333,966		3%		9%		17%		17%		1%		-3%		4%		15%

		13-04		7,531		4,230		3,301		25		12		37		467,864		50,248		518,112		$   291,581		$   63,128		$   8,426		$   363,135		$   335,163		0%		-6%		-4%		-40%		2%		-6%		15%		-31%

		13-05		7,802		4,465		3,337		36		21		57		516,398		56,712		573,110		$   293,757		$   69,406		$   2,819		$   365,982		$   335,210		1%		4%		11%		54%		1%		-6%		6%		30%

		13-06		9,043		6,252		2,791		35		23		58		453,934		48,215		502,149		$   297,302		$   60,873		$   5,033		$   363,209		$   334,670		-1%		16%		-12%		2%		1%		7%		-4%		49%

		13-07		8,041		5,375		2,666		31		20		51		445,238		52,103		497,341		$   314,736		$   60,316		$   7,389		$   382,441		$   326,216		5%		-11%		-1%		-12%		1%		-6%		3%		13%

		13-08		8,407		5,893		2,514		26		17		43		413,465		48,609		462,074		$   296,266		$   56,395		$   7,122		$   359,783		$   354,568		-6%		5%		-7%		-16%		-0%		-1%		-7%		-14%

		13-09		8,493		5,905		2,588		35		21		56		427,496		76,475		503,971		$   285,436		$   62,061		$   11,849		$   359,345		$   328,002		-0%		1%		9%		30%		0%		9%		1%		51%

		13-10		7,957		4,513		3,444		25		12		37		486,610		44,205		530,815		$   305,369		$   64,009		$   5,562		$   374,941		$   360,775		4%		-6%		5%		-34%		-21%		-7%		-17%		-54%

		13-11		7,290		4,148		3,142		37		23		60		504,057		56,949		561,006		$   309,792		$   68,293		$   7,774		$   385,859		$   360,535		3%		-8%		6%		62%		7%		-15%		-1%		-5%

		13-12		7,181		4,361		2,820		31		16		47		529,360		41,326		570,686		$   293,646		$   69,128		$   8,556		$   371,330		$   357,752		-4%		-1%		2%		-22%		4%		1%		10%		2%

		14-01		7,480		4,762		2,718		39		25		64		470,124		45,202		515,326		$   365,090		$   62,808		$   11,087		$   438,985		$   410,369		18%		4%		-10%		36%		8%		7%		11%		19%

		14-02		6,306		3,581		2,725		36		19		55		413,457		48,089		461,546		$   304,089		$   56,350		$   6,348		$   366,786		$   351,309		-16%		-16%		-10%		-14%		5%		-14%		-0%		4%

		14-03		7,872		4,912		2,960		48		27		75		555,209		48,804		604,013		$   306,873		$   73,117		$   7,047		$   387,037		$   358,017		6%		25%		31%		36%		7%		-1%		12%		21%

		14-04		7,481		4,496		2,985		37		21		58		521,037		39,703		560,740		$   312,833		$   67,920		$   14,211		$   394,964		$   356,196		2%		-5%		-7%		-23%		9%		-1%		8%		57%

		14-05		8,494		5,239		3,255		25		19		44		501,738		55,569		557,307		$   319,693		$   67,507		$   6,569		$   393,769		$   359,904		-0%		14%		-1%		-24%		8%		9%		-3%		-23%

		14-06		7,996		4,946		3,050		28		19		47		469,361		35,309		504,670		$   346,460		$   61,504		$   8,428		$   416,392		$   359,949		6%		-6%		-9%		7%		15%		-12%		1%		-19%

		14-07		8,545		5,602		2,943		11		13		24		468,079		53,042		521,121		$   365,531		$   63,141		$   8,687		$   437,359		$   377,349		5%		7%		3%		-49%		14%		6%		5%		-53%

		14-08		8,778		5,915		2,863		23		20		43		473,344		56,938		530,282		$   348,458		$   64,878		$   4,376		$   417,713		$   356,263		-4%		3%		2%		79%		16%		4%		15%		0%

		14-09		8,594		5,577		3,017		28		16		44		487,774		51,285		539,059		$   352,447		$   65,630		$   10,096		$   428,173		$   356,413		3%		-2%		2%		2%		19%		1%		7%		-21%

		14-10		9,392		6,186		3,206		28		7		35		625,723		60,447		686,170		$   354,794		$   83,292		$   4,967		$   443,053		$   394,916		3%		9%		27%		-20%		18%		18%		29%		-5%

		14-11		7,361		4,344		3,017		23		16		39		561,762		35,195		596,957		$   353,431		$   72,315		$   4,402		$   430,148		$   398,156		-3%		-22%		-13%		11%		11%		1%		6%		-35%

		14-12		6,864		3,551		3,313		28		18		46		515,066		40,555		555,621		$   344,862		$   67,321		$   4,154		$   416,336		$   397,758		-3%		-7%		-7%		18%		12%		-4%		-3%		-2%

		15-01		7,420		4,681		2,739		27		19		46		526,523		40,113		566,636		$   397,803		$   68,960		$   10,219		$   476,982		$   447,209		15%		8%		2%		0%		9%		-1%		10%		-28%

		15-02		6,079		3,544		2,535		22		10		32		464,949		33,183		498,132		$   347,299		$   60,411		$   3,299		$   411,008		$   389,608		-14%		-18%		-12%		-30%		12%		-4%		8%		-42%

		15-03		7,101		3,809		3,292		43		24		67		540,890		31,294		572,184		$   349,226		$   69,616		$   6,530		$   425,372		$   399,616		3%		17%		15%		109%		10%		-10%		-5%		-11%

		15-04		7,602		4,099		3,503		31		17		48		533,356		39,446		572,802		$   348,046		$   69,683		$   7,359		$   425,089		$   397,649		-0%		7%		0%		-28%		8%		2%		2%		-17%

		15-05		7,063		3,831		3,232		56		17		73		537,445		49,873		587,318		$   341,405		$   71,420		$   6,314		$   419,139		$   400,169		-1%		-7%		3%		52%		6%		-17%		5%		66%

		15-06		9,069		6,193		2,876		30		18		48		493,505		43,931		537,436		$   345,079		$   65,431		$   7,621		$   418,131		$   397,299		-0%		28%		-8%		-34%		0%		13%		6%		2%

		15-07		9,324		6,276		3,048		34		15		49		484,546		57,731		542,277		$   362,040		$   66,339		$   6,045		$   434,424		$   414,709		4%		3%		1%		2%		-1%		9%		4%		104%

		15-08		8,777		6,008		2,769		26		8		34		452,700		47,361		500,061		$   351,316		$   60,946		$   7,902		$   420,164		$   393,408		-3%		-6%		-8%		-31%		1%		-0%		-6%		-21%

		15-09		9,272		5,964		3,308		23		9		32		545,027		58,060		603,087		$   357,147		$   73,311		$   5,055		$   435,513		$   394,576		4%		6%		21%		-6%		2%		8%		12%		-27%

		15-10		8,940		5,712		3,228		29		15		44		553,061		61,883		614,944		$   357,964		$   75,160		$   6,800		$   439,924		$   438,190		1%		-4%		2%		38%		-1%		-5%		-10%		26%

		15-11		7,418		4,266		3,152		38		20		58		509,770		35,901		545,671		$   349,633		$   66,441		$   13,964		$   430,039		$   433,174		-2%		-17%		-11%		32%		-0%		1%		-9%		49%

		15-12		8,407		5,538		2,869		34		30		64		535,226		40,829		576,055		$   355,214		$   70,423		$   10,360		$   435,997		$   431,817		1%		13%		6%		10%		5%		22%		4%		39%

		16-01		8,237		5,457		2,780		38		24		62		458,223		41,233		499,456		$   403,057		$   60,940		$   21,924		$   485,921		$   484,234		11%		-2%		-13%		-3%		2%		11%		-12%		35%

		16-02		8,462		5,448		3,014		42		26		68		496,404		41,091		537,495		$   355,226		$   68,022		$   11,199		$   434,447		$   433,631		-11%		3%		8%		10%		6%		39%		8%		113%

		16-03		7,469		4,457		3,012		49		22		71		461,607		55,560		517,167		$   364,935		$   63,855		$   14,316		$   443,105		$   444,436		2%		-12%		-4%		4%		4%		5%		-10%		6%

		16-04		8,148		5,091		3,057		29		12		41		471,984		43,703		515,687		$   365,736		$   64,105		$   13,146		$   442,987		$   422,640		-0%		9%		-0%		-42%		4%		7%		-10%		-15%

		16-05		8,114		5,103		3,011		37		25		62		437,201		38,430		475,631		$   364,890		$   67,796		$   8,228		$   440,915		$   422,149		-0%		-0%		-8%		51%		5%		15%		-19%		-15%

		16-06		9,205		6,226		2,979		37		13		50		465,444		57,618		523,062		$   363,456		$   76,284		$   9,964		$   449,704		$   415,361		2%		13%		10%		-19%		8%		1%		-3%		4%

		16-07		8,546		5,938		2,608		30		10		40		424,287		51,400		475,687		$   384,572		$   67,637		$   13,073		$   465,281		$   431,685		3%		-7%		-9%		-20%		7%		-8%		-12%		-18%

		16-08		8,838		5,983		2,855		19		8		27		418,310		31,883		450,193		$   381,334		$   64,290		$   10,361		$   455,984		$   414,164		-2%		3%		-5%		-33%		9%		1%		-10%		-21%

		16-09		9,076		6,007		3,069		27		13		40		522,594		58,523		581,117		$   376,986		$   83,288		$   8,459		$   468,734		$   416,181		3%		3%		29%		48%		8%		-2%		-4%		25%

		16-10		9,580		6,171		3,409		31		13		44		523,272		56,481		579,753		$   370,727		$   83,688		$   10,941		$   465,356		$   444,831		-1%		6%		-0%		10%		6%		7%		-6%		0%

		16-11		7,385		4,339		3,046		39		16		55		511,155		45,330		556,485		$   368,650		$   79,559		$   12,244		$   460,454		$   437,534		-1%		-23%		-4%		25%		7%		-0%		2%		-5%

		16-12		7,315		4,455		2,860		42		23		65		513,453		28,934		542,387		$   353,039		$   77,870		$   13,590		$   444,500		$   435,627		-3%		-1%		-3%		18%		2%		-13%		-6%		2%

		17-01		7,369		4,692		2,677		38		16		54		441,721		51,531		493,252		$   391,545		$   70,053		$   13,733		$   475,332		$   492,691		7%		1%		-9%		-17%		-2%		-11%		-1%		-13%

		17-02		7,386		4,593		2,793		32		10		42		491,491		31,862		523,353		$   343,434		$   75,183		$   14,497		$   433,114		$   446,485		-9%		0%		6%		-22%		-0%		-13%		-3%		-38%

		17-03		8,353		5,196		3,157		45		21		66		486,359		44,561		530,920		$   349,043		$   76,561		$   12,217		$   437,821		$   454,431		1%		13%		1%		57%		-1%		12%		3%		-7%

		17-04		7,196		4,208		2,988		25		13		38		434,626		49,999		484,625		$   352,297		$   69,912		$   14,572		$   436,781		$   455,154		-0%		-14%		-9%		-42%		-1%		-12%		-6%		-7%

		17-05		8,643		5,676		2,967		24		19		43		505,339		42,733		548,072		$   363,977		$   77,360		$   7,689		$   449,026		$   458,434		3%		20%		13%		13%		2%		7%		15%		-31%

		17-06		8,395		5,391		3,004		37		20		57		459,824		39,296		499,120		$   363,011		$   71,770		$   12,171		$   446,951		$   451,330		-0%		-3%		-9%		33%		-1%		-9%		-5%		14%

		17-07		8,910		6,190		2,720		35		11		46		508,559		49,993		558,552		$   381,670		$   81,350		$   10,642		$   473,662		$   469,100		6%		6%		12%		-19%		2%		4%		17%		15%

		17-08		8,430		5,268		3,162		18		8		26		514,755		58,847		573,602		$   366,885		$   82,507		$   9,969		$   459,361		$   449,553		-3%		-5%		3%		-43%		1%		-5%		27%		-4%

		17-09		9,659		6,348		3,311		32		16		48		493,277		51,736		545,013		$   365,626		$   78,515		$   10,619		$   454,759		$   454,989		-1%		15%		-5%		85%		-3%		6%		-6%		20%

		17-10		8,895		5,671		3,224		32		15		47		529,149		55,595		584,744		$   367,559		$   83,762		$   10,574		$   461,894		$   453,485		2%		-8%		7%		-2%		-1%		-7%		1%		7%

		17-11		8,746		5,083		3,663		33		14		47		552,450		51,038		603,488		$   367,157		$   85,961		$   10,950		$   464,068		$   448,981		0%		-2%		3%		0%		1%		18%		8%		-15%

		17-12		7,512		4,659		2,853		39		25		64		474,317		49,006		523,323		$   367,364		$   75,183		$   13,278		$   455,824		$   447,648		-2%		-14%		-13%		36%		3%		3%		-4%		-2%

		18-01		8,114		5,203		2,911		38		22		60		493,347		37,726		531,073		$   414,943		$   75,348		$   12,689		$   502,980		$   490,865		10%		8%		1%		-6%		6%		10%		8%		11%

		18-02		5,866		3,129		2,737		37		12		49		481,758		35,420		517,178		$   374,077		$   74,556		$   11,675		$   460,308		$   437,600		-8%		-28%		-3%		-18%		6%		-21%		-1%		17%

		18-03		8,968		5,667		3,301		56		24		80		557,985		56,480		614,465		$   372,683		$   88,962		$   14,395		$   476,039		$   449,271		3%		53%		19%		63%		9%		7%		16%		21%

		18-04		8,362		5,317		3,045		45		22		67		490,653		44,136		534,789		$   364,132		$   76,778		$   14,475		$   455,385		$   447,454		-4%		-7%		-13%		-16%		4%		16%		10%		76%

		18-05		9,854		6,580		3,274		35		15		50		525,621		66,701		592,322		$   368,924		$   84,448		$   8,618		$   461,990		$   449,513		1%		18%		11%		-25%		3%		14%		8%		16%

		18-06		9,517		6,348		3,169		34		10		44		547,460		62,423		609,883		$   364,563		$   88,853		$   18,029		$   471,445		$   443,980		2%		-3%		3%		-12%		5%		13%		22%		-23%

		18-07		8,950		6,121		2,829		31		14		45		513,573		53,552		567,125		$   386,877		$   80,334		$   9,241		$   476,451		$   457,301		1%		-6%		-7%		2%		1%		0%		2%		-2%

		18-08		9,893		6,728		3,165		22		3		25		522,511		58,944		581,455		$   358,921		$   84,853		$   12,750		$   456,525		$   439,517		-4%		11%		3%		-44%		-1%		17%		1%		-4%

		18-09		7,617		3,982		3,635		23		6		29		508,639		47,434		556,073		$   366,385		$   78,779		$   8,328		$   453,492		$   449,923		-1%		-23%		-4%		16%		-0%		-21%		2%		-40%

		18-10		8,977		5,042		3,935		42		11		53		555,796		47,404		603,200		$   368,424		$   86,679		$   9,312		$   464,414		$   439,755		2%		18%		8%		83%		1%		1%		3%		13%

		18-11		9,328		5,896		3,432		39		22		61		560,580		60,950		621,530		$   364,526		$   88,931		$   11,661		$   465,118		$   436,255		0%		4%		3%		15%		0%		7%		3%		30%

		18-12		8,289		5,209		3,080		29		26		55		537,520		49,668		587,188		$   368,933		$   84,187		$   15,299		$   468,419		$   433,555		1%		-11%		-6%		-10%		3%		10%		12%		-14%

		19-01		9,093		5,917		3,176		39		19		58		564,818		48,939		613,757		$   399,927		$   87,907		$   7,533		$   495,368		$   486,759		6%		10%		5%		5%		-2%		12%		16%		-3%

		19-02		6,874		3,910		2,964		44		14		58		483,192		45,447		528,639		$   358,430		$   75,622		$   15,872		$   449,924		$   440,153		-9%		-24%		-14%		0%		-2%		17%		2%		18%

		19-03		9,748		6,434		3,314		47		17		64		588,995		60,788		649,783		$   369,424		$   92,291		$   9,949		$   471,664		$   446,918		5%		42%		23%		10%		-1%		9%		6%		-20%

		19-04		9,318		5,920		3,398		40		23		63		546,360		47,750		594,110		$   376,077		$   86,203		$   11,933		$   474,213		$   443,879		1%		-4%		-9%		-2%		4%		11%		11%		-6%

		19-05		10,028		6,412		3,616		35		16		51		545,831		46,847		592,678		$   372,820		$   84,925		$   11,362		$   469,107		$   445,484		-1%		8%		-0%		-19%		2%		2%		0%		2%

		19-06		10,397		7,226		3,171		25		12		37		459,955		63,342		523,297		$   372,805		$   76,426		$   6,668		$   455,899		$   443,703		-3%		4%		-12%		-27%		-3%		9%		-14%		-16%

		19-07		11,126		8,128		2,998		21		15		36		467,027		85,274		552,301		$   1,391,431		$   79,848		$   9,281		$   1,480,560		$   458,756		225%		7%		6%		-3%		211%		24%		-3%		-20%

		19-08		11,219		7,897		3,322		25		12		37		553,631		64,289		617,920		$   372,016		$   89,078		$   10,063		$   471,157		$   442,658		-68%		1%		12%		3%		3%		13%		6%		48%

		19-09		11,350		7,490		3,860		21		12		33		544,788		63,541		608,329		$   373,301		$   87,355		$   11,511		$   472,166		$   451,567		0%		1%		-2%		-11%		4%		49%		9%		14%

		19-10		11,405		7,439		3,966		26		7		33		587,394		68,894		656,288		$   376,390		$   94,813		$   8,254		$   479,457		$   443,847		2%		0%		8%		0%		3%		27%		9%		-38%

		19-11		10,567		6,950		3,617		38		21		59		497,326		65,126		562,452		$   371,814		$   80,343		$   14,462		$   466,619		$   442,476		-3%		-7%		-14%		79%		0%		13%		-10%		-3%

		19-12		10,799		7,163		3,636		43		22		65		571,207		64,426		635,633		$   355,679		$   91,632		$   11,052		$   458,363		$   437,873		-2%		2%		13%		10%		-2%		30%		8%		18%

		20-01		8,900		5,512		3,388		37		7		44		467,518		48,571		516,089		$   403,281		$   73,567		$   11,408		$   488,256		$   489,930		7%		-18%		-19%		-32%		-1%		-2%		-16%		-24%

		20-02		9,500		6,137		3,363		44		16		60		563,482		54,054		617,536		$   355,203		$   88,203		$   11,896		$   455,302		$   435,769		-7%		7%		20%		36%		1%		38%		17%		3%

		20-03		7,155		4,524		2,631		56		15		71		407,753		40,230		447,983		$   355,611		$   64,679		$   12,477		$   432,767		$   448,307		-5%		-25%		-27%		18%		-8%		-27%		-31%		11%

		20-04		6,825		5,434		1,391		5		6		11		106,650		40,679		147,329		$   356,126		$   21,959		$   13,546		$   391,631		$   439,062		-10%		-5%		-67%		-85%		-17%		-27%		-75%		-83%

		20-05		9,113		6,791		2,322		12		1		13		239,109		59,885		298,994		$   366,576		$   43,415		$   6,709		$   416,699		$   442,524		6%		34%		103%		18%		-11%		-9%		-50%		-75%

		20-06		9,982		7,048		2,934		22		6		28		432,590		72,482		505,072		$   370,382		$   72,691		$   6,511		$   449,584		$   441,124		8%		10%		69%		115%		-1%		-4%		-3%		-24%

		20-07		10,386		7,095		3,291		15		6		21		492,331		63,481		555,812		$   383,522		$   79,728		$   9,406		$   472,656		$   455,070		5%		4%		10%		-25%		-68%		-7%		1%		-42%

		20-08		11,010		8,008		3,002		21		8		29		482,311		70,053		552,364		$   363,885		$   79,866		$   10,516		$   454,268		$   438,964		-4%		6%		-1%		38%		-4%		-2%		-11%		-22%

		20-09		9,382		5,998		3,384		24		6		30		496,914		42,887		539,801		$   363,457		$   76,881		$   10,830		$   451,167		$   444,960		-1%		-15%		-2%		3%		-4%		-17%		-11%		-9%

		20-10		9,918		6,338		3,580		27		5		32		530,193		64,444		594,637		$   357,018		$   85,818		$   15,367		$   458,202		$   417,907		2%		6%		10%		7%		-4%		-13%		-9%		-3%

		20-11		9,161		5,933		3,228		43		16		59		447,146		56,798		503,944		$   356,194		$   71,252		$   16,597		$   444,043		$   416,346		-3%		-8%		-15%		84%		-5%		-13%		-10%		0%

		20-12		8,567		5,599		2,968		33		21		54		514,125		56,903		571,028		$   360,755		$   82,548		$   13,621		$   456,924		$   415,613		3%		-6%		13%		-8%		-0%		-21%		-10%		-17%

		21-01		8,106		5,394		2,712		42		37		79		410,147		32,875		443,022		$   406,799		$   62,666		$   16,308		$   485,772		$   461,653		6%		-5%		-22%		46%		-1%		-9%		-14%		80%

		21-02		5,574		3,276		2,298		29		8		37		391,524		32,589		424,113		$   362,545		$   60,032		$   11,560		$   434,136		$   412,019		-11%		-31%		-4%		-53%		-5%		-41%		-31%		-38%

		21-03		9,478		5,841		3,637		63		12		75		587,673		60,809		648,482		$   364,948		$   92,762		$   14,935		$   472,645		$   417,032		9%		70%		53%		103%		9%		32%		45%		6%

		21-04		8,422		4,982		3,440		64		26		90		584,646		48,506		633,152		$   363,624		$   89,947		$   22,052		$   475,622		$   412,992		1%		-11%		-2%		20%		21%		23%		330%		718%

		21-05		8,584		4,699		3,885		39		24		63		604,767		48,673		653,440		$   364,450		$   92,139		$   10,042		$   466,632		$   416,142		-2%		2%		3%		-30%		12%		-6%		119%		385%

		21-06		10,271		6,302		3,969		58		40		98		715,873		52,415		768,288		$   355,916		$   109,827		$   13,740		$   479,483		$   412,922		3%		20%		18%		56%		7%		3%		52%		250%

		21-07		10,967		6,976		3,991		39		26		65		739,634		57,092		796,726		$   385,909		$   113,194		$   19,397		$   518,501		$   475,086		8%		7%		4%		-34%		10%		6%		43%		210%

		21-08		10,267		6,457		3,810		39		24		63		681,726		62,303		744,029		$   371,107		$   106,448		$   10,414		$   487,968		$   456,439		-6%		-6%		-7%		-3%		7%		-7%		35%		117%

		21-09		11,008		6,799		4,209		30		15		45		644,601		64,298		708,899		$   366,234		$   101,213		$   11,278		$   478,726		$   459,589		-2%		7%		-5%		-29%		6%		17%		31%		50%

		21-10		11,028		5,990		5,038		38		9		47		827,016		59,895		886,911		$   365,719		$   126,083		$   14,454		$   506,256		$   523,001		6%		0%		25%		4%		10%		11%		49%		47%

		21-11		11,351		6,301		5,050		61		23		84		889,557		55,886		945,443		$   364,559		$   134,318		$   10,780		$   509,657		$   521,750		1%		3%		7%		79%		15%		24%		88%		42%

		21-12		9,239		4,594		4,645		64		29		93		857,034		60,438		917,472		$   377,826		$   129,442		$   21,518		$   528,786		$   519,090		4%		-19%		-3%		11%		16%		8%		61%		72%

		22-01		10,110		6,214		3,896		57		12		69		656,523		61,178		717,701		$   465,220		$   102,465		$   14,951		$   582,636		$   559,938		10%		9%		-22%		-26%		20%		25%		62%		-13%

		22-02		8,071		4,659		3,412		74		30		104		711,620		38,372		749,992		$   415,328		$   106,303		$   15,015		$   536,646		$   516,525		-8%		-20%		4%		51%		24%		45%		77%		181%

		22-03		11,009		6,440		4,569		92		51		143		861,224		45,043		906,267		$   422,284		$   128,512		$   19,200		$   569,996		$   523,868		6%		36%		21%		38%		21%		16%		40%		91%

		22-04		8,226		4,333		3,893		42		21		63		626,717		51,551		678,268		$   419,538		$   96,889		$   20,210		$   536,637		$   518,589		-6%		-25%		-25%		-56%		13%		-2%		7%		-30%

		22-05		9,853		5,382		4,471		47		14		61		821,711		48,173		869,884		$   445,946		$   123,091		$   12,526		$   581,562		$   523,047		8%		20%		28%		-3%		25%		15%		33%		-3%

		22-06		11,176		7,086		4,090		75		25		100		680,783		59,556		740,339		$   470,937		$   105,568		$   14,220		$   590,725		$   524,753		2%		13%		-15%		64%		23%		9%		-4%		2%

		22-07		10,470		7,019		3,451		42		17		59		624,240		48,068		672,308		$   445,462		$   96,059		$   18,275		$   559,796		$   544,934		-5%		-6%		-9%		-41%		8%		-5%		-16%		-9%

		22-08		10,372		6,364		4,008		26		11		37		650,494		75,659		726,153		$   391,848		$   103,607		$   52,578		$   548,034		$   527,489		-2%		-1%		8%		-37%		12%		1%		-2%		-41%

		22-09		11,593		7,550		4,043		28		6		34		684,881		55,986		740,867		$   1,064,673		$   105,012		$   20,190		$   1,189,875		$   530,515		117%		12%		2%		-8%		149%		5%		5%		-24%

		22-10		11,074		7,052		4,022		37		7		44		680,941		77,890		758,831		$   447,219		$   108,499		$   21,143		$   576,861		$   534,767		-52%		-4%		2%		29%		14%		0%		-14%		-6%

		22-11		9,429		5,317		4,112		63		20		83		724,646		49,342		773,988		$   433,357		$   110,308		$   17,685		$   561,351		$   535,497		-3%		-15%		2%		89%		10%		-17%		-18%		-1%

		22-12		8,873		5,088		3,785		62		24		86		702,536		49,392		751,928		$   460,339		$   106,591		$   18,723		$   585,653		$   539,191		4%		-6%		-3%		4%		11%		-4%		-18%		-8%

		23-01		9,627		6,161		3,466		65		38		103		647,299		74,093		721,392		$   494,058		$   103,647		$   26,081		$   623,786		$   581,212		7%		8%		-4%		20%		7%		-5%		1%		49%

		23-02		8,573		5,420		3,153		48		19		67		598,884		40,646		639,530		$   457,617		$   90,214		$   24,660		$   572,491		$   530,150		-8%		-11%		-11%		-35%		7%		6%		-15%		-36%

		23-03		9,579		5,682		3,897		72		23		95		653,576		57,900		711,476		$   480,798		$   101,369		$   24,527		$   606,693		$   566,565		6%		12%		11%		42%		6%		-13%		-21%		-34%

		23-04		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   552,601

		23-05		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   553,669

		23-06		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   560,215

		23-07		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   578,402

		23-08		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   556,399

		23-09		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   555,081





Monthly Report Charts - 25 mo.



&"Arial,Bold"&18ADS by the Numbers	


International Operations (U.S. Customs - Aircraft Clearances)

Inbound	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	63	64	39	58	39	39	30	38	61	64	57	74	92	42	47	75	42	26	28	37	63	62	65	48	72	Outbound	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	12	26	24	40	26	24	15	9	23	29	12	30	51	21	14	25	17	11	6	7	20	24	38	19	23	







Revenue

Real Estate	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	364947.72	363623.97	364450.34	355916.18	385909.25	371106.78	366234.46	365719.36	364558.88	377825.54	465220.06	415328.18	422283.6	419538.08	445945.67	470937.35	445461.84	391848.45	1064673	447219.21	433357.16	460339.1	494057.5	457617.08	480797.72	Fuel	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	92762.2	89946.64	92139.12	109827.12	113194.44	106447.82	101212.9	126082.98	134318.18	129442.16	102465.18	106303.03999999999	128512.26	96889.2	123090.8	105568.42	96058.72	103607.34	105012.42	108498.98	110308.24	106590.72	103647.36	90213.96	101368.96000000001	Other	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	14935.310000000012	22051.510000000024	10042.179999999993	13739.73000000004	19397.179999999993	10413.629999999946	11278.399999999994	14453.940000000046	10779.960000000021	21518.139999999985	14950.550000000047	15014.89	19199.800000000061	20209.579999999973	12525.83000000006	14219.60000000002	18275.319999999978	52578.449999999983	20189.789999999964	21142.999999999927	17685.140000000058	18722.749999999971	26081.040000000023	24659.979999999996	24526.730000000054	







Aircraft Operations (Arrivals and Departures)

IFR	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	3637	3440	3885	3969	3991	3810	4209	5038	5050	4645	3896	3412	4569	3893	4471	4090	3451	4008	4043	4022	4112	3785	3466	3153	3897	VFR	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	5841	4982	4699	6302	6976	6457	6799	5990	6301	4594	6214	4659	6440	4333	5382	7086	7019	6364	7550	7052	5317	5088	6161	5420	5682	







Fuel Flowage (Gallons Received)

Jet-A	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	587673	584646	604767	715873	739634	681726	644601	827016	889557	857034	656523	711620	861224	626717	821711	680783	624240	650494	684881	680941	724646	702536	647299	598884	653576	AvGas	44256	44287	44317	44348	44378	44409	44440	44470	44501	44531	44562	44593	44621	44652	44682	44713	44743	44774	44805	44835	44866	44896	44927	44958	44986	60809	48506	48673	52415	57092	62303	64298	59895	55886	60438	61178	38372	45043	51551	48173	59556	48068	75659	55986	77890	49342	49392	74093	40646	57900	









4-year look-back graphs

		FY21		OPERATIONS								FUEL FLOWAGE								U.S. CUSTOMS

				Itinerant				Local		Total		Jet-A		AvGas		Total		Non-Public		Arrivals		Regulated Garbage		Overtime Clearances

				IFR		VFR

		Oct		3,580		6,055		283		9,918		530,193		64,444		594,637		32,106		27		15		16

		Nov		3,228		5,746		187		9,161		447,146		56,798		503,944		8,743		43		17		28

		Dec		2,968		5,338		261		8,567		514,125		56,903		571,028		32,550		33		15		24

		Jan		2,712		5,232		162		8,106		410,147		32,875		443,022		8,031		42		19		25

		Feb		2,298		3,106		170		5,574		391,524		32,589		424,113		8,200		29		11		17

		Mar		3,637		5,606		235		9,478		587,673		60,809		648,482		24,684		63		27		44

		Apr		3,440		4,777		205		8,422		584,646		48,506		633,152		16,317		64		27		24

		May		3,885		4,480		219		8,584		604,767		48,673		653,440		8,219		39		17		20

		Jun		3,969		6,113		189		10,271		715,873		52,415		768,288		28,335		58		21		40

		Jul		3,991		6,689		287		10,967		739,634		57,092		796,726		20,660		39		17

		Aug		3,810		6,257		200		10,267		681,726		62,303		744,029		28,547		39		12

		Sep		4,209		6,557		242		11,008		644,601		64,298		708,899		24,588		30		3

				41,727		65,956		2,640		110,323		6,852,055		637,705		7,489,760		240,980		506		201		238

		FY22

		Oct		5,038		5,771		219		11,028		827,016		59,895		886,911		23,943		38		16

		Nov		5,050		5,993		308		11,351		889,557		55,886		945,443		24,452		61		26

		Dec		4,645		4,406		188		9,239		857,034		60,438		917,472		12,451		64		26

		Jan		3,896		5,994		220		10,110		656,523		61,178		717,701		24,838		57		18

		Feb		3,412		4,599		60		8,071		711,620		38,372		749,992		22,063		74		32

		Mar		4,569		6,239		201		11,009		861,224		45,043		906,267		20,436		92		41		35

		Apr		3,893		4,176		157		8,226		626,717		51,551		678,268		24,146		42		27		12

		May		4,471		5,173		209		9,853		821,711		48,173		869,884		16,338		47		18		23

		Jun		4,090		6,897		189		11,176		680,783		59,556		740,339		24,012		75		30		30

		Jul		3,451		6,853		166		10,470		624,240		48,068		672,308		24,195		42		16		17

		Aug		4,008		6,069		295		10,372		650,494		75,659		726,153		24,324		26		9		11

		Sep		4,043		7,344		206		11,593		684,881		55,986		740,867		16,138		28		7		9

				50,566		69,514		2,418		122,498		8,891,800		659,805		9,551,605		257,336		646		266		137

		FY23

		Oct		4,022		6,894		158		11,074		680,941		77,890		758,831		28,283		37		14		11

		Nov		4,112		5,229		88		9,429		724,646		49,342		773,988		24,374		63		30		30

		Dec		3,785		5,030		58		8,873		702,536		49,392		751,928		16,510		62		27		27

		Jan		3,466		6,043		118		9,627		647,299		74,093		721,392		33,156		65		27		26

		Feb		3,153		5,311		109		8,573		598,884		40,646		639,530		8,497		48		17		17

		Mar		3,897		5,634		48		9,579		653,576		57,900		711,476		22,029		72		31		44

		Apr		0		0		0		0		0		0		0				0

		May		0		0		0		0		0		0		0				0

		Jun		0		0		0		0		0		0		0				0

		Jul		0		0		0		0		0		0		0				0

		Aug		0		0		0		0		0		0		0				0

		Sep		0		0		0		0		0		0		0				0

				22,435		34,141		579		57,155		4,007,882		349,263		4,357,145		132,849		347		146		155



Jet-A Volume (gallons)



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	555796	560580	537520	564818	483192	588995	546360	545831	459955	467027	553631	544788	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	587394	497326	571207	467518	563482	407753	106650	239109	432590	492331	482311	496914	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	530193	447146	514125	410147	391524	587673	584646	604767	715873	739634	681726	644601	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	827016	889557	857034	656523	711620	861224	626717	821711	680783	624240	650494	684881	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	680941	724646	702536	647299	598884	653576	







Monthly Fuel Flowage Revenue



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	86679.12	88931.24	84186.559999999998	87907.1	75622.259999999995	92290.82	86203.16	84924.6	76426.14	79848.06	89077.84	87355.1	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	94813.2	80342.720000000001	91631.82	73567.34	88203.12	64678.82	21959.26	43415.16	72691.039999999994	79728.479999999996	79866.48	76880.600000000006	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	85817.66	71251.600000000006	82547.92	62665.56	60031.82	92762.2	89946.64	92139.12	109827.12	113194.44	106447.82	101212.9	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	126082.98	134318.18	129442.16	102465.18	106303.03999999999	128512.26	96889.2	123090.8	105568.42	96058.72	103607.34	105012.42	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	108498.98	110308.24	106590.72	103647.36	90213.96	101368.96000000001	







Instrument (IFR) Operations



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	3935	3432	3080	3176	2964	3314	3398	3616	3171	2998	3322	3860	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	3966	3617	3636	3388	3363	2631	1391	2322	2934	3291	3002	3384	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	3580	3228	2968	2712	2298	3637	3440	3885	3969	3991	3810	4209	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	5038	5050	4645	3896	3412	4569	3893	4471	4090	3451	4008	4043	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	4022	4112	3785	3466	3153	3897	







Visual (VFR) Operations



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	5042	5896	5209	5917	3910	6434	5920	6412	7226	8128	7897	7490	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	7439	6950	7163	5512	6137	4524	5434	6791	7048	7095	8008	5998	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	6338	5933	5599	5394	3276	5841	4982	4699	6302	6976	6457	6799	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	5990	6301	4594	6214	4659	6440	4333	5382	7086	7019	6364	7550	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	7052	5317	5088	6161	5420	5682	







AvGas Volume (gallons)



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	47404	60950	49668	48939	45447	60788	47750	46847	63342	85274	64289	63541	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	68894	65126	64426	48571	54054	40230	40679	59885	72482	63481	70053	42887	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	64444	56798	56903	32875	32589	60809	48506	48673	52415	57092	62303	64298	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	59895	55886	60438	61178	38372	45043	51551	48173	59556	48068	75659	55986	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	77890	49342	49392	74093	40646	57900	







Total Operations



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	8977	9328	8289	9093	6874	9748	9318	10028	10397	11126	11219	11350	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	11405	10567	10799	8900	9500	7155	6825	9113	9982	10386	11010	9382	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	9918	9161	8567	8106	5574	9478	8422	8584	10271	10967	10267	11008	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	11028	11351	9239	10110	8071	11009	8226	9853	11176	10470	10372	11593	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	11074	9429	8873	9627	8573	9579	







Total Fuel Volume (gallons)



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	603200	621530	587188	613757	528639	649783	594110	592678	523297	552301	617920	608329	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	656288	562452	635633	516089	617536	447983	147329	298994	505072	555812	552364	539801	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	594637	503944	571028	443022	424113	648482	633152	653440	768288	796726	744029	708899	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	886911	945443	917472	717701	749992	906267	678268	869884	740339	672308	726153	740867	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	758831	773988	751928	721392	639530	711476	







International Arrivals



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	42	39	29	39	44	47	40	35	25	21	25	21	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	26	38	43	37	44	56	5	12	22	15	21	24	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	27	43	33	42	29	63	64	39	58	39	39	30	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	38	61	64	57	74	92	42	47	75	42	26	28	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	37	63	62	65	48	72	







Total Monthly Revenue



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	464414.48	465118.2	468418.5	495367.66	449923.89	471663.75	474213.03	469106.66	455898.91	1480559.5	471156.65	472166.32	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	479457.48	466618.68	458362.93	488256.25	455301.85	432766.86	391630.82	416699.45	449584.06	472656.3	454268.15	451167.36	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	458202	444042.87	456924.36	485772.14	434136.39	472645.23	475622.12	466631.64	479483.03	518500.87	487968.23	478725.76	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	506256.28	509657.02	528785.84	582635.79	536646.11	569995.66	536636.86	581562.30000000005	590725.37	559795.88	548034.24	1189875.21	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	576861.18999999994	561350.54	585652.56999999995	623785.9	572491.02	606693.41	







Monthly Real Estate Revenue



FY19	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	368423.55	364526.02	368932.55	399927.31	358429.69	369423.98	376077.08	372819.67	372804.99	1391430.94	372015.59	373300.57	FY20	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	376389.95	371813.68	355678.7	403281.25	355202.61	355610.92	356125.92	366575.5	370381.6	383521.64	363885.32	363456.62	FY21	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	357017.51	356194.43	360755	406798.76	362544.79	364947.72	363623.97	364450.34	355916.18	385909.25	371106.78	366234.46	FY22	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	365719.36	364558.88	377825.54	465220.06	415328.18	422283.6	419538.08	445945.67	470937.35	445461.84	391848.45	1064673	FY23	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	447219.21	433357.16	460339.1	494057.5	457617.08	480797.72	









Qrtrly Reports - Ops and Fuel

		YY-MM		OPERATIONS										YY-MM		International Operations												OPERATIONS										YY-MM		FUEL FLOWAGE (gallons)

				TOTAL		VFR Itin		IFR Itin		LOC						arrivals		departures		Total								IFR Itin		VFR Itin		Local		TOTAL						Jet-A		AvGas		TOTAL

		16-10		9,580		5,853		3,409		318				16-10		31		13		44				FY19 Q2		Jan-19		3,176		5,441		476		9,093				16-10		523,272		56,481		579,753

		16-11		7,385		4,200		3,046		139				16-11		39		16		55						Feb-19		2,964		3,540		370		6,874				16-11		511,155		45,330		556,485

		16-12		7,315		4,146		2,860		309				16-12		42		23		65						Mar-19		3,314		6,023		411		9,748				16-12		513,453		28,934		542,387

		17-01		7,369		4,452		2,677		240				17-01		38		16		54				TOTAL				9,454		15,004		1,257		25,715				17-01		441,721		51,531		493,252

		17-02		7,386		4,342		2,793		251				17-02		32		10		42				FY20 Q2		Jan-20		3,388		5,097		415		8,900				17-02		491,491		31,862		523,353

		17-03		8,353		4,856		3,157		340				17-03		45		21		66						Feb-20		3,363		5,866		271		9,500				17-03		486,359		44,561		530,920

		17-04		7,196		3,845		2,988		363				17-04		25		13		38						Mar-20		2,631		4,210		314		7,155				17-04		434,626		49,999		484,625

		17-05		8,643		5,049		2,967		627				17-05		24		19		43				TOTAL				9,382		15,173		1,000		25,555				17-05		505,339		42,733		548,072

		17-06		8,395		4,829		3,004		562				17-06		37		20		57				FY21 Q2		Jan-21		2,712		5,232		162		8,106				17-06		459,824		39,296		499,120

		17-07		8,910		5,700		2,720		490				17-07		35		11		46						Feb-21		2,298		3,106		170		5,574				17-07		508,559		49,993		558,552

		17-08		8,430		4,733		3,162		535				17-08		18		8		26						Mar-21		3,637		5,606		235		9,478				17-08		514,755		58,847		573,602

		17-09		9,659		6,071		3,311		277				17-09		32		16		48				TOTAL				8,647		13,944		567		23,158				17-09		493,277		51,736		545,013

		17-10		8,895		5,496		3,224		175				17-10		32		15		47				FY22 Q2		Jan-22		3,896		5,994		220		10,110				17-10		529,149		55,595		584,744

		17-11		8,746		4,766		3,663		317				17-11		33		14		47						Feb-22		3,412		4,599		60		8,071				17-11		552,450		51,038		603,488

		17-12		7,512		4,450		2,853		209				17-12		39		25		64						Mar-22		4,569		6,239		201		11,009				17-12		474,317		49,006		523,323

		18-01		8,114		4,989		2,911		214				18-01		38		22		60				TOTAL				11,877		16,832		481		29,190				18-01		493,347		37,726		531,073

		18-02		5,866		3,026		2,737		103				18-02		37		12		49				FY23 Q2		Jan-23		3,466		6,043		118		9,627				18-02		481,758		35,420		517,178

		18-03		8,968		5,565		3,301		102				18-03		56		24		80						Feb-23		3,153		5,311		109		8,573				18-03		557,985		56,480		614,465

		18-04		8,362		5,209		3,045		108				18-04		45		22		67						Mar-23		3,897		5,634		48		9,579				18-04		490,653		44,136		534,789

		18-05		9,854		6,415		3,274		165				18-05		35		15		50				TOTAL				10,516		16,988		275		27,779				18-05		525,621		66,701		592,322

		18-06		9,517		6,201		3,169		147				18-06		34		10		44																		18-06		547,460		62,423		609,883

		18-07		8,950		6,017		2,829		104				18-07		31		14		45								International Operations										18-07		513,573		53,552		567,125

		18-08		9,893		6,586		3,165		142				18-08		22		3		25								arrivals		departures		TOTAL						18-08		522,511		58,944		581,455

		18-09		7,617		3,769		3,635		213				18-09		23		6		29				FY19 Q2		Jan-19		39		19		58						18-09		508,639		47,434		556,073

		18-10		8,977		4,573		3,935		469				18-10		42		11		53						Feb-19		44		14		58						18-10		555,796		47,404		603,200

		18-11		9,328		5,616		3,432		280				18-11		39		22		61						Mar-19		47		17		64						18-11		560,580		60,950		621,530

		18-12		8,289		4,989		3,080		220				18-12		29		26		55				TOTAL				130		50		180						18-12		537,520		49,668		587,188

		19-01		9,093		5,441		3,176		476				19-01		39		19		58				FY20 Q2		Jan-20		37		7		44						19-01		564,818		48,939		613,757

		19-02		6,874		3,540		2,964		370				19-02		44		14		58						Feb-20		44		16		60						19-02		483,192		45,447		528,639

		19-03		9,748		6,023		3,314		411				19-03		47		17		64						Mar-20		56		15		71						19-03		588,995		60,788		649,783

		19-04		9,318		5,447		3,398		473				19-04		40		23		63				TOTAL				137		38		175						19-04		546,360		47,750		594,110

		19-05		10,028		5,603		3,616		809				19-05		35		16		51				FY21 Q2		Jan-21		42		37		79						19-05		545,831		46,847		592,678

		19-06		10,397		6,659		3,171		567				19-06		25		12		37						Feb-21		29		8		37						19-06		459,955		63,342		523,297

		19-07		11,126		7,794		2,998		334				19-07		21		15		36						Mar-21		63		12		75						19-07		467,027		85,274		552,301

		19-08		11,219		7,641		3,322		256				19-08		25		12		37				TOTAL				134		57		191						19-08		553,631		64,289		617,920

		19-09		11,350		7,173		3,860		317				19-09		21		12		33				FY22 Q2		Jan-22		57		12		69						19-09		544,788		63,541		608,329

		19-10		11,405		6,841		3,966		598				19-10		26		7		33						Feb-22		74		30		104						19-10		587,394		68,894		656,288

		19-11		10,567		6,592		3,617		358				19-11		38		21		59						Mar-22		92		51		143						19-11		497,326		65,126		562,452

		19-12		10,799		6,670		3,636		493				19-12		43		22		65				TOTAL				223		93		316						19-12		571,207		64,426		635,633

		20-01		8,900		5,097		3,388		415				20-01		37		7		44				FY23 Q2		Jan-23		65		38		103						20-01		467,518		48,571		516,089

		20-02		9,500		5,866		3,363		271				20-02		44		16		60						Feb-23		48		19		67						20-02		563,482		54,054		617,536

		20-03		7,155		4,210		2,631		314				20-03		56		15		71						Mar-23		72		23		95						20-03		407,753		40,230		447,983

		20-04		6,825		5,367		1,391		67				20-04		5		6		11				TOTAL				185		80		265						20-04		106,650		40,679		147,329

		20-05		9,113		6,654		2,322		137				20-05		12		1		13																		20-05		239,109		59,885		298,994

		20-06		9,982		6,849		2,934		199				20-06		22		6		28								FUEL FLOWAGE (gallons)										20-06		432,590		72,482		505,072

		20-07		10,386		6,990		3,291		105				20-07		15		6		21								Jet-A		AvGas		TOTAL						20-07		492,331		63,481		555,812

		20-08		11,010		7,777		3,002		231				20-08		21		8		29				FY19 Q2		Jan-19		564,818		48,939		613,757						20-08		482,311		70,053		552,364

		20-09		9,382		5,675		3,384		323				20-09		24		6		30						Feb-19		483,192		45,447		528,639						20-09		496,914		42,887		539,801

		20-10		9,918		6,055		3,580		283				20-10		27		5		32						Mar-19		588,995		60,788		649,783						20-10		530,193		64,444		594,637

		20-11		9,161		5,746		3,228		187				20-11		43		16		59				TOTAL				1,637,005		155,174		1,792,179						20-11		447,146		56,798		503,944

		20-12		8,567		5,338		2,968		261				20-12		33		21		54				FY20 Q2		Jan-20		467,518		48,571		516,089						20-12		514,125		56,903		571,028

		21-01		8,106		5,232		2,712		162				21-01		42		37		79						Feb-20		563,482		54,054		617,536						21-01		410,147		32,875		443,022

		21-02		5,574		3,106		2,298		170				21-02		29		8		37						Mar-20		407,753		40,230		447,983						21-02		391,524		32,589		424,113

		21-03		9,478		5,606		3,637		235				21-03		63		12		75				TOTAL				1,438,753		142,855		1,581,608						21-03		587,673		60,809		648,482

		21-04		8,422		4,777		3,440		205				21-04		64		26		90				FY21 Q2		Jan-21		410,147		32,875		443,022						21-04		584,646		48,506		633,152

		21-05		8,584		4,480		3,885		219				21-05		39		24		63						Feb-21		391,524		32,589		424,113						21-05		604,767		48,673		653,440

		21-06		10,271		6,113		3,969		189				21-06		58		40		98						Mar-21		587,673		60,809		648,482						21-06		715,873		52,415		768,288

		21-07		10,967		6,689		3,991		287				21-07		39		26		65				TOTAL				1,389,344		126,273		1,515,617						21-07		739,634		57,092		796,726

		21-08		10,267		6,257		3,810		200				21-08		39		24		63				FY22 Q2		Jan-22		656,523		61,178		717,701						21-08		681,726		62,303		744,029

		21-09		11,008		6,557		4,209		242				21-09		30		15		45						Feb-22		711,620		38,372		749,992						21-09		644,601		64,298		708,899

		21-10		11,028		5,771		5,038		219				21-10		38		9		47						Mar-22		861,224		45,043		906,267						21-10		827,016		59,895		886,911

		21-11		11,351		5,993		5,050		308				21-11		61		23		84				TOTAL				2,229,367		144,593		2,373,960						21-11		889,557		55,886		945,443

		21-12		9,239		4,406		4,645		188				21-12		64		29		93				FY23 Q2		Jan-23		647,299		74,093		721,392						21-12		857,034		60,438		917,472

		22-01		10,110		5,994		3,896		220				22-01		57		12		69						Feb-23		598,884		40,646		639,530						22-01		656,523		61,178		717,701

		22-02		8,071		4,599		3,412		60				22-02		74		30		104						Mar-23		653,576		57,900		711,476						22-02		711,620		38,372		749,992

		22-03		11,009		6,239		4,569		201				22-03		92		51		143				TOTAL				1,899,759		172,639		2,072,398						22-03		861,224		45,043		906,267

		22-04		8,226		4,176		3,893		157				22-04		42		21		63																		22-04		626,717		51,551		678,268

		22-05		9,853		5,173		4,471		209				22-05		47		14		61																		22-05		821,711		48,173		869,884

		22-06		11,176		6,897		4,090		189				22-06		75		25		100																		22-06		680,783		59,556		740,339

		22-07		10,470		6,853		3,451		166				22-07		42		17		59																		22-07		624,240		48,068		672,308

		22-08		10,372		6,069		4,008		295				22-08		26		11		37																		22-08		650,494		75,659		726,153

		22-09		11,593		7,344		4,043		206				22-09		28		6		34																		22-09		684,881		55,986		740,867

		22-10		11,074		6,894		4,022		158				22-10		37		7		44																		22-10		680,941		77,890		758,831

		22-11		9,429		5,229		4,112		88				22-11		63		20		83																		22-11		724,646		49,342		773,988

		22-12		8,873		5,030		3,785		58				22-12		62		24		86																		22-12		702,536		49,392		751,928

		23-01		9,627		6,043		3,466		118				23-01		65		38		103																		23-01		647,299		74,093		721,392

		23-02		8,573		5,311		3,153		109				23-02		48		19		67																		23-02		598,884		40,646		639,530

		23-03		9,579		5,634		3,897		48				23-03		72		23		95																		23-03		653,576		57,900		711,476

		23-04		0		0		0						23-04		0		0		0																		23-04		0		0		0

		23-05		0		0		0						23-05		0		0		0																		23-05		0		0		0

		23-06		0		0		0						23-06		0		0		0																		23-06		0		0		0

		23-07		0		0		0						23-07		0		0		0																		23-07		0		0		0

		23-08		0		0		0						23-08		0		0		0																		23-08		0		0		0

		23-09		0		0		0						23-09		0		0		0																		23-09		0		0		0





Qrtrly Reports - Revenue

		YY-MM		REVENUE														REVENUE

				Real Estate		FFF		Other		TOTAL								Real Estate		FFF		Other		TOTAL

		16-10		$   370,727		$   83,688		$   10,941		$   465,356				FY19 Q2		Jan-19		$   399,927		$   87,907		$   7,533		$   495,368

		16-11		$   368,650		$   79,559		$   12,244		$   460,454						Feb-19		$   358,430		$   75,622		$   15,872		$   449,924

		16-12		$   353,039		$   77,870		$   13,590		$   444,500						Mar-19		$   369,424		$   92,291		$   9,949		$   471,664

		17-01		$   391,545		$   70,053		$   13,733		$   475,332				TOTAL				$   1,127,781		$   255,820		$   33,354		$   1,416,955

		17-02		$   343,434		$   75,183		$   14,497		$   433,114				FY20 Q2		Jan-20		$   403,281		$   73,567		$   11,408		$   488,256

		17-03		$   349,043		$   76,561		$   12,217		$   437,821						Feb-20		$   355,203		$   88,203		$   11,896		$   455,302

		17-04		$   352,297		$   69,912		$   14,572		$   436,781						Mar-20		$   355,611		$   64,679		$   12,477		$   432,767

		17-05		$   363,977		$   77,360		$   7,689		$   449,026				TOTAL				$   1,114,095		$   226,449		$   35,781		$   1,376,325

		17-06		$   363,011		$   71,770		$   12,171		$   446,951				FY21 Q2		Jan-21		$   406,799		$   62,666		$   16,308		$   485,772

		17-07		$   381,670		$   81,350		$   10,642		$   473,662						Feb-21		$   362,545		$   60,032		$   11,560		$   434,136

		17-08		$   366,885		$   82,507		$   9,969		$   459,361						Mar-21		$   364,948		$   92,762		$   14,935		$   472,645

		17-09		$   365,626		$   78,515		$   10,619		$   454,759				TOTAL				$   1,134,291		$   215,460		$   42,803		$   1,392,554

		17-10		$   367,559		$   83,762		$   10,574		$   461,894				FY22 Q2		Jan-22		$   465,220		$   102,465		$   14,951		$   582,636

		17-11		$   367,157		$   85,961		$   10,950		$   464,068						Feb-22		$   415,328		$   106,303		$   15,015		$   536,646

		17-12		$   367,364		$   75,183		$   13,278		$   455,824						Mar-22		$   422,284		$   128,512		$   19,200		$   569,996

		18-01		$   414,943		$   75,348		$   12,689		$   502,980				TOTAL				$   1,302,832		$   337,280		$   49,165		$   1,689,278

		18-02		$   374,077		$   74,556		$   11,675		$   460,308				FY23 Q2		Jan-23		$   494,058		$   103,647		$   26,081		$   623,786

		18-03		$   372,683		$   88,962		$   14,395		$   476,039						Feb-23		$   457,617		$   90,214		$   24,660		$   572,491

		18-04		$   364,132		$   76,778		$   14,475		$   455,385						Mar-23		$   480,798		$   101,369		$   24,527		$   606,693

		18-05		$   368,924		$   84,448		$   8,618		$   461,990				TOTAL				$   1,432,472		$   295,230		$   75,268		$   1,802,970

		18-06		$   364,563		$   88,853		$   18,029		$   471,445

		18-07		$   386,877		$   80,334		$   9,241		$   476,451

		18-08		$   358,921		$   84,853		$   12,750		$   456,525

		18-09		$   366,385		$   78,779		$   8,328		$   453,492

		18-10		$   368,424		$   86,679		$   9,312		$   464,414

		18-11		$   364,526		$   88,931		$   11,661		$   465,118

		18-12		$   368,933		$   84,187		$   15,299		$   468,419

		19-01		$   399,927		$   87,907		$   7,533		$   495,368

		19-02		$   358,430		$   75,622		$   15,872		$   449,924

		19-03		$   369,424		$   92,291		$   9,949		$   471,664

		19-04		$   376,077		$   86,203		$   11,933		$   474,213

		19-05		$   372,820		$   84,925		$   11,362		$   469,107

		19-06		$   372,805		$   76,426		$   6,668		$   455,899

		19-07		$   1,391,431		$   79,848		$   9,281		$   1,480,560

		19-08		$   372,016		$   89,078		$   10,063		$   471,157

		19-09		$   373,301		$   87,355		$   11,511		$   472,166

		19-10		$   376,390		$   94,813		$   8,254		$   479,457

		19-11		$   371,814		$   80,343		$   14,462		$   466,619

		19-12		$   355,679		$   91,632		$   11,052		$   458,363

		20-01		$   403,281		$   73,567		$   11,408		$   488,256

		20-02		$   355,203		$   88,203		$   11,896		$   455,302

		20-03		$   355,611		$   64,679		$   12,477		$   432,767

		20-04		$   356,126		$   21,959		$   13,546		$   391,631

		20-05		$   366,576		$   43,415		$   6,709		$   416,699

		20-06		$   370,382		$   72,691		$   6,511		$   449,584

		20-07		$   383,522		$   79,728		$   9,406		$   472,656

		20-08		$   363,885		$   79,866		$   10,516		$   454,268

		20-09		$   363,457		$   76,881		$   10,830		$   451,167

		20-10		$   357,018		$   85,818		$   15,367		$   458,202

		20-11		$   356,194		$   71,252		$   16,597		$   444,043

		20-12		$   360,755		$   82,548		$   13,621		$   456,924

		21-01		$   406,799		$   62,666		$   16,308		$   485,772

		21-02		$   362,545		$   60,032		$   11,560		$   434,136

		21-03		$   364,948		$   92,762		$   14,935		$   472,645

		21-04		$   363,624		$   89,947		$   22,052		$   475,622

		21-05		$   364,450		$   92,139		$   10,042		$   466,632

		21-06		$   355,916		$   109,827		$   13,740		$   479,483

		21-07		$   385,909		$   113,194		$   19,397		$   518,501

		21-08		$   371,107		$   106,448		$   10,414		$   487,968

		21-09		$   366,234		$   101,213		$   11,278		$   478,726

		21-10		$   365,719		$   126,083		$   14,454		$   506,256

		21-11		$   364,559		$   134,318		$   10,780		$   509,657

		21-12		$   377,826		$   129,442		$   21,518		$   528,786

		22-01		$   465,220		$   102,465		$   14,951		$   582,636

		22-02		$   415,328		$   106,303		$   15,015		$   536,646

		22-03		$   422,284		$   128,512		$   19,200		$   569,996

		22-04		$   419,538		$   96,889		$   20,210		$   536,637

		22-05		$   445,946		$   123,091		$   12,526		$   581,562

		22-06		$   470,937		$   105,568		$   14,220		$   590,725

		22-07		$   445,462		$   96,059		$   18,275		$   559,796

		22-08		$   391,848		$   103,607		$   52,578		$   548,034

		22-09		$   1,064,673		$   105,012		$   20,190		$   1,189,875

		22-10		$   447,219		$   108,499		$   21,143		$   576,861

		22-11		$   433,357		$   110,308		$   17,685		$   561,351

		22-12		$   460,339		$   106,591		$   18,723		$   585,653

		23-01		$   494,058		$   103,647		$   26,081		$   623,786

		23-02		$   457,617		$   90,214		$   24,660		$   572,491

		23-03		$   480,798		$   101,369		$   24,527		$   606,693

		23-04		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -

		23-05		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -

		23-06		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -

		23-07		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -

		23-08		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -

		23-09		$   -		$   -		$   -		$   -





FY23 Q2 data and charts

				Operations														International Operations

				IFR Itinerant		VFR Itinerant		Local		TOTAL								Arrivals		Departures		TOTAL

		FY19Q2		9,454		15,004		1,257		25,715						FY19Q2		130		50		180

		FY20Q2		9,382		15,173		1,000		25,555						FY20Q2		137		38		175

		FY21Q2		8,647		13,944		567		23,158						FY21Q2		134		57		191

		FY22Q2		11,877		16,832		481		29,190						FY22Q2		223		93		316

		FY23Q2		10,516		16,988		275		27,779						FY23Q2		185		80		265



				Revenue														Fuel Flowage (Gallons)

				Real Estate		Fuel Flowage		Other		TOTAL								Jet-A		AvGas		TOTAL

		FY19Q2		$   1,127,781		$   255,820		$   33,354		$   1,416,955						FY19Q2		1,637,005		155,174		1,792,179

		FY20Q2		$   1,114,095		$   226,449		$   35,781		$   1,376,325						FY20Q2		1,438,753		142,855		1,581,608

		FY21Q2		$   1,134,291		$   215,460		$   42,803		$   1,392,554						FY21Q2		1,389,344		126,273		1,515,617

		FY22Q2		$   1,302,832		$   337,280		$   49,165		$   1,689,278						FY22Q2		2,229,367		144,593		2,373,960

		FY23Q2		$   1,432,472		$   295,230		$   75,268		$   1,802,970						FY23Q2		1,899,759		172,639		2,072,398



Operations



IFR Itinerant	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	9454	9382	8647	11877	10516	VFR Itinerant	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	15004	15173	13944	16832	16988	Local	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	1257	1000	567	481	275	







Revenue



Real Estate	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	1127780.98	1114094.78	1134291.27	1302831.8399999999	1432472.3	Fuel Flowage	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	255820.18	226449.28	215459.58000000002	337280.48	295230.28000000003	Other	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	33354.14	35780.9	42802.910000000054	49165.240000000107	75267.750000000073	













International Operations



Arrivals	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	130	137	134	223	185	Departures	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	50	38	57	93	80	







Fuel Flowage (Gallons)



Jet-A	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	1637005	1438753	1389344	2229367	1899759	AvGas	FY19Q2	FY20Q2	FY21Q2	FY22Q2	FY23Q2	155174	142855	126273	144593	172639	









Full year data and charts

				Operations														International Operations

				IFR Itinerant		VFR Itinerant		Local		TOTAL								Arrivals		Departures		TOTAL

		FY18		37,806		62,489		1,999		102,294						FY18		425		182		607

		FY19		40,266		70,499		4,982		115,747						FY19		407		199		606

		FY20		36,925		74,588		3,511		115,024						FY20		343		121		464

		FY21		41,727		65,956		2,640		110,323						FY21		506		254		760

		FY22		50,566		69,514		2,418		122,498						FY22		646		248		894



				Revenue														Fuel Flowage (Gallons)

				Real Estate		Fuel Flowage		Other		TOTAL								Jet-A		AvGas		TOTAL

		FY18		$   4,473,583		$   977,818		$   145,000		$   5,596,402						FY18		6,197,463		618,455		6,815,918

		FY19		$   5,488,112		$   1,019,452		$   130,444		$   6,638,008						FY19		6,408,493		684,239		7,092,732

		FY20		$   4,421,924		$   867,778		$   127,068		$   5,416,770						FY20		5,344,585		690,768		6,035,353

		FY21		$   4,415,499		$   1,067,845		$   175,311		$   5,658,655						FY21		6,852,055		637,705		7,489,760

		FY22		$   5,649,340		$   1,357,351		$   233,916		$   7,240,607						FY22		8,891,800		659,805		9,551,605



Operations



IFR Itinerant	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	37806	40266	36925	41727	50566	VFR Itinerant	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	62489	70499	74588	65956	69514	Local	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	1999	4982	3511	2640	2418	







Revenue



Real Estate	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	4473583.3599999994	5488111.9399999995	4421923.71	4415499.1899999995	5649340.0099999998	Fuel Flowage	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	977818.44	1019452	867778.03999999992	1067844.8	1357350.7	Other	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	145000.37	130443.61000000003	127068.44	175310.65000000002	233915.85000000015	













International Operations



Arrivals	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	425	407	343	506	646	Departures	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	182	199	121	254	248	







Fuel Flowage (Gallons)



Jet-A	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	6197463	6408493	5344585	6852055	8891800	AvGas	FY18	FY19	FY20	FY21	FY22	618455	684239	690768	637705	659805	











Addison Airport – Projects and Progress

7

Status Update – Approved Developments
• Sky Squared

• Preliminary site demolition and remediation completed
• Site and civil plans have been approved
• Contractor given Notice to Proceed on June 7 for ramp and vehicle service 

road reconstruction work

• Atlantic Aviation FBO Redevelopment
• No demolition or construction started yet
• Ground lease amended to revise order of redevelopment

• Sky Harbour – Phase I (former Jetport site)
• Pavement demolition has not commenced
• Site plan and civil plans in final review

• Sky Harbour – Phase II (Taxilane Uniform site)
• Site plan in development

Sk
y 

Sq
ua

re
d

Sk
y 

B&
B



Addison Airport – Projects and Progress

8

Current Projects – Airport Improvement Program (AIP) Grants
   Design for Taxiway Bravo extensions – completed

• FY21 AIP grant in the amount of $805,000 (90% FAA, 10% local match).
• Preliminary Engineering Review (PER) for the full (three phase) project completed.
• Project (phase 1 construction) final design review completed; advertising for bids in June.
• Phase 1 construction project is planned to be advertised as a base bid with three additive alternates.
• Base bid package, phase 1 construction: extension of Taxiway Bravo north to Taxiway Hotel and extension of 

Taxiway Hotel west of the runway to connect to Taxiway Bravo.



Addison Airport – Projects and Progress

9

Current Projects – Airport Improvement Program (AIP) Grants
   Construction of Taxiway Bravo extensions and west side service road (phase 1)

• Grant funding picture is still in flux; TxDOT has committed $6.8 Million (including the Airport’s 10% match) and 
the Airport has $1.6 Million in BIL/AIG funding (theoretically) available.

• Available grant funding is less than the Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Cost (EOPC) of approximately $10 Million.
• Airport has applied for FY22 AIP supplemental discretionary grant funding for this project.
• Project will be advertised for bids in June, construction is now anticipated to begin in October 2023.
• The Taxiway Bravo extension (phase 1) will enable aeronautical development of a 4- to 5-acre land parcel on the 

west side of the airport, just north of the Toll Tunnel; will advertise an RFQ for the redevelopment opportunity.



Addison Airport Quarterly Update – Questions?

10



   

Council Meeting 2.        
Meeting Date: 06/13/2023  

Department: Parks & Recreation
Pillars: Optimize the Addison Brand

Gold Standard in Public Safety
Milestones: Define and promote Addison Identity

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present and discuss a public art installation to honor public safety in Addison.

BACKGROUND:
During the October 13, 2020 Council Meeting, Council directed staff to create a
memorial honoring fallen Addison Police Officer Ronnie Cox and to develop a
plan for honoring public safety in Addison with a public art installation.

The memorial for Officer Ronnie Cox was dedicated on October 2, 2021. 

Staff will present the plan to honor public safety with a public art installation and
seek direction from the Council regarding the proposed art installation, location,
and schedule.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff seeks Council direction.

Attachments
Presentation - Public Safety Art Installation 



1

June 13, 2023

Public Safety Art Installation



Background

• October 2020 – Staff facilitated a discussion with Council regarding ways to honor fallen Officer Ronnie Cox.  Council 
directed staff to develop a short-term solution that could be implemented in the near future to recognize fallen Officer 
Cox and his sacrifice.  Council also directed staff to develop a long-term solution for a larger installation to honor public 
safety in Addison.

• February 2021 – Staff made a presentation to Council proposing the following:

Short-term Recognition – Install a small plaza which would include a monument and a plaque near the 
Police Station that would honor Officer Ronnie Cox for his service to the Town. 
Long-term Recognition Solution – Solicit a National Call for Art for a Public Safety Art Installation.

Council directed staff to proceed with both plans.  In regards to the long-term additional direction was provided by  
Council:

Budget - Approximate budget for Artwork $100,000 - $150,000 other expenses such as sitework and 
design would be identified as project develops.  This could potentially have a fundraising component.
Location - Adjacent to Transit Oriented Development (TOD) is preferred.
Timeframe – Do not wait for TOD development to be complete.  Art may be fabricated prior to TOD 
development and installed in a temporary location.

2



Background

• October 2021 – The Memorial for Fallen Officer Ronnie Cox  has been completed and dedicated.

3



Background

• May 2022 – Present Implementation of long-term recognition solution began work includes:
- Formation of a steering committee.
- Developing and releasing a call for art and 15+ proposals were recieved
- Steering committee identified a potential location with the TOD
- Three artist / artist teams were selected to further develop concepts and make presentations.
- The steering committee identified Fritz Olsen, a Michigan artist,  to recommend his concept 

installation.
- Staff presented proposed artwork to the TOD Developer and received positive feedback.

4



Proposed Art Installation Location

5

Proposed Location

Proposed Location

Arapaho Rd.



Proposed Art Installation Location

6

Proposed Location

Proposed Location

Site Attributes
- New park located within TOD 

Development.
- Location has potential to be 

more than an installation.  Park 
could be developed around a 
theme of Public Safety.   This 
theme would be carried out in 
the name and site design of the 
site.  Examples of potential 
names Heroes Park, Unity Park, 
Guardians Green or First 
Responders Commons, etc.  The 
site could become the location 
of future ceremonies held by 
Police and Fire. 

- Visible from Arapaho, Spectrum 
and the Cotton Belt Trail and 
DART Silver Line.



7

Proposed 
Temporary
Location

Proposed Temporary Art Installation Location

Temporary Site
- The sculpture would be complete prior to 

completion of the park.
- It would be installed at a temporary 

location until its permanent home is 
complete.

- Staff is proposing it be located in the 
Courtyard of the Conference and Theatre 
Center until it is relocated.



Examples of Artist’s Work

8Left to Right: Galileo, Carbonic Family and Prosperity by Fritz Olsen



Proposed Art Installation

9

• The design embodies the connection Addison has 
as a community with those that serve and protect.

• The central forms depicting Police in Blue and Fire 
in Red are grounding in the center of circle, the 
community ring.  They are connected structurally 
and metaphorically to one another.

• The circle / community is tilted as to imply motion, 
change and progress.  The upright forms carry 
strength and confidence standing shoulder to 
shoulder collaborating and protecting the 
community.

• The circle / community surrounds, embraces and 
supports the shining stars.  Depending on the view 
the shapes appear to represent a torch, a blade or 
a star.



Proposed Art Installation

10

Public Safety Art Installation by 
Fritz Olsen

• Materials:  Stainless Steel, 
Painted Steel, Stone, 
Lighting and Letters.

• Budget:  $150,000 Excluding 
Site Work and Circular 
Benches.

• Height:  12-14’ Tall.

• View illustrates proposed 
sitework and etched Police 
Department badge emblem.



Proposed Art Installation

11

Public Safety Art Installation by 
Fritz Olsen

• Materials:  Stainless Steel, 
Painted Steel, Stone, 
Lighting and Letters.

• Budget:  $150,000 Excluding 
Site Work and Circular 
Benches.

• Height:  12-14’ Tall.

• View illustrates proposed 
sitework and etched Police 
Department badge emblem.



Council Direction

• Does Council support moving forward with Public Art Installation proposed by Fritz Olsen?

• Does Council support project budget of $150,000 for fabrication, delivery and installation of the artwork?

• If so, is there feedback regarding the proposed schedule listed below?

Proposed Schedule
August 2023 City Manager’s proposed budget includes funds for the artwork and site development.
October 2023 Contract for Artwork brought to Council for consideration of approval.
October 2023 Staff selects a landscape architect to develop plans for the sitework.
November 2023 Staff provides artist with a contract for fabrication, delivery and installation of the artwork.
November 2023 Fabrication of the Artwork begins.
September 2024 Fabrication of Concrete for temporary Location begins.
November 2024 Installation of the Artwork at temporary location.

12



Questions?

13



   

Council Meeting 3.        
Meeting Date: 06/13/2023  

Department: City Secretary 

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider action on the Minutes from the May 23, 2023 City Council Meeting.

BACKGROUND:
The minutes for the May 23, 2023 City Council Meeting have been prepared for
consideration.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Minutes - May 23, 2023 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
May 23, 2023 City Council Meeting Minutes       Page 1 of 8 
 

D R A F T 
OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE 

ADDISON CITY COUNCIL 
 

May 23, 2023 
 

Addison Conference Centre – Council Chambers 
15650 Addison Road, Addison, TX 75001 

6:00 p.m. Executive Session & Work Session 
7:30 p.m. Regular Meeting 

 
Present: Mayor Bruce Arfsten; Mayor Pro-Tempore Eileen Resnik; Deputy Mayor Pro-

Tempore Guillermo Quintanilla; Council Member Nancy Craig; Council Member 
Darren Gardner; Council Member Dan Liscio; Council Member Marlin Willesen 

 
Call Meeting to Order:  Mayor Arfsten called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

 
Pledge of Allegiance – U.S. Flag and Texas Flag:  Mayor Arfsten led the Pledge to the U.S. and 
State of Texas Flags. 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Closed (Executive) Session:  In accordance with Texas Government Code 551.071 (b) Advice 
from the City Attorney regarding: 

• Zoning Case 1868 SUP 
 
Mayor Arfsten closed the Open Meeting at 6:01 PM to convene the City Council into Closed 
Session. 
 
Reconvene into Regular Session: In accordance with Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, the 
City Council will reconvene into Regular Session to consider action, if any, on matters discussed 
in Executive Session. 
 
Mayor Arfsten reconvened the City Council into Open Session at 7:51 PM. There was no action 
taken as a result of the Closed Session. 

 
WORK SESSION 
 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
May 23, 2023 City Council Meeting Minutes       Page 2 of 8 
 

1. Discuss meeting questions, responses, and handouts.  [This item was WITHDRAWN by 
Mayor Arfsten.  No discussion/action] 

 
2. Present and discuss the Town of Addison Fiscal Year 2023 Second Quarter Financial 

Report.  [Steven Glickman, Chief Financial Officer] 
 
The Town of Addison's financial policies require the publication of a financial report 60 days 
subsequent to the end of the fiscal quarter. This report covers the financial performance through 
the second quarter for Fiscal Year 2023 (January 1, 2023 - March 31, 2023). Key highlights for 
the second quarter include:  

• General Fund revenue totaled $34.7 million, which is 78.4 percent of the fiscal year 
budget. 

• General Fund expenditures totaled $20.5 million, which is 46.3 percent of the fiscal year 
budget. 

• Sales tax collections totaled $7.8 million, which is 54.1 percent of the fiscal year budget. 
• The Hotel Fund had revenue of $3.1 million, an increase of $1.0 million from this time a 

year ago, and expenditures of $1.8 million.  
• Performing Arts expenditures are at 82.1 percent due to the payment of the WaterTower 

Theatre grant. 
• Special Events revenues totaled 29.4 percent and expenses totaled 4.0 percent of the fiscal 

year budget because of the timing of events.  
• Airport Fund operating revenue totaled $3.6 million or 54.1 percent and operating 

expenditures totaled $2.6 million or 47.0 percent of the fiscal year budget. 
• Utility Fund operating revenue totaled $7.2 million, or 46.8 percent and expenditures 

totaled $8.1 million or 51.8 percent of the fiscal year budget. 
• Stormwater Fund revenue and expenditures are in line with historical averages. 

The Quarterly Investment Report for Quarter 2 of Fiscal Year 2023 was also provided for 
information purposes.  This report has been prepared in accordance with state law and the Town's 
Financial Policies. 

Investment Report Summary 

 
 
 
3. Present and discuss the proposed 2023 General Obligation Bonds and 2023 

Certificates of Obligation.  [Steven Glickman, Chief Financial Officer] 
 
The Town's proposed 2023 bond issuance program includes a total issuance in the amount of 
$9,500,000 consisting of $5,000,000 in General Obligation Bonds and $4,500,000 in Certificates 
of Obligation.  Since 2012, Addison voters have approved several bond programs to fund various 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
May 23, 2023 City Council Meeting Minutes       Page 3 of 8 
 

projects throughout Town. Once voter approval is secured, the City Council is authorized to issue 
general obligation bonds to pay for projects. 
 
The proposed 2023 General Obligation Bond issuance totals $5,000,000 and consists of  
$5,000,000 from the authorized $32,602,000 ($0 issued to date), from Proposition B of the 2019 
Bond Election for street improvements. The funds would be used for the reconstruction design of 
Monfort Drive ($900,000) and Quorum Drive ($4.1M).  Design contracts for both projects are 
anticipated to be brought before Council in late spring or early summer of 2023. 
 
The proposed 2023 Certificates of Obligation issuance totals $4,500,000 and consists of the 
following: 

• $2,000,000 for public infrastructure improvements for the Vitruvian Development.  The 
amended and restated master facilities agreement with UDR, that was approved by Council 
on June 25, 2013, commits the Town to approximately $49.9M in public infrastructure 
investment.  To date, approximately $13M of the total commitment remains.  After this 
proposed issuance, approximately $11M of the total commitment will remain. 

• $2,500,000 for Airport Fund capital improvement projects supported and serviced by 
Airport Fund revenue. These projects include reconstruction of Jimmy Doolittle Road and 
the east side airport service road. 

 
With the proposed issuance, and accounting for anticipated growth in taxable property values, the 
Interest and Sinking (I&S) tax rate is estimated to decrease from $0.164740/$100 in Fiscal Year 
2023 to $0.162192/$100 in Fiscal Year 2024.  The 2019 Bond Committee estimated that for Fiscal 
Year 2024 the I&S tax rate would be approximately $0.2465/$100, which is almost 52% higher 
than the current estimate for Fiscal Year 2024.   
 
4. Present and discuss an update on Taste Addison 2023 [Abby Morales, Director of Special 

Events] 
 
Staff shared an update to the Council on the upcoming Taste Addison event scheduled for June 2-
3, 2023. The presentation included information regarding tickets, entertainment, activities, 
participating restaurants, and media coverage. 

 
 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
Announcements and Acknowledgments Regarding Town, Activities, Council Meeting(s) 
and Events 
 
Requests for clarification of agenda items listed on this agenda.  This section includes questions from 
members of the City Council direct to staff on any item listed on this agenda. Answers are compiled in a report and 
provided to the City Council and members of the public by clicking on Exhibit 1 of this item below. The link found 
within the document will provide access to the supporting documentation. The report will be available prior to the 
start of the meeting. Any handouts distributed at the meeting will also be uploaded to the below link by 12:00 pm on 
the business day following the meeting. 
 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
May 23, 2023 City Council Meeting Minutes       Page 4 of 8 
 

Exhibit 1: Council Questions and Answers 5/23/2023 Meeting.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT:  The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any matter, including 
items on the agenda, except public hearings that are included on the agenda. Comments related to public hearings 
will be heard when the specific hearing starts. Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes, unless otherwise 
required by law. To address the Council, please fill out a City Council Appearance Card and submit it to a staff 
member prior to the Public Comment item on the agenda. The Council is not permitted to take any action or discuss 
any item not listed on the agenda. The Council may choose to place the item on a future agenda. 
 
Speaker:  Paul Walden, 14806 LeGrande Drive, requested that the Town follow and enforce laws 
regarding election petitions/signs and the use of the Town’s logo.  

 
CONSENT AGENDA:  All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the City Council 
and will be enacted by one motion with no individual consideration. If individual consideration of an item is requested, 
it will be pulled from the Consent Agenda and discussed separately. 
 
5. Consider Action on the Minutes from the April 25, 2023 City Council Regular 

Meeting. 
6. Consider Action on the Minutes from the May 17, 2023 City Council Special Meeting. 
7. Consider action on RESOLUTION R23-047 appointing a voting member and 

alternative representative of the advisory committee for the Trinity River Authority's 
Central Wastewater Treatment System. 

8. Consider action on RESOLUTION R23-048 approving a First Amendment to 
Ground Lease between the Town of Addison and Mercury Air Center – Addison, Inc. 
(d/b/a Atlantic Aviation FBO) and authorizing the City Manager to execute the 
necessary documents. 

9. Consider action on RESOLUTION R23-049 consenting to the sale and assignment of 
the ground leasehold at 4575 Claire Chennault Drive from Claire Chennault 
Partners, LLC to RR Investments, Inc. (d/b/a Million Air - Dallas) and authorizing 
the City Manager to execute all necessary documents. 

10. Consider action on RESOLUTION R23-050 supporting a Dallas Area Rapid Transit 
application to the Texas Department of Transportation's 2023 Transportation 
Alternatives Set-Aside call for projects. 

 
Mayor Arfsten called for any requests for individual consideration of any item on the CONSENT 
AGENDA. Two requests were made to remove an item from the CONSENT AGENDA for separate 
discussion: (1) Deputy Mayor Pro-Tempore Quintanilla requested Item #7, and (2) Council 
Member Willesen requested Items #8 and #10. 
 
Mayor Arfsten called for a Motion to Approve CONSENT AGENDA Items #5, #6, and #9 as 
presented.  
 
MOTION:  Council Member Gardner moved to approve CONSENT AGENDA Items #5, #6, and 
#9 as presented.  Council Member Willesen seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
May 23, 2023 City Council Meeting Minutes       Page 5 of 8 
 

*** Consent Agenda Item #7 *** 
Director of Public Works & Engineering Shannon Hicks provided history as requested by Deputy 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Quintanilla. 
 
MOTION:  Deputy Mayor Pro-Tempore Quintanilla moved to approve CONSENT AGENDA 
Item #7 as presented.  Council Member Willesen seconded the motion.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

*** Consent Agenda Item #8 *** 
Assistant Director of Real Estate Bill Dyer provided information and history of Mercury Air 
Center – Addison, Inc. (dba Atlantic Aviation Fixed Base Operator) as requested by Council 
Member Willesen. 
 
MOTION:  Council Member Willesen moved to approve CONSENT AGENDA Item #8 as 
presented.  Mayor Pro-Tempore Resnik seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

*** Consent Agenda Item #10 *** 
Assistant Director of Parks Joe Pack provided information regarding the supporting resolution for 
DART to the Texas Department of Transportation 2023 call for grants as requested by Council 
Member Willesen. 
 
MOTION:  Council Member Willesen moved to approve CONSENT AGENDA Item #10 as 
presented.  Mayor Pro-Tempore Resnik seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
REGULAR ITEMS 
 
11. Present, discuss, and consider action on RESOLUTION R23-051 approving a 

construction services agreement with Dean Electric, Inc. for Vitruvian Park Fitness 
Court and authorizing the City Manager to execute the agreement in an amount not 
to exceed $234,959.  [Joe Pack, Assistant Parks Director] 

 
On September 14, 2021, the Council approved a Resolution authorizing the purchase of Outdoor 
Fitness Court equipment with the intent of installing the equipment at Les Lacs Park. Based on 
resident input and Council direction, the location of the Outdoor Fitness Court was changed to 
Vitruvian Park. 
 
The change to a new location necessitated amendments to the professional service agreements for 
the fitness court slab design and other engineering aspects of the project. The discovery of the 
unclassified fill at the new site requires the use of helical piers under the fitness court slab in lieu 
of a traditional slab on grade. The helical piers and other factors associated with the new location 
will increase the cost of the project. 
 
The Vitruvian Park Fitness Court project was issued for competitive sealed proposal on Periscope 
March 20, 2023, under Bid Number 23-67. Four proposals were received on April 13, 2023 and 
the tabulation of those proposals is shown below. 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
May 23, 2023 City Council Meeting Minutes       Page 6 of 8 
 

  
VITRUVIAN PARK FITNESS COURT CONSTRUCTION BID TABULATION 

CONTRACTOR DEAN 
ELECTRIC APR GROUP FAIN 

CONSTRUCTION 
NORTH ROCK 

CONSTURCTION 
BASE BID $234,959 $239,953 $258,760 $309,632 
CONSTRUCTION DAYS (CAL) 65 DAYS 52 DAYS 120 DAYS 60 DAYS 
 
Staff scored the proposals using information supplied by the contractors and deemed the offer from 
Dean Electric to represent the best value. They have also performed exceptionally well on two 
previous projects for Town staff. 

The additional services required for the Vitruvian Park location have exhausted the available bond 
funds to construct the fitness court slab. Staff recommends this project be funded by an end-of-
year budget amendment from Self-Funded Project Funds. 

MOTION:  Council Member Willesen moved to approve Resolution (R23-051) approving the 
construction services agreement with Dean Electric, Inc.  Council Member Craig seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

12. Present, discuss, and consider action on RESOLUTION R23-052 approving the Early 
Termination of Ground Lease #0200-3504 between the Town of Addison and RR 
Investments, Inc. (d/b/a Million Air Dallas), located at 4550 Jimmy Doolittle Drive on 
the condition and subject to Council approving a replacement Ground Lease; and 
authorizing the City Manager to execute all necessary documents. [Bill Dyer, Assistant 
Airport Director - Real Estate] 
 

In June 2021, Addison Airport advertised a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) #21-77 for the 
redevelopment opportunity of the 1.8-acre unimproved parcel of airport land adjacent to the US 
Customs / Airport Administration offices. There was not enough interest to lead to further 
negotiations. In 2022, the airport reposted the 1.8-acre site's availability and received three 
favorable responses, including one from RR Investments, Inc. (RRI). RRI has been a tenant of 
good standing at Addison Airport since the early 1980s while doing business as Million Air Dallas. 
 
Around the same time, RRI was the successful bidder and acquired the ground leasehold interests 
at 4550 Jimmy Doolittle Drive. This is a 2.25-acre parcel of airport land and improvements that is 
adjacent to the 1.8-acre unimproved parcel. The Town consented to this sale and assignment of 
leasehold interests in September 2022. 

In part because of RRI’s acquisition of the 4550 Jimmy Doolittle property, RRI became the 
preferred prospect to develop the 1.8-acre parcel next door. In October 2022, the Town entered a 
Letter of Intent with RRI to exclusively negotiate a new ground lease agreement to replace and 
supersede the underlying ground lease for 4550 Jimmy Doolittle. The new agreement would, 
among other things, include the above-described 1.8-acre unimproved vacant parcel of airport land 
and allow RRI to expand their commercial aeronautical facilities with the intent of enhancing their 
international operations. 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
May 23, 2023 City Council Meeting Minutes       Page 7 of 8 
 

RRI is requesting the Council approve this new ground lease agreement to include both properties 
so RRI can construct heavy aircraft apron to support their FBO operations and potentially to build 
a private international terminal building next to the US Customs offices. 
 
Salient terms and conditions of the proposed ground lease and early termination agreement are 
discussed in the presentation. 

Assuming RRI exercises their option for term extension, the estimated overall valuation of the 
proposed ground lease arrangement today is $6,825,000 when considering RRI's minimum capital 
investment of $5,500,000 plus the net present value (NPV) of the projected annual rentals over the 
term of $1,325,000 when discounted at 10%. 

RR Investments, Inc. 4550-4553 Jimmy Doolittle Dr. 
Airport Land Area (acres) 4.05 
Annual Ground Rental (Stabilized) $132,875 
Projected Cashflow Over Term (rd) $6,827,000 
Net Present Value (Disc. @ 10%) (rd) $1,325,000 
Tenant Minimum Capital Investment $5,500,000 
Overall Projected Valuation (rd) $6,825,000 

 
The proposed ground lease arrangement with RRI: 

• Achieves the Town's Strategic Pillars and Milestones, 
• Is consistent with the 2013 Airport Strategic Plan and 2014 Airport Master Plan, 
• Enhances the Airport's annual revenue, and 
• Increases the overall value of the Airport and community. 

 
Million Air – Dallas President and COO Don Rickerhauser and VP and Manager of FBO 
Operations Jeff Zimmerman were present at this meeting and introduced to the City Council. 
 
MOTION:  Council Member Gardner moved to approve Resolution (R23-052) approving the 
Early termination of Ground Lease #0200-3504 with RR Investments, Inc. (dba Million Air Dallas 
as presented.  Council Member Willesen seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Adjourn Meeting 
 
There being no further business to come before the City Council, Mayor Arfsten adjourned the 
meeting at 9:14 PM. 
 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 
 
      
Bruce Arfsten, Mayor 
 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
May 23, 2023 City Council Meeting Minutes       Page 8 of 8 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Irma G. Parker, City Secretary 



   

Council Meeting 4.        
Meeting Date: 06/13/2023  

Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider action on a Resolution appointing Bruce Arfsten, Town of Addison
Mayor, as the Primary Representative and Bob Dubey, City of Richardson
Mayor, as the Alternate to the aggregated position of Representative to the
Regional Transportation Council (RTC) of the North Central Texas Council of
Governments.

BACKGROUND:
The Regional Transportation Council (RTC) is a forty-four (44) member
independent transportation policymaking body which determines how regional
transportation funds should be spent. The municipalities of Richardson and
Addison share one RTC representative, rotate the RTC appointment, and
collaborate to ensure the interests of both cities are represented. Because
Richardson Mayor Pro Tem Janet DePuy's (the current RTC representative)
term on the Richardson City Council ended in May 2023, a new appointment for
the remainder of the RTC term ending June 30, 2024 needs to be made. This
Resolution will appoint Addison Mayor Bruce Arfsten as the primary RTC
representative, and Bob Dubey, Mayor of the City of Richardson, as the
alternate. 

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - Regional Transportation Council 2023 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. R23-                                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-___ 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS, 
APPOINTING BRUCE ARFSTEN TO THE AGGREGATED POSITION OF 
REPRESENTATIVE, AND BOB DUBEY AS ALTERNATE TO THE AGGREGATED 
POSITION OF REPRESENTATIVE, TO THE REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION 
COUNCIL OF THE NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS, 
WHICH FRACTIONAL ALLOCATION MEMBERSHIP IS SHARED WITH THE TOWN 
OF ADDISON; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, regional transportation planning and improved mobility are goals of the Town 
of Addison; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Addison desires to have a representative on the Regional 
Transportation Council; 
 

WHEREAS, Janet DePuy served as Primary Representative on the Regional 
Transportation Council until her term on the Richardson City Council ended in May 2023; and 

 
WHEREAS, Council Member Guillermo Quintanilla, Jr. is presently serving as 

Alternative Representative on the Regional Transportation Council. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
ADDISON, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1. That Bruce Arfsten, Mayor of the Town of Addison, is hereby appointed to the 
Regional Transportation Council of the North Central Texas Council of Governments for the 
remainder of the term ending June 30, 2024. 
 
SECTION 2. That Bob Dubey, Mayor of the City of Richardson, is hereby appointed as Alternate 
to the Regional Transportation Council of the North Central Texas Council of Governments for the 
remainder of the term ending June 30, 2024. 
 
SECTION 3. That this Resolution shall become effective immediately from and after its passage. 
 
DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas, on this 
the 13th day of JUNE 2023. 
      TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Bruce Arfsten, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Irma G. Parker, City Secretary 



   

Council Meeting 5.        
Meeting Date: 06/13/2023  

Department: Finance
Pillars: Gold Standard in Financial Health
Milestones: Continue development and implementation of Long Term Financial

Plan

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider action on an Ordinance amending Chapter 6, of the Code of
Ordinances by amending alcoholic beverage fees, definitions, levy of fees by the
Town, adding provisions for non-payment, permit review, and consumption in
certain places.

BACKGROUND:
During the 86th legislative session, HB 1545 effectively combined various
licenses and permits issued by the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission
(TABC). Chapter 6 of the Town's Code of Ordinances includes regulation of local
permits for sales of alcoholic beverages. Several of the terms and fees
referenced in Section 6-5 of the Code of Ordinances no longer apply as they
were consolidated with the adoption of HB 1545. The amendments to the
Ordinance as proposed eliminate terms and permit fees no longer utilized by the
TABC. The amended Ordinance simplifies the fee structure by stating the Town
shall collect annual fees in the amount of half the fee charged by the TABC. This
change should prevent future amendments to this section of the Code of
Ordinances due to legislative changes to the alcoholic beverage code.                 

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Ordinance - Alcoholic Beverages 
Redlined Ordinance - Alcoholic Beverages 



 
Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No. O23-__  
  
  
  
 Page 1 of 4 

 

ORDINANCE NO. O23-___ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS AMENDING CHAPTER 
6, ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE TOWN 
BY AMENDING ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE FEES, DEFINITIONS, LEVY OF 
FEES BY TOWN; ADDING PROVISIONS FOR NON-PAYMENT, PERMIT 
REVIEW, AND CONSUMPTION IN CERTAIN PLACES; PROVIDING THAT THE 
CHANGES SHALL BE APPLIED BEGINNING IN 2023; PROVIDING A PENALTY 
NOT TO EXCEED FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($500.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Town of Addison, Texas (the “Town”) is a home rule municipality having 
full power of local self-government pursuant to Article 11, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution and 
its Home-Rule Charter; and 

 WHEREAS, there have been recent updates to state law governing the regulation of 
alcohol, including the rules and regulations promulgated by the Texas Alcohol and Beverage 
Commission related to local licensing, fees, and regulations applicable to establishments selling or 
serving alcoholic beverages; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town has reviewed Chapter 6 “Alcoholic Beverages” of the Town’s 
Code of Ordinances and determined that it is necessary to amend and update the same to ensure 
compliance with current state law. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1.  Chapter 6, “Alcoholic Beverages” of the Code of Ordinances of the Town 
of Addison, Texas is hereby amended and restated to comply with the current regulations adopted 
by the Texas Alcohol and Beverage Commission, to read as follows: 

“Chapter 6, Alcoholic Beverages 

Sec. 6-1. Definitions. 

The following words, terms and phrases when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different 
meaning:  

Special event means any event which is sponsored in whole or in part by the town. Special 
events shall include, but are not limited to: Addison Kaboom!®, Addison After Dark, 
Oktoberfest, Taste Addison, Vitruvian Park Events and other events as designated by the city 
council.  

State license means a license issued by the state or one of its agencies.  



 
Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No. O23-__  
  
  
  
 Page 2 of 4 

 

 

Sec. 6-2. State law to control. 

Nothing in this chapter shall be construed or interpreted to conflict with the state Alcoholic 
Beverage Code, V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code § 1.01 et seq. The provisions of this 
chapter shall be subject to the limitations of such code and such code shall control. The 
municipal court of the town shall have jurisdiction of any offense under this chapter and 
under state law only where the constitution and the general law of this state confer such 
jurisdiction thereon.  

 

Sec. 6-3. Restriction of sale of alcoholic beverages; Consumption of alcoholic beverages in 
certain public places. 

(a) Sale of alcoholic beverages for off-premises consumption shall be restricted to that certain 
area in the town which is described by the town Charter section 11.04. Nothing in this 
chapter shall conflict with said section of the town Charter.  

(b) It shall be unlawful for any person to consume any alcoholic beverage in any public or 
commercial parking area or a private multi-tenant residential parking area, or in any public 
street, alley or sidewalk in the city, with the following exceptions: 

1. Persons consuming alcoholic beverage on property that is permitted or licensed by 
the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission to serve alcohol beverages; or 

2. Persons consuming alcoholic beverages on property permitted for a Special Event 
where such permit authorizes the service of alcohol. 

3. Persons consuming alcoholic beverages on property permitted for a Special Event 
where such permit authorizes the service of alcohol. 

 

Sec. 6-4. Zoning laws to be complied with; Application review. 

(a) All persons and entities affected by this chapter shall comply with the zoning code and 
ordinances of the town. 

(b) Prior to issuing a town license to applicant for the proposed location, the town secretary 
shall certify whether the location is authorized to sell or serve alcoholic beverages for on-
premises or off-premises consumption, as applicable, in compliance with the zoning 
ordinance. 

(c) A Special Use Permit (SUP) shall be obtained for any establishment to sell or serve 
alcoholic beverages for on-premises or off-premises consumption in conformance with the   
SUP process provided in the zoning ordinance. 



 
Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No. O23-__  
  
  
  
 Page 3 of 4 

 

 

Sec. 6-5.  Fees; License required. 

(a) There is hereby levied and assessed and shall be collected by the town annual fees in the 
amount equal to one-half the fee charged by the state for the license issued by the Texas 
Alcoholic Beverage Commission, except when said fee is waived according to the 
provisions of the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Code.  The town license and permit fees shall 
be paid to the town at the same time the state license and permit fees are paid to the state.    

(b) The license issued under the provisions of the state alcoholic beverage code shall be prima 
facie proof of the classification of the occupation upon which the tax is levied and shall be 
the sole basis of determination of the amount of the town’s license fee.  

(c) The license fees provided by this section shall be collected by the town and shall be paid 
by every person engaging in such business for which a license is required under the 
provisions of the state alcoholic beverage code, and the town shall issue to the person the 
proper license.  

(d) It shall be unlawful for a person engaged in such business within the territorial and 
corporate limits of the town, for which a license is required under the provisions of the state 
alcoholic beverage code, without having first been issued a license from the town and 
having paid the town a license fee. 

Sec. 6-6. Special events. 

No person shall bring, carry or transport any alcoholic beverages into or onto any site in 
which a Special Event is taking place and where alcohol is being sold.” 

 

SECTION 2. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms of 
this ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a Class C misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be 
punished by a fine not to exceed five hundred dollars ($500.00) in accordance with Chapter 1, 
Section 1-7 of the Code of Ordinances for the Town of Addison. 
 

SECTION 3. The provisions of this ordinance are severable, and should any section, 
subsection, paragraph, sentence, phrase or word of this ordinance, or application thereof to any 
person, firm, corporation or other business entity or any circumstance, be adjudged or held to be 
unconstitutional, illegal or invalid, the same shall not affect the validity of the remaining or other 
parts or portions of this ordinance, and the City Council hereby declares that it would have passed 
such remaining parts or portions of this ordinance despite such unconstitutionality, illegality, or 
invalidity, which remaining portions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

SECTION 3. All ordinances of the Town in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance 
be, and the same are hereby repealed and all other ordinances of the Town not in conflict with the 
provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 



 
Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No. O23-__  
  
  
  
 Page 4 of 4 

 

SECTION 4. This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage and approval 
and after publication as may be required by law, the Town Charter, or ordinance. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas, on this 

the 13th day of JUNE 2023. 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 
 
             

Bruce Arfsten, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Irma G. Parker, City Secretary Whitt Wyatt, City Attorney 
 



PART II ‐ CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 6 ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES 

 

 

 

Addison, Texas, Code of Ordinances     Created: 2022‐09‐07 10:47:56 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 28, Update 4) 

 
Page 1 of 3 

Chapter 6 ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES1 

Sec. 6‐1. Definitions. 

The following words, terms and phrases when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings ascribed to them 
in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Special event means any event which is sponsored in whole or in part by the town. Special events shall 
include but not limited to: Airfair Addison, Founder's Day, Grand Prix, Addison Kaboom!®, Addison After Dark, 
Oktoberfest, Taste Addison, Vitruvian Park Events and other events as designated by the city council.  

State license means a license issued by the state or one of its agencies.  

(Code 1982, § 3.1‐1) 

Cross reference(s)—Definitions generally, § 1‐2.  

Sec. 6‐2. State law to control. 

Nothing in this chapter shall be construed or interpreted to conflict with the state Alcoholic Beverage Code, 
V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code § 1.01 et seq. The provisions of this chapter shall be subject to the limitations of 
such code and such code shall control. The municipal court of the town shall have jurisdiction of any offense under 
this chapter and under state law only where the constitution and the general law of this state confer such 
jurisdiction thereon.  

(Code 1982, § 3.1‐2) 

State law reference(s)—Preemptive nature of Alcoholic Beverage Code, V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code § 1.06.  

Sec. 6‐3. Restriction of sale of alcoholic beverages.; Consumption of alcoholic beverages in 

certain public places. 

(a) Sale of alcoholic beverages for off‐premises consumption shall be restricted to that certain area in the 
town which is described by the town Charter section 11.04. Nothing in this chapter shall conflict with such 
section of the town Charter.  

(b) It shall be unlawful for any person to consume any alcoholic beverage in any public or commercial parking 
area or a private multi‐tenant residential parking area, or in any public street, alley or sidewalk in the city, 
with the following exceptions: 

1. Persons consuming alcoholic beverage on property that is permitted or 
licensed by the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission to serve alcohol 
beverages; or 

 

1Cross reference(s)—Businesses, ch. 22; alcoholic beverages prohibited in parks, § 58‐39.  

State law reference(s)—Local regulation of alcoholic beverages, V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code § 109.31 et seq.  



 

 

 
     Created: 2022‐09‐07 10:47:56 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 28, Update 4) 

 
Page 2 of 3 

2. Persons consuming alcoholic beverages on property permitted for a Special 
Event where such permit authorizes the service of alcohol. 

(c) Any person found guilty of violating the terms of this section shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, 
and upon conviction therefore, shall be punished as provided in section 1‐4(b). 

(Code 1982, § 3.1‐3) 

Sec. 6‐4. Zoning laws to be complied with.; Application review. 

(a) All persons and entities affected by this chapter shall comply with the zoning code and ordinances of the 
town.  

(b) Prior to issuing a city permit to applicant for the proposed location, the city secretary shall certify whether 
the location is authorized to sell or serve alcoholic beverages for on‐premises or off‐premises 
consumption in compliance with the zoning ordinance. 

(c) A Special Use Permit (SUP) shall be obtained for any establishment to sell or serve alcoholic beverages for 
on‐premises or off‐premises consumption process outlined in zoning ordinance. 

(Code 1982, § 3.1‐4) 

Cross reference(s)—Zoning, app. A.  

Sec. 6‐5. Levy of fees by town. Fees; License required. 

(a)  There is hereby levied and assessed and shall be collected by the town of  annual fees in amounts equal to 
one‐half the fee charged by the state for the license issued by the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission, 
except when said fee is waived according to the provisions of the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Code.  The city 
license and permit fees shall be paid to the city at the same time the state license and permit fees are paid to 
the state.   of those payable to the state pursuant to the following provisions:  

(1)  Package store permit—V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code ch. 22.  

(2)  Local distributor's permit—V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code ch. 23.  

(3)  Wine only package store permit—V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code ch 24.  

(4)  Wine and beer retailer's permit—V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code ch. 25.  

(5)  Wine and beer retailer's off‐premise permit—V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code ch. 26.  

(6)  Mixed beverage permit—V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code ch. 28.  

(7)  Mixed beverage late hours permit—V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code ch. 29.  

(8)  Daily temporary mixed beverage permit—V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code ch. 30.  

(9)  Caterer's permit—V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code ch. 31.  

(b)  The permit  license issued under the provisions of the state alcoholic beverage code shall be prima facie 
proof of the classification of the occupation upon which the tax is levied and shall be the sole basis of 
determination of the amount of the license fee.  

(c)  The following are exempt from the fee authorized in this chapter:  

(1)  Agent's, airline beverage, passenger train beverage, industrial, carrier's, private carrier's, private club 
registration, local cartage, storage and temporary wine and beer retailer's permits;  

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a,
b, c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 
0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a,
b, c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 
0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: List 1



 

 

 
     Created: 2022‐09‐07 10:47:56 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 28, Update 4) 

 
Page 3 of 3 

(2)  A wine and beer retailer's permit issued for a dining, buffet, or club car; and  

(3)  A mixed beverage license during the three‐year period following the initial issuance of the state 
license.  

(cd)  It shall be unlawful for a person engaged in such business within the corporate limits of the town, for which a 
permit or license is required under the provisions of the state alcoholic beverage code, without having been 
issued a license and having paid the town a license fee and then having received a receipt for such 
transaction.  

(de)  The license fees provided by this section shall be collected by the town's director of finance and shall be paid 
by every person engaging in such business for which a permit or license is required under the provisions of 
the state alcoholic beverage code, and the director of finance town  shall issue to the person the proper 
license, which shall state on its face for what it is issued, the date when it will expire, and by whom and 
where such business is to be conducted, and shall describe the place where such license is to be kept and 
state what type of business is to be permitted under the license. No license is transferable.  

(Code 1982, §§ 3.1‐5—3.1‐10) 

State law reference(s)—Fees authorized, V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code §§ 11.38 , 61.36 .  

Sec. 6‐6. Special events. 

No person shall bring, carry or transport any alcoholic beverages into or onto any site in which a special 
event is taking place and where alcohol is being sold.  

(Code 1982, § 3.1‐11) 

Sec. 6‐7. Proof of compliance with alcoholic beverage code required. Late fees, non‐payment. 

It shall be a condition precedent to the issuance of any license by the town as provided for in 

this chapter that the person shall furnish appropriate evidence to show that all 

provisions of the state Alcoholic Beverage Code, V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code § 

1.01 et seq., and any amendment thereto have been fully met, and that the person 

has been issued a license to engage in such business by the tax collector of the 

county.  

(Code 1982, § 3.1‐9; Ord. No. 087‐037, § 1, 6‐9‐1987) 

 

 

Formatted: Section



   

Council Meeting 6.        
Meeting Date: 06/13/2023  

Department: Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Hold a Public Hearing, present, discuss, and consider action on a request for a
Special Use Permit (SUP) to allow a Religious Institution on 1.28± acres located
at the northwest corner of Celestial Road and Winnwood Road (5555 Celestial
Road) that is currently zoned Planned Development (PD), through Ordinance No.
O91-038. Case 1868-SUP/5555 Celestial Road (White Rock Chapel). THE
APPLICANT HAS REQUESTED TO POSTPONE CONSIDERATION OF THIS
ITEM TO THE JULY 11, 2023 COUNCIL MEETING.

BACKGROUND:
The applicant has requested to postpone consideration of this item until the July
11, 2023 Council Meeting. Staff will re-notice this item in accordance with State
law. 

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval of this request to postpone consideration
to the July 11, 2023 City Council Meeting. 



   

Council Meeting 7.        
Meeting Date: 06/13/2023  

Department: Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, discuss, and consider action on a request for a Meritorious Exception to
Chapter 62 of the Code of Ordinances for Hawkers, located at 5100 Belt Line
Road, Suite 430, in order to allow Hawkers to exceed the maximum number of
attached wall signs per façade and for the attached wall sign to exceed the
maximum letter/logo height. (Case MR2023-04/5100 Belt Line Road, Suite 430 -
Hawkers).

BACKGROUND:
Hawkers is a new restaurant located within Village on the Parkway at 5100 Belt
Line Road, Suite 430. Hawkers is nearing completion and during the sign review
process, staff determined that the proposed signage did not comply. The
restaurant group submitted permits for two signs on the west facade including
the restaurant name and the logo, with the proposed logo sign exceeding the
maximum height. A Meritorious Exception to the Village on the Parkway Special
District within the Town’s sign code is necessary to allow an additional attached
wall sign, as only one is permitted by right, and to allow that sign to exceed the
maximum logo height. 

Hawkers has proposed a neon wall sign, featuring their logo, that is 74 inches tall
and 74 inches wide, with an effective sign area of 38 square feet. The bottom of
the sign is situated approximately 13 feet above grade. The restaurant's logo is
50 inches tall. The sign will be illuminated with skeletal neon. The second sign
proposed included the restaurant name, also illuminated with skeletal neon. This
sign is 30 inches tall and 228 inches wide, with an effective area of 89 square
feet. The bottom of the sign is situated approximately 12.5 feet above grade. 

Per the Village on the Parkway Special Sign District, each establishment is only
allowed one attached wall sign per façade. The applicant has proposed two
attached wall signs on the west façade, creating the need for a Meritorious
Exception. Additionally, the proposed 50-inch-tall logo sign exceeds the
maximum logo height of 36 inches by 14 inches, also requiring a Meritorious
Exception. 

The applicant is pursuing a Meritorious Exception to the sign ordinance based on
the below code provision: 

Town of Addison Code of Ordinances, Chapter 62 (Signs) 



Town of Addison Code of Ordinances, Chapter 62 (Signs) 
Section 62-33. – Meritorious exceptions.  

(d)(3) The council may consider appeals on the basis that such
regulations and/or standards will, by reason of exceptional
circumstances or surroundings, constitute a practical difficulty or
unnecessary hardship or on the basis that the proposed
improvement although falling under the definition of a "sign,"
constitutes art that makes a positive contribution to the visual
environment.

Staff does not believe that the criteria has been met for a Meritorious Exception
to allow an additional sign on the west façade. Allowing an additional sign
beyond what is permitted in the Special District undermines the intent of the
regulations, which is one attached wall sign per facade, and deviates from the
consistent amount of signage throughout the shopping center. Additionally, the
proposed sign features the restaurant’s logo, therefore is commercial in nature
and does not constitute art. 

Staff believes the criteria has been met for a Meritorious Exception to allow the
sign to exceed the maximum logo height by 14 inches. The proposed sign is
unique as it is a circle that only features one symbol, the restaurant's logo, with
no additional letters or graphics. The proposed sign utilizes 38 square feet of the
allowed 138 square feet of sign area, but due to the logo height requirement and
the Hawkers' logo design, the restaurant is more constrained than other
establishments that may have asymmetrical or linear signage. Additionally, the
proposed sign provides a sign that is more appropriately scaled to the tower. 

As recommended by staff, Hawkers would have the option to utilize either their
logo sign or the restaurant name, however, not both. If Hawkers wished to
integrate the logo sign with the restaurant name sign, to create a single sign, that
could resolve this issue as well.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends denial of the Meritorious Exception to allow Hawkers
to exceed the maximum number of attached wall signs per façade and approval
of the Meritorious Exception to allow an attached wall sign to exceed the
maximum logo height. 

Attachments
MR2023-04 Presentation 
MR2023-04 Ordinance 
MR2023-04 Plans 
MR2023-04 Rendering 





Hawkers 
Meritorious Exception
(MR2023-04)

1



Case MR2023-04 Hawker’s

LOCATION:
5100 Belt Line Road, Suite 430

REQUEST:
Approval of a Meritorious Exception to exceed 
the maximum number of attached wall signs per 
façade and for an attached wall sign to exceed 
the maximum permitted letter/logo height for a 
new restaurant, Hawkers.

ACTION REQUIRED:
Discuss and consider action on the 
appropriateness of the proposed sign code 
meritorious exception request.

2



3

Case MR2023-04 Hawker’s



4

Case MR2023-04 Hawker’s



5

Case MR2023-04 Hawker’s

SIGN CODE COMPLIANCE REVIEW

• The proposed wall sign exceeds the maximum 
number of signs per façade and exceeds the 
maximum letter/logo height permitted by the 
Village on the Parkway Special District sign 
regulations. 

• Applicant Justification: 
• The additional logo sign adds character and 

artistically draws attention to the 
restaurant entrance. 

• The logo sign highlights the architectural 
building element (tower) and adds an 
artistic element to the façade. 



MERITORIOUS EXCEPTION CRITERIA:
• The council may consider appeals on the basis that such regulations and/or standards will, by 

reason of exceptional circumstances or surroundings, constitute a practical difficulty or 
unnecessary hardship or on the basis that the proposed improvement although falling under the 
definition of a "sign," constitutes art that makes a positive contribution to the visual 
environment.

Does not meet hardship criteria:
• Exceeding the maximum number of signs on the west façade does not meet the hardship criteria 

and it is not considered art as it is commercial in nature. The additional sign undermines the 
intent of the special district and deviates from the consistency of signage throughout the center. 

Does meet hardship criteria:
• Exceeding the maximum logo height does meet the hardship criteria as the logo height 

requirement creates additional constraints for this logo design compared to other asymmetrical 
or linear signs. The proposed sign is appropriately scaled for the building. 

6

Case MR2023-04 Hawker’s



RECOMMENDATION:
• Staff recommends denial of the request to allow Hawkers to 

exceed the maximum number of attached wall signs per façade.

• Staff recommends approval of the request to allow Hawkers 
proposed attached wall sign to exceed the maximum logo 
height.  

As recommended by staff, Hawkers would have the choice to use 
either the logo sign or the restaurant name, but not both. 

7

Case MR2023-04 Hawker’s



Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No.           Page 1 of 6 

Case No. MR2023-04/Hawkers 

ORDINANCE NO. _______ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS, GRANTING A 

MERITORIOUS EXCEPTION TO CHAPTER 62 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

FOR HAWKERS, A RESTAURANTS LOCATED AT 5100 BELT LINE ROAD, SUITE 

430, TO EXCEED THE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF PERMITTED SIGNS PER FAÇADE 

AND TO EXCEED THE MAXIMUM PERMITTED LETTER/LOGO HEIGHT FOR AN 

ATTACHED SIGN; PROVIDING A PENALTY NOT TO EXCEED FIVE HUNDRED 

DOLLARS ($500.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 62 of the Code of Ordinances regulates signage in the Town of 

Addison; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Section 62-33 permits the City Council to approve exceptions to provisions 

of Chapter 62 in cases that have obvious merit in not only being appropriate to the particular site 

or location, but also in making a positive contribution to the visual environment; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the grant of the meritorious exception 

contained herein is in the best interest of the public and positively contributes to the visual aesthetic 

of the Town. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

 

 SECTION 1.  The recitals and findings set forth above are hereby found to be true and 

correct and incorporated as if fully set forth herein. 

 

 SECTION 2.  A meritorious exception to Chapter 62 of the Code of Ordinances is hereby 

granted for Hawkers, a restaurant located at 5100 Belt Line Road, Suite 430, to allow two attached 

wall signs on the same façade and to allow an attached wall sign to exceed the maximum permitted 

letter/logo height, as depicted in Exhibit A. Except as permitted herein, all other signage on the 

Property shall comply with Chapter 62 of the Code of Ordinances.     

 

 SECTION 3.  Any person, firm, corporation, or other business entity violating any of the 

provisions or terms of this Ordinance shall, in accordance with Section 62-35 of the Town of 

Addison Code of Ordinance, be fined, upon conviction, in an amount of not more than Five 

Hundred and No/100 Dollars ($500.00), and a separate offense shall be deemed committed each 

day during or on which a violation occurs or continues. 

 

 SECTION 4.  This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage and 

approval and after publication as may be required by law or by the City Charter or ordinance. 

 

  

  



Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No.           Page 2 of 6 

Case No. MR2023-04/Hawkers 

 PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas, on this 

the 13TH day of JUNE 2023. 

 

 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 

 

 

             
Bruce Arfsten, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

 

              
Irma Parker, City Secretary Whitt L. Wyatt, City Attorney



EXHIBIT A 
 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No.           Page 3 of 6 

Case No. MR2023-04/Hawkers 



EXHIBIT A 
 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No.           Page 4 of 6 

Case No. MR2023-04/Hawkers 



EXHIBIT A 
 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No.           Page 5 of 6 

Case No. MR2023-04/Hawkers 



EXHIBIT A 
 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No.           Page 6 of 6 

Case No. MR2023-04/Hawkers 

 



1 6

Address

Approval / Date

FINAL ELECTRICAL
CONNECTION BY

CUSTOMER

Address

Sheet

HAWKERS

0635678Ar3

K MOLTZ

B VELARDEE

03/30/23

R1:EC:3/31/23: (A) DELETE 
OPT 1 & 2.

R2:BV:04/11/23: (A) ADD OPT

R3:BV:04/21/23: DELETE A1

5100 BELT LINE RD.
STE 430

ADDISON, TX

N

W

S

E
SITE NTS

SITE



2 6

Address

Approval / Date

FINAL ELECTRICAL
CONNECTION BY

CUSTOMER

Address

Sheet

HAWKERS

0635678Ar3

K MOLTZ

B VELARDEE

03/30/23

R1:EC:3/31/23: (A) DELETE 
OPT 1 & 2.

R2:BV:04/11/23: (A) ADD OPT

R3:BV:04/21/23: DELETE A1

5100 BELT LINE RD.
STE 430

ADDISON, TX

N

W

S

E
SITE SCALE: 1/16"= 1'-0"

A2

B



3 6

Address

Approval / Date

FINAL ELECTRICAL
CONNECTION BY

CUSTOMER

Address

Sheet

HAWKERS

0635678Ar3

K MOLTZ

B VELARDEE

03/30/23

R1:EC:3/31/23: (A) DELETE 
OPT 1 & 2.

R2:BV:04/11/23: (A) ADD OPT

R3:BV:04/21/23: DELETE A1

5100 BELT LINE RD.
STE 430

ADDISON, TX

WEST ELEVATION SCALE: 1/8" = 1' - 0"

A2
±1

6
'-3

 O
.C

.
C

EN
TER

 IN
 A

R
EA

OPTION 1

B

12'-8"



5 6

Address

Approval / Date

FINAL ELECTRICAL
CONNECTION BY

CUSTOMER

Address

Sheet

HAWKERS

0635678Ar3

K MOLTZ

B VELARDEE

03/30/23

R1:EC:3/31/23: (A) DELETE 
OPT 1 & 2.

R2:BV:04/11/23: (A) ADD OPT

R3:BV:04/21/23: DELETE A1

5100 BELT LINE RD.
STE 430

ADDISON, TX

ONE [1] REQUIRED-MANUFACTURE & INSTALL

SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

NEW 1⅛" DEEP FABRICATED ALUMINUM BACKER PTD .PMS 172C ORANGE

GRAPHIC IS 1ST SURFACE 7725-10 OPAQUE WHITE VINYL APPLIED TO FACE OF PANEL.

MANUFACTURE AND INSTALL NEW 15MM SKELETAL ORANGE NEON TUBING.

NEON MOUNTS TO BACKER W/ NEON TUBE STANDS.

BACKER MOUNTS FLUSH TO WALL DECORATION W/ APPROPRIATE HARDWARE
& REMOTE TRANSFORMERS.

SKELETAL NEON WALL SIGN END VIEW

ILLUMINATION

A2

SIGN REQUIRES ACCESS BEHIND 
WALL FOR INSTALL & SERVICE OF 

REMOTE TRANSFORMERS

PRELIMINARY DETAIL
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"

1/2" LIQUIDTITE
COMPRESSION FITTING

WITH BUSHINGS
ALL BUILDING PENETRATIONS

TO BE SEALED.

NEON STANDS

NEON TUBING

1/2" LIQUIDTITEGTO WIRE
W/ SLEEVE

TRANSFORMER
INSIDE WET 
LOCATION BOX.

MASTER'S WET 
LOCATION BOOTS

ALUMINUM PAN-PANEL 
BACKGROUND 

1⅛" WALL DECORATION
SURVEY REQ

1⅛"

4
'-

2
⅛

"

6
'-

0
" 

Ø

6
'-

2
" 

Ø

38.03 SQFT

OPTION 1



6 10

Address

Approval / Date

FINAL ELECTRICAL
CONNECTION BY

CUSTOMER

Address

Sheet

HAWKERS

0634397Ar14

K MOLTZ

E CAMERON

11/9/22

R1:HG:11/29/22:REVISE A1/A2
TO SKELETAL NEON; REV B TO
REMOTE;REV INCISEON COLOR
TO AMBER
R2:EC:12/16/22: (A1/A2) ADD
BACKER.
R3:BV:12/21/22: (A1/A2)
DELETE BACKER.
R4:HG:01/12/2023:RE-DESIGN
A1/A2 W/ 2 OPTIONS
R5:HG:01/13/2023:REVISE
DESIGN A1/A2 W/ 4 OPTIONS
R6:HG:01/24/23:REMOVE
OPTIONS 2-4
R7:HG:01/27/2023:REVISE
OPTION FOR A
R8:HG:ADD SETBACKS FOR ALL
SIGNS AND AFF DIMENSIONS
R9:BV:03/02/23: (A2) DELETE
R10-:BV:03/07/23: DUPLICATE
ELEVATIONS W/ SIGNS
R11:JH:03/27/23: REMOVE 'A'
- PLACED ON NEW WO#
R12:EC:4/13/23: (B) ADD
TAGLINE CAB. ADD (E).
R13:HG:4/18/23:REV E TO
MATCH B
R14:HG:04/24/23:REVISE E
TO RW MOUNTED LETTERS,
NO TAGLINE

5100 BELT LINE RD.
STE 430

ADDISON, TX

B
ONE 1[ ] REQUIRED - MANUFACTURE & INSTALL

SCALE: /2" = 1'-0"1

89.11 SQFT

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

HAWKERS:

MANUFACTURE AND INSTALL NEW 3" DEEP OPEN-FACE ALUMINUM CHANNEL LETTERS.

PAINT RETURNS TO MATCH PMS 425C GRAY. INTERIOR OF CANS PAINTED MAP WHITE

INTERNALLY ILLUMINATE WITH 15MM ORANGE NEON TUBING & REMOTE TRANSFORMERS.

MOUNT FLUSH TO WALL WITH MOUNTING HARDWARE TO SUIT.

CABINET:

MANUFACTURE AND INSTALL NEW 3" DEEP ROPT CABINET PTM PMS 425C

COPY IS 1/2" THICK [1/4" PROJECTION] 7328 WHITE ACRYLIC

INTERNALLY ILLUMINATE WITH PRE FINISHED WHITE LED PANEL

& REMOTE POWER SUPPLIES

MOUNT FLUSH TO WALL.

SEE FOLLOWING SHEET FOR SECTION DETAILS

OPEN FACE NEON LETTERS - REMOTE END VIEW

3"

NOTE! NEW BRAND ARTWORK

NIGHT VIEW

19'-0⅝"

(228⅝")
3

0
"

H

SIGN REQUIRES ACCESS BEHIND
WALL FOR INSTALL & SERVICE OF

REMOTE TRANSFORMERS

1
9

"

3
0

"

H

20 1½"'-

( )241½"

6
⅛

"





   

Council Meeting 8.        
Meeting Date: 06/13/2023  

Department: Parks & Recreation
Pillars: Optimize the Addison Brand
Milestones: Define and promote Addison Identity

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, discuss, and consider action on a Resolution approving the installation
of a public art piece created by artist David B. Hickman to be located within the
Cotton Belt Trail Corridor.

BACKGROUND:
The Addison Arbor Foundation (AAF) is proposing to commission five kinetic
bicycle sculptures, titled Team Illusion, created by artist David B. Hickman. The
sculptures will be located within the Cotton Belt Trail corridor adjacent to the
DART Silver Line that is currently under construction. The five bicycle sculptures
will be slightly larger than life-size and will be placed on top of 12-14 foot tall
poles that allow rotation with the wind. It is anticipated that the sculptures will be
located near the entrance to the pedestrian bridge that will span Midway Road.
The exact location will be finalized when the amenities for the Cotton Belt Trail
are designed. AAF has the opportunity to purchase the sculptures from the artist
prior to the completion of trail construction and staff has identified a location in
which they can be stored until the site is ready for installation. 

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Presentation - AAF Public Art Instalation Hickman 
Resolution - AAF Public Art Hickman 



Public Art
Location Request
Artist: David B. Hickman

Materials:  Painted Steel

Size:  Height 12-14’, Width 4-6’

Title:  Team Illusion

Location:  Along the Cotton Belt Trail 
Corridor

Color:  TBD

* The intent is to locate the sculpture within the Cotton Belt Trail Corridor within Addison.  The noted 
location is provided for discussion purposes but may be adjusted with the development of the Cotton 
Belt Amenities Plans.



Public Art
Location Request
Artist: David B. Hickman

Materials:  Painted Steel

Size:  Height 12-14’, Width 4-6’

Title:  Team Illusion

Location:  Along the Cotton Belt Trail 
Corridor

Color:  TBD



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _____         Page 1 of 2 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

APPROVING THE INSTALLATION OF A PUBLIC ART PIECE CREATED BY 

DAVID B HICKMAN TO BE LOCATED WITHIN THE COTTON BELT TRAIL 

CORRIDOR; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Addison Arbor Foundation desires to commission and install certain 

public art for the Town of Addison (“City”) by artist David B. Hickman, which consists of a five 

steel kinetic bicycle sculptures (the “Public Art”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to accept the dontation of the Public Art from the 

Addison Arbor Foundation and approve the placement of the Public Art Within the Cotton Belt 

Trail Corridor. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1.  The Addison City Council approves and accepts the dontation of the Public 

Art by artist David B Hickman to be commissioned by the Addison Arbor Foundation, as shown 

in Exhibit A attached hereto. The City Council further authorizes the installation of the foregoing 

Public Art by the Addison Arbor Foundation within the Cotton Belt Trail Corridor. 

 

SECTION 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 

 

 DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 

Texas, on this the 13th day of June, 2023. 

 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 

[sig|req|signer3|Signature] 

             

Bruce Arfsten, Mayor 

 

ATTEST:  
 

[sig|req|signer4|Signature] 

       

Irma Parker, City Secretary  
 

 

 
 

 

 
  



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _____         Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 

 

Pictured below proposed artist concept for five steel kinetic bicycle sculptures and approximate location. Colors of 

commission sculpture TBD. 

 

 



   

Council Meeting 9.        
Meeting Date: 06/13/2023  

Department: Public Works
Pillars: Excellence in Asset Management

Excellence in Transportation Systems
Milestones: Implement the Asset Management Plan in accordance with the Asset

Management Policy, utilizing information systems
Improve all modes of transportation with infrastructure in an
acceptable condition and well maintained

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, discuss, and consider action on a Resolution approving an agreement
for professional engineering services between the Town of Addison and Teague
Nall and Perkins, Inc. for the design of the Quorum Drive Reconstruction Project
and authorizing the City Manager to execute the agreement in an amount not to
exceed $4,421,647.

BACKGROUND:
The purpose of this item is to approve a professional services agreement for the
design of the reconstruction of Quorum Drive from the DART railroad, just north
of Arapaho Road, south to Dallas Parkway.

As part of Proposition B in the 2019 bond election, voters approved a total of
$26.3M for the Quorum Drive Reconstruction Project. This included $23.4M for
civil work and $2.9M for placemaking.  

In October 2022, an RFQ (Request for Qualifications) was posted on Bidsync for
the design services needed for the project. The RFQ closed on November 21,
2022, with a total of ten Statement of Qualifications (SOQ) received. Following
the evaluation, the selection committee chose the top two engineering firms for
interviews. Ultimately, Teague Nall & Perkins (TNP) was selected as the most
qualified for the project. Town staff then began negotiations with TNP,
successfully developed a work scope, and finalized an agreement.

A complete scope of services can be found in exhibit "A" of the agreement, but it
generally includes: 

Placemaking and urban design visioning
Public involvement meetings
Reports and schematic plans
Subsurface utility engineering and coordination
Design of water, illumination, wastewater, drainage, traffic signals, and



Design of water, illumination, wastewater, drainage, traffic signals, and
roadway
Design of public spaces, landscape, irrigation, and aesthetics
Procurement support services
Right-of-way and easement preparations and acquisition
Geotechnical services
Preparation of construction packages
Project media, recognition, and awards

The proposed $4,421,647 design fee aligns with the cost estimates performed as
part of the 2019 bond election.
  
In addition to the $26.3M as part of the 2019 bond election, an additional $489K
in the Self-Funded Streets Fund is available. This brings the total project budget
to $26,791,409.  The design is anticipated to take approximately 18 months to
complete.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - Teague Nall & Perkins 
Presentation - Quorum Drive Design 



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH TEAGUE NALL & PERKINS FOR 
QUORUM DRIVE RECONSTRUCTION DESIGN IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $4,421,647.00; AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
THE AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to authorize an agreement with Teague Nall & 
Perkins for Quorum Drive Reconstruction Design in conformance with the City’s requirements. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1.  The City Council hereby approves the agreement between the Town of 
Addison and Teague Nall & Perkins for Quorum Drive Reconstruction Design in conformance 
with the City’s requirements and in an amount not-to-exceed of $4,421,647.00, a copy of which is 
attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the 
agreement. 

SECTION 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 

DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 
Texas, on this the 13th day of JUNE, 2023. 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

[sig|req|signer3|Signature] 

Bruce Arfsten, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

[sig|req|signer4|Signature] 

Irma Parker, City Secretary 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. _______

Page 1 of 55



Professional Services Agreement with Teague Nall & Perkins for Quorum Drive Reconstruction Design 1 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

QUORUM DRIVE RECONSTRUCTION DESIGN 

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made by and between the Town of 

Addison, Texas (“City”), and Teague Nall & Perkins (“Professional”) (each a “party” and collectively 
the “parties”), acting by and through their respective authorized representatives. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, City desires to engage Professional to perform certain work and services, hereinafter 
referred to only as "services", as further specified in the Scope of Services defined in Section 1 of this 
Agreement; and  

WHEREAS, Professional has expressed a willingness to perform said services in conformance 
with this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the covenants and promises made one to the 
other herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

Section 1. Scope of Services 

Upon written notice to proceed by City, Professional agrees to provide to City Quorum Drive 
Reconstruction Design (“Project”), as set forth in the Scope of Services attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 
incorporated herein by reference (the “Scope of Services”). Professional shall not be entitled to any claim 
for extra services, additional services or changes in the services without a written agreement with City prior 
to the performance of such services. 

Section 2. Term of Agreement 

The term of this Agreement shall begin on the last date of execution hereof (the “Effective Date”) 
and shall continue until Professional completes the services required herein and the City has accepted the 
same, unless sooner terminated as provided in this Agreement. 

Section 3. Professional’s Obligations 

(a) Performance of Services.  Professional shall furnish and pay for all labor, tools, software,
materials, equipment, supplies, transportation and management necessary to perform the services.  To the 
extent reasonably necessary, Professional may engage the services of any agents, assistants, or other persons 
that Professional may deem proper to assist in the performance of the services under this Agreement; 
provided, that Professional shall be responsible for all costs related thereto, except as expressly authorized 
in writing in advance by City.   

(b) Site Access.  City will endeavor to provide such rights of access on any project site as may
be reasonably necessary for Professional to perform any necessary studies, surveys, tests or other required 
investigations in relation to the services; provided, that City shall have no obligation to (i) provide off-site 
access, (ii) provide access to private property for which City does not have an existing right to access, nor 
(ii) incur any costs associated with the access to be provided under this Agreement.

(c) Standard of Care. Professional shall perform the services with the skill and care ordinarily
provided by competent professionals practicing in the same or similar locality and under the same or similar 

RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A



Professional Services Agreement with Teague Nall & Perkins for Quorum Drive Reconstruction Design 2 

circumstances and professional licenses.  Professional shall be responsible for the professional quality, 
technical accuracy, and the coordination of all services, including all Project Documents, designs, drawings, 
specifications, plans, reports, presentations and all other services furnished by Professional under this 
Agreement.  Professional shall, without additional compensation, correct or revise any errors or deficiencies 
in the services. Professional shall further make, without expense to City, such revisions to the Project 
Documents as may be required to meet the needs of City and which are within the Professional’s Scope of 
Services. 

(d) Additional Services.  Should City require additional services not included under this
Agreement, Professional shall make reasonable effort to provide such additional services in accordance 
with the fee schedule set forth in Exhibit A, and within the time schedule prescribed by City; and without 
decreasing the effectiveness of the performance of services required under this Agreement.  

(e) No Waiver of City’s Rights.  Neither City's review, approval, acceptance of, nor payment
for any of the services required under this Agreement, shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights 
under this Agreement or of any cause of action arising out of the performance of this Agreement, and 
Professional shall be and remain liable to City in accordance with applicable law for all damages to City 
caused by Professional's negligent performance of any of the services furnished under this Agreement. 

(f) Independent Contractor.  It is understood and agreed by and between the parties that
Professional, while performing under this Agreement, is acting independently, and that City assumes no 
responsibility or liabilities to any third party in connection with Professional’s actions.  All services to be 
performed by Professional pursuant to this Agreement shall be in the capacity of an independent contractor, 
and not as an agent or employee of City.  Professional shall supervise the performance of its services and 
shall be entitled to control the manner and means by which its services are to be performed, subject to the 
terms of this Agreement.  There is no intended third-party beneficiary to this Agreement. 

(g) Inspection of Records.  Professional grants City and its designees the right to audit,
examine or inspect, at City's election, all of Professional's Records (defined below) relating to the 
performance of services under this Agreement, during the term of the Agreement and any retention period 
herein. City’s audit, examination, or inspection of Professional’s Records may be performed by a City 
designee, which may include its internal auditors or an outside representative engaged by City.  Professional 
agrees to retain Professional’s Records for a minimum of four (4) years following termination of the 
Agreement, unless there is an ongoing dispute under the contract; then, such retention period shall extend 
until final resolution of the dispute. "Professional's Records" shall include any and all information, materials 
and data of every kind and character generated in connection with the services under this Agreement.  City 
agrees that it will exercise its right to audit, examine or inspect Professional’s Records during regular 
business hours unless City has provided advance written notice of an alternate time. Professional agrees to 
allow City and its designees access to all of Professional's Records, Professional's facilities, and the current 
or former employees of Professional, to the extent deemed reasonably necessary by City or its designee(s), 
to perform such audit, inspection or examination. 

(h) Certification of No Conflicts.  Professional hereby warrants to the City that Professional
has made full disclosure in writing of any existing or potential conflicts of interest related to Professional's 
services under this Agreement. In the event that any conflicts of interest arise after the Effective Date of 
this Agreement, Professional hereby agrees immediately to make full disclosure to the City in writing.  

(i) Hazardous Materials.  Professional shall report the presence and location of any hazardous
materials it notices or which an professional of similar skill and experience should have noticed to the City. 

Section 4. Performance Schedule 



Professional Services Agreement with Teague Nall & Perkins for Quorum Drive Reconstruction Design 3 

(a) Time for Performance.  Professional shall perform all services as provided for under this
Agreement in a proper, efficient, timely, and professional manner in accordance with City's requirements. 
In the event Professional's performance of this Agreement is delayed or interfered with by acts of the City 
or others, Professional may request an extension of time in conformance with this Section 4 for the 
performance of same as hereinafter provided but shall not be entitled to any increase in fee or price, or to 
damages or additional compensation as a consequence of such delays. 

(b) Extensions; Written Request Required.  No allowance of any extension of time, for any
cause whatever (including an event of Force Majeure as defined herein below), shall be claimed or made 
to Professional, unless Professional shall have made written request upon City for such extension within 
forty-eight (48) hours after the cause for such extension occurred, and unless City and Professional have 
agreed in writing upon the allowance of additional time to be made. 

Section 5. Documents 

(a) Project Documents. All proposals, reports, studies, surveys, applications, drawings, plans,
specifications, data, and other documents, whether in draft form or final form (including any electronic 
format) prepared by Professional and its employees, consultants, subcontractors, agents, or representatives 
(collectively referred to in this section as “Professional) for the use and/or benefit of City in connection 
with this Agreement (“Project Documents”).  Professional shall be deemed the authors of their respective 
component of the Project Documents.  Notwithstanding, upon payment by City as required by this 
Agreement, City shall own, have, keep and retain all rights, title and interest in and to all Project Documents, 
including all ownership, common law, statutory, and other reserved rights, including copyrights (except 
copyrights held by the Professional) in and to all Project Documents, whether in draft form or final form, 
which are produced at City’s request and in furtherance of this Agreement. City shall have full authority to 
authorize any contractor(s), subcontractors, consultants, and material or equipment suppliers to reproduce 
applicable portions of the Project Documents to and for use in their execution of the services or for any 
other purpose.  Acceptance and approval of the Project Documents by City shall not constitute nor be 
deemed a release of the responsibility and liability of Professional for the accuracy or competency of its 
designs, working drawings, specifications, or other documents; nor shall such approval be deemed to be an 
assumption of such responsibility by City for any defect in the designs, working drawings and 
specifications, or any other documents prepared by Professional. 

(b) Professional’s Documents.  All previously owned intellectual property of Professional,
including but not limited to any computer software (object code and source code), tools, systems, equipment 
or other information used by Professional or its suppliers in the course of delivering the Services hereunder, 
and any know-how, methodologies or processes used by Professional to provide the services or protect 
deliverables to City, including without limitation, all copyrights, trademarks, patents, trade secrets and any 
other proprietary rights inherent therein and appurtenant thereto (“Professional’s Documents”), shall remain 
the sole and exclusive property of Professional.   Notwithstanding, Professional agrees that City shall have 
the right to access to all such information and City is granted the right to make and retain copies of 
Professional’s Documents. City acknowledges that any reuse of Professional’s Documents without specific 
written verification or adaptation by Professional will be at City's sole risk and without liability or legal 
exposure to Professional. 

(c) Confidential Information.  Professional agrees it will notify City in writing if it considers
specific information to be confidential or proprietary trade secrets and will use its best efforts to clearly 
mark all such information as “Confidential” and/or “Proprietary – Trade Secret” at the time it is delivered 
or made accessible to City.  City acknowledges that all such designated information is considered by 
Professional to be confidential and the exclusive property of Professional.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 



   
 

 
Professional Services Agreement with Teague Nall & Perkins for Quorum Drive Reconstruction Design 4 

 

Professional acknowledges that this Agreement, and all services performed hereunder, are subject to the 
legal requirements of the Texas Public Information Act and that City will have no obligation to protect or 
otherwise limit disclosure of any confidential or proprietary information if Professional has not notified 
City of such designation in conformance with this section.  Professional agrees and covenants to protect 
any and all proprietary rights of City (or other persons) in any materials provided to Professional by City. 
Additionally, any materials provided to Professional by City shall not be released to any third party without 
the consent of City and shall be returned intact to City upon termination or completion of this Agreement 
if instructed to do so by City. In the event City delivers to Professional any information that has been 
expressly marked “Confidential” or has notified Professional is confidential or is the proprietary 
information of a third-party, Professional agrees it shall not disclose to anyone directly or indirectly during 
the term of this Agreement or at any time thereafter, any such information, nor shall it use any such 
information for any purpose other than as reasonably necessary in connection with Professional’s 
performance of the services under this Agreement.  Professional shall further, at its own expense, defend 
all suits or proceedings instituted against City and pay any award of damages or loss resulting from an 
injunction, against City, insofar as the same are based on any claim that materials or services provided 
under this Agreement constitute an infringement of any patent, trade secret, trademark, copyright or other 
intellectual property rights. Notwithstanding, the foregoing confidentiality obligations shall not extend to 
and nothing herein shall limit either party’s right to disclose any information provided hereunder which: (i) 
was or becomes generally available to the public, other than as a result of a disclosure by the receiving party 
or its personnel; (ii) was or becomes available to the receiving party or its representatives on a non-
confidential basis, provided that the source of the information is not bound by a confidentiality agreement 
or otherwise prohibited from transmitting such information by a contractual, legal, or fiduciary duty; (iii) 
was independently developed by the receiving party without the use of any confidential information of the 
disclosing party; or (iv) is required to be disclosed by applicable law or  a court order. 
 

Section 6. Payment 

 
(a) Compensation. Professional’s compensation shall be as specified in the payment schedule 

set forth in Exhibit A; provided, that the total compensation under this Agreement shall not exceed FOUR 
MILLION, FOUR HUNDRED AND TWENTY-ONE THOUSAND, SIX HUNDRED AND FOURTY-
SEVEN DOLLARS ($4,421,647.00).   

 
(b) Payment Terms. City agrees to pay Professional for all services authorized in writing and 

properly performed by Professional in general conformance with the fee schedule set forth in Exhibit A, 
subject to changes in the Scope of Services or additional services agreed upon in writing. Unless otherwise 
agreed in writing, all payments to Professional by City shall be based on detailed monthly invoices 
submitted by Professional for work performed and accepted by City, less any previous payments. Payment 
will be due within thirty (30) days of the City’s receipt and acceptance of an approved invoice. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, City reserves the right to delay, without penalty, any payment to 
Professional when, in the opinion of City, Professional has not made satisfactory progress on the Project as 
described in the Scope of Services.   

 
(c) Deductions.  City may deduct from any amounts due or to become due to Professional any 

sum or sums owing by Professional to City.  In the event of any breach by Professional of any provision or 
obligation of this Agreement, or in the event of the assertion by other parties of any claim or lien against 
City, or City's premises, arising out of Professional's performance of this Agreement, City shall have the 
right to retain out of any payments due or to become due to Professional an amount sufficient to completely 
protect City from any and all reasonably anticipated loss, damage or expense therefrom, until the breach, 
claim or lien has been satisfactorily remedied or adjusted by Professional. 
 
Section 7. Default; Force Majeure 



   
 

 
Professional Services Agreement with Teague Nall & Perkins for Quorum Drive Reconstruction Design 5 

 

 

(a) Default; Notice to Cure.  A party shall be deemed in default under this Agreement if the 
party is in breach of a material provision of this Agreement and said breach is not cured within fifteen (15) 
days written notice of default by the other party.  In the event the breaching party has notified the other 
party in writing that it is diligently working to cure the breach and has provided reasonable written evidence 
in support of the same, the breaching party shall not be deemed in default until the thirtieth (30th) day 
following the non-breaching party’s notice of default.  
 

(b) Default by Professional.  In addition to default under Section 7(a) above, Professional shall 
be in default under this Agreement if Professional fails to comply or becomes disabled and unable to comply 
with the provisions of this Agreement related to Professional’s performance of the services, including the 
quality or character of the services or time of performance for any material component of the services. If 
such default is not corrected within ten (10) days from the date of City’s written notice to Professional 
regarding the same, City may, at its sole discretion without prejudice to any other right or remedy: 
 

(i) Terminate this Agreement and be relieved of the payment of any further consideration to 
Professional except for all services determined by City to be satisfactorily completed prior 
to termination.  Payment for work satisfactorily completed shall be for actual costs, 
including reasonable salaries and travel expenses of Professional to and from meetings 
called by City at which Professional is required to attend, but shall not include any loss of 
profit of Professional.  In the event of such termination, City may proceed to complete the 
services in any manner deemed proper by City, either by the use of its own forces or by re-
subletting to others; or 

 
(ii) City may, without terminating this Agreement or taking over the services, furnish the 

necessary labor, materials, equipment, supplies and/or assistance necessary to remedy the 
situation, at the expense of Professional. 

 
(c) Force Majeure.  To the extent either party of this Agreement shall be wholly or partially 

prevented from the performance of any obligation or duty placed on such party by reason of or through 
stoppage of labor, riot, fire, flood, acts of war, insurrection, court judgment, or a government restriction, 
quarantine or mandatory closure order enacted in response to a pandemic or other public health crises, or 
other specific cause reasonably beyond the party’s control and not attributable to its malfeasance, neglect 
or nonfeasance (each an event of “Force Majeure”), the time for performance of such obligation (other than 
a payment obligation) may be extended for a period equal to the time lost by reason such event, provided, 
that the party complies with the provisions of this section. Specifically, the party asserting Force Majeure 
(i) shall give prompt notice to the other party of the prevention of performance as soon as the asserting 
party is reasonably aware of such prevention, and (ii) has the burden of demonstrating: (1) how and why 
their performance was so prevented, (2) the period of time during which they were so prevented from 
performing (which under the facts may be equal to, or shorter or longer than, the duration of the Force 
Majeure event itself), and (3) that the party used commercially reasonable efforts to mitigate and/or 
eliminate such prevention and resumed performance under this Agreement as soon as reasonably 
practicable. 
 

Section 8. Termination; Suspension 

 

(a) Termination Upon Default. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon written notice 
if the other party is in default of this Agreement, subject to the defaulting party’s right to cure in 
conformance with the terms of this Agreement. 
 



   
 

 
Professional Services Agreement with Teague Nall & Perkins for Quorum Drive Reconstruction Design 6 

 

(b) Termination by City. City shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement, with or without 
cause, by providing thirty (30) days prior written notice to Professional.   
 

(c) Termination Following Request for Modification. Should City require a modification of 
this Agreement with Professional, and in the event City and Professional fail to agree upon a modification 
to this Agreement, City shall have the option of terminating this Agreement and Professional's services 
hereunder at no additional cost other than the payment to Professional, in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement, for the services reasonably determined by City to be properly performed by Professional prior 
to such termination date. 
 

(d) Suspension.  City reserves the right to suspend this Agreement for the convenience of City 
by issuing a written notice of suspension which shall describe City’s reason(s) for the suspension and the 
expected duration of the suspension. Such expected duration shall, in no way, guarantee what the total 
number of days of suspension shall occur. Such suspension shall take effect immediately upon 
Professional’s receipt of said notice.  Should such suspension extend past the expected duration identified 
by City in its latest notice of suspension, Professional shall have the right to terminate this Agreement if (i) 
Professional provides not less than thirty (30) days prior written notice to City requesting to recommence 
the services, and (ii) City does not recommence the services within the time requested. 
 
Section 9. Insurance 

 

Professional shall during the term hereof maintain in full force and effect all policies of insurance 
reasonably required by City.  Professional’s obligation to provide acceptable certificates of insurance is a 
material condition precedent to this Agreement, and services under this Agreement shall not commence 
until certificates of insurance have been received, reviewed, and accepted by City.  The minimum coverages 
and limits of liability for the policies of insurance required for the specific services under this Agreement 
are maintained by and accessible through the City’s purchasing department.    
 

Section 10. Indemnification; Notice. 
 
 CITY SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY LOSS, DAMAGE, OR INJURY OF ANY KIND OR 
CHARACTER TO ANY PERSON OR PROPERTY ARISING FROM THE SERVICES OF 
PROFESSIONAL PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT.  PROFESSIONAL HEREBY WAIVES ALL 
CLAIMS AGAINST CITY, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES (COLLECTIVELY 
REFERRED TO IN THIS SECTION AS “CITY INDEMNITEES”) FOR DAMAGE TO ANY 
PROPERTY OR INJURY TO, OR DEATH OF, ANY PERSON ARISING AT ANY TIME AND FROM 
ANY CAUSE OTHER THAN THE GROSS NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT OF THE 
CITY INDEMNITEES. PROFESSIONAL AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND, AND SAVE 
HARMLESS THE CITY INDEMNITEES FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES, 
DAMAGES, CLAIMS, SUITS, COSTS (INCLUDING COURT COSTS, REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ 
FEES AND COSTS OF INVESTIGATION) AND ACTIONS OF ANY KIND BY REASON OF INJURY 
TO OR DEATH OF ANY PERSON OR DAMAGE TO OR LOSS OF PROPERTY TO THE EXTENT 
CAUSED BY THE NEGLIGENT PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT OR 
BY REASON OF ANY NEGLIGENT ACT OR OMISSION ON THE PART OF PROFESSIONAL, ITS 
OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, MANAGERS, EMPLOYEES, CONTRACTORS, SERVANTS, 
REPRESENTATIVES, CONSULTANTS, LICENSEES, SUCCESSORS OR PERMITTED ASSIGNS 
(EXCEPT WHEN SUCH LIABILITY, CLAIMS, SUITS, COSTS, INJURIES, DEATHS OR DAMAGES 
ARISE FROM OR ARE ATTRIBUTED TO THE GROSS NEGLIGENCE OR WILFUL MISCONDUCT 
OF A CITY INDEMNITEE, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, IN WHICH CASE PROFESSIONAL SHALL 
INDEMNIFY THE CITY INDEMNITEES TO THE EXTENT OR PROPORTION OF NEGLIGENCE 



Professional Services Agreement with Teague Nall & Perkins for Quorum Drive Reconstruction Design 7 

ATTRIBUTED TO PROFESSIONAL, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS, OR EMPLOYEES AS 
DETERMINED BY A COURT OR OTHER FORUM OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION).  

Notices of Claim.  Professional shall promptly advise City in writing of any claim or demand against the 
City, related to or arising out of Professional’s acts or omissions under this Agreement and shall see to the 
investigation and defense of such claims or demand at Professional’s sole cost and expense; provided, that 
City, at its option and at its own expense, may participate in such defense without relieving Professional of 
any of its obligations hereunder. Professional’s obligations under this section shall not be limited to the 
limits of coverage of insurance maintained or required to be maintained under this Agreement.  

THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION SHALL SURVIVE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF 
THIS AGREEMENT FOR A PERIOD OF FOUR (4) YEARS. 

Section 11. Notice. 

All notices required by this Agreement shall be in writing and addressed to the parties at the 
addresses set forth on the signature page(s) of this Agreement (or to such other address that may be 
designated by the receiving party from time to time in accordance with this section). All notices shall be 
delivered by (a) personal delivery, (b) certified or registered mail (in each case, return receipt requested, 
postage prepaid), (c) nationally recognized overnight courier (with all fees pre-paid), or (d) email of a pdf 
document containing the required notice. Such notice or document shall be deemed to be delivered or given, 
whether actually received or not, (i) when received if delivered or given in person, (ii) if sent by United 
States mail, three (3) business days after being deposited in the United States mail as set forth above, (iii) 
on the next business day after the day the notice or document is provided to a nationally recognized carrier 
to be delivered as set forth above, or (iv) if sent by email, the next business day.  A confirmation of delivery 
report which reflects the time that the email was delivered to the recipient’s last notified email address is 
prima facie evidence of its receipt by the recipient, unless the sender receives a delivery failure notification, 
indicating that the email has not been delivered to the recipient. 

Section 12. Verifications by Professional 

Professional’s execution of this Agreement shall serve as its formal acknowledgement and written 
verification that: 

(a) if the requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, apply to this
Agreement and Professional agrees that the Agreement can be terminated if Professional knowingly or 
intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter; 

(b) pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2270, that Professional’s organization does
not presently boycott Israel and will not boycott Israel during the term of this Agreement; and 

(c) pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2251, that Professional’s organization does
not current discriminate against firearm and ammunition industries and will not for the term of the 
contract.  Discriminating means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise 
taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial relations 
specifically with the firearm or ammunition industry or with a person or entity doing business in the firearm 
or ammunition industry, but does not include an action made for ordinary business purposes. 

Section 13. Miscellaneous 



   
 

 
Professional Services Agreement with Teague Nall & Perkins for Quorum Drive Reconstruction Design 8 

 

 (a) Professional shall not assign or sublet this Agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior 
written consent of City.  (b) Professional shall comply with all federal, state, county, and municipal laws, 
ordinances, resolutions, regulations, rules, and orders applicable to the services under this Agreement.   (c) 
The laws of the State of Texas shall govern this Agreement; and venue for any action concerning this 
Agreement shall be in the state district courts of Dallas County, Texas.  The parties agree to submit to the 
personal and subject matter jurisdiction of said courts. (d) This Agreement contains the entire understanding 
of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and there are no oral understandings, statements or 
stipulations bearing upon the meaning or effect of this Agreement which have not been incorporated herein.   
(e) The exhibits attached hereto, if any, are incorporated herein and made a part hereof for all purposes.  (f) 
Unless expressly provided otherwise herein, this Agreement may only be modified, amended, supplemented 
or waived by a mutual written agreement of the parties.  (g) In the event any one or more of the provisions 
contained in this Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any 
respect, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions, and the 
Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been 
contained in it.  (h) Any of the representations and obligations of the parties, as well as any rights and 
benefits of the parties pertaining to a period of time following the termination of this Agreement shall 
survive termination.  (i) This Agreement may be executed by the parties in separate counterparts, each of 
which when so executed and delivered shall be an original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute 
one and the same instrument.  Each counterpart may consist of any number of copies hereof each signed by 
less than all, but together signed by all of the parties.  (j) Each party represents that it has full capacity and 
authority to grant all rights and assume all obligations granted and assumed under this Agreement.  (k) 
Subject to the provisions regarding assignment, this Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit 
of the parties to it and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and 
assigns. 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK - 
SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 



Professional Services Agreement with Teague Nall & Perkins for Quorum Drive Reconstruction Design 9 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Agreement as of 
the Effective Date. 

For City: 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

[sig|req|signer1|Signature] 
By: 

David Gaines 
 City Manager 

[date|req|signer1|Date of Signing] 
Date:   

For Professional: 

TEAGUE NALL & PERKINS 

[sig 
By: 

 Jonathan Bengfort 
 Director of Engineering Services 

[ 
Date: 

Notice Address: 

Town of Addison 
Attn: City Manager 
P.O. Box 9010 
Town of Addison, Texas 75001 
E: dgaines@addisontx.gov 

Addison Contract ID:  
PSA_STW_May 30, 2023_v1.20220427 

Notice Address: 

Teague Nall & Perkins 
Attn: Jonathan Bengfort, Director of 
Engineering Services 
5237 N Riverside Dr suite 100 
Fort Worth, Texas 76137 

E: jbengfort@tnpinc.com 

5/30/23



Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization  Page 1 

TOWN OF ADDISON 
QUORUM DRIVE REVITALIZATION PROJECT 

(DART TO DNT) 
(Revised May 22, 2023) 

GENERAL SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The “Project” shall mean the Quorum Drive Revitalization Project (DART TO DNT).  References to 
the “CONSULTANT” shall mean Teague Nall and Perkins, Inc. (Professional), references to the 
“TOWN” shall mean the Town of Addison, Texas. 

The work to be performed by the CONSULTANT under this Contract (Agreement) shall consist 
of providing engineering, surveying and landscape architecture services required for the 
preparation of plans, specifications and cost opinions for the reconstruction and revitalization of 
Quorum Drive, from the south side of DART Railroad ROW to the west side of the Dallas North 
Tollway ROW. The Project limits are further illustrated on Attachment ‘B’.  

The scope of work to be performed under this Agreement shall generally consist of the following 
services:  

1. Project management
2. Placemaking and urban design visioning (from Belt Line Road to the Dallas North Tollway)
3. Design summary report and schematic plans
4. Design-phase public involvement
5. Subsurface utility engineering and utility coordination
6. Topographic and boundary survey
7. Tree identification and management
8. Water and wastewater design
9. Drainage analysis and design
10. Roadway design
11. Traffic analysis and signal design
12. Illumination design
13. Public space, landscape, irrigation, and aesthetics design
14. Miscellaneous construction document development
15. Procurement support services
16. ROW/Easement document preparation
17. ROW/Easement acquisition
18. Geotechnical investigations
19. Agency coordination and permitting
20. Project media, recognition, and awards
21. Preparation of multiple construction packages
22. Direct Expenses

GENERAL PROJECT DESIGN PARAMETERS AND CRITERIA 

CONSULTANT shall be represented by a Registered Professional Engineer licensed to practice in 
the State of Texas at meetings of any official nature concerning the Project, including but not limited 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization  Page 2 

to scope meetings, review meetings, pre-bid meetings, and pre-construction meetings, provided that 
CONSULTANT has reasonable advance notice of the meeting. All Engineering documents released, 
issued, or submitted by or for a registered Engineering firm, including preliminary documents, must 
clearly indicate the Engineering firm name and registration number. Additionally, all completed 
documents submitted for final approval or issuance of a permit must bear the seal with signature 
and date adjacent thereto of a Registered Professional Engineer licensed to practice in the State 
of Texas associated with CONSULTANT. The TOWN Design Standards to be used shall include the 
design criteria adopted by the TOWN as well as other design standards including the North Central 
Texas Council of Governments Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction, the TXDOT 
Roadway Design Manual and Bridge Design Guidelines, Highway Capacity Manual, the American 
Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) A Policy on Geometric Design 
of Highways and Streets (Green Book), AASHTO LRFD Bridge Design Specifications, AASHTO 
Guide for the Development of Bicycle Facilities, Texas Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices 
(TMUTCD), ADA Accessibility Guidelines, and the Texas Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(TPDES) Guidelines as appropriate for the most cost effective design. Construction documents shall 
follow the TOWN’s design standards, including latest revisions. Any proposed pavement 
adjustments greater than 6” vertically or 12” horizontally shall require a design exception. 

The Opinions of Probable Construction Costs (including land costs) shall be based on the current unit 
prices in Dallas County for similar work and include adjustments to reflect the ease or difficulty of 
constructing the Project. Estimated land costs should be included with the Probable Cost Opinions as 
a separate line item. Cost Opinions shall be updated and provided with the conceptual submittal, 
preliminary submittal, final submittal and prior to the bid plan submittal. 

The placemaking and urban design visioning process shall be led by a registered landscape 
architect, urban designer, and placemaker.  

The standard plan sheet size shall be 22”x34”. Plans shall be easily legible when plotted at half-
size (11”x17”). The project manual shall be in 8 ½” X 11” format.  

PROJECT DELIVERABLES 

PLACEMAKING AND URBAN DESIGN VISIONING 
Project limits for placemaking and urban design visioning shall be the intersection of Belt Line Road 
and Quorum Drive to the north and the Dallas North Tollway ROW to the south.  Project limits for 
Landscaping and irrigation improvements shall correlate with the reconstruction of Quorum Drive 
from the south side of DART Railroad ROW to the west side of the Dallas North Tollway ROW. 

a. Provide high level notes/key takeaways from stakeholder meetings, site walk, and
activations related to placemaking and urban design.

b. Vision statement and program narrative with support imagery.
c. Graphic diagrams of the corridor as well as imagery and narratives describing proposed

enhancements to the public realm including character zones, public/open spaces, potential
programming/activations, paving, lighting, public art, and gateways.

d. Colored corridor site plan.
e. Conceptual cross sections of each character zone (one to two) focusing on the urban design

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 3  
 

of the parkway/sidewalk zone segment of the streetscape (sketchy, conceptual in nature). 
f. Eye level views of each character zone (one to two) focusing on the urban design of the 

parkway/sidewalk zone segment of the streetscape (sketchy, conceptual in nature). 
g. Coordinating with the TOWN for social media content as related to public engagement. 
h. Graphic PDF package of the above presented in an 8 ½” X 11” and 11”x17” format. 

SCHEMATIC SUBMITTAL (15%)   
Submittal package shall contain/include the following conceptual documents and activities: 

a. Project Design Summary Report (DSR) 
b. Design exceptions (if applicable) 
c. Geometric layout/roadway schematic 
d. Preliminary typical sections 
e. Preliminary design cross sections 
f. Schematic utility plan (water, sanitary sewer and storm drain), including soil bore logs 
g. Urban design and landscape schematic, with a maximum of 2 varying design directions 

including: 
i. Placemaking areas of opportunity identified including recommendations for activities 
ii. Diagrammatic connectivity to surrounding community identified (to include connectivity 

to east side of DNT and to proposed Farmers Branch trail on Landmark) 
iii. Refined eye level perspective views of each character zone (one to two) focusing on 

the urban design of the parkway/sidewalk zone segment of the streetscape (schematic 
in nature). 

h. ROW ownership map & proposed additional ROW/easement locations 
i. Communication matrix with all contacts and contact information 
j. Existing utility plans (SUE Levels D, C, & B)  
k. Tree survey plan 
l. Opinion of probable construction cost 
m. Updated design schedule 

 
Furnish TOWN with two hardcopies and an electronic (PDF) copy of the above items. 
 
The CONSULTANT shall submit the Schematic design package through a design meeting/workshop 
and allow 4 weeks for TOWN review and comment.  CONSULTANT shall not proceed with 
Conceptual Submittal design until provided with written TOWN comments on the Schematic 
Submittal. 

 
CONCEPTUAL SUBMITTAL (30%) 
Submittal package shall contain/include a written response to TOWN’s schematic review comments 
and the following documents and activities: 

a. Cover 
b. Sheet index and legend 
c. Project layout 
d. ROW and easement layout 
e. Typical Sections 
f. Roadway plan & profile sheets 
g. Driveway profiles 
h. Retaining wall layouts 
i. Drainage area map 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization  Page 4 

j. Storm sewer plan & profile
k. Traffic signal layouts (temporary and permanent)
l. Cross sections
m. Water line improvements (plan only)
n. Wastewater line improvements (plan only)
o. Illumination layout
p. Landscape layout with one (1) refined design direction as selected by the town from the

Schematic Design for the overall corridor as related to the reconstruction of Quorum Drive.
q. Hardscape layout, with one (1) refined design direction as selected by the town from the

Schematic Design.  Further development of placemaking effort as related to hardscape
improvements will be limited to the project area south of Belt Line Road.
i. Refined 360 degree eye level perspective views of each character zones (up to 2)

focusing on the urban design of the parkway/sidewalk zone segment of the
streetscape.

r. Existing utility plans (SUE sheets)
s. Opinion of probable construction cost (30% cost schedule)
t. Updated design schedule
u. Updated communication matrix
v. Utility conflict matrix

Furnish TOWN with two hardcopies and an electronic (PDF) copy of the above items associated 
with the 30% Submittal Package. 

The CONSULTANT shall allow 4 weeks for TOWN review and comment.  CONSULTANT shall not 
proceed with Preliminary Submittal design until provided with written TOWN comments on the 
Conceptual Submittal. 

PRELIMINARY SUBMITTAL (60%) 
Submittal package shall contain/include a written response to TOWN’s concept review comments 
and the following documents and activities: 

a. Cover
b. Sheet index and legend
c. General notes
d. Project layout
e. Survey control layout
f. ROW and easement layout
g. Typical sections
h. Demolition plan
i. Tree removal and preservation plan
j. Construction sequencing plan
k. Detailed traffic control plan (for DNT connection only)
l. Preliminary grading plan
m. Roadway plan & profile sheets
n. Driveway profiles
o. Intersection Improvements
p. Signing & pavement markings
q. Retaining wall layouts

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 5  
 

r. Drainage area map (including summary of computations) 
s. Storm sewer plan & profile (including summary of computations) 
t. Traffic signal layouts (temporary and permanent) 
u. Cross sections 
v. Water line improvements (plan and profile) 
w. Wastewater line improvements (plan and profile) 
x. Illumination layout 
y. Hardscape plan w/ supporting imagery of proposed hardscape palette 

i. Inclusive of furniture, proposed art, and site amenities as approved by the TOWN in 
Conceptual Design 

z. Landscape plan w/ supporting imagery of proposed planting palette 
aa. Irrigation Plan w/ proposed meters, controllers, electrical, sleeving, and mainline routing 

only 
bb. Erosion control plan 
cc. Existing utility plans (SUE sheets) 
dd. Standard details 
ee. Technical specifications 
ff. Easement/ROW parcel exhibits 
gg. Opinion of probable construction cost (60% cost schedule) 
hh. Updated design schedule 
ii. Updated communication matrix 
jj. Updated utility conflict matrix 

 
Furnish TOWN with two hardcopies and an electronic (PDF) copy of the above items associated 
with the 60% Submittal Package. 
 
The CONSULTANT shall allow 4 weeks for TOWN review and comment.  CONSULTANT shall not 
proceed with Pre-Final Submittal design until provided with written TOWN comments on the 
Preliminary Submittal. 

 
PRE-FINAL SUBMITTAL (90%) 
Submittal package shall contain/include a written response to TOWN’s preliminary review 
comments and the following documents and activities: 

a. Cover 
b. Sheet index and legend 
c. General notes 
d. Project layout 
e. Survey control layout 
f. ROW and easement layout 
g. Typical sections 
h. Demolition plan 
i. Tree removal and preservation plan 
j. Construction sequencing plan 
k. Detailed traffic control plan (for DNT connection only) 
l. Final grading plan 
m. Roadway plan & profile sheets 
n. Driveway profiles 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 6  
 

o. Intersection Improvements 
p. Signing & pavement markings 
q. Retaining wall layouts 
r. Drainage area map (including summary of computations) 
s. Storm sewer plan & profile (including summary of computations) 
t. Traffic signal layouts (temporary and permanent) 
u. Cross sections 
v. Water line improvements (plan and profile) 
w. Wastewater line improvements (plan and profile) 
x. Illumination layout 
y. Hardscape plan (including activation areas) 
z. Site furnishings plan 
aa. Landscape plan 
bb. Irrigation plan 
cc. Erosion control plan 
dd. Existing utility plans (SUE sheets) 
ee. Standard details 
ff. Special/Miscellaneous details 
gg. Technical specifications 
hh. Construction contract documents (project manual) 
ii. Sheet-by-sheet quantity takeoff tables 
jj. Opinion of probable construction cost (90% cost schedule) 
kk. Updated design schedule 
ll. Updated communication matrix 
mm. Updated utility conflict matrix 

 
Furnish TOWN with two hardcopies and an electronic (PDF) copy of the above items associated 
with the 90% Submittal Package. 
 
The CONSULTANT shall allow 4 weeks for TOWN review and comment.  CONSULTANT shall not 
proceed with Final Submittal design until provided with written TOWN comments on the Pre-Final 
Submittal. 

 
FINAL SUBMITTAL (100%) 
Submittal package shall contain a written response to TOWN’s pre-final review comments. Submit 
100% signed and sealed bid-ready drawings, project specifications/bid form, and opinion of 
probable construction cost.  
 
Bidding documents shall include but are not limited to the following: 

a. Cover 
b. Sheet index and legend 
c. General notes 
d. Project layout 
e. Survey control layout 
f. ROW and easement layout 
g. Typical sections 
h. Demolition plan 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 7  
 

i. Tree removal and preservation plan 
j. Construction sequencing plan 
k. Detailed traffic control plan (for DNT connection only) 
l. Final grading plan 
m. Roadway plan & profile sheets 
n. Driveway profiles 
o. Intersection Improvements 
p. Signing & pavement markings 
q. Retaining wall layouts 
r. Drainage area map (including summary of computations) 
s. Storm sewer plan & profile (including summary of computations) 
t. Traffic signal layouts (temporary and permanent) 
u. Cross sections 
v. Water line improvements (plan and profile) 
w. Wastewater line improvements (plan and profile) 
x. Illumination layout 
y. Hardscape plan (including activation areas) 
z. Site furnishings plan 
aa. Landscape plan 
bb. Irrigation plan 
cc. Erosion control plan 
dd. Existing utility plans (SUE sheets) 
ee. Standard details 
ff. Special/Miscellaneous details 
gg. Technical specifications 
hh. Construction contract documents (project manual) 
ii. Sheet-by-sheet quantity takeoff tables 
jj. Opinion of probable construction cost (100% cost schedule) 
kk. Basic construction schedule 
ll. Updated communication matrix 
mm. Updated utility conflict matrix 

 
Furnish TOWN with two hardcopies and an electronic (PDF) copy of the above items associated 
with the 100% Submittal Package. 

 

 
DETAILED SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
1. PROJECT MANAGEMENT  
 

1.1. Project Management 
 
Provide general administration for the contracted work, including internal staffing and task 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 8  
 

assignments. 
 

1.2. Project Initiation 
 
Prior to kick-off meeting, the CONSULTANT shall designate, in writing, one Registered 
Professional CONSULTANT licensed to practice in the State of Texas to be the Project 
Manager throughout the duration of the project for project management and all 
communications, including billing, with the TOWN.  
 
The CONSULTANT shall not replace the designated Project Manager without the written 
approval of the TOWN.  

 
1.3. Quality Control/Quality Assurance Plan 

 
The CONSULTANT shall prepare a Quality Assurance/Quality Control Plan for TOWN 
review and approval. The QA/QC Plan should include, as a minimum, the following: 

a. Project description, location, limits and minimum design criteria 
b. Project deliverables and schedules 
c. Organization chart showing responsibilities for design services and for quality 

control checks, which shall be conducted by an independent person qualified in 
the specific area of review 

d. Communications/coordination plan outlining the protocol for all communications 
related to the project 

e. Format and schedule for checking design reports, calculations, plans, and 
specifications for accuracy and completeness. The plan should make provisions 
for review of reports, plans, specifications, and estimates provided by sub-
CONSULTANTs. The CONSULTANT shall ensure that sub-CONSULTANT work is 
in accordance with their approved scope. 

f. Format and procedure for documenting all issues, design directions, design 
decisions, review comments, and review comment responses 

g. Format and procedures for certifying that all of the requirements of the 
QA/QC plan have been met and that all comments and issues have been 
resolved to the satisfaction of the reviewer 

h. Submit QA/QC documentation with all milestone plan submittals. 
 

1.4. Communication Matrix 
 
The CONSULTANT shall compile and maintain a list of project stakeholders and contact 
information. An updated communication matrix will be provided with each milestone 
submittal. Stakeholders may include, but are not limited to: 

a. TOWN staff 
b. CONSULTANT staff 
c. Property and business owners 
d. Office/Hotel Working Group (OHWG) 
e. Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) 
f. North and South Quorum Business Associations 
g. Private utility owners 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 9  
 

h. Permitting agencies 
 

1.5. Project Schedule, Invoice, Progress Reports, and Progress Meetings 
a. Project Schedule – The CONSULTANT shall submit a Project schedule for TOWN 

approval.  The following minimum activities shall be included in the project schedule.   
i. Kickoff Meeting 
ii. Placemaking and Urban Design Visioning Phase 
iii. Schematic (15%) Plan and DSR Submittal 
iv. Schematic Review Comments 
v. Conceptual (30%) Plan Submittal 
vi. Conceptual Review Comments 
vii. Preliminary (60%) Plan Submittal 
viii. Preliminary Review Comments 
ix. Pre-Final (90%) Plan Submittal 
x. Pre-Final Plan Review Comments 
xi. Final (100%) Plan Submittal 
xii. Final Review Comments 
xiii. Construction Bid plans Submittal 
xiv. Contractor Procurement Phase 

 
b. Invoice Submittals – The CONSULTANT shall submit its invoices of services 

completed and compensation due, arranged by tasks. The invoice submittal shall 
be submitted to the Program Manager monthly and include the following: 

i. Invoice – The budgeted and currently authorized amounts for each task, 
along with the invoiced and to-date amounts on the provided Program 
invoice forms. The invoice template provided by the TOWN shall be 
utilized. 

ii. Project Schedule Updates – An updated Project Schedule and related 
documents. 

iii. Progress Reports – A monthly report of the status of work performed 
through the end of the month. The CONSULTANT shall summarize decisions 
or agreements made, and shall outline unresolved or pending issues 
requiring the TOWN’s involvement or decision. 
 

c. Meetings –The CONSULTANT shall meet with the TOWN and shall prepare an 
agenda and sign-in sheet. The CONSULTANT shall prepare and distribute meeting 
minutes within five working days of a meeting.  The following is a summary of 
general project meetings anticipated that are not accounted for in other scope 
tasks: 

i. Kickoff meeting 
ii. Design review workshop with Town at 30%, 60%, 90%, and 100% 
iii. Miscellaneous stakeholder meetings (4) 
iv. Miscellaneous design coordination meetings (4) 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 10  
 

 
 
2. PLACEMAKING AND URBAN DESIGN VISIONING  
 

The CONSULTANT shall provide design visioning services by establishing the design intent and 
programming of the project through the design process from the intersection of Belt Line Road 
and Quorum Drive to the north and the Dallas North Tollway ROW to the south.  as illustrated 
in ‘Attachment A.’  This process includes the following: 

  
2.1. Understanding 

  
The CONSULTANT shall initiate the project by establishing context and mutual project 
understanding through an effort of asking and identifying what do we need to know.  The 
establishment of an Office/Hotel Working Group (OHWG) and a Citizen Advisory 
Committee (CAC) will be utilized to help guide the visioning process of listening first and 
then returning to report what we learned and verify if it is right.  An Inventory and Analysis 
of the project area will be established utilizing base data collection, field observations, 
on-site interviews, survey development, and public engagement.   
 
Included in this item: 

• One (1) site walk 

• One (1) Key client representative meeting (including North and South Quorum 
Business Associations) 

• Two (2) OHWG meetings 

• Two (2) CAC meetings 

• Two (2) Small group meetings (in person or virtual) 

• Up to four (4) individual interviews (in person or virtual) 

• Survey question development 
 
Not included in this item: 

• Architectural programming 

• Survey administration, distribution, and response collection (these services are 
available as an additional service upon request)  

 
2.2. Exploring 

 
The CONSULTANT shall explore visioning and programming for the project from the 
intersection of Belt Line Road and Quorum Drive to the north and the Dallas North Tollway 
ROW to the south.   A vision statement for the intended experience will be initiated along 
with a preliminary narrative.  Site and regional contextual analysis as well as 
benchmarking and comp assessments will be performed.  Based on the project 
understanding appropriate activation mechanisms, interventions, and programming will be 
filtered and refined. 
 
A conceptual urban design framework will be established including defining the major 
character zones through narrative, precedent imagery, and eye-level views and by 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 11  
 

developing design elements for each zone such as mid-block/typical segments, 
nodes/gateways/intersections, plazas, and bulb-outs.  
 
Application of the vision will be explored at a site level by integrating elements that 
support the program and vision to individual places.  Adjacencies, linkages, flow between 
subspaces and surrounding context, anticipated community interactions, public comfort and 
amenity ideas, public art locations and strategy shall be evaluated.   
 
Included in this item: 

• One (1) on site pop-up community engagement event 

• One (1) combined key client representative meeting, OHWG meeting, CAC 
meeting (including North and South Quorum Business Associations) 

• One (1) online follow-up meeting 
 
Not included in this item: 

• Design charrette 

• Town hall meeting 
 

2.3. Decision Making 
 
The CONSULTANT shall make final recommendations to establish the vision for the urban 
design and placemaking project area.  This will include final recommendations and a 
finalized vision statement based on the public engagement, proposed programming, and 
activation methods to be utilized to achieve the goals of the TOWN and the community.  

 

Included in this item: 

• One (1) combined key client representative meeting, OHWG meeting, CAC 
meeting (including North and South Quorum Business Associations) 

• One (1) Town hall meeting 

• One (1) Council work session presentation 
 
Not included in this item: 

• Changes to zoning or ordinances 

• Opinion of probable cost (to be established in TASK 3) 
 
3. DESIGN SUMMARY REPORT AND SCHEMATIC PLAN  
 

The CONSULTANT shall prepare a Design Summary Report and a concept schematic plan for 
the project based on the project vision established in TASK 2. The concept schematic shall 
conform to General Project Design Parameters and Criteria as stated previously.  
 
Any design exceptions necessary for concept schematic approval shall be identified and a 
"request for design exception” shall be prepared and submitted to the TOWN.  
 
The concept schematic shall incorporate the recommendations resulting from the placemaking 
and urban visioning process (Task 2). 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 12  
 

 
The concept schematic shall include: 

 
3.1. Data Collection and Review 

 
The CONSULTANT shall collect all pertinent project data from the TOWN including plans, 
as-builts, survey information and other reports. The CONSULTANT shall review this data for 
use in design of the Project.  
 

3.2. Collect Utility Plans from Municipalities and Franchise Utility Owners 
 
The CONSULTANT shall collect all pertinent and readily available utility plans from 
municipalities and franchise/private utility owners who have utilities in the Project corridor. 
 

3.3. Field Reconnaissance 
 
The CONSULTANT shall visit the Project site to record and photograph existing project 
conditions.  

 
3.4. Develop Design Summary Report  

 
The CONSULTANT shall apply appropriate design criteria and provide a Design Summary 
Report (DSR) for the Project and will submit to the TOWN for review and approval.  The 
CONSULTANT shall use the design criteria to identify the maximum and minimum values for 
all design elements and will identify the value preferred. 
 

3.5. Concept Schematic   
 
The CONSULTANT shall develop a concept schematic for the project that will be used to 
coordinate improvements within the Project corridor.  The schematic will be prepared at a 
scale of 1" = 100' or smaller scale (i.e. 1” = 50’) and shall include the following: 
 

a. Geometric Layout, Roadway Schematic 
 

Using a combination of the design survey, existing aerial photography, general 
property research, utility research, site visits and the CONSULTANT’s experience, 
prepare a concept schematic depicting the proposed improvements for the project. The 
design elements to be shown will include the following: 

i. Available aerial imaging from NCTCOG or other compatible sources,  
ii. Property ownership, 
iii. Recommendations for ROW acquisition, 
iv. Control data,  
v. Horizontal alignment,  
vi. Centerline curve data,  
vii. Lane configuration options and recommendations, 
viii. Signal improvements,  
ix. Construction limits,  

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 13  
 

x. Major culverts and drainage outfalls,  
xi. Water and sanitary sewer considerations,  
xii. Easements,  
xiii. Existing topography,  
xiv. Existing and proposed right of way,  
xv. Existing utility information compiled from research, survey and SUE. 
xvi. Proposed utility improvement identification,  
xvii. Existing ground profile and proposed vertical alignment.  
xviii. Include cross street centerline and profile, 
xix. Conceptual quantity take-offs and cost opinion. 

 
b. Landscaping Schematic 

 
Prepare a landscape schematic, which represents both the existing and proposed 
conditions.  The schematic shall incorporate the proposed landscape design. The 
schematic shall include representations of the various conditions proposed, such as 
prioritizing tree preservation, landscaping, irrigation mainlines and conduit locations (if 
applicable), visibility triangles, clear zones, and right-of-way width.   
 
c. Urban Design and Placemaking Schematic 

 
Prepare an urban design and placemaking schematic from the intersection of Belt Line 
Road and Quorum Drive to the north and the Dallas North Tollway ROW to the south , 
which represents both the existing and proposed conditions.  The schematic shall 
incorporate the proposed pedestrian and vehicular pavement design. The schematic 
shall include representations of the various conditions proposed, pedestrian 
environments, public spaces, public art, open space, multi-modal trails, slopes, number 
of lanes, retaining wall locations (if applicable), shoulder widths, clear zones, border 
width and right-of-way width.   
 
d. Preliminary Typical Sections 
Prepare preliminary typical sections, which represent both the existing and proposed 
conditions.  The typical sections shall incorporate the proposed pavement design.  
Typical sections shall include representations of the various conditions proposed, such 
as slopes, number of lanes, retaining wall locations (if applicable), shoulder widths, 
clear zones, border width and right-of-way width.   

 
e. Preliminary Design Cross Sections 

 
In conjunction with the concept schematic, preliminary design cross sections will be 
developed for critical locations within the Project where constraints or grade issues may 
impact the preliminary typical sections.  Each pavement layer and undercut, if any, will 
be shown together with the right of way limits, side slopes, pavement cross slopes, curbs 
and any existing or proposed retaining walls.  

 
3.6. Right of Way (ROW) Determination 

 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 14  
 

Based on the concept schematic and design cross sections, the CONSULTANT shall identify 
locations where additional right-of-way may be required.  These locations and limits shall 
be depicted on the design schematic. The CONSULTANT shall provide the TOWN a Right-
of-Way map as soon as possible so the process of acquiring easements or ROW and be 
initiated if necessary. 

 
3.7. Design Concept Review Meeting 

 
The CONSULTANT shall attend up to two (2) Design Concept Review Meetings to review 
the Concept submittals and to finalize the DSR and final Concept Plan and obtain consensus 
for the direction of the project.  The CONSULTANT shall not proceed with the Preliminary 
Engineering plans until written comments on the Concept Plans and DSR have been provided 
by the TOWN. 
 

4. DESIGN-PHASE PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT  
  

4.1. Public Meetings  
 
As directed by the TOWN, CONSULTANT shall prepare necessary materials for and shall 
participate in up to two open house-style public meetings during the project design phase. 
The design phase public meetings are anticipated to occur at the 60% and 100% design 
milestones.  
 

4.2. Town Council Meetings 
 
As directed by the TOWN, CONSULTANT shall prepare necessary materials for and shall 
participate in up to two presentations to Town Council during the project design phase. The 
presentations will provide Council with project updates and will occur during regularly 
scheduled Council work sessions. Council updates are anticipated to occur at the 60% and 
100% design milestones.  
 

4.3. Public Outreach Media 
 

 The CONSULTANT shall work with the TOWN to develop various formats and media 
options for interaction and notifications to the Public concerning the Project’s status.  The 
TOWN shall be responsible for implementing and administering the public outreach 
program. The CONSULTANT shall work with the TOWN to prepare and provide the various 
materials (e.g. exhibits, schedules, updates) to be included in the outreach program.  

 
4.4. Project Newsletters Support   

 
The CONSULTANT shall provide the TOWN with supporting documentation including but 
not limited to: renderings, exhibits, schedules, progress narratives, up to eight (8) 
newsletters during the design process.  Labels, postage and distribution will be furnished 
by the TOWN. 
 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 15  
 

4.5. Coordination with Stakeholders and TOWN  
 
a. Throughout the design process, the CONSULTANT shall assist the TOWN in 

coordinating with the various Project stakeholders.  These include but are not limited 
to: 

• Property, business owners, and business associations 

• Franchise utility companies (e.g. Oncor, ATT, Atmos, etc.), 

• DART (bus and rail) 

• NTTA/TXDOT/City of Dallas 
 
The CONSULTANT will attend up to six (6) meetings with Project stakeholders.  

 
b. The CONSULTANT will assist, when necessary, with describing design and 

engineering requirements for the project at stakeholder meetings, TOWN 
coordination meetings and public meetings. 
 

c. The TOWN will be the principal contact for public and private inquiries regarding 
the project. The CONSULTANT may be called upon to support the TOWN in 
responding to inquiries or researching/investigating questions or input from 
stakeholders.  
 

5. SUBSURFACE UTILITY ENGINEERING AND UTILITY COORDINATION  
  

5.1. Ownership Data  
 
The CONSULTANT shall provide the TOWN with an Excel spreadsheet showing current 
utility ownership and contact information for facilities within the Project limits. 

  
5.2. Utility Coordination 

 
The CONSULTANT shall coordinate and attend up to fifteen (15) utility coordination 
meetings with the TOWN and the franchise utility companies.  Utility coordination shall 
include the identification of utility conflicts, coordination, compliance with any applicable 
utility accommodation rules, and resolution of utility conflicts. The CONSULTANT shall 
coordinate all activities with the TOWN, or their designee, to facilitate the orderly progress 
and timely completion of the Project’s design. 

  
5.3. Contact Local Utility Companies 

 
 CONSULTANT shall coordinate with the utility companies throughout the Design Phase. 

Unless directed otherwise, the TOWN shall be present at all meetings with the utility 
companies. CONSULTANT shall deliver to each of the utility companies, an electronic copy 
(or other submittal requirements as dictated by the utility company) of each Project Submittal 
for their review and comments.  

 
a. Near the onset of the Project, CONSULTANT shall provide advance notice of the Project 

to utility companies. 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 16  
 

 
b. CONSULTANT shall request from private utility companies plans of existing utilities and 

information regarding any known proposed projects planned within the next five years. 
 
c. Following subsurface utility engineering (SUE) field work and preparation of the 

existing utility plans, CONSULTANT shall provide the existing utility plans to the private 
utility companies and request verification.  

 
d. Utility coordination shall include preparation of a utility conflict log to be submitted as 

required with each plan development milestone phase. CONSULTANT shall compile, 
maintain, and update a Utility Conflict Log to include phone logs and all 
correspondence with all utility owners. Provide the most current copy of the conflict list 
to the TOWN at each milestone submittal, and coordinate with utility companies to 
resolve conflicts. The Utility Conflict Log should include the following information: 

• Owner of the facility, including the facility address and the name and telephone 
number of the contact person at the facility; 

• Type of facility; 

• Type and location of conflict, identified by station and offset 

• Expected clearance date; 

• Status; 

• Effect on construction; 

• Type of adjustment required; 

• Expected clearance date (if applicable). 
 

d. CONSULTANT shall create an existing utility exhibit clearly reflecting existing utility 
locations, type of facility, and potential conflicts. 

 
5.4. Subsurface Utility Engineering (SUE)  

 
CONSULTANT shall perform subsurface utility engineering (SUE), prepared in accordance 
with current ASCE standards and Utility Quality Levels, as follows. 

 
CONSULTANT shall submit a recommendation for the Level A Subsurface Utility Engineering 
Services for the Project and receive approval from the TOWN prior to commencing said 
work. Work shall conform to the Standard Guideline for the Collection and Depiction of 
Existing Subsurface Utility Data, CI/ASCE 38-22. This standard defines the following 
Quality Levels: 

 
Quality Level A: Precise horizontal and vertical location of utilities obtained by the 
actual exposure (or verification of previously exposed and surveyed utilities) and 
subsequent measurement of subsurface utilities, usually at a specific point. Minimally 
intrusive excavation equipment is typically used to minimize the potential for utility 
damage. A precise horizontal and vertical location, as well as other utility 
attributes, is shown on plan documents. 
 
Quality Level B: Information obtained through the application of appropriate 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 17  
 

surface geophysical methods to determine the existence and approximate 
horizontal position of subsurface utilities. Quality Level B data should be 
reproducible by surface geophysics at any point of their depiction. This information 
is surveyed to applicable tolerances defined by the project and reduced onto plan 
documents. 
 
Quality Level C: Information obtained by surveying and plotting visible above- 
ground utility features and by using professional judgment in correlating this 
information to Quality Level D information. 
  
Quality   Level   D: Information   derived   from   existing   records   or   oral 
recollections. 

 
The CONSULTANT shall show the SUE information in the design and construction drawings.  
 

5.4.1. Locating – Level A: Based on initial site investigations and research, CONSULTANT 
anticipates performing up to 25 test holes for the Project. CONSULTANT will dig an 
approximately 12” x 12” test hole, record the depth, take a digital picture of the 
identified utility and the tape measurement between the utility and the top of the 
ground, backfill and compact the hole, and restore the surface to its original condition. 
An iron rod with cap or “x-cut” will be set to mark the location of the test hole. 
 

5.4.2. Designating – Level B: Based on initial site investigations and research, 
CONSULTANT anticipates designating up to 105,000 linear feet of utilities, if tonable 
and/or accessible, in support of the proposed utility designs using geophysical 
prospecting equipment and reference to established survey control. Designating 
(Quality Level B) Services are inclusive of Quality levels C and D. 
 

5.4.3. Investigate, observe and annotate survey of existing utilities as located and marked 
by Quality Level “C” Subsurface Utility Engineering (SUE) for visible above ground 
utility features that are correlated to existing utility records. CONSULTANT anticipates 
up to 35,000 linear feet of overhead and/or non-tonable utilities. The Level will be 
performed per the standard of care guideline, Standard Guideline for the Collection 
and Depiction of Existing Subsurface Utility Data, CI/ASCE 38-22. 
 

5.4.4. SUE Field Manager/Professional Engineer: A SUE Field Manager will be on- site for 
a portion of this project for field crew supervision, field quality control, and 
coordination with on-site personnel.  A Professional Engineer will be responsible for 
QA/QC, management of the contract, sealing the final deliverables and coordination 
with the project team. 

 
5.4.5. Traffic Control: CONSULTANT will provide traffic control for the proposed SUE 

efforts.  Traffic control will primarily consist of cones and signage.  However, at 
locations where it is necessary to work within the paving limits of Quorum Drive or an 
adjacent side street, CONSULTANT will coordinate with the TOWN for any necessary 
temporary lane closures.  Appropriate lane closure traffic control facilities will be 
provided such as flag person(s), arrow board(s) and changeable message board(s), 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 18  
 

etc.  CONSULTANT will use standard Texas Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices 
(TMUTCD) traffic control details. CONSULTANT’s traffic control plan shall be submitted 
to the TOWN for approval, prior to implementation.  

 
5.4.6. SUE Deliverables: The CONSULTANT shall provide the following: 

a. Two (2) signed and sealed sets of 11” x 17” colored drawings depicting 
all utility information collected. 

b. Two (2) sets of 8 ½ “ x 11” copies of CONSULTANT test hole data forms, 
signed and sealed by a registered professional engineer depicting the 
utility information collected. Test hole data forms will include supporting 
color photos. 

c. Electronic Microstation (DGN) or CAD (DWG) files in US feet (2D) format, 
.pdf format, and scanned record information in .pdf format if received 
from each utility. 
 

 
6. TOPOGRAPHIC AND BOUNDARY SURVEY  
 
CONSULTANT shall obtain the services of a Registered Professional Land Surveyor to perform field 
surveys. All surveys shall comply with the latest revision of the Professional Land Surveying Practice 
Act of the State of Texas and shall be accomplished under the direct supervision of a currently 
licensed State of Texas Registered Professional Land Surveyor. Survey services should include, but 
not be limited to the following: 
 

6.1. Using Dallas County Appraisal District and Dallas County Clerk websites, CONSULTANT 
shall gather ownership and deed information for base drawing. 

 
6.2. Research existing plats, Right-of-Way maps, deeds and survey for fence corners, 

monuments, iron pins, etc., within the existing Right-of-Way and analyze to establish 
apparent existing Right-of-Way. Apparent ROW is defined as the existing Right-of-Way 
with a plus/minus 1-foot tolerance. The preliminary base map will display the apparent 
Right-of-Way along with Dallas County Appraisal District records of lot or property lines, 
land ownership and addresses as publicly available.  
 

6.3. The CONSULTANT shall prepare a ROW map, prepared by a Texas RPLS, depicting 
Ownership Data gathered, existing ROW and proposed ROW information. ROW 
information provided (both existing and proposed) must be of sufficient detail for the 
TOWN to make decisions regarding any proposed acquisitions.  
  

6.4. Research and establish tract boundaries by field survey, calculations and adjustments and 
needed to create property line CAD file. 
 

6.5. Establish horizontal and vertical control for the Project. The horizontal control shall be based 
on the Texas State Plane Coordinate System, North Central Zone North American Datum 
NAD-83 Coordinates and the vertical control being based on North American Vertical 
Datum NAVD-88. Provide survey notes on design drawings and electronic files with clear 
location and description of benchmarks and horizontal control points. Benchmarks shall be 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 19  
 

documented and retraceable.  
 

6.6. Survey for design and topographic mapping to create a topographic base map CAD file. 
Prepare a final design and topographic drawing in digital format showing visible features 
located in the field, an ASCII coordinate file of all points located in the field and a hard 
copy of the coordinates and feature descriptions (Work Notes and Sketches).  Provide cross-
sections of the existing roadway with shots being taken at the ROW, back of curb, edge of 
shoulder, gutter, back of curb) and centerline. Provide structure details of all cross culverts 
and downstream channel cross sections. Locate visible existing features within the project 
limits, including but not limited to, manholes, water valves, concrete, fences and other utilities. 
Survey will include verification of all pipe connections to manholes and inlets. 
 

6.7. Prepare a Survey Control Map including but not limited to illustrating in graphical format 
the Rights-of-Way, proposed Permanent and Temporary Easements, project control line 
including all points of inflection, permanent and temporary Horizontal Control/Vertical 
Control Bench Marks (3 point tie details), coordinates of all horizontal/vertical control points 
and any other relevant data necessary to provide field parameters for construction. Survey 
Control Map shall be signed and sealed by the Registered Professional Land Surveyor 
responsible for the survey. Survey Control Map shall become part of the final construction 
documents. 
 

6.8. Verify project control points in the field just prior to construction. 
 
 
7. TREE IDENTIFICATION AND MANAGEMENT  
  

7.1. Tree Survey 
 
CONSULTANT shall survey location, size, and type of trees (4” in diameter at breast height 
and larger) within the Project limits. Each tree shall be identified with a unique number. Tree 
survey information will be incorporated into the overall topographic survey base. 
 

7.2. Arborist Report 
 
CONSULTANT shall perform an arborist inspection of trees (4” in diameter at breast height 
and larger) within the Project limits and provide a report outlining the findings. The report 
shall include the caliper inches of each tree, an assessment of tree condition and health, tree 
protection recommendations, and tree trimming/removal recommendations.  
 

7.3. Tree Protection and Removal Plans 
 
CONSULTANT shall prepare tree protection and removal plans and details in accordance 
with the arborist report and in consideration of the proposed Project improvements. Each 
tree will be given a unique identification number.  
 
Tree impacts will be considered during the schematic and conceptual design phases as they 
could have bearing on the selected design alternative. Tree removal and protection plan 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 20  
 

sheets will be introduced at the 60% design submittal. Every reasonable effort shall be 
made to reduce or eliminate tree removals. 
 
No offsite tree mitigation plans are anticipated or included in this scope of work. Landscape 
plans will show what mitigation will be done with the Project. 

 

8. WATER & WASTEWATER DESIGN  
 
It is assumed that all of the Town’s small diameter (6” – 12” diameter) water and wastewater lines 
within the pavement limits of Quorum Drive or within close proximity to the existing back of curb 
will be replaced as part of this roadway revitalization project.  This assumption encompasses 
approximately 5,500 LF of water line ranging from 8” diameter to 12” diameter.  Also included is 
approximately 1,300 LF of 8” diameter wastewater line.  
 
Water improvements will also include the following Water CIP improvements as outlined in the 
Town’s 2016 Water Master Plan: 

• Water CIP Project 4: Upsizing 23 LF of 12” PVC to 16” DI water main connection between 
36” & 12” main (south of Belt Line on Quorum) 

• Water CIP Project 14: Upsizing 144 LF of 8” PVC to 10” PVC water main (Quorum Office 
Building #2) 

• Water CIP Project 15: Upsizing 73 LF 8” PVC to 10” PVC water main (lateral off Quorum 
Drive) 

• Water CIP Project 24: Upsizing 116 LF of 16” DI to 24” RCCP (intersection of Belt Line Road 
and Quorum Drive) 

 
Design of repairs and/or replacement of the existing 24” and 36” water transmission mains within 
the Project limits is not included in this scope of work.  
 
The design of the replacement lines shall be in accordance with the Town’s criteria as well as the 
requirements of TCEQ (i.e. TAC Title 30, Chapters 217 and 290).  The water and wastewater 
improvements shall include the following:      
 

8.1. Overall project water layout sheets 
 
The water layout sheet shall identify the proposed water main improvement/ existing water 
mains in the vicinity and all water appurtenances along with pressure plane boundaries, 
valves, and fire hydrants. 

8.2. Overall project sewer layout sheets 
 
The sewer layout sheet shall identify the proposed sewer main improvement/ existing sewer 
mains in the vicinity and all sewer appurtenances. 

8.3. Water Plan and Profile sheets which show the following:  
 
a. proposed water plan/profile and recommended pipe size 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization  Page 21 

b. coordinates on all P.C.’s, P.T.’s, P.I.’s, valves, mainline fittings, etc., in the same
coordinate system as the Control Points.

c. fire hydrants
d. water service lines and meter boxes
e. gate valves and isolation valves
f. existing meter and sizes
g. existing fire line locations
h. existing utilities and utility easements
i. address, parcel number, and property ownership

8.4. Sewer Plan and Profile sheets which show the following: 

a. proposed sewer plan/profile and recommended pipe size
b. coordinates on all P.C.’s, P.T.’s, P.I.’s, manholes, etc., in the same coordinate system as

the Control Points.
c. manhole locations
d. existing service lines
e. existing utilities and utility easements
f. address, parcel number, and property ownership

8.5. The CONSULTANT shall make provisions for reconnecting all identifiable water and/or 
wastewater service lines which connect directly to any main being replaced, including 
replacement of existing service lines within TOWN right-of-way or utility easement. When the 
existing alignment of a water and sanitary sewer main or lateral is changed, provisions will 
be made in the final plans and/or specifications by the CONSULTANT to relocate all service 
lines which are connected to the existing main and connect said service lines to the relocated 
main. 

8.6. The CONSULTANT shall verify existing water meter sizes throughout Project limits. 

8.7. The CONSULTANT will prepare special details for water and sewer line installation and/or 
replacement that are not already included TOWN’s standard details. These may include 
connection details between various parts of the project, tunneling details, boring and jacking 
details, relocations, details unique to the construction of the project, trenchless details, and 
special service lateral reconnections. 

9. DRAINAGE ANALYSIS AND DESIGN

The drainage analysis and design for the Project shall be in accordance with the TOWN’s 
Drainage Criteria Manual and Drainage Master Plan and shall include an analysis of the 
existing and proposed drainage within the Project limits, and design of drainage improvement 
plans as necessary for compliance with current TOWN standards.   

9.1. Preliminary Drainage Design 
9.1.1. Drainage Area Mapping 

Delineate drainage area boundaries based on topographic survey, record drawings, 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 22  
 

site inspection, and other suitable topographic maps and records (if available). 
Compare watershed boundaries and limits to information found in the TOWN’s latest 
Drainage Study, if available. 
 

9.1.2. Calculate Drainage Area Runoff 
 
Calculate drainage area runoff using the rational method. 
 

9.1.3. Existing Capacities 
 
Utilizing topographic survey and record drawing information, calculate the existing 
street, ROW, inlet, and storm drain capacities within the Project limits. Compare 
calculated runoff with existing capacities and historical flooding/drainage issue 
records.  
 

9.1.4. Recommended Drainage Improvement 
 
Based on drainage area mapping, calculated drainage area runoff, existing system 
capacities, the TOWN’s latest drainage criteria, and historical flooding/drainage issue 
records, provide recommendations for drainage improvements to be associated with 
the Project. 
 

Preliminary drainage analysis information will be compiled along with the recommended   
improvements and will be submitted to the TOWN with the Design Summary Report for 
review and approval. 

 
No watershed studies, 2D modeling, HEC-RAS modeling, or drainage analysis/design 
beyond the Quorum Drive ROW are anticipated.  

  
9.2. Final Drainage Design  

9.2.1. Sub Area Mapping and Inlet Sizing (StormCAD or other approved method). 
 
Subdivide the overall drainage areas into sub-areas and calculate the discharge 
directed to each proposed inlet. Analyze inlet capacities and adjust inlet locations and 
sub-areas as needed to obtain acceptable water spread widths within the roadway.  
Prepare a drainage area map identifying all sub-areas. 
 

9.2.2. Storm Sewer Sizing (StormCAD or other approved method) 
 
Size a network of storm sewers to collect inlet flows and route the discharge to the 
locations selected in the alternative development stage. Prepare hydraulic data sheets 
for inclusion in the plans.  
 

9.2.3. Storm Sewer Plan and Profile 
 
Prepare storm sewer plan and profile sheets depicting storm sewer, inlets and manholes 
necessary to drain the facility and convey the runoff to the designated discharge points. 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 23  
 

The storm sewer plan profiles will be consistent with the hydraulic computations 
developed using StormCAD or other approved method, and the TOWN’s latest 
drainage criteria.  Inlets, manholes and junctions will be in accordance with TOWN 
standard details.  Prepare layouts at 1” = 50’ (or smaller scale) horizontal and 1” = 
10’ vertical (or smaller) on 22”x34” plan sheets unless otherwise directed. 
 

9.2.4. Special Inlet Details 
 
Prepare custom details to clarify construction details of non-standard inlets, if needed. 
 

9.2.5. Miscellaneous Drainage Details  
 
Prepare plan details necessary to clarify the construction requirements of the drainage 
facilities. 
 

9.2.6. Summary of Drainage Quantities 
 
Compute quantities and summarize in the plans and prepare a bid item list and 
estimated prices for all drainage facilities. 
 

9.2.7. Assemble Applicable Standards  
 
Identify and acquire all applicable standards. Modify standards as needed. Plot sheets 
and incorporate into the plans. 

 
10. ROADWAY DESIGN 
 

Roadway design for this project shall include the reconstruction of approximately 0.90 miles of 
Quorum Drive (existing 4-lane divided arterial) including medians, sidewalks/trails, ADA ramps, 
driveways, street intersections, pavement markings, and signage.  The southern design limit for 
the Project will be the western ROW line of the Dallas North Tollway (DNT). The northern design 
limit for the Project will be the southern edge of the DART railroad crossing panels, north of 
Arapaho Road.  
 
The street and driveway intersections include the following: 

• Landmark Place 

• Belt Line Road 

• Edwin Lewis Drive 

• Arapaho Road 

• DART pavement connection 

• Approximately 31 commercial driveways 
 
It is anticipated that the roadway will be reconstructed to generally conform to its current 
configuration (e.g. same number of through lanes, turn lanes, median breaks, etc.).  Any 
proposed pavement adjustments greater than 6” vertically or 12” horizontally shall require a 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 24  
 

design exception. 
 
Specific design elements are further outlined as follows. 

 
10.1. Finalize Design Elements 

10.1.1. Finalize Vertical & Horizontal Alignments 
 
The CONSULTANT shall base design on the approved schematic, finalize horizontal, 
vertical, and cross-sectional design elements for all roadways. All design shall be 
American Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines and Texas Accessibility Standards 
(ADAAG/TAS) compliant, as applicable. 

 
10.1.2. Traffic, Intersection, and Access Management Design  

 
Utilizing information provided by the TOWN or its traffic consultant, determine and 
develop proposed traffic element modifications such as turn lane limits and locations, 
median opening locations, driveway geometrics, and intersection geometrics. 
 

10.1.3. Typical Sections  
 
Develop final proposed typical sections for all roadways.  Typical sections shall include 
representations of the various proposed conditions, such as pavement materials and 
thickness, cross-slopes, side slopes, number of lanes, lane widths, retaining wall 
locations, shoulder widths, clear zones, border width, sidewalk locations, and right-of-
way width.   
 

10.1.4. Driveway Profiles / Cross Sections 
 
Analyze all driveways within the project and develop driveway profiles as needed to 
ensure that driveways function as intended. (For example, residential driveways will 
be designed to accommodate passenger cars, commercial driveways will be designed 
to accommodate trucks).  Delineate the limits of construction outside of the right-of-way 
as needed to secure an adequate driveway profile.  Driveways shall be ADAAG/TAS 
compliant, as applicable. 
 

10.1.5. Side Street Profiles  
 
Develop profiles for each side street and analyze each for accessibility to trucks and 
buses.  Delineate the limits of construction necessary to develop a suitable profile. 
 

10.1.6. Intersection Layouts  
 
Develop plan layouts for each side street and analyze each for positive drainage while 
identifying proposed elevations along each radius return to ensure acceptable 
intersection design. 

 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 25  
 

10.2. Plan Development 
10.2.1. Develop Final Typical Section Sheets 

 
Prepare typical section sheets showing the existing typical section(s) and proposed 
typical section sections for all roadways 
 

10.2.2. Prepare Control Data Sheets 
 
Prepare a set of control data sheets listing horizontal and vertical control information.  
Coordinates, stations, and elevations of key alignment features and benchmarks shall 
be noted. 
 

10.2.3. Plan and Profile Sheets  
 
Using the approved preliminary geometric layout as the base drawing, prepare plan-
profile sheets for each roadway at 1” = 50’ (or smaller scale) horizontal scale and 1” 
= 10’ vertical scale (or smaller) on 22” x 34” plan sheets, unless otherwise directed.   
 

10.2.4. Roadway Cross-Sections 
 
Provide design cross-sections at 50’ intervals and at all driveways and side streets that 
are annotated at all break points and are produced at a 1” = 10’, 1” = 20’ or other 
scale as directed, on 22” x 34” plan sheets.   Original ground line, design subgrade 
line and finished grade line shall be shown.   
 

10.2.5. Cross Street Plan & Profiles  
 
The CONSULTANT shall develop cross street profiles using the same criteria as 
roadway plan & profiles. 
 

10.2.6. Intersection Layout Sheets  
 
The CONSULTANT shall develop intersection layout sheets that show street curb return 
radii, ramp and crosswalk configurations, and intersection grading.  
 

10.2.7. Summary of Roadway Quantities 
 
Compute quantities and summarize in the plans and prepare a bid item list and 
estimated prices for all roadway-related facilities. 

 
10.2.8. Signing & Pavement Marking Layouts 

 
Prepare signing and pavement marking layouts (1”=50’ or smaller scale) in accordance 
with applicable design standards, and the TMUTCD. These layouts will depict signage, 
pavement marking, and delineator type on the same plan sheet.  

 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 26  
 

10.2.9. Pavement Marking Details 
 
Prepare details necessary to clarify the construction requirements of the pavement 
marking plans. 

 
10.2.10. Prepare Small Sign Details 

 
Prepare small sign detail sheets for non-standard conditions. This sheet is intended to 
show the overall dimensions of the signs by determining letter size and spacing. Details 
will not be to scale. 

 
10.2.11. Prepare Summary of Pavement Markings 

 
Compute quantities and summarize in the plans and prepare a bid item list and 
estimated prices for all pavement markings. 

 
10.2.12. Prepare Small Sign Summary 

 
Determine the mounting requirements for each sign or sign cluster based on TMUTCD 
and/or other applicable standards. Provide a summary of all the signs together with 
totals for each mount type. 
 

10.2.13. Assemble Applicable Standards  
 
Identify and acquire all applicable standards. Modify standards as needed. Plot sheets 
and incorporate into the plans. 
 

11. TRAFFIC ANALYSIS AND SIGNAL DESIGN 
 

11.1. Permanent Signal Design  
 

The CONSULTANT shall prepare permanent traffic signal plans for the proposed signalized 
intersections to be modified along Quorum Drive, consisting of the following intersections:  

 

• Quorum Drive at Belt Line Road 

• Quorum Drive at Edwin Lewis Drive 

• Quorum Drive at Arapaho Road 
 

CONSULTANT will conduct a field investigation to verify existing signage and traffic control 
devices. This, along with the topographic survey and SUE conducted in previous tasks, will 
form the basis for permanent signal design. CONSULTANT will coordinate permanent traffic 
signal design with other roadway improvements at the project intersections.  
 
CONSULTANT will design the following components of the permanent signals: 

• Proposed traffic signal cabinet location 

• Proposed electrical service point of delivery and point of service 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 27  
 

• Proposed signal poles and pedestrian poles 

• Proposed push buttons 

• Ground boxes 

• Conduit and cable runs 

• Wiring tables 

• Vehicle detection 

• Signal head designations 

• Mast arm signage  
 

CONSULTANT will assemble applicable design standards and specifications from the 
TOWN.  
 
The CONSULTANT shall coordinate removal of conflicts with existing aerial and 
underground utilities and the permanent and/or temporary signals with the TOWN. 
CONSULTANT will coordinate with the electric power company to identify a source for 
electrical service. 
 
The permanent traffic signal design package will consist of the following plan sheets: 

• Traffic Signal Notes 

• Existing Conditions Sheet (one per intersection) showing existing intersection and 
roadway layout, signs, pavement markings, other notable above ground features, 
and utilities recorded from the topographic survey 

• Traffic Signal Layout Sheet (one per intersection) including overhead signs and 
pedestrian elements 

• Traffic Signal Detail Sheets (three per intersection) with tabulation of quantities, 
electrical chart, signal sequence chart, detector assignment char, signal termination 
chart  

• Standard Detail Sheets as may be applicable   
 
CONSULTANT will prepare summary of signal quantities for 90% and 100% submittals.  

 
11.1.1. Project Meetings 

 
At the outset of the project, the CONSULTANT will prepare for and attend one traffic-
related kick-off meeting to discuss the TOWN project requirements and any special 
design or coordination needs. 

  
After the preliminary 60% submittal, the CONSULTANT will prepare for and attend 
one meeting with Town staff to receive comments. After the pre-final 90% submittal, 
the CONSULTANT will prepare for and attend one meeting with Town staff to receive 
comments.   

 
11.2. Temporary Signal Design 

 

The CONSULTANT will prepare temporary traffic signal plans to match proposed 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 28  
 

construction sequencing plans for up to four signalized intersections on Quorum Drive (Dallas 
Parkway, Belt Line, Edwin Lewis, and Arapaho).  It is assumed that 3 phases will be required 
at each intersection.  These plans will illustrate the layout of the proposed signals and 
associated small signs attached to signal mast arms or span wires, phasing diagrams and 
details. 
 
The signalized intersection of Dallas Parkway & Quorum is operated by the City of Dallas. 
CONSULTANT will conduct field meeting with City of Dallas and Town of Addison staff 
during the preliminary design phase.  
 
CONSULTANT will design the following components of the temporary traffic signals: 

• Timber pole locations 

• Controller cabinet and power source location 

• Overhead span wire, signal head placement, and cabling requirements 

• Pedestrian accommodations 

• Summary charts 
 

11.3. Traffic Analysis  
 

The CONSULTANT will evaluate turn-lane storage for the proposed signalized 
intersections to be modified along Quorum Drive (Belt Line, Edwin Lewis, and Arapaho).  
This evaluation will consist of analysis of existing storage provided at other 
unsignalized intersections currently in the corridor.  The storage evaluation will be 
based on traffic demand during the AM, Midday, PM, and Saturday peak periods, 
and will assume that existing median access will remain for the future design.   Any 
changes in median access (closing of current median openings) would trigger the need 
for further data collection and analysis, not included in this scope of services.   

 
11.3.1. Traffic Data Collection 

 
New turning movement count data will be collected, as soon as is practicable when 
school is in session, for the three signalized intersections in the project.  This data will 
be collected and tabulated for 1.5 hour periods (six 15-minute intervals) during the 
AM, Midday, PM, and Saturday peak periods, identified using the Town’s most recent 
arterial traffic count data.   

 
11.3.2. Field Evaluation of Current Turn Storage and Demand 

 
The CONSULTANT will observe actual traffic operations on the street within the corridor 
during typical non-holiday AM, Midday, PM, and Saturday peak periods.  The focus 
of these observations will be to determine where current turn-bays exceed demand, 
where traffic operations could be improved with additional turn storage capacity, and 
also to identify where other geometric enhancements could result in better overall 
traffic operations for the reconstructed roadway.  Observations will also be used to 
calibrate and validate the Synchro model being used as part of this analysis. 

 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 29  
 

11.3.3. Modeling and Queue Storage Evaluation 
 

New traffic volumes will be integrated into AM, Midday, PM, and Saturday peak signal 
timing models.  These models will be calibrated based on in-field observations and 
used to develop recommendations for the length of turn-bay storage to be provided 
in the new roadway design.  These models can also be used for evaluating and 
recommending the most desirable lane configurations during various phases of 
construction, and for developing temporary traffic control strategies.    

 
11.3.4. Technical Memorandum 

 
A brief technical memorandum will be developed to summarize the analysis and 
recommendations.  This memorandum will include a table of recommended storage 
lengths and other potential operational enhancements.   

 
11.3.5. Meetings 

 
CONSULTANT will attend one meeting to discuss preliminary findings with the Design 
Team, and one meeting to present findings to the TOWN.  In addition, CONSULTANT 
will participate in up to three on-screen or telephone coordination meetings with the 
design team. 
 

12. ILLUMINATION DESIGN 

 
CONSULTANT will provide roadway and pedestrian illumination design as follows: 

12.1. Preliminary (60%) Illumination Plans 

Prepare preliminary illumination design plans. Preliminary Design Plans must be approved 

by the TOWN prior to commencing with the preparation of Final Design Plans. Preliminary 

Design Plans will be prepared by following the steps described below: 

12.1.1. Review AASHTO requirements to assign a roadway classification and to determine 
light level requirements. Perform light level calculations using AGI design software to 
determine pole spacing. In addition, generate a photometric plan of a typical segment 
of Quorum Drive to identify pole spacing requirements for the corridor. 
 

12.1.2. Review clearance requirements to assess appropriate pole placement per TOWN 
standards. 

 
12.1.3. Coordinate with the appropriate utility companies to identify service locations, 

types, and standards for lighting. 
 

12.1.4. Show pole foundation locations, conduits, ground boxes, electrical service data 
sheet, power source locations, and conductor charts. In addition, submit photometric 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 30  
 

plan layout for review by the TOWN. 
 

12.1.5. If requested by the TOWN, provide for decorative banner arm brackets to be 
mounted on illumination poles for holiday or event activities. 

 
12.1.6. Prepare an estimate of construction quantities and develop preliminary statement 

of probable construction cost. 
 

12.2. Pre-Final (90%) Illumination Plans 
 

Review comments on the preliminary design plans provided by the TOWN and incorporate 

the comments into the 90% design plans. Develop the 90% design plan package including: 

12.2.1. Prepare layouts showing roadway and pedestrian illumination plans as well as 
supporting detail tables to reflect a complete illumination design. 
 

12.2.2. Illumination General Notes shall be compiled and inserted in the plans. 
 

12.2.3. Quantities shall be compiled and summarized in a tabular format with the 
description of the items matching that of the bid documents. 

 
12.2.4. Appropriate details and standards shall be compiled and inserted into the plans. 

 
12.2.5. Special Specifications, if applicable. 

 
12.2.6. Prepare and submit a final estimate of construction cost. 

 
12.3. Final (100%) Illumination Plans  

 
12.3.1. Review comments on the final illumination design plans provided by the TOWN and 

incorporate the comments into the final design plans.  
 

12.3.2. Finalize construction contract documents including special technical specifications and 
special conditions (if any). 

 
12.3.3. Prepare estimates of final construction quantities and final opinions of construction 

costs for roadway and pedestrian illumination elements. 
 

12.4. Amenity and Illumination Electrical Design  
 

CONSULTANT shall provide electrical design necessary to support pedestrian illumination 
plan for the full corridor and as well as anticipated programming/activities (e.g. pop-up 
vendors, outdoor work stations, holiday lighting, etc.) and amenity areas within the Project 
limits for up to four (4) locations. Electrical design provided under task 12.4 shall be based 
on light pole placement, fixture types, holiday lighting locations, receptacle placements, 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 31  
 

and other amenity locations determined under tasks 12.1, 12.2, and 12.3.  
 

12.4.1. Coordinate amenities and programming activities with the TOWN for the different 
locations.  
 

12.4.2. Perform voltage drop calculations to determine electrical conductor size and 
grounding conductors. 
 

12.4.3. Provide electrical circuit diagrams and details. 
 

12.4.4. Design conduit size per TOWN standards and direction. 
 

12.4.5. Design electrical services including electrical service data, breaker size, and service 
entrance conductors. 

 
12.4.6. Prepare construction contract documents including special technical specifications 

and special conditions (if any). 
 

12.4.7. Prepare estimates of final construction quantities and final opinions of construction 
costs for electrical elements. 

 
13. PUBLIC SPACE, LANDSCAPE, IRRIGATION, AND AESTHETICS DESIGN 
 

Design for this project shall include landscape and irrigation improvements associated with the 
reconstruction of approximately 0.90 miles Quorum Drive (existing 4-lane divided arterial).    
The southern design limit for the Project will be the western ROW line of the Dallas North 
Tollway (DNT). The northern design limit for the Project will be the southern edge of the DART 
railroad crossing panels, north of Arapaho Road. Detailed design of placemaking elements and 
public space improvements such as public amenities, hardscape features, street furnishings, and 
public art will include the intersection of Belt Line Road and Quorum Drive to the north and the 
Dallas North Tollway ROW to the south, approximately 0.5 miles..    
 
The street and driveway intersections include the following: 

• Landmark Place 

• Belt Line Road 

• Edwin Lewis Drive 

• Arapaho Road 

• DART pavement connection 

• Approximately 31 commercial driveways 
 
It is anticipated that the public space will be reconstructed to generally conform within its current 
configuration (e.g., same building footprints, number of through lanes, turn lanes, median breaks, 
etc.).  Specific design elements are further outlined as follows. 

 
13.1. Finalize Public Space Environment and Experience 

 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 32  
 

The CONSULTANT shall base the design on the approved vision, schematic, and 
finalized horizontal, vertical, and cross-sectional design elements in coordination with 
all roadways for the area south of Belt Line Road. All design shall be American 
Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines and Texas Accessibility Standards 
(ADAAG/TAS) compliant, as applicable. 

 
13.2. Hardscape Plan Design  

 
The CONSULTANT shall provide a Hardscape Plan that consists of hard surface elements 
of the site on the ground plane.  Elements typically include pedestrian paving, selection 
and location of ornamental light fixtures, gathering spaces, seat walls/retaining walls, 
pedestrian handrails, exterior stairs and ramps, site furniture, fencing, mow curbs, and 
shade structures. Additional elements anticipated for the Project include gateway 
monumentation, way finding signage, and enhanced bus stop shelters.    
  

13.2.1. Design Development:  One (1) image board depicting proposed materials and 
design theme options.  Plans to include one (1) Layout Plan depicting horizontal 
alignment, one (1) Grading and Drainage Plan depicting direction and location of site 
drainage for exterior spaces outside of vehicular circulation that will be passed along 
and coordinated with the Civil Engineer’s grading and drainage plan and Site Detail 
Plans depicting elevations and sections of key elements prepared as a part of this 
item. An opinion of probable construction cost will be provided.   

 
13.2.2. Construction Documents:  Plans to include layout, grading and detail plans to a level 

sufficient to demonstrate design intent and allow the construction thereof, including 
materials and quantity schedules.  Technical specifications will be prepared for each 
critical item. 
 

13.3. Landscape Plan Design  
 
The CONSULTANT shall provide a Landscape Planting Plan, for the full project corridor 
as it relates to the civil improvements, that consists of selection and location of ornamental 
plantings, street or site shade trees, turf, mulches and associated items.   
 

13.3.1. Design Development:  Plans to include one (1) Planting Plan depicting locations of 
plants with associated notes, quantities, and schedules.  One (1) Planting Details Plan 
depicting soil preparation and amenities prepared as a part of this item. 

 
13.3.2. Construction Documents:  Plans to include planting and detail plans to a level 

sufficient to demonstrate design intent and allow the construction thereof, including 
materials and quantity schedules.  Technical specifications will be prepared for each 
critical item in the Landscape Planting Plans. 

 
13.3.3. Coordination with the Civil Engineer for any required grading of an ornamental 

nature to be included into the overall site grading plan.   
 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 33  
 

13.4. Irrigation Plan Design  
 
The CONSULTANT shall provide a Landscape Irrigation Plan that consists of a fully 
automated irrigation system to service plantings on the site as required.   
 

13.4.1. Design Development:  Plans to include one (1) Irrigation Plan depicting locations of 
all irrigation components, including controllers, main lines, valves, heads and specialty 
items.   
 

13.4.2. Construction Documents:  Plans to include Irrigation Plans to a level sufficient to 
demonstrate design intent and allow the construction thereof, including materials and 
quantity schedules, pipe sizing, notes and technical installation details.  Technical 
specifications will be prepared for irrigation components. 

 
13.4.3. Coordination with the Civil Engineer to pass along requested tap location(s), 

sleeving, and meter placement.   
 

13.4.4. Coordination with the Civil Engineer to assure that sleeves for irrigation system are 
accounted for on the plans. 

 
13.4.5. Coordination with the Electrical Engineer to provide electrical service to the irrigation 

controller. 
 

Not included in this item: 

• Pump systems and filters required for use of non-potable water and storm water 
recapture.  These services can be provided as a Special Service. 
 
 

14. MISCELLANEOUS CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT DEVELOPMENT 
 
The CONSULTANT shall develop the following for inclusion into the construction documents: 

 
a. Cover 
b. Sheet index and legend 
c. General notes 
d. Project layout 
e. Survey control layout 
f. ROW and easement layout 
g. Quantity summary sheet 
h. Demolition plan 
i. Construction sequencing 
j. Grading plan 
k. Detailed traffic control plan (for DNT connection only) 
l. Erosion control 
m. Existing utility plans (SUE sheets) 
n. Special/Miscellaneous details 
o. Technical specifications 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 34  
 

p. Construction contract documents (project manual) 
 

 
15. PROCUREMENT SUPPORT SERVICES 

 
15.1. Procurement Approach 
 

CONSULTANT will collaborate with the TOWN to develop a contractor procurement 
strategy. If the competitive sealed proposal approach is selected, CONSULTANT will 
collaborate with the TOWN to determine the proposal requirements and scoring system.  

 
15.2. Proposal Document Distribution 
 

CONSULTANT will assist the TOWN in the distribution of proposal documents to prospective 
offerors by uploading documents to Civcast. No hardcopy distribution is anticipated. 

 
15.3. Pre-Proposal Meeting 

 
CONSULTANT shall attend up to two Pre-Proposal Conferences with TOWN representatives 
and prospective offerors, prepare a sign-in sheet, prepare Pre-Proposal Conference 
minutes, and prepare and issue addenda as appropriate to clarify, correct, or change the 
proposal documents. 

 
15.4. Offeror Questions 

 
Assist the TOWN in addressing and responding to offeror questions and requests. 

 
15.5. Addenda 

 
CONSULTANT shall prepare and issue addenda as appropriate to clarify, correct, or 
change the proposal documents. 

 
15.6. Proposal Opening and Tabulation 
 

CONSULTANT shall attend the formal opening of proposals and tabulate the bid tabulation. 
CONSULTANT will assist the TOWN in review of proposals and provide a written 
recommendation regarding the award of the contract. The recommendation for award 
should include a summary of the offeror qualifications and scoring. 

 
15.7. Conformed Construction Documents 
 

Following the award of the construction contract to a contractor, CONSULTANT shall compile 
and provide conformed (released for construction) construction documents for execution, 
distribution, and use during construction.  

 

 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 35  
 

16. EASEMENT AND ROW DOCUMENT PREPARATION 
 

CONSULTANT shall obtain the services of a Registered Professional Land Surveyor to perform 
field surveys. All surveys shall comply with the latest revision of the Professional Land Surveying 
Practice Act of the State of Texas and shall be accomplished under the direct supervision of a 
currently licensed State of Texas Registered Professional Land Surveyor. Survey services include 
the following: 

 
16.1. Prepare metes and bounds for proposed permanent easements or right-of-ways, 

signed and sealed by an RPLS.  The anticipated number of permanent easements or right-
of-way documents for the Project is 28.  Preparation of permanent easement or right-of-
way documents beyond 28 shall be considered an Additional Service and shall be 
performed at a unit cost of $2,500 per permanent easement or right-of-way document.  
 

16.2. Prepare metes and bounds for proposed temporary easements, signed and sealed 
by an RPLS.  The anticipated number of temporary easements for the Project is 28.  
Preparation of temporary easement documents beyond 28 shall be considered an 
Additional Service and shall be performed at a unit cost of $2,000 per temporary 
easement document.  

 
16.3. Proposed right-of-way shall be monumented in the field. Proposed permanent 

easements will be monumented in the field, if necessary. Proposed temporary construction 
easements will not be monumented.  

 
 

17. EASEMENT AND RIGHT-OF-WAY ACQUISITION 
 

CONSULTANT provide appraisal, right of entry, negotiation, and title and closing services for 
the Project. This includes up to 28 parcels. Services will comply with the City’s Standards and 
the requirements of Texas Senate Bill 18. 

 
17.1. Real Estate Appraisal Services ($5,000 each) 

 
17.1.1. Appraisers will provide advance notice of the date and time of their appraisal 

inspections of the subject property to the CONSULTANT'S Project Manager.  
 

17.1.2. Appraisers will prepare and conduct personal pre-appraisal contact with interest 
owners for each parcel. 

 
17.1.3. Appraisers will contact property owners or their designated representatives to offer 

an opportunity to accompany the appraiser on the appraiser's inspection of the subject 
property. Maintain a record of contact in the file. 

 
17.1.4. For an initial appraisal assignment, prepare an appraisal report for each parcel to 

be acquired utilizing appropriate appraisal forms. These reports shall conform to 
policies, procedures, and the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practices 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 36  
 

promulgated by the Appraisal Foundation. 
 

17.1.5. CONSULTANT will review and recommend completed appraisals for approval by 
the TOWN Staff or assigns. 

 
17.1.6. Should the TOWN request revisions or updates to appraisal reports, the 

CONSULTANT will submit associated fees to the TOWN for approval before 
authorizing such revisions or updates.  

 
17.2. Negotiation Services for Right-of-Entry ($500 each) 

17.2.1.  Analyze Dallas County Appraisal District information and perform research to 
determine property ownership and the landowner’s contact information.  
 

17.2.2. Contact the landowners to verify their contact information, ownership of the property 
and let them know about the need for a Right-of-Entry onto their property.  
 

17.2.3. Prepare and send the Right-of-Entry by mail or email per the landowner’s 
preference.  
 

17.2.4. If property owners do not respond to the initial letter request, CONSULTANT will 
send a follow-up request letter via certified U.S. mail, return receipt requested. If 
permission is not obtained after two attempts, CONSULTANT shall engage the TOWN 
for support. 

 
17.3. Negotiation Services for Easement and ROW Acquisition ($5,000 each) 

 
17.3.1. Analyze preliminary title report to determine potential title curative issues. 

 
17.3.2. Analyze appraisal report if applicable; confirm the TOWN's approved value 

before making an offer for each parcel. 
 

17.3.3. Prepare the initial offer letter, instruments of conveyance, and any other documents 
required or requested by the TOWN on TOWN-approved forms. 

 
17.3.4. Send the initial offer, appraisal, and required brochures to each property owner or 

the property owner's designated representative through CMRRR. Maintain follow-up 
contacts and secure the necessary instruments upon acceptance of the offer for the 
closing. 

 
17.3.5. Make four (4) diligent attempts to contact each property owner, after which the 

property owner will be considered non-responsive, and negotiations will be considered 
exhausted.   

 
17.3.6. Prepare and maintain a negotiator's report for each parcel. 

 
17.3.7. Receive any counteroffers from the property owner. Evaluate all counters and submit 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 37  
 

to and discuss them with the TOWN's Project Manager. 
 

17.3.8. After the concurrence of the TOWN Project Manager, prepare the final offer letter 
and mail conveyance documents by CMRRR. 

 
17.3.9. If a settlement can’t be reached or title can’t be cleared, a file suitable for Eminent 

Domain proceedings will be provided to the TOWN.  
 

17.4. Title Services ($1,000 each) 
 

17.4.1. Secure title commitment or preliminary title search and 5-year sales data from the 
Title Company that will provide title insurance.   

 
17.4.2. The curative services necessary to provide clear title to the TOWN are the 

CONSULTANT's responsibility. 
 

17.4.3. Secure title insurance for all parcels acquired, ensuring acceptable title to the 
TOWN. Written approval by the TOWN is required for any exception.  

 
17.4.4. CONSULTANT provides closing services in conjunction with the Title Company. The 

cost of title insurance is paid by the TOWN and is not included in the CONSULTANT's 
negotiated fee schedule. 

 
17.4.5. Any fees related to obtaining certified court documents and fees for recording the 

same, which are not collected at the closing of the parcel, shall be direct pass-through 
fees at the exact cost. 

 
17.4.6. In conjunction with the title company, the CONSULTANT shall cause the recordation 

of all instruments conveying property to the TOWN. The cost of recording and filing 
fees are paid by the TOWN and are not included in the CONSULTANT's negotiated 
fee schedule. 

 
CONSULTANT fees associated with Task 17 are not to exceed $322,000 without prior 
permission from TOWN. This includes up to 28 parcels with appraisal, negotiation, title 
research/closing services. 
 
Appraisals – $140,000 (up to 28 parcels; unit price of $5,000 each) 
Right-of-Entry (ROE) – $14,000 (up to 28 parcels; unit price of $500 each) 
Negotiation Services – $140,000 (up to 28 parcels; unit price of $5,000 each; billed as 
percent complete) 
Title Services – $28,000 (up to 28 parcels; unit price of $1,000 each) 
 

 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 38  
 

18. GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATIONS 
 

18.1. Subsurface Exploration 
 

Based on past experience in the vicinity of the project, anticipated subsurface conditions 
consist of soils and shale of the Austin Chalk geological formation.  
 
Experienced drillers and technicians will evaluate subsurface conditions with a total of 
seven (7) sample borings drilled to a depth of 15 feet below existing grades.  
 
The field personnel will drill the borings using truck-mounted equipment.  Cohesive and 
non-cohesive soil samples will be obtained using 3-inch diameter Shelby tube samplers 
and 2-inch diameter standard split-spoon samplers, respectively.  A soils logger will 
extrude the samples in the field, check the samples for consistency with a hand 
penetrometer, carefully wrap them to preserve their condition, and return them to the 
laboratory for testing.  A log of each boring will be prepared to document field 
activities and results.  
 
CONSULTANT’s personnel will stake the boring locations using hand-held GPS 
equipment.  Approximate locations of the borings will be shown on the plan of borings.  
At the completion of drilling operations, boreholes will be backfilled with drill cuttings 
and plugged at the surface with quick-set concrete. 

 
18.2. Laboratory Services 

 
Considering the planned facilities, anticipated soil conditions and geology, laboratory 
tests will be required for classification purposes, and to determine strength 
characteristics.  The following types of tests are therefore recommended: 
  
• moisture content and soil identification  
• liquid and plastic limit determinations  
• unit weight determinations   
• absorption pressure and/or one-point pressure swell tests  
• Eades and Grim lime series tests  
• soluble sulfate tests  
 
The specific types and quantities of tests will be determined based on geologic 
conditions encountered in the borings. 

 
18.3. Engineering Services 

 
An engineering report will be prepared to present the results of the field and laboratory 
data together with our analyses of the results and recommendations.  CONSULTANT will 
provide two copies of the report and an electronic copy.  The report will address:  
 
• general soil and ground-water conditions, and remedial measures for observed 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 39  
 

surface water seepage as necessary   
• recommendations for pavement subgrade stabilization type, depth and concentration  
• comments on the presence of sulfates and remedial measures as required   
• an evaluation of the swell characteristics of the subgrade soils  
• guidelines for pavement design   
• earthwork recommendations  
  
Items other than those specified above, which are revealed by these studies or are 
necessitated by a change in project scope, may require revised field, laboratory, and 
engineering services.  These services, if required and requested, will be performed as 
Additional Services.   

 
 
19. AGENCY COORDINATION AND PERMITTING 

 
19.1. During the design and permitting phase, the CONSULTANT shall coordinate with 

agencies that may impact or influence the Project. Such agencies for the Quorum Drive 
project may include DART, NTTA, TxDOT, City of Dallas, Dallas County, and/or NCTCOG. 
The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for notifying the TOWN regarding any required 
permitting regulations imposed by any agency within the Project limits including crossing of 
other ROW or easements with the Project limits.  
 
At the TOWN’s request the CONSULTANT will prepare any necessary documentation, 
drawings, overlays, base maps, etc. required to receive said permit(s).  
 

19.2. CONSULTANT to provide for ADA plan review and inspections.  
 

 
20. MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION PACKAGES 
 

The ultimate, complete project will be designed at the same time, as a singular design effort. 
However, prior to advertising the Project for construction, the CONSULTANT will collaborate 
with the TOWN to determine whether the Project must be delivered in phases due to construction 
funding limitations. If needed, CONSULTANT shall break the construction documents into multiple 
construction document packages to accommodate phased construction. No more than two 
construction packages (for a two-phase construction) are anticipated.  

 

21. DIRECT EXPENSES 
 

Direct expenses, including plots, prints, plans, documents, presentation boards, visual aids, and 
mileage, will be covered by a fixed fee amount of $43,000 billed as a percentage complete 
over the duration of the contract. No individual or separate accounting of these items will be 
performed by the CONSULTANT or provided with invoices.  
 
An additional direct expenses allowance of $25,000 is established for potential costs 
associated with public engagement activities, such as venue costs, food, beverage, 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 40  
 

advertisements, and related items. Utilization of this direct expense allowance shall require 
prior approval by the TOWN. Associated expenses shall be itemized on project invoices and 
no markup shall be added.  

 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 41  
 

EXCLUSIONS AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
 

Services not specifically identified in the above Scope of Services shall be considered additional 

services and shall be performed on an individual basis upon written authorization by the TOWN.  

Additional services shall include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 

1. Attendance and preparation for meetings or presentations beyond those identified in the Scope 
of Services. 

2. Water shed studies, 2D drainage analysis, or drainage analysis/design beyond Quorum Drive 
corridor.  

3. Preparation of detailed traffic control plans other than those listed in the Scope of Services. 
4. Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plans other than those listed in the Scope of Services. 
5. Survey or design of improvements outside of the Project limits. 
6. Design of 24” or 36” water transmission main improvements. 
7. Detailed design of improvements within DNT ROW (schematic only). 
8. Design of improvements within DART ROW beyond a pavement connection to the southern edge 

of the existing railroad crossing panels. 
9. Offsite tree mitigation plans. 
10. Traffic studies or analysis beyond those identified in the Scope of Services. 
11. Public art design other than identified in the Scope of Services. 
12. Demolition plans for any existing structures or facilities beyond those identified in the Scope of 

Services. 
13. Environmental impact statements, evaluation or permitting related to TCEQ or the United States 

Army Corps of Engineers. 
14. Design of franchise utility relocations. 
15. TxDOT Local On-System Agreement (LOSA). 
16. Value Engineering efforts for layouts, designs or plans that have been approved for bidding 

by the TOWN. 
17. Public space event programming. 
18. Maintenance program development or implementation.  
19. Condemnation services. 
20. Construction phase services. 
21. Construction staking. 
22. Pipeline condition assessment. 
23. Detailed design of public space improvements, including but not limited to public amenities, 

hardscape features, street furnishings, and public art north of Belt Line Road. 
  

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 42  
 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE TOWN 
 

The TOWN shall perform and/or provide the following in a timely manner so as not to delay the 
Services of the CONSULTANT.  Unless otherwise provide in this Scope of Services, the TOWN shall 
bear all costs incident to compliance with the following: 

1. Furnish all available documents for all existing and proposed facilities within the Project limits. 
2. Furnish available electronic or hardcopy construction plans and documents for existing facilities 

or those proposed by work outside the Scope of Services within the Project limits as information 
becomes available. 

3. This scope of services anticipates that the TOWN or its representatives will provide base 
information for any other projects being designed within or adjacent to the Project limits.  If 
possible, the information shall be provided in electronic format. 

4. Furnish the TOWN’s standard details, specifications, and contract documents. 
  

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



 

 
 
Scope of Services for Quorum Drive Revitalization   Page 43  
 

ATTACHMENT ‘A’ – PLACEMAKING AND URBAN DESIGN VISIONING PROCESS 
 

 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



Attachment 'B' - Project Limits 
Quorum Drive Revitalization 

Legend    

Quorum - Project Limits

1000 ft

N

➤➤

N

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



Task Total Budget Civil Subtotal

Placemaking 

Subtotal Fee Structure

Task 1 - Project Management 221,540$          221,540$          -$                 Fixed Fee

Task 2 - Placemaking and Urban Design Visioning 344,227$          -$                 344,227$          Fixed Fee

Task 3 - Design Summary Report and Schematic Plan 262,308$          215,756$          46,552$            Fixed Fee

Task 4 - Design-Phase Public Involvement 98,800$            98,800$            -$                 Fixed Fee

Task 5 - Subsurface Utility Engineering and Utility Coordination 416,420$          416,420$          -$                 Fixed Fee

Task 6 - Topographic and Boundary Survey 110,495$          110,495$          -$                 Fixed Fee

Task 7 - Tree Identification and Management 45,000$            45,000$            -$                 Fixed Fee

Task 8 - Water & Wastewater Design 213,240$          213,240$          -$                 Fixed Fee

Task 9 - Drainage Analysis and Design 194,850$          194,850$          -$                 Fixed Fee

Task 10 - Roadway Design 392,690$          392,690$          -$                 Fixed Fee

Task 11 - Traffic Analysis and Signal Design 271,590$          271,590$          -$                 Fixed Fee

Task 12 - Illumination Design 141,940$          141,940$          -$                 Fixed Fee

Task 13 - Public Space, Landscape, Irrigation, and Aesthetics Design 522,050$          246,395$          275,655$          Fixed Fee

Task 14 - Miscellaneous Construction Document Development 284,625$          284,625$          -$                 Fixed Fee

Task 15 - Procurement Support Services 47,532$            40,800$            6,732$              Fixed Fee

Task 16 - Easement and ROW Document Preparation 126,000$          126,000$          -$                 Unit Price

Task 17 - Easement and ROW Acquisition 322,000$          322,000$          -$                 Unit Price

Task 18 - Geotechnical Investigations 27,500$            27,500$            -$                 Fixed Fee

Task 19 - Agency Coordination and Permitting 37,720$            37,720$            -$                 Fixed Fee

Task 20 - Multiple Construction Packages 73,120$            73,120$            -$                 Fixed Fee (If Needed)

Task 21 - Direct Expenses 68,000$            50,000$            18,000$            ($43k Fixed Fee; $25k Time & Expense Allowance)

Total 4,221,647$        3,530,481$        691,166$          

Additional Services Allowance 200,000$          (If Needed. Requires Town Approval.)

TOTAL 4,421,647$        

QUORUM DRIVE FEE SUMMARY

Exhibit A - Scope of Services



Quorum Drive 
Reconstruction 

Design

1

June 13, 2023



Project Background

• Quorum Drive was built in the early 1980s, asset 
management risk score is failed/critical.

• $26.3M approved by voters for the reconstruction 
of Quorum Drive as a part of Proposition B in the 
2019 bond election.

• $23,400,000 for civil work
• $2,902,000 for placemaking work

• Additional $489K in the Self-Funded Streets Fund 
is available.

2



Project Scope of Work

• Limits are from DART railroad south to Dallas Parkway.

• Replacement of all pavement with concrete.

• Replacement and upsizing of existing Town owned utilities.

• Traffic signal replacements.

• Installation of Master Transportation Plan elements.

• Installation of Art Walk components (walks, lighting and 
seating nodes)

• Placemaking visioning based on needs identified in Parks 
Master Plan

3



Artwalk and Placemaking

4

Consultant Scope:
• Create a Vision Plan that includes elements 

identified in the Quorum Artwalk and Parks, 
Recreation & Open Space (PROS) Master Plan.

• Develop Construction Documents for Phase I 
construction built around the project budget.

Recommendations from Parks, Recreation & Open 
Space Mater Plan Include:

• Connectivity, lighting, seating, bus shelters and 
space for future art installations.

• Small activation hubs accessible to pedestrians 
and adjacent employees.



Design Selection Process
• RFQ was posted to Bidsync on October 26, 2022.

• RFQ closed on November 21, 2022.

• Ten Statement of Qualifications were received.

• Top two engineering firms were selected for 
interviews by the selection committee.

• Teague Nall & Perkins was selected, Town staff 
began negotiations, were able to develop scope of 
work, and produce an agreement.

• Design is anticipated to take 18 months and 
construction is estimated to take 18 months.

5



Design Scope of Work

6

• Placemaking and urban design visioning

• Public involvement meetings.

• Schematic plans.

• Right of Way acquisition services.

• Subsurface utility engineering and coordination.

• Design of water, wastewater, drainage, illumination, 
traffic signals, and pavement.

• Design of public spaces, landscape, irrigation, and 
aesthetics.

• Procurement support services.

• Project media, recognition, and awards.



Project Funding

7

Funding Source Amount

2019 Bond Election $26,302,000*

Self-Funded Streets Fund $489,409

Total $26,791,409
*includes funding for both civil and park components

Estimate Descriptions Estimated Amounts

Civil Design Costs $3,530,481

Placemaking Design Costs $691,166

Design Allowance Contingency $200,000

In-House Project 
Management $600,000

Right-of-Way Acquisition $735,000

Design Support During 
Construction & Material 
Testing

$600,000

Amount Available for 
Construction $20,656,409

Total $26,791,409

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
$16,870,868 for Civil Construction$2,210,834 for placemaking$19,081,702 Total



Quorum Drive Reconstruction Design

Questions?

8



   

Council Meeting 10.        
Meeting Date: 06/13/2023  

Department: Finance
Pillars: Excellence in Asset Management

Excellence in Transportation Systems
Gold Standard in Financial Health

Milestones: Implement the Asset Management Plan in accordance with the Asset
Management Policy, utilizing information systems
Improve all modes of transportation with infrastructure in an
acceptable condition and well maintained
Continue development and implementation of Long Term Financial
Plan

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, discuss, and consider action on a Resolution authorizing publication of
notice of intention to issue Town of Addison, Texas Certificates of Obligation;
approving the preparation of a preliminary official statement and a notice of sale;
and, providing for the effective date.

BACKGROUND:
The attached Resolution provides notice that the Town intends to issue
Certificates of Obligation in an amount not to exceed $4,600,000; that amount
encompasses the proposed public infrastructure improvements at Vitruvian Park
and roadway improvement projects at the Addison Airport. The Resolution also
requires that the notice be published in the Dallas Morning News for two
consecutive weeks, with the first publication at least 46 days before the proposed
sale as well as posted on the Town's website for 45 consecutive days. These
Certificates of Obligation will be used for the following purposes:
 
The Town will be issuing up to $2,050,000 in Certificates of Obligation for the
purpose of public infrastructure improvements in Vitruvian Park.  The Town has
an investment commitment of approximately $50M and, to date, has invested
approximately $37M in public infrastructure in Vitruvian Park.  After this proposed
issuance of up to $2,050,000, approximately $11M of investment will remain.   
 
The Town will be issuing up to $2,550,000 in Certificates of Obligation for the
purpose of funding planned roadway capital improvements projects related to the
Addison Airport, serviced by revenue from the Addison Airport, including
reconstruction of Jimmy Doolittle Drive and the east side airport service road.

Please note the total potential issuance amount was increased by $100,000 from



the presentation on May 23, 2023, due to volatility in the bond market. In the
event the sale does not generate a premium, the proceeds, less issuance costs,
will generate $4.5M in project funds.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - Notice of Intent 2023 Certificates of Obligation 
Presentation - Notice of Intent 2023 Certificates of Obligation 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ____________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF INTENTION TO 
ISSUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION; APPROVING THE 
PREPARATION OF A PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT AND A 
NOTICE OF SALE; AND PROVIDING FOR THE EFFECTIVE DATE 
THEREOF. 

WHEREAS, the City Council (the “City Council”) of the Town of Addison, Texas (the 
“City”), deems it advisable to issue certificates of obligation (the “Certificates”) of the City, in 
one or more series, in an amount not to exceed $4,600,000 and in accordance with the notice 
hereinafter set forth;  

WHEREAS, the City desires to approve the preparation of a preliminary official 
statement (the “Preliminary Official Statement”) and the preparation of a notice of sale (“Notice 
of Sale”) if the Certificates are issued in a competitive sale, in anticipation of its issuance of the 
Certificates;  

WHEREAS, the City Council has found and determined that a notice of intention to issue 
certificates of obligation should be published in accordance with the requirements of section 
271.049 of the Texas Local Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, it is hereby found and determined that the meeting at which this resolution 
is considered is open to the public as required by law, and public notice of the time, place and 
purpose of said meeting was given as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

Section 1. The findings, definitions and recitations set out in the preamble to this 
resolution are found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted by City Council and made a 
part hereof for all purposes. 

Section 2. The City Secretary is hereby authorized and directed to cause to be 
published in the manner required by law and in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit 
A, a notice of the City’s intention to issue the Certificates (the “Notice”). 

Section 3. The Notice shall be published once a week for two (2) consecutive weeks 
in a newspaper which is of general circulation in the City, the date of the first publication to be at 
least forty-six (46) days before the date tentatively set in the Notice for the passage of the 
ordinance authorizing the issuance of the Certificates. In addition, the Notice shall be posted 
continuously on the City’s website for at least forty-five (45) days before the date tentatively set 
in the Notice for the passage of the ordinance authorizing the issuance of the Certificates. 



 
 
 

Section 4. For purposes of section 1.150-2(d) of the Treasury Regulations, this 
Notice serves as the City’s official declaration of intent to use proceeds of the Certificates to 
reimburse itself from Certificates issued in the maximum principal amount and for expenditures 
paid in connection with the projects, each as set forth in Exhibit A hereof.  Any such 
reimbursement will only be made (i) for an original expenditure paid no earlier than 60 days 
prior to the date hereof and (ii) not later than 18 months after the later of (A) the date the original 
expenditure is paid or (B) the date of with the project to which such expenditure relates is placed 
in service or abandoned, but in no event more than three years after the original expenditure is 
paid. 

Section 5. The Mayor, City Manager, the Chief Financial Officer, City Secretary and 
other appropriate officials of the City, the City’s financial advisor and bond counsel are 
authorized and directed to proceed with the preparation of the Preliminary Official Statement and 
the Notice of Sale, if any, and to make other necessary arrangements for the sale of the 
Certificates at a future meeting of the City Council of the City. 

Section 6. The City hereby authorizes the preparation and distribution of a Notice of 
Sale (if a competitive sale) and Preliminary Official Statement relating to the Certificates and 
authorizes the Chief Financial Officer or City Manager to approve the final form of and deem 
final such Preliminary Official Statement within the meaning and for the purposes of paragraph 
(b)(1) of Rule 15c2-12 of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 

Section 7. The Mayor, City Manager, or the Chief Financial Officer, City Secretary, 
and other officers and agents of the City are hereby authorized and directed to do any and all 
things necessary or desirable to carry out the provisions of this resolution. 

Section 8. This resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage by 
the City Council of the City. 

(Signature page follows) 



Resolution Authorizing Notice of Intent to Issue Certificates of Obligation 

 
 INTRODUCED, READ AND PASSED by the affirmative vote of the City Council of the 
Town of Addison, Texas this 13th day of June, 2023. 
 
        
        
       ____________________________________ 
            Bruce Arfsten, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
   Irma Parker, City Secretary         
 
 
 
 
 
[SEAL] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Whitt Wyatt, City Attorney  



 

EXHIBIT A 

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO ISSUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas (the 
“Town”), will meet in the Council Chambers at the Addison Conference Center, 15650 Addison 
Road,  Addison Texas 75001, the meeting place of the City Council, at 7:30 p.m. on the 8th day 
of August 2023, which is the time and place tentatively set for the passage of an ordinance and 
such other action as may be deemed necessary to authorize the issuance of the City’s certificates 
of obligation (the “Certificates”), in the maximum aggregate principal amount not to exceed 
$4,600,000, payable from the levy of a direct and continuing ad valorem tax against all taxable 
property within the City sufficient to pay the interest on the Certificates as due and to provide for 
the payment of the principal thereof as the same matures, as authorized by Chapter 271, 
Subchapter C, Texas Local Government Code, as amended, and from all or a part of the surplus 
revenues of the City’s waterworks and sewer system, such pledge of surplus revenues being 
limited to $1,000, bearing interest at any rate or rates not to exceed the maximum interest rate 
authorized by law, as shall be determined within the discretion of the City Council of the City at 
the time of issuance of the Certificates, and maturing over a period not to exceed forty (40) years 
from the date of issuance, for the purposes of evidencing the indebtedness of the City for all or 
any part of the costs associated with: (i) designing, engineering, developing, constructing, 
improving and repairing, extending and expanding streets, thoroughfares and bridges, including  
streetscaping, related storm drainage improvements, signalization and other traffic controls, 
sidewalks, street lights and the acquisition of any right of way therefor, including roadway 
improvements at the City’s airport; (ii) professional services incurred in connection with item (i) 
and to pay the costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the Certificates.  The estimated 
combined principal and interest required to pay the Certificates on time and in full is $6,957625.  
Such estimate is provided for illustrative purposes only, and is based on an assumed interest rate 
of 4.50%.  Market conditions affecting interest rates vary based on a number of factors beyond 
the control of the City, and the City cannot and does not guarantee a particular interest rate 
associated with the Certificates. As of the date of this notice, the aggregate principal amount 
outstanding of tax-supported debt obligations of the City is $133,225,000, and based on the 
City’s expectations, as of the date of this notice the combined principal and interest required to 
pay all of the outstanding tax-supported debt obligations of the City on time and in full is 
$168,080,356.  

WITNESS MY HAND AND THE OFFICIAL SEAL OF THE CITY, this 13th day of 
June, 2023. 

/s/Irma Parker, City Secretary 
Town of Addison, Texas 



Notice of Intent 2023
Certificates of Obligation

1

June 13th, 2023



2023 Proposed Certificates of Obligation
Total CO issuance up to $4,600,000
Up to $2,050,000 for Vitruvian Park Public 
Infrastructure Projects
The Town has committed to fund up to approximately 
$50M in infrastructure investment in Vitruvian Park
After this issuance the Town would have 
approximately $11M in remaining investment
20-year term with level debt service
Estimated annual payment of $155,000

2



2023 Proposed Certificates of Obligation-cont.
$2,550,000 for Airport Fund Capital Improvement 
Projects supported by Airport revenue
Reconstruction of Jimmy Dolittle Drive and the east 
airport service road
20-year term with level debt service
Estimated annual payment of $195,000

Estimated interest rate of 4.75%
Resolution and Notice of Intent have been 
prepared by the Town’s Bond Counsel

3



Timeline

4

May 23rd - Presented plan to the Council
 June 13th - City Council considers Resolution authorizing Notice of

Intent Publication for Certificates of Obligation
 June 19th - First Publication of Notice of Intent to Issue

Certificates of Obligation in Dallas Morning News
 June 24th - Post Notice of Intent to Issue Certificates of Obligation

on the Town’s website for 45 consecutive days
 June 26th - Second Publication of Notice of Intent to Issue

Certificates of Obligation in Dallas Morning News



Timeline Continued

Week of July 10th - Ratings calls

 July 26th - Receive ratings

August 8th - Hold competitive sale for the bonds

August 8th - Present ordinance authorizing the sale to Council

September 6th - Receive proceeds from bond sale

5



Questions

6


	Agenda
	1__Airport Quarterly Report, FY23 2nd Quarter
	       ATT_Presentation - FY23 Q2 Airport Report
	�Addison Airport�2nd Quarter Update – Fiscal Year 2023
	Addison Airport Quarterly Update – Overview
	FY23 Q2 Statistics – Aircraft Operations
	FY23 Q2 Statistics – International Operations
	FY23 Q2 Statistics – Fuel Flowage
	FY23 Q2 Statistics – Revenue
	Addison Airport – Projects and Progress
	Addison Airport – Projects and Progress
	Addison Airport – Projects and Progress
	Addison Airport Quarterly Update – Questions?

	2__Work Session - Update Selection of Public Safety Art Installation
	       ATT_Presentation - Public Safety Art Installation
	Slide 1: Public Safety Art Installation
	Slide 2: Background
	Slide 3: Background
	Slide 4: Background
	Slide 5: Proposed Art Installation Location
	Slide 6: Proposed Art Installation Location
	Slide 7
	Slide 8: Examples of Artist’s Work
	Slide 9: Proposed Art Installation
	Slide 10: Proposed Art Installation
	Slide 11: Proposed Art Installation
	Slide 12: Council Direction
	Slide 13

	3__Minutes - May 23, 2023
	       ATT_Minutes - May 23, 2023
	4__Resolution Appointing Regional Transportation Council (RTC) 
	       ATT_Resolution - Regional Transportation Council 2023
	5__Alcoholic Beverage Ordinance Update
	       ATT_Ordinance - Alcoholic Beverages
	       ATT_Redlined Ordinance - Alcoholic Beverages
	6__Regular - SUP for White Rock Chapel (1868-SUP/5555 Celestial Rd)
	7__Regular - Meritorious Exception for Hawkers (MR2023-04)
	       ATT_MR2023-04 Presentation
	Slide 1: Hawkers  Meritorious Exception  (MR2023-04)
	Slide 2: Case MR2023-04 Hawker’s
	Slide 3: Case MR2023-04 Hawker’s
	Slide 4: Case MR2023-04 Hawker’s
	Slide 5: Case MR2023-04 Hawker’s
	Slide 6: Case MR2023-04 Hawker’s
	Slide 7: Case MR2023-04 Hawker’s

	       ATT_MR2023-04 Ordinance
	       ATT_MR2023-04 Plans
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 4

	       ATT_MR2023-04 Rendering
	8__Regular - Addison Arbor Foundation Public Art
	       ATT_Presentation - AAF Public Art Instalation Hickman
	Slide 1
	Slide 2

	       ATT_Resolution - AAF Public Art Hickman
	9__Regular Item - Quorum Drive Reconstruction Design
	       ATT_Resolution - Teague Nall and Perkins
	TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS
	ATTEST:

	       ATT_Presentation - Quorum Drive Design
	Quorum Drive Reconstruction Design
	Project Background
	Project Scope of Work
	Artwalk and Placemaking
	Design Selection Process
	Design Scope of Work
	Project Funding
	Quorum Drive Reconstruction Design

	10__Regular: 2023 Certificate's of Obligation Notice of Intent
	       ATT_Resolution - Notice of Intent 2023 Certificates of Obligation
	       ATT_Presentation - Notice of Intent 2023 Certificates of Obligation
	Notice of Intent 2023 Certificates of Obligation
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Timeline
	Timeline Continued
	Questions




